
           

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

October 20, 2020 
9:30 A.M.

           

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular session
in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas to
consider the following items:

  

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.   

 

2. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval
for payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the
county.

  

 

3. Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda Item on a meeting’s Agenda.  During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her
remarks and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period,
regardless of the number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period,
shall be limited to ten (10) minutes.  Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated
among speakers should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment
Period.  Please note that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters
that are not on the agenda.

  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with
one single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order
that the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 4 – 43 )

  

 

4. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for 911
Communications.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0581-001110 911 Comm/Overtime $12,000
From 0100-0581-002010 911 Comm/FICA $918
From 0100-0581-002020 911 Comm/Retirement $1,747.20
To 0100-0587-001110 Wireless/Overtime $12,000
To 0100-0587-002010 Wireless/FICA $918
To 0100-0587-002020 Wireless/Retirement $1,747.20
 

5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Emergency Management.



 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004543 Repairs to Equipment $900
To 0100.0541.004541 Vehicle Maintenance & Repair $900
 

6. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Emergency
Management.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004210 Internet/Email Services $750
To 0100.0541.004621 Copier Rental & Supplies $750
 

7. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes,
position titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item
transfers.

 

8. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving property tax collections
for the month of September 2020 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

 

9. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to approve the County Attorney
September 2020 Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure
103.005.

 

10. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the purchase of a Winchester Model
1200 Shotgun by Constable Rick Coffman following his retirement as Williamson
County Constable Precinct No. 2 for the fair market value of $100, in accordance with
Texas Government Code, Chapter 614, Subchapter D.

 

11. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Services Contract
between Williamson County and Texas Disposal Systems, Inc. to provide commercial
trash service at the River Ranch Park in the amount of $499.00 per month for a
12-month term per the quote attached and authorizing execution of the agreement.

 

12. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Services Contract
between Williamson County and Mobile Wireless LLC to provide Annual
Netmotion Diagnostic Maintenance for FY21 in the amount of $57,927.00 per the
terms of DIR Contract #DIR-TSO-3810 and authorizing execution of the agreement.

 

13. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase from Knight
Security Systems, LLC to provide support for Williamson County buildings in the
amount of $73,587.71 per the terms of DIR Contract #DIR-CPO-4494.

 

14. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase for Adobe Sign



14. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase for Adobe Sign
Enterprise from SHI Government Solutions in the amount of $62,104.00 as per
BuyBoard Contract #579-19.

 

15. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the annual agreement
for Microsoft Enterprise Support Services contract renewal on DIR Contract
#DIR-TSO-3781, for the term of November 1, 2020 – October 31, 2021, with Microsoft
Corporation for the amount of $82,381.

 

16. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing a blanket purchase
order for ITS to Immix Technology Inc. for annual Kronos Maintenance, in the amount
of $85,177.04 as per GSA Contract GS-35F-0265X.

 

17. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Specific Malpractice
Insurance Coverage for Williamson County EMS from Higginbotham Insurance for the
annual premium of $25,709.00.

 

18. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving addendum to RFP
13RFP00101 to execute 90-day survivability period and authorizing execution of the
addendum.

 

19. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving agreement between
Lexipol, LLC and Williamson County for Online Subscription Services in the amount of
$6,446.00 and exempting this purchase from the competitive bidding requirement
per TLGC Discretionary Exemption for 262.024 (a)(7)(A) and authorizing the
execution of the agreement.

 

20. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the lease of one (1)
Sharp MX-3071 copier to support the operations of Williamson County Sheriff's Office,
in the amount of $184.84 per month per terms of DIR Contract #DIR-CPO-4433.

 

21. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the lease with Sharp
Electronics Corp for two (2) copiers in the amount of $143.00 per month and $210.12
per month for the County Attorney's Office, pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR
-CPO-4433.

 

22. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order
for microfilm and storage to the Texas State Library Commission in the amount of
$95,000.

 

23. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the
Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change
Order #21 in the amount of $4,511.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s
contingency from within the original project budget.

 

24. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the



24. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the
Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change
Order #22 in the amount of $781.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s
contingency from within the original project budget.

 

25. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the
Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change
Order #23 in the amount of $5,766.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s
contingency from within the original project budget.

 

26. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the
Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change
Order #24 in the amount of $4,124.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s
contingency from within the original project budget.

 

27. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the
Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change
Order #25 in the amount of $4,763.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s
contingency from within the original project budget.

 

28. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Work Authorization No. 3
for the Expo Center West Arena Parking (P562) in the amount of $17,000.00 to expire
on January 31, 2021, under Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services
between Williamson County and Kleinfelder, Inc. dated May 5, 2020.

 

29. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Supplemental Work
Authorization No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 2 for the River Ranch County Park Ph I
Improvements (P315) for a time extension only to expire on January 31, 2021, under
Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services between Williamson County and
Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc. effective December 4, 2018.

 

30. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the
Williamson County North Campus Facilities Project (P324); Vaughn Construction
Change Order #74 in the amount of $12,898.00. This change order is being funded by
owner’s contingency from within the original project budget.

 

31. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Supplemental Work
Authorization No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 2 for the Williamson County Expo
Concessions (P475) for a time extension only to expire on December 31st, 2020,
under Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services between Williamson
County and Allilance Engineering Group, Inc. effective September 17th, 2019.

 

32. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the 2nd Amendment to
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Populous, Inc., under Williamson County
Agreement for Architectural and Engineering Services between Williamson County
and Populous, Inc. effective January 16, 2015.  A/E is providing additional part-time
construction observation for October, November and December, 2020, for a
Not-to-Exceed amount of $10,000 and for Additional Civil Engineer Professional



Services for a Lump Sum of $5,000.  This scope will be funded through project
contingencies for P474 and P475.

 

33. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on ratifying the agreement with Texas
Cutting & Coring, L.P.and Williamson County for the Drop Box Wall Opening at the
Tax Office in the amount of $1,980.00 and authorizing execution of the agreement.

 

34. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed qualifications for Materials Testing and Geotechnical
Testing for Williamson County under RFQ T2086.

 

35. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the extension of Asphalt
Mixes Contract 1809-262, renewal period 2, covering the term of 11/3/2020 –
11/2/2021, for the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing contract with
Industrial Asphalt, LLC.

 

36. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the renewal of
Williamson County Pollution Liability Insurance AIG Storage Tank Third Party Liability
TankGuard Warranty for Policy Number PLC000168373 with Commerce and Industry
Insurance Company, for the term of 12/18/20 – 12/18/21.

 

37. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 2 in the
amount of $62,287.40 to expire on December 31, 2021 under Williamson County
Contract for Engineering Services between Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc. and
Williamson County dated July 16, 2019 for Utility Coordination for South San Gabriel
Ranches Subdivision (Aqua Water). Funding source: P489.

 

38. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase of one (1) 2021
Ford F-450 Regular Cab Bucket Truck in the amount of $91,818.50 including a
one-time administrative fee of $300 from Silsbee Ford, as per GoodBuy Contract
#20-8F000 and authorizing signature of the quote.

 

39. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the extension of Bulk
Fuel for Williamson County Contract 1807-245, renewal option period 2, for the term
of December 1, 2020 – November 30, 2021, for the same pricing, terms and
conditions as the existing contract with Petroleum Traders Corporation.

 

40. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and
receive sealed bids for Hairy Man Road / Brushy Creek Road Improvements under IFB T2232 .
Funding source: Project P284.

 

41. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for Crushed Granite Base under IFB #T2164.

 

42. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for Asphalt Cement under IFB #T2240.

 

43. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for



43. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for
Coupland Crossing subdivision – Precinct 4.

 

REGULAR AGENDA   

 

44. Discuss and take appropriate action on distribution of funds for the Hutto Education
Foundation.

 

45. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on resolution recognizing the month of
October as "Breast Cancer Awareness Month".

 

46. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on presentation on breast cancer and
allocation of HUD CDBG CARES funds for breast cancer screening and treatment of
other medically deferred healthcare during COVID-19 pandemic.

 

47. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on contingency plan for funding of
Williamson County Veterans Treatment Court for FY-2020/2021.

 

48. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a salary contribution
agreement with Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service.

 

49. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a request for the Williamson County
Regional Animal Shelter to apply for a grant to aid in the care of shelter kittens from
the Orphan Kitten Club.

 

50. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving an interlocal agreement
between Williamson County and Williamson County and Cities Health District for EMS
assistance with National Association of County and City Health Officials grant
implementation.

 

51. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on funding matters relating to
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act to include, but not be
limited to hearing an update on the Wilco Forward grant program, setting budget
priorities in relation to remaining CARES Act funds and possible future funding and
allocation plans in relation to CARES Act funds.

  

 

52. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to authorize Williamson County to enter
into a contract with Public Agency Training Council (PATC) to host the Investigative
Statement Analysis training for the Sheriff's Office. (Funds will be provided by the
Cold Case Task Force and Coalition grant previously awarded by the Criminal Justice
Division Criminal Justice Program).

 

53. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of
Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement regarding off duty contracting of County Sheriff
Deputies with Celebration Church to be effective October 20, 2020. (Traffic control
and security during various church services).

 



54. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order
for fuel to Fuelman in the amount of $650,000 pursuant to Omnia International
Contract #R161501.

 

55. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of
seventeen (17) 2020 Chevrolet Tahoes with upfitting from Holiday Chevrolet in the
amount of $876,670 pursuant to Tarrant County Cooperative Contract #'s 2019-014
for the vehicles and 2019-181 for the upfitting.

 

56. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase for annual
support and maintenance for Tyler Technologies Odyssey Judicial and Jail Software
in the amount of $456,237.06 and exempting Tyler Technologies from the competitive
bidding or proposal requirements as established by Section 262.024.(a)(7)(A) of the
Texas Local Government Code, as the sole provider of same.

 

57. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a purchase order for
Vemacs, VoteSafe, and BallotBoard annual support/licenses to
VOTEC Corporation in the amount of $114,307.46.

 

58. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing a blanket purchase
order for ITS to Time Warner Cable in the amount of $168,000.00 as per DIR
Cooperative Contract #DIR-TSO-4315.

 

59. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase
order for ITS for Suddenlink in the amount of $120,000, exempting this purchase from
competitive bidding requirements as per Texas Local Government Code Discretionary
Exemption 262.024.(a)(7)(C).

 

60. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on exempting the quote for support,
maintenance, and licenses in the amount of $7,254.25 from Environmental Systems
Research Institute, INC (ESRI) from competitive bidding as per 262.024 (a)(7) of the
Texas Local Government Code, Discretionary Exemptions and authorize the
purchase.

 

61. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a purchase proposal for
criminal records preservation from Kofile Technologies, Inc. in the amount of
$315,876 pursuant to GSA contract #GS-35F-275AA and authorizing execution of the
proposal.

 

62. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge expenditures for the County Attorney's Office.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0475.001927 Co Atty Legislative Supplement $32,140.75



0100.0475.002010 FICA $2,458.77
0100.0475.002020 Retirement $4,677.76
0100.0475.004902 Co Atty Legislative Supplement $37,722.72

 

63. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional revenues for the County Attorney's Office.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.335601 Co Atty Salary Supplement $77,000.00

 

64. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment acknowledging additional expenditures for the Radio Communication
System Fund.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0507.0507.005000 Capital Outlay > $5,000 $86,175.00

 

65. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment acknowledging additional expenditures for the Radio Communication
System Fund.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0507.0507.004545 800 MHZ Tower Maintenance $22,950.00

 

66. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2018 Capital
Improvement Program budget transfer to move $437,488.23 from Justice Center Back
Up Server Room (P469) to Justice Center Remodel (P515).

 

67. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing a blanket purchase
order for EMS to Fuelman in the amount of $175,000.00 as per Omnia Partners
Cooperative Contract #R5127.

 

68. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on rejecting proposals submitted on
RFP T1173 Billing Services for the EMS Department and request that information
related to competition be excepted pursuant to Texas Government Code 552.104 and
authorize the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive sealed proposals under new
RFP T2147.

 



69. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on exempting FirstWatch from the
competitive bidding requirements established by Section 262.024 (a) (7) of the Texas
Local Government Code Discretionary Exemptions, as the sole provider for real-time
situational awareness, dash boarding, data analysis software system to analyze CAD,
ePCR, ProQA, and 9-1-1 telephone data for the Williamson County and authorize the
purchase.

 

70. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Pricing
Proposal between Williamson County and Siddon-Martins Emergency Group LLC to
purchase four (4) Ford F-450 Type 1 Ambulances in the total amount of $954,224.00
per HGAC Contract #AM10-20(EMS), and authorizing the purchase.

 

71. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of que
management software maintenance and support from Nemo-Q in the amount of
$10,592 and exempting from the competitive bidding requirements per Texas Local
Government Code, Section 262.024 (a)(7)(D) captive replacement components for
equipment.

 

72. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Tyler
Technologies Orion Software Maintenance and Support in the amount of $91,440 and
exempting Tyler Technologies, Inc. from the competitive bidding requires per Texas
Local Government Code, Section 262.024 (a)(7)(A) discretionary exemption for an
item that can be obtained from only one source because of the existence of patents,
copyrights, secret processes or monopolies.

 

73. Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.
 

74. Receive the October 2020 Construction Summary Report and PowerPoint
Presentation for the Road Bond Program.

 

75. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2013 Road Bond
Budget Transfer per Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager, to move $105,000 from
2013 Road Non-Departmental (P290) to Seward Junction Southwest (P274) of
$75,000, Inner Loop Safety Improvements (P251) of $5,000 and CR 101 Phase I
(P269) of $25,000. Also, to move $750,000 from North Mays Extension (P224) to
University Blvd Expansion – Round Rock ILA (P327). Also, to move $825,000 from
Bagdad Road @ CR 278 (P438) to Seward Junction Southeast (P271). Also, to move
$100,000 from CR 119 (P214) to CR 110 Middle Phase 2 (P261). Also, to move
$150,000 from SH 130 Frontage Road (P302) to CR 110 Middle Phase 2 (P261).

 

76. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of one
(1) 2021 Freightliner M2-106 Chassis Truck w/Chipper body in the amount of
$102,129.00, one (1) 2021 Freightliner M2-106 Chassis Truck w/7-8 Yd dump body in
the amount of $91,640.00, one (1) 2021 Freightliner M2-112 Chassis Truck w/ 12-14
Yd dump body in the amount of $128,903.00 and one (1) 2021 Freightliner M2-112
Tractor in the amount $108,233.00 for the total amount of $430,905.00 that includes
TIPS fee, from Freightliner of Austin, as per TIPS Contract #200-206.

 



77. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of one
(1) 2021 Freightliner 114SD Chassis Truck w/4k gallon water tank in the amount of
$168,885.00 to include a $400 BuyBoard fee, from Freightliner of Austin, as per
BuyBoard Contract #601-19.

 

78. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of one (1)
2021 Etnyre Self Propelled Chip Spreader in the amount of $341,623.00, as per
BuyBoard Contract #597-19.

 

79. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Heavy
Equipment for one (1) RC5715 Land Pride Heavy Duty Cutter (LP2022) in the amount
of $41,428.08, two (2) M5-111HDC12--1 Tractors, in the amount of $60,056.74
each, for a grand total amount of $161,541.56 to include $400 Buyboard fee, from
Ewald Kubota, INC pursuant to BuyBoard Contract #611-20.

 

80. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Heavy
Equipment from Holt Cat for one (1) 2021 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader 416F in the
amount of $125,628.00 to include warranty and one (1) 2021 Caterpillar 926M Wheel
Loader in the amount of $189,563.00 to include warranty for a total amount of
$315,191.00 pursuant to Sourcewell Contract #032119-CAT.

 

81. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Heavy
Equipment from Kinloch Equipment & Supply Inc. for two (2) 2021 Elgin Street
Sweepers Crosswind 1 for $279,955 each, in the total amount of $559,910.00
pursuant to Sourcewell Contract #122017-FSC.

 

82. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order
for tires to Youngblood Automotive in the amount of $250,000.

 

83. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order
for parts to Don Hewlett Chevrolet, Buick Inc. in the amount of $125,000.

 

84. Consider a resolution determining the necessity and authorizing the use of eminent
domain to condemn 0.744 acres) required for the construction of the Southeast Loop
Project, and take appropriate action. (Brian N. Brown).

 

85. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Claim for Actual Moving Expenses
from Rhina Palazuelos on the Southeast Loop project (Parcel 13). Funding Source:
Road Bonds P463

 

86. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on 2 Claims for Fixed Moving Expense
Payments on the Southeast Loop project (Parcel 14). Funding Source: Road Bonds
P463

 

87. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Anton
George Kroschewsky for right of way needed on the CR 366 project (Parcel 18).
Funding Source: Road Bonds P296

 



 

88. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with D&L
Land Development, LLC for right of way needed on the CR 366 project (Parcel 7).
Funding Source: Road Bonds P296

 

89. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Edward
B. and Rebecca R. Roha for right of way needed on the Sam Bass Road project
(Parcel 16). Funding Source: Road Bonds P462

 

90. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Marilyn
C. LeBlanc a/k/a Marilyn Carlson LeBlanc for right of way needed on the Sam Bass
Road project (Parcel 11). Funding Source: Road Bonds P462

 

91. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Wilco
Land Investments I, LLC, Wilco Land Investments II, LLC and Wilco Land
Investments III, LLC for right of way needed on the SH 29 Corridor project. Funding
Source: Road Bonds P457

 

92. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Santa Rita Boulevard East
Phasing Agreement with Santa Rita KC, LLC.

 

93. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Braun Parkway Phasing
Agreement with Santa Rita KC, LLC and the Liberty Hill Independent School District.

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding
Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)." 

  

 

94. Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with third person.)
A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of
property owned by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: O'Connor Signal Project
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 



    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    i)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.
    j)     Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at
IH 35.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of right of way for the Great Oaks Bridge Project. 
    u)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Brushy Creek Trail Project. 
    v)    Discuss the acquisition of real property in conjunction with WCCF for potential
parkland/bird habitat.
    x)    Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property
North of WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    y)    Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property
owned by the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and
interests.
    b)    Discuss possible sale of +/- 10 acres located on Chandler Road near the
County Sheriff's Office Training Facility
    c)    Potential governmental uses for 8th Street downtown parking lot 
    d)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St.
between 3rd and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)
    e)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    f)     Discuss sale of excess 183A right of way to abutting property owner. 
    g)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    h)    Discuss Blue Springs Boulevard
    i)     Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
C.    Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman. 
D.    Discuss the possible placement of agricultural-related monuments at the
Williamson County Exposition Center with the participation of third parties.
E.    Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of
San Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1

 

95. Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section 551.087:
    a)    Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)    Wolf Lakes
    c)    Flint Hill Resources-Taylor Fuel Storage Terminal on CR 366
    d)    Project Deliver
    e)    Project Advantage
    f)     Project Cedar
    g)    Project Expansion



    h)    Project Arcos
    i)     Project Woods
    j)     Project Co-Op
    k)    Project Liberty
    l)     Project Long Haul
    m)   Project Bon Jovi
    n)    Project Crystal

 

96. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other
confidential attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA
Govt. Code sec. 551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain
matters related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. David Bernhardt, et al., In the
Western District Court, Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
g)  Cause No. 18-0903-C425/Court of Appeals Number: 01-19-00025-CV; Dee
Hobbs, Williamson County Attorney v. Bill Gravell, Jr., Williamson County Judge,
and Terry Cook, Cynthia Long, Valerie Covey and Russ Boles, County
Commissioners; In the 425th District Court of Williamson County, Texas
h)  Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al.,
In the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
i)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
j)  Case No. 19-0466-CC1; Billy Baskett v. Williamson County Sheriff’s Office et. al;
In the County Court at Law No. 1 of Williamson County, Texas.
k)  Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division
l)  D-1-GN-19-005511; Brian Johns v. Williamson County, Texas; In the 53rd
Judicial District Court of Travis County, Texas
m)  Civil Action No. 1:19-CV-1163; Amanda McCoy v. Williamson County, Texas et
al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.
n) Claim of Regina Wright.
o) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of
Williamson County, Texas.
p) Civil Action No. 1:20-CV-00062; Jaivonte Roberts v. Williamson County, Texas
et al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.
q) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United

  



States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
r) Cause No. 20-0752-C26; County of Williamson, by and through the Williamson
County Commissioners Court v. Robert Chody, Individually and in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of Williamson County; In the 26th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
s) Legal matters relating to Javier Ambler.
t) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
u) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his
official capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
v)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
w) Cause No. 20-1213-C368; Michael Klier v. Williamson County; In the 368th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
x) Cause No. 3SC-20-0114; City Of Leander, by and through Texas Municipal
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool As Subrogee, v. Williamson County; In The
Justice Court Precinct 3 of Williamson County, Texas.
y) Legal matters relating to Bailey Park Subdivision, Jarrell, Texas.

 

97. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees
and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion
pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive
Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters).

  

 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)   

 

98. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.   

 

99. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.   

 

100. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other
confidential attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA
Govt. Code sec. 551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain
matters related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. David Bernhardt, et al., In the
Western District Court, Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
g)  Cause No. 18-0903-C425/Court of Appeals Number: 01-19-00025-CV; Dee
Hobbs, Williamson County Attorney v. Bill Gravell, Jr., Williamson County Judge,

  



Hobbs, Williamson County Attorney v. Bill Gravell, Jr., Williamson County Judge,
and Terry Cook, Cynthia Long, Valerie Covey and Russ Boles, County
Commissioners; In the 425th District Court of Williamson County, Texas
h)  Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al.,
In the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
i)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
j)  Case No. 19-0466-CC1; Billy Baskett v. Williamson County Sheriff’s Office et. al;
In the County Court at Law No. 1 of Williamson County, Texas.
k)  Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division
l)  D-1-GN-19-005511; Brian Johns v. Williamson County, Texas; In the 53rd
Judicial District Court of Travis County, Texas
m)  Civil Action No. 1:19-CV-1163; Amanda McCoy v. Williamson County, Texas et
al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.
n) Claim of Regina Wright.
o) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of
Williamson County, Texas.
p) Civil Action No. 1:20-CV-00062; Jaivonte Roberts v. Williamson County, Texas
et al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.
q) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
r) Cause No. 20-0752-C26; County of Williamson, by and through the Williamson
County Commissioners Court v. Robert Chody, Individually and in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of Williamson County; In the 26th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
s) Legal matters relating to Javier Ambler.
t) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
u) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his
official capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
v)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
w) Cause No. 20-1213-C368; Michael Klier v. Williamson County; In the 368th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
x) Cause No. 3SC-20-0114; City Of Leander, by and through Texas Municipal
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool As Subrogee, v. Williamson County; In The
Justice Court Precinct 3 of Williamson County, Texas.
y) Legal matters relating to Bailey Park Subdivision, Jarrell, Texas.

 

101. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual
reviews of department heads and appointed officials.

  

 



102. Comments from Commissioners.   

 

_________________________
Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson
County Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 16th day
of October 2020 at 5:00 P.M. and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted By: Ashlie Koenig, Budget Office
Department: Budget Office
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for 911 Communications.

Background
When FY 21 budgets were submitted in May, the Wireless and 911 Communication budgets
were consolidated.  Upon recommendation release, the Auditor's Office requested these
budgets not be combined.  A spreadsheet was sent to the Budget Office indicating how much
money to move out of 911 Communications and back to Wireless.  This item was inadvertently
left off the spreadsheet.  The line item transfer will correct it.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0581-001110 911 Comm/Overtime $12,000
From 0100-0581-002010 911 Comm/FICA $918
From 0100-0581-002020 911 Comm/Retirement $1,747.20
To 0100-0587-001110 Wireless/Overtime $12,000
To 0100-0587-002010 Wireless/FICA $918
To 0100-0587-002020 Wireless/Retirement $1,747.20

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/06/2020 12:02 PM
Form Started By: Ashlie Koenig Started On: 10/06/2020 11:39 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/06/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Line item transfer for Emergency Management
Submitted By: Michael Shoe, Emergency Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Emergency Management.

Background
This transfer is necessary for repairs to the command bus.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004543 Repairs to Equipment  $900
To 0100.0541.004541 Vehicle Maintenance & Repair  $900

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/12/2020 04:32 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 10/13/2020 08:28 AM
Form Started By: Michael Shoe Started On: 10/12/2020 04:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/13/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Line item transfer for Emergency Management
Submitted By: Michael Shoe, Emergency Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Emergency
Management.

Background
This transfer is necessary for a copier rental.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004210 Internet/Email Services  $750
To 0100.0541.004621 Copier Rental & Supplies  $750

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/12/2020 04:32 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 10/13/2020 08:31 AM
Form Started By: Michael Shoe Started On: 10/12/2020 04:21 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/13/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Compensation Items
Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position
titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Merit Report 
Merit LIT 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 10/15/2020 08:42 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 09:24 AM
Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 10/15/2020 08:34 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Department Position

Emp 

Num

Current 

Annual Salary Merit%

Lumpsum 

Merit

Pay Proposal 

Reason

Effective Date 

of Change

Budget Office Budget Ofcr.0222.001100. 4765 139,928.62$   2.00% 2,798.64$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Commissioners Court General Counsel.0717.001100. 10733 135,179.20$   2.00% 2,703.48$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Commissioners Court Public Affairs Mgr.0720.001100. 10138 85,186.14$     2.00% 1,703.78$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0336.001100. 14273 30,607.08$     2.00% 612.14$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0323.001100. 5734 39,635.15$     2.00% 792.70$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0335.001100. 10846 38,296.42$     5.00% 1,914.82$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0321.001100. 14321 30,607.08$     1.00% 306.07$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Office Spec Sr Jail.0589.001100. 14851 38,807.81$     1.50% 582.12$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Office Spec Sr Jail.0590.001100. 12681 41,040.23$     2.25% 923.41$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0322.001100. 10606 36,472.80$     1.50% 547.09$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0319.001100. 14150 30,607.08$     1.50% 459.11$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Office Coord I Jail.0586.001100. 14917 40,815.26$     2.00% 816.31$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0331.001100. 12090 36,126.17$     1.00% 361.26$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Assistant Chief Deputy CO.0338.001100. 5921 126,386.26$   5.00% 6,319.31$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0330.001100. 5729 39,635.15$     2.25% 891.79$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Office Adm Jail.0583.001100. 10230 53,961.63$     5.00% 2,698.08$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0337.001100. 13616 30,607.08$     1.50% 459.11$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0333.001100. 15422 28,017.60$     0.50% 140.09$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0329.001100. 15289 28,017.60$     1.00% 280.18$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Educational Coordinator.1938.001100. 14070 53,279.72$     2.00% 1,065.59$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0317.001100. 11947 37,380.78$     2.00% 747.62$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0325.001100. 13598 31,828.41$     1.00% 318.28$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0327.001100. 12602 36,126.19$     1.50% 541.89$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0316.001100. 11026 38,668.22$     1.50% 580.02$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0328.001100. 15065 28,858.13$     1.00% 288.58$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0315.001100. 10885 38,668.24$     1.50% 580.02$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Adm Tech Jail.0326.001100. 11772 37,743.74$     2.00% 754.87$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Office Spec Sr Jail.0314.001100. 14566 32,473.21$     1.50% 487.10$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Corrections Office Spec Sr Jail.0588.001100. 15378 37,336.00$     0.50% 186.68$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

County Attorney CA Legal Asst II.0020.001100. 14529 45,698.27$     2.00% 913.97$         MERIT 13-Nov-20

County Attorney CA Legal Asst II.0022.001100. 13657 45,595.01$     2.00% 911.90$         MERIT 13-Nov-20



County Attorney CA Chief Legal Assistant.1631.001100. 14733 44,492.24$     2.00% 889.84$         MERIT 13-Nov-20

County Attorney CA Civil Attorney.1721.001100. 15423 89,594.44$     2.00% 1,791.89$      MERIT 13-Nov-20

Emergency Services Dept. Sr Dir of Emerg Serv.0904.001100. 14724 162,884.80$   2.00% 3,257.80$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Information Systems Sr Dir of Technology Serv.0959.001100. 4372 169,726.44$   2.00% 3,394.56$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Information Systems System Administrator II.0956.001100.Y 11933 64,267.32$     0.70% 449.87$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Information Systems Analyst I.1810.001100.Y 14537 65,552.76$     0.30% 196.66$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Information Systems IT Director II.0954.001100. 4732 123,355.96$   0.30% 370.07$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Parks Sr Dir Parks and Venues.1210.001100. 15094 122,000.06$   2.00% 2,440.10$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Purchasing Specialist II.1696.001100. 14908 43,284.88$     2.00% 865.70$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Deputy Purchasing Agent.1214.001100. 10956 89,252.80$     2.00% 1,785.06$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Purchasing Specialist III.1805.001100. 14126 46,104.34$     2.00% 922.09$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Sr Purchasing Coordinator.1219.001100. 12079 67,650.96$     2.00% 1,353.02$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Contracts Specialist.1701.001100. 14104 55,106.52$     2.00% 1,102.13$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Purchasing Specialist III.1213.001100. 15030 44,116.80$     4.00% 1,764.67$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Purchasing Purchasing Specialist II.1216.001100. 14915 42,032.18$     2.00% 840.64$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Administrative Services Mgr.1421.001100. 14251 98,787.26$     4.50% 4,445.43$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Financial Manager.1223.001100.Y 15057 69,585.88$     1.75% 1,217.75$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Admin SO.1392.001100. 13364 44,831.57$     5.00% 2,241.58$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Coordinator SR.1419.001100. 14354 56,789.20$     1.50% 851.84$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1227.001100. 15340 29,411.20$     1.00% 294.11$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Media / Evidence Tech - CID.1731.001100. 14420 45,328.07$     5.00% 2,266.40$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Crime Analyst.1249.001100. 11520 65,963.75$     1.50% 989.46$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Training Coord SO.1422.001100. 4309 47,709.29$     5.00% 2,385.46$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Spec Sr SO.1393.001100. 12849 41,085.55$     1.00% 410.86$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Spec Sr SO.1395.001100. 14789 35,720.51$     1.00% 357.21$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Evidence Tech SO.1376.001100. 10979 54,022.36$     2.00% 1,080.45$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Computer Forensics Analyst.1307.001100. 14828 84,024.87$     1.00% 840.25$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Animal Control Spec.1240.001100. 15107 30,908.80$     0.50% 154.54$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Spec S O.1224.001100. 13198 36,761.80$     2.00% 735.24$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Evidence Tech SO.1935.001100. 13366 39,554.05$     2.00% 791.08$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Public Information Officer.1396.001100. 14140 59,950.02$     5.00% 2,997.50$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Crime Analyst.1228.001100. 13428 56,805.84$     2.25% 1,278.13$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1230.001100. 15341 29,411.20$     0.50% 147.06$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Animal Control Spec.1239.001100. 15406 30,911.71$     0.50% 154.56$         MERIT 16-Oct-20



Sheriff's Office Crime Analyst.1817.001100. 14778 55,161.60$     2.25% 1,241.14$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Terminal Agency Coordinator.1637.001100. 4978 60,291.09$     2.00% 1,205.82$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1236.001100. 12769 35,090.68$     1.00% 350.91$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Spec Sr SO.1394.001100. 12422 44,616.69$     4.00% 1,784.67$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Animal Control Spec.1238.001100. 14894 30,911.71$     2.00% 618.23$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Sex Offender Registrar.1417.001100. 14180 48,939.65$     1.00% 489.40$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Crime Scene Supervisor.1248.001100. 4491 73,479.22$     5.00% 3,673.96$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Spec Sr SO.1397.001100. 14422 37,620.92$     1.75% 658.37$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Adm SO.1387.001100. 12236 51,072.20$     1.50% 766.08$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1233.001100.Y 14823 28,572.52$     1.00% 285.73$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1234.001100. 13902 30,609.97$     2.00% 612.20$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1232.001100. 5248 40,561.54$     2.00% 811.23$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1229.001100. 4631 40,561.54$     2.00% 811.23$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Spec Sr SO.1390.001100. 13903 34,798.67$     1.00% 347.99$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Adm SO.1388.001100. 10761 56,163.37$     2.00% 1,123.27$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Spec Sr OPC.1391.001100. 15381 37,336.00$     0.50% 186.68$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1225.001100. 14473 30,601.19$     2.00% 612.02$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Victim Assistance Dir SO.1425.001100. 14705 52,693.42$     2.00% 1,053.87$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Sr Office Adm SO.1389.001100. 12945 63,847.16$     5.00% 3,192.36$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Cr Scene Spec.1247.001100. 5401 66,557.77$     2.00% 1,331.16$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office SO AP Clerk.1420.001100. 5579 50,497.84$     1.50% 757.47$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Cr Scene Spec.1377.001100. 5103 66,474.03$     2.00% 1,329.48$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1226.001100. 12010 37,017.86$     2.00% 740.36$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Office Specialist SR.0068.001100. 14435 37,259.19$     1.75% 652.04$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Victim Asst Caseworker.1424.001100. 15211 43,284.80$     1.75% 757.48$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office PT Admin Tech.9924.001101. 15291 28,012.28$     0.50% 140.06$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Victim Assist Vol Coord.1423.001100. 14198 45,007.56$     1.75% 787.63$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Adm Tech S O.1231.001100. 12057 40,561.54$     2.00% 811.23$         MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Paralegal SO.1398.001100. 4583 69,932.43$     5.00% 3,496.62$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Sheriff's Office Fleet Mgr SO.1378.001100. 14707 57,339.80$     2.00% 1,146.80$      MERIT 16-Oct-20

Unified Road Systems Engineer Assistant.1590.001100. 15461 64,392.90$     0.78% 500.00$         MERIT 11-Dec-20

Unified Road Systems Engineer Assistant.1608.001100. 15436 64,392.90$     0.78% 500.00$         MERIT 13-Nov-20

Unified Road Systems Engineer Assistant.1494.001100. 15437 64,392.90$     0.78% 500.00$         MERIT 13-Nov-20

Unified Road Systems Operator II.1621.001100. 14842 41,539.26$     1.93% 800.00$         MERIT 27-Nov-20



Unified Road Systems Operator I.1514.001100. 15442 36,899.99$     0.81% 300.00$         MERIT 13-Nov-20



(TO) (FROM)

entity fund dept object dr cr

01 0100 0576 001100 1493.23 Reverse Merit PCN 1260

01 0100 0576 001130 1493.23 Reverse Merit PCN 1260

01 0100 0571 001100 399.19          Correction to LIT approved 9.29.20

01 0100 0571 001130 399.19          Correction to LIT approved 9.29.20

01 0571 0571 001101 399.19          Correct Fund

01 0571 0571 001130 399.19          Correct Fund

01 0545 0545 001100 1601.44 Correct PT LIT

01 0545 0545 001101 1601.44 Correct PT LIT

01 0100 0495 001100 568.05 Correct PT LIT

01 0100 0495 001101 568.05 Correct PT LIT

01 0100 0453 001100 649.48 Correct Merit Budget - new PCN

01 0100 0453 001130 649.48 Correct Merit Budget - new PCN

01 0100 0591 001100 3164.34 Correct Merit Budget - new PCN

01 0100 0591 001130 3164.34 Correct Merit Budget - new PCN

01 0200 0210 001100 999.98 Correct PT LIT

01 0200 0210 001101 999.98 Correct PT LIT

01 0100 0576 001100 3541.24 PCN 1168 merit

01 0100 0576 001130 3541.24 PCN 1168 merit

01 0508 0508 001100 711.42 PCN 1728 merit reduction

01 0508 0508 001130 711.42 PCN 1728 merit reduction

01 0382 0382 001100 502.1 Grant not yet renewed

01 0382 0382 001130 502.1 Grant not yet renewed

01 0100 0576 001100 492.25 Correct PT LIT

01 0100 0576 001101 492.25 Correct PT LIT

01 0100 0491 001100 2,798.64       

01 0100 0491 002010 214.10          

01 0100 0491 002020 407.48          

01 0100 8001 001130 2,798.64       

01 0100 8001 002010 214.10          

01 0100 8001 002020 407.48          

01 0100 0401 001100 4,407.26       

01 0100 0401 002010 337.16          

01 0100 0401 002020 641.70          

01 0100 8001 001130 4,407.26       

01 0100 8001 002010 337.16          

01 0100 8001 002020 641.70          

01 0100 0583 001100 3,257.80       

01 0100 0583 002010 249.22          

01 0100 0583 002020 474.34          

01 0100 8001 001130 3,257.80       

01 0100 8001 002010 249.22          

01 0100 8001 002020 474.34          

01 0100 0503 001100 3,394.56       



01 0100 0503 002010 259.68          

01 0100 0503 002020 494.25          

01 0100 8001 001130 3,394.56       

01 0100 8001 002010 259.68          

01 0100 8001 002020 494.25          

01 0100 0510 001100 2,440.10       

01 0100 0510 002010 186.67          

01 0100 0510 002020 355.28          

01 0100 8001 001130 2,440.10       

01 0100 8001 002010 186.67          

01 0100 8001 002020 355.28          

01 0100 0475 001100 4,507.60       

01 0100 0475 001130 4,507.60       

01 0100 0494 001100 8,633.31       

01 0100 0494 001130 8,633.31       

01 0200 0210 001100 2,600.00       

01 0200 0210 001130 2,600.00       

01 0100 0560 001100 55,274.34    

01 0100 0560 001101 140.06          

01 0100 0560 002010 4,239.20       

01 0100 0560 002020 8,068.34       

01 0100 8003 001130 55,414.40    

01 0100 8003 002010 4,239.20       

01 0100 8003 002020 8,068.34       

01 0100 0570 001100 23,654.24    

01 0100 0570 002010 1,809.55       

01 0100 0570 002020 3,444.06       

01 0100 8003 001130 23,654.24    

01 0100 8003 002010 1,809.55       

01 0100 8003 002020 3,444.06       



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Property Tax Collections - September 2020
Submitted For: Larry Gaddes 
Submitted By: Cathy Atkinson, County Tax Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving property tax collections for the
month of September 2020 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
090120-093020 GWI-RFM 
090120-093020 GWI-RFM Graph 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/08/2020 11:40 AM
Form Started By: Cathy Atkinson Started On: 10/08/2020 11:16 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/08/2020 



Williamson 
County 

General Fund Tax Roll Adjustments Adjusted Tax Roll
Current Tax 

Collected
Penalty & Interest 

Collected Variance
Uncollected 

Balance YTD Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected 
w/P & I

YTD Percent 
Collected w/P 

& I & Prior 
Years

2019 $288,080,730.50 ($260,011.81) $287,820,718.69 $166,011.33 $34,483.48 $3,400.90 $1,051,403.50 $286,769,315.19 99.63% 99.86% 100.32%
2018 & Prior $2,372,220.70 ($910,516.05) $1,461,704.65 $17,899.34 $12,549.92 $937.18 $1,587,560.03 ($125,855.38) -8.61% 6.19%  

Rollbacks $365,097.69 $1,055,745.65 $1,420,843.34 $62,977.25 $0.00 $0.00 $205,016.50 $1,215,826.84 85.57% 86.24%
    

Total All $290,818,048.89 ($114,782.21) $290,703,266.68 $246,887.92 $47,033.40 $4,338.08 $2,843,980.03 $287,859,286.65 99.02% 99.33%  

Williamson 
County      

RFM Tax Roll Adjustments Adjusted Tax Roll
Current Tax 

Collected
Penalty & Interest 

Collected Variance
Uncollected 

Balance YTD Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected 
w/P & I

YTD Percent 
Collected w/P 

& I & Prior 
Years

2019 $27,355,408.62 ($17,610.10) $27,337,798.52 $15,867.00 $3,282.68 $324.90 $99,808.65 $27,237,989.87 99.63% 99.86% 100.30%
2018 & Prior $208,455.77 ($84,400.68) $124,055.09 $1,670.93 $1,121.19 $73.40 $136,835.43 ($12,780.34) -10.30% 5.70%  

Rollbacks $33,250.27 $98,257.94 $131,508.21 $5,889.29 $0.00 $0.00 $19,357.23 $112,150.98 85.28% 85.95%
   

Total All $27,597,114.66 ($3,752.84) $27,593,361.82 $23,427.22 $4,403.87 $398.30 $256,001.31 $27,337,360.51 99.07% 99.37%  

$318,415,163.55 ($118,535.05) $318,296,628.50 $270,315.14 $51,437.27 $4,736.38 $3,099,981.34 $315,196,647.16

Oct-19 $318,415,163.55 $69,338.91 $318,484,502.46 $7,496,527.39 $48,223.83 $1,321.80 $310,986,653.27 $7,497,849.19    
Nov-19 $318,484,502.46 $694,814.30 $319,179,316.76 $16,104,942.86 $10,400.61 $590.80 $295,575,933.91 $23,603,382.85
Dec-19 $319,179,316.76 ($484,593.07) $318,694,723.69 $169,824,788.05 $25,118.81 $3,263.02 $125,263,289.77 $193,431,433.92
Jan-20 $318,694,723.69 ($56,846.87) $318,637,876.82 $109,780,093.26 $20,000.98 ($112,301.44) $15,538,651.08 $303,099,225.74
Feb-20 $318,637,876.82 $29,340.37 $318,667,217.19 $4,922,830.80 $288,359.87 $25,196.03 $10,619,964.62 $308,047,252.57
Mar-20 $318,667,217.19 ($53,707.58) $318,613,509.61 $2,319,345.21 $126,283.60 $1,385.41 $8,245,526.42 $310,367,983.19
Apr-20 $318,613,509.61 ($426,832.91) $318,186,676.70 $462,125.51 $99,273.07 $511.82 $7,356,056.18 $310,830,620.52
May-20 $318,186,676.70 $5,862.10 $318,192,538.80 $1,850,438.14 $88,865.60 $2,017.84 $5,509,462.30 $312,683,076.50
Jun-20 $318,192,538.80 $41,233.13 $318,233,771.93 $524,316.43 $74,153.22 $2,086.85 $5,024,292.15 $313,209,479.78
Jul-20 $318,233,771.93 $105,007.30 $318,338,779.23 $1,362,371.10 $78,478.82 $1,654.07 $3,765,274.28 $314,573,504.95
Aug-20 $318,338,779.23 $5,609.63 $318,344,388.86 $339,659.38 $54,605.76 $8,431.31 $3,422,793.22 $314,921,595.64
Sep-20 $318,344,388.86 ($47,760.36) $318,296,628.50 $270,315.14 $51,437.27 $4,736.38 $3,099,981.34 $315,196,647.16

2019 COMBINED MONTHLY BREAKDOWN

YEAR TO DATE - COLLECTION REPORT
Williamson County - GWI/RFM Property Taxes

September 1-30, 2020

10/6/2020 YTD Monthly Rpt 4:20 PM



99.63%

0.37%

Year to Date Collection Report
October 1, 2019 ‐ September 30, 2020

YTD Collected YTD Uncollected

99.63%

0.37%

Year to Date Collection Report
October 1, 2019 ‐ September 30, 2020

YTD Collected YTD Uncollected

RFMGWI

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Percent of Roll Collected Comparison
2015‐2019

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Percent of Roll Collected Comparison
2015‐2019

Tax Year Tax Year



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

County Attorney September 2020 Monthly Report
Submitted For: D. Hobbs  Submitted By: Stephanie Lloyd, County

Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to approve the County Attorney September 2020
Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
September report 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/06/2020 01:54 PM
Form Started By: Stephanie Lloyd Started On: 10/06/2020 01:47 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/06/2020 





�������������	
��
�������������
 �
������������� �����	
������� �����	
���
� �����	
������� �����	
�������
���� ! � �� ����""#  ����	����� �$�%� �� $�!$�   ���	����� �$�%! �� $�!%&&��� $�'�('��� $� !!! '���	����� �$�(' �� $�%&�!��� $�(&���������!�! ����	����� �$�!� �� $��&&!�������(�(������������� $�(&&��$���	����� �$�&! �� $�'�$&��� $�((!$)*+*,-�./012%( %�� �(�' ����""#�3� �$���	����� �$��& �34�5��44��6�6�"�����78,7**�./012%! ��� �%'( ����""#�9�"4�:4�"9�� �%���	����� �$� � �� $�('�$������ !�%������ ��� (���	����� �$�%& �� $�%�!���� $�!(��������� '  '���	����� �$�(' �� $�%&%%��� $�%'&��������(�(��������''�������& ���� $�!$�  &���	����� �$�!' ������������ $�(&&��������(� ��� $�'�('�������%� � ���	����� �$�'� �� $�!�%%�%���	����� �$�'$ ������ $'������ ����!���	����� �$��' �� $�'%�$�&���	����� �$�& �� $���%���� $�!(&(%����	����� �$�$% �� &�'�!'��� $�! �%��� $�(�������""#�9�"4�:4�"9���   ���	����� �$�%! �� $�'!!���� $�!%&&�������$�'��� $� !!!����""#�9�"4�:4�"9����   ���	����� �$�%! �� $�'!$���� $�!�($��� $�'!%��������% (��� $�(&���������!�!7-,***�./012%!���� � �� ����""# �%���	����� �$� � �����!&���%�����	����� �$�'% ���� &(��� ;<����=>���3
4#����! ���� ;?4

�>�"�4:������!'$��� ;"9@4�9��>�����#����!����� ;"9@4�9��>�����#����!� ��� ;"9@4�9��>�����#����'� ��� ;��:9�>�
�"9�3�����'����� ;��
4<��>�5#�3�?��(���	����� �$��(  $�� $''�%;<����"#>�A�"�9�5 $��(�!�� ;��BB9��>�<���9��99 $��(�! � ;��BB9��>�<���9��99 $��(�!%� ;��BB9��>�<���9��99 $��(' ��%;<����"#>�A�"�9�5 $��!%!!� ;�6B9�������:�>�@��4� $��'�' �%;:9

�64�"4�4�"����>�@��4 $��'%!!� ;�39�96>���4
������(�&�%;��<9�4C������>�@��47-))**�./012%'! �� � �� ����""# �%���	����� �$�'$ �� $���%%

�����	
������
D�'�E��D� &�E��D�(>%(%E($D�'&�E��D�� �E��F�-G8+7H8ID�( �E��F�8,*H**D� >%'�E��D� >���E��D��>&'�E��D��>%'�E��D�!��E��D����E��D�%'�E��D�&'�E��D� >%'�E��D� >���E��D��>!&�E��F�,-GI**H**D� ��E��D��>(��E��D�&>���E��D��>&��E��D� >���E��D��>(��E��D��>���E��D� >'��E��D� >'�(E��D�'�&E��D�((�E!�D�((�E!�D��> �&E��D�'�&E��D� > �&E��D�'�&E��D�'�&E��F�)IG*-7H**D�%��E��A�J�����K�!



�������������	
��
�������������
 �
������������� �����	
������� �����	
���
� �����	
������� �����	
�������
��� !!�"#$%&'(%)*�"#$%& �����	
������
+��!!,!!+�� - ��,./

0�1��2��3�4



9/7/2020 Jorge L Martinez 60.00$            2019-5901 9/8/2020

60.00$            
9/8/2020 Claudia Yvette Talamantez 60.00$            2019-5388 9/10/2020
9/9/2020 Jessica Raquel Cantu 60.00$            2019-6046 9/10/2020
9/9/2020 Dwayne Hall, Jr 60.00$            2019-1555 9/10/2020

180.00$          

9/10/2020 Andres Flores 60.00$            2019-4800 9/15/2020

9/11/2020 Monica Bermudez 60.00$            2020-0575 9/15/2020

9/11/2020 Erick Rodriguez 4,223.49$       2019-3825 9/15/2020

4,343.49$       
9/15/2020 Robert Ramirez 60.00$            2020-0424 9/17/2020
9/16/2020 Noah Barrios 500.00$          2019-0885 9/17/2020
9/16/2020 Lorena Macias 60.00$            2019-4880 9/17/2020
9/16/2020 Michelle Mele 60.00$            2020-0772 9/17/2020

680.00$          
9/25/2020 Chad Wright 150.00$          2019-6298 9/29/2020
9/26/2020 Reyes Torres 60.00$            2019-4459 9/29/2020

210.00$          

Criminal Restitution September 2020



Disbursement Summary
Code Word Description (+) Collection

Amount
(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

CHKFEE Check Fee 410.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 410.00

Disbursement Summary Totals 410.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 410.00

(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

Check ID Number Defendant Code
Disbursement Detail (+) Collection

Amount
(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0016-00354 LLAMAS, CARLOS E (PID #: 933173)
CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0016-00355 LLAMAS, CARLOS E (PID #: 933173)
CHKFEE 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.0019-00045 GALLOWAY, ELIZABETH (PID #:

1270398)
CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0019-00394 Cusick, Nichole (PID #: 581149)
CHKFEE 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.0020-00078 Bull, Lara (PID #: 359092)
CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0020-00087 Newman, Cathy Cruz (PID #: 553177)
CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0020-00091 Herman, Madison Lee (PID #: 1702294)
CHKFEE 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.0020-00093 Hartung, Harold R (PID #: 1702310)
CHKFEE 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.0020-00098 JACKSON, ALICIA A (PID #: 348291)
CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0020-00104 Grant, Clint (PID #: 1704614)

Totals: 410.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 410.00

Disbursement Summary
Collection Date Range:

TXWILLIAMSONP
ROD

08/01/2020 - 08/31/2020
County Attorney

Williamson County Treasurer - HC
County Attorney Bank

Final CopyIgnore Tender Holds: No

Printed on 09/01/2020 at 12:18 pm Page 12 of 15



8/31/2020 Luis Castillo 500.00$           2019-4609 9/2/2020
8/31/2020 Michelle Majadire 500.00$           2020-1523 9/2/2020
9/1/2020 Tawni Spangler-Reider 360.00$           2020-1020 9/2/2020

1,360.00$        
9/4/2020 Kayla Herrick 360.00$           2019-6557 9/9/2020
9/8/2020 Claudia Talamantez 500.00$           2019-5388 9/9/2020
9/8/2020 Rebecca West 500.00$           2020-0906 9/9/2020
9/8/2020 Dwayne Hall, Jr 360.00$           2019-1555 9/9/2020

1,720.00$        
9/9/2020 Felix Suarez Hernandez 500.00$           2019-6597 9/11/2020
9/9/2020 Travis Williams 360.00$           2019-5749 9/11/2020
9/9/2020 Leah Kay Berry 500.00$           2019-6532 9/11/2020
9/10/2020 David Michael Rosenbaum 500.00$           2020-0314 9/11/2020
9/10/2020 Andres Flores 360.00$           2019-4800 9/11/2020
9/10/2020 Monica Bermudez 360.00$           2020-0575 9/11/2020

2,580.00$        
9/11/2020 John Albertson 500.00$           2020-2161 9/14/2020
9/11/2020 Luis Angel Juarez 360.00$           2019-5422 9/14/2020
9/11/2020 Zachery A Goolsby 360.00$           2019-3257 9/14/2020

1,220.00$        
9/14/2020 Jason McColly 500.00$           2020-0066 9/16/2020
9/14/2020 Adrian Oswaldo Martinez Cruz 500.00$           2020-0810 9/16/2020
9/14/2020 Jorge L Martinez 500.00$           2019-5901 9/16/2020
9/15/2020 David Krenik 500.00$           2019-3833 9/16/2020
9/15/2020 Chiemeka Dura 360.00$           2019-3687 9/16/2020
9/14/2020 Robert Ramirez 500.00$           2020-0424 9/16/2020

2,860.00$        
9/16/2020 Michelle Mele 360.00$           2020-0772 9/18/2020
9/16/2020 Lorena Macias 500.00$           2019-4880 9/18/2020
9/17/2020 Kristin Ganski 500.00$           2020-0401 9/18/2020
9/17/2020 Jessica Cantu 500.00$           2019-6046 9/18/2020
9/17/2020 Amahri Kamron Mack 500.00$           2020-0301 9/18/2020

2,360.00$        
9/18/2020 Jacqueine Michele Petrosky 500.00$           2019-5733 9/21/2020

500.00$           
9/21/2020 Ryan Barron 360.00$           2020-2196 9/23/2020
9/21/2020 Adrienne Boydston 360.00$           2020-1770 9/23/2020

720.00$           
9/24/2020 Dennis Meaux 360.00$           2019-6379 9/25/2020

360.00$           
9/25/2020 Cody Allen Smith 360.00$           2019-5484 9/28/2020
9/27/2020 Karina Longoria 500.00$           2019-2032 9/28/2020

860.00$           
9/28/2020 Cianna Cuny 500.00$           2018-6256 9/30/2020
9/29/2020 Kelley Myers 500.00$           2019-5123 9/30/2020
9/29/2020 Devrian Kyree Blount 360.00$           2019-4722 9/30/2020

1,360.00$        

PTI September 2020



9/22/2020 Brenna Lynn Ottavi 300.00$           2019-2733 9/23/2020
September total  300.00$          

Court Appointed Atty September 2020



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Sale of Asset to retiring Constable, Pct. 2
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Randy Barker,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the purchase of a Winchester Model 1200
Shotgun by Constable Rick Coffman following his retirement as Williamson County Constable
Precinct No. 2 for the fair market value of $100, in accordance with Texas Government Code,
Chapter 614, Subchapter D.

Background
Rick Coffman will be leaving office as Constable of Precinct 2 on December 31, 2020, and
retiring from a 22-year law enforcement career with Williamson County.  When first appointed
as a Deputy Constable for Precinct 2 in 1998, Constable Coffman was issued a police shotgun. 
This particular shotgun has remained assigned to Constable Coffman throughout his 22-year
law enforcement career with Williamson County.  Constable Coffman expressed an interest in
purchasing the weapon from the County upon his retirement.  The purchase of firearm by a
honorably retired peace officer is allowed by State statute with the permission of the
governmental entity as per Texas Government Code, Chapter 614, Subchapter D.
  

Sec. 614.051.  PURCHASE OF FIREARM BY HONORABLY RETIRED PEACE
OFFICER.  
(a)  An individual may purchase a firearm from a governmental entity if:
(1)  the individual was a peace officer commissioned by the entity;
(2)  the individual was honorably retired from the individual's commission by the entity;
(3)  the firearm had been previously issued to the individual by the entity; and
(4)  the firearm is not a prohibited weapon under Section 46.05, Penal Code.
(b)  An individual may purchase only one firearm from a governmental entity under this
section.
 
Sec. 614.053.  PURCHASE PRICE OF FIREARM.  
A governmental entity shall establish the amount, which may not exceed fair market value,
for which a firearm may be purchased under this subchapter.

According to research on the serial number, the shotgun was manufactured in 1964 with a retail
price of $77.00.  The last model of this type was manufactured in 1971.  The weapon is in good,
working condition, has no modifications, and is not a prohibited weapon as defined by section
46.05 of the Texas Penal Code.  The weapon has what would be considered (for a well
maintained 56-year old weapon) normal wear on the wooden stock/fore piece and the bluing on
the barrel, none of which affect the functionality of the weapon.  For this type and model of
shotgun, the current value listed by auction houses or retail sale sites runs from $100.00 to
$250.00.  The value is mainly based on condition and the fact that it is not a rare weapon.  It



has been determined that fair market value for the shotgun is $100.  Due to the age of the
weapon, less than modern features and the limited availability of parts, any repairs in the future
would be cost prohibitive.  For example, a replacement barrel for this weapon retails for
$210.00, a replacement wood stock retails for $140.00, and a replacement breech bolt
assembly retails for $146.00.

If approved, the sale of this shotgun to Constable Coffman will not have a negative impact on
the number of available county owned shotguns for PCT 2 Constable’s Office deputy
constables.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Asset for Sale to Constable 10.20.20 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/14/2020 01:27 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 09:17 AM
Form Started By: Randy Barker Started On: 10/14/2020 10:57 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Title: i:0#.f|membership|wbeechinor@wilco.org - 09-10-2020

Disposal Method: SALE to other entity

Item(s) Category: Other

1. Quantity (Mandatory): 1

1. Description: 1964 Winchester Model 1200 12 gauge shotgun 18.5 inch barrel

1. Manufacturer ID #: L1272460

1. Condition of Assets: Working

Transferring Department: Constables 2

Transferring Department Contact Person: William Beechinor

Transferring Department Contact Phone
Number:

5122604270

Transferring Department - Elected
Official/Department Head/Authorized Staff
Signature:

William Beechinor 10/9/2020 2:51 PM

Transferring Department - Elected
Official/Department Head/Authorized Staff
Signature.:

Receiving Department - Elected
Official/Department Head/Authorized Staff
Signature:

Purchasing Final Determination SALE to a government entity/civil or charitable organization in the
county at fair market value

Court Date: 10/20/2020

 Asset Status Change

 Asset Status Change



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 11.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Commercial Trash Service at River Ranch
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Services Contract between
Williamson County and Texas Disposal Systems, Inc. to provide commercial trash service at the
River Ranch Park in the amount of $499.00 per month for a 12-month term per the quote
attached and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Background
This agreement is for Commercial Disposal Services for the Williamson County River Ranch
Park for 6 dumpsters to be staged at different high volume traffic areas within the park. Three
quotes have been obtained. Department point of contact is Alejandra Urista. Funding
Source  01.0100.3107.004430 for FY21.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/01/2020 10:10 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/01/2020 10:17 AM
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:09 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:53 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 09/23/2020 09:24 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Netmotion Diagnostics Maintenance FY 21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Services Contract between
Williamson County and Mobile Wireless LLC to provide Annual Netmotion Diagnostic
Maintenance for FY21 in the amount of $57,927.00 per the terms of DIR Contract
#DIR-TSO-3810 and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Background
This agreement is for the authorization of Netmotion Diagnostics for Annual Maintenance for
NetMotion Mobility and Diagnostics to include tech support, version upgrades, patch and point
releases, etc. Department point of contact is Tammy McCulley. Funding Source
01.0100.0503.004505 for FY21.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:47 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:51 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/14/2020 11:46 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



          9/22/2020 

Presented by – Mobile Wireless LLC  

Paul Hulse 
Williamson County 
301 SE Inner Loop Ste 105 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
(512) 943-1408 
phulse@wilco.org 

Re:  NetMotion maintenance renewals -- DIR-TSO-3810 

Mobility renewal 

Item  
 SKU  QTY  Price  Extended Price  

NetMotion Mobility Premium Software Maintenance – 1 Year 
11/16/2020 – 11/15/2021 
Covers:  1052 Mobility with Policy/NAC/Analytics 

• 24x7 technical support 
• Major version upgrades 
• Tech notes and web-based support 
• Cumulative quantity discounts on additional device licenses 
• Patch and point releases at no additional charge 
• Guaranteed response times 

 

11NMXP25    $43,526.00  

Total           $43,526.00  

Diagnostics renewal 

Item  
 SKU  QTY  Price  Extended Price  

NetMotion Diagnostics Premium Maintenance – 1 Year 
11/16/2020 – 11/15/2021 
Covers:  1050 Diagnostics 

• 24x7 technical support 
• Major version upgrades 
• Tech notes and web-based support 
• Cumulative quantity discounts on additional device licenses 
• Patch and point releases at no additional charge 
• Guaranteed response times 

 

04NDXP25    $14,401.00 

Total           $14,401.00 

TOTAL 

Total           $57,927.00 

Alan McClintock  
Mobile Wireless LLC 
Phone: (972) 516-1365 
alan@mobwireless.com  
 
Mobile Wireless LLC – 1525 Brazos Trl., Plano, TX 75075 – 214.850.9886 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Knight Security Systems
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase from Knight Security
Systems, LLC to provide support for Williamson County buildings in the amount of $73,587.71
per the terms of DIR Contract #DIR-CPO-4494.

Background
This agenda item is for the renewal and support of the software as well as for troubleshooting
failures and replacing broken or damaged cameras around Williamson County Department
Buildings. Department point of contact is Richard Semple. Funding Source is
01.0100.0503.004500 for FY21.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:27 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:14 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 02:24 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Invoice

821833Invoice Number
Customer Number 102118

10/5/2020Invoice Date

10/5/2020PAYMENTS APPLIED THRU

Customer

PO Number

Williamson County - ITS

Job / Service Ticket #

Quantity Description Rate Amount
CURRENT CHARGES

Williamson County - Taylor Annex, 412 Vance St., Taylor, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #12732-2
Wilco-Taylor Annex-Cameras v3

202.00 2,424.00

12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #15834-1;
Taylor Annex- Camera Add

20.00 240.00

Williamson County - Main Tax Office, 904 S Main St., Georgetown, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #12733-2;
Main Tax office-Cameras v3

215.00 2,580.00

Williamson County - North Campus Facilities, Attn: Dwayne Grossett , Georgetown, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Proposal # 20810 / Job # 9483 / NCF-VMS 23 Cameras

330.92 3,971.04

Williamson County - ESOC, 911 Tracy Chambers Ln, Georgetown, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #13286-1;
SecurePlan

239.50 2,874.00

Williamson County - Expo Center, 5350 Bill Pickett Trail, Taylor, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement # 8703-1;
Wilco-Expo Center Cameras

424.92 5,099.04

Williamson County - Pct 3 Annex, 151 Wilco Way, Georgetown, TX
12.00 Digital Alarm Monitoring up to 64 zones incl timer

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement # 8704-3 
New Gtown Annex

32.00 384.00

12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #13477-2 
Door Station

20.00 240.00

717.00 8,604.00

12.00 GSM/Cellular Back up monitoring
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement # 8704-3 
New Gtown Annex

22.00 264.00

12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #8704-3
New Gtown Annex

Page 1

DIR CPO-4494



Williamson County & Cities Health District, 355 Texas Ave, Round Rock, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #13783-1;
Wilco-WCCHD - Round Rock Cameras v1

219.00 2,628.00

Williamson County - Regional Animal Shelter, 1855 SE Inner Loop, Georgetown, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #13709-2;
Campus VSS and Panic Alarm v2

468.00 5,616.00

Williamson County - Sheriff Office, 508 S Rock St, Georgetown, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Proposal 13593/ Job 9413
Original

305.15 3,661.80

Williamson County  - Justice Center, 405 Martin Luther King Blvd, Georgetown, TX
1,364.54 16,374.4812.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Williamson County - Cedar Park Annex, 350 Discovery Blvd, Cedar Park, TX

12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Proposal# 21665

20.00 240.00

12.00 Digital Alarm Monitoring up to 64 zones incl timer
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Proposal# 21665

54.00 648.00

12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Proposal# 21541

203.20 2,438.39

12.00 GSM/ Cellular Back up alarm monitoring 
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #12731-6;
Wilco- CP Annex - Cameras v7

19.80 237.60

12.00 Digital Alarm Monitoring up to 64 zones incl timer
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #12731-6;
Wilco- CP Annex - Cameras v7

28.80 345.60

12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #12731-6;
Wilco- CP Annex - Cameras v7

324.00 3,888.00

Williamson County - Taylor JP Pct 4, 211 W 6th St, Taylor, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement # 13350-1;
SecurePlan

253.40 3,040.80

Williamson County - Round Rock Annex, 1801 E Old Settlers Blvd., Georgetown, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #8712-1;
Cameras v4

279.32 3,351.84

Williamson County - SOTC, 8160 Chandler Road., Hutto, TX
12.00 Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement

10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #13348-1;
SecurePlan & Mon

315.76 3,789.12

54.00 648.0012.00 Digital Alarm Monitoring up to 64 zones incl timer
10/1/2020 - 9/30/2021
Agreement #13348-1;
SecurePlan & Mon

Page 2



0.00Tax
Payments/Credits Applied 0.00

IMPORTANT MESSAGES
Please note our new
remittance address.

Please detach and return this portion with your payment to ensure proper credit.

REMITTANCE INFORMATION
821833Invoice Number

Customer Number 102118

Williamson County - ITS
301 E. Inner Loop
Ste. 105,
Georgetown, TX  78626

Knight Security Systems, LLC
PO Box 543292
Dallas, TX  75354

RE
MI

T T
O:

10/5/2020Invoice Date

Invoice Balance Due:                       $73,587.71

Terms Net 30
Invoice Balance Due                                                $73,587.71

TOTAL DUE                                                             $73,587.71

Amount Enclosed:

Page 3

DIR CPO-4494



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

ADOBE RENEWAL FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase for Adobe Sign Enterprise
from SHI Government Solutions in the amount of $62,104.00 as per BuyBoard Contract
#579-19.

Background
This quote is for the enterprise solution for Adobe Sign to include 12 month license,
maintenance and support. Department Contact is Tammy McCulley. Funding Source
01.0100.0503.005741. No signature is required on this quote.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/12/2020 04:31 PM
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 11:22 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Microsoft Enterprise Support Services contract renewal
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Dianne West, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the annual agreement for
Microsoft Enterprise Support Services contract renewal on DIR Contract #DIR-TSO-3781, for
the term of November 1, 2020 – October 31, 2021, with Microsoft Corporation for the amount of
$82,381.

Background
Microsoft Corporation offers Microsoft Master Services through the vendor contract U5228634
with the State of Texas Department of Information Services, DIR Contract #DIR-TSO-3781 fully
executed and dated May 2, 2017.  This requirement is in the FY21 budget under Software
Maintenance - 01.0100.0503.004505.  The department point of contact is Jim Daniels.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Microsoft Enterprise Support Services FY21 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:57 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:59 AM
Form Started By: Dianne West Started On: 10/07/2020 11:29 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 1 of 7 

Microsoft Enterprise Services Work Order 

(For Microsoft Internal Purposes Only) 

Work Order Number 

T000209-309017-373435 

Texas DIR 

(Contract#DIR-TSO-3781) 

This Work Order consists of the terms and conditions below, and the provisions of the Microsoft 

Master Services Agreement (MSA) reference U5228634, effective as of 5/2/2017 (the 

“Agreement”), the provisions of the Support Services Description applicable to the Support 

Services identified in this Work Order, and any attachments or exhibits referenced in this Work 

Order, all of which are incorporated herein by this reference.  In this Work Order “Customer,” 

“you,” or “your” means the undersigned customer or its affiliate and "Microsoft", “we,” “us,” or 

“our” means the undersigned Microsoft affiliate.   

By signing below the parties acknowledge and agree to be bound to the terms of this Work Order, 

the Agreement and all other provisions incorporated in them. Regardless of any terms and 

conditions contained in a purchase order, if any, the terms of this Work Order apply.  

Customer Microsoft Affiliate 

Name of Customer (please print)

County of Williamson 

Name 

Microsoft Corporation 

Signature Signature 

Name of person signing (please print) Name of person signing (please print) 

Title of person signing (please print) Title of person signing (please print) 

Signature date Signature date (effective date)

Name of Customer or its Affiliate that executed the Agreement (if different from Customer 

above) 

Charles H Brown

Director, U.S. SLGE Services Contracts

01-Oct-2020 | 12:31 EDT



 

9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 2 of 7 

 

 

Customer invoice information  

Name of Customer  

County of Williamson 

Contact Name (Receives invoices under this Work Order)  

Jim Daniels 

Street Address  

301 Se Inner Loop Ste 104 

Contact E-Mail Address  

jdaniels@wilco.org 

City  

Georgetown 

State/Province  

Texas 

Phone  

512-943-1485 

Country  

United States 

Postal Code  

78626-8207 

Fax  

 

 

1. Support Services and Fees. 

1.1. Term. 

Microsoft Enterprise Support Services shall be effective and will commence on 11/1/2020 or the 

last above Signature Date, whichever is later (the “Support Commencement Date”) and shall expire 

twelve (12) months following the Support Commencement Date (the “Support Expiration Date”).  

This Work Order may be amended, and the Period of Performance extended prior to the Support 

Expiration Date.  In order for Microsoft to continue performing Services after the Support 

Expiration Date of this Work Order, Customer and Microsoft shall agree in writing to a new Work 

Order identifying the new terms upon which Customer and Microsoft agree. 

1.2. Description of the Services.  

Please refer to the current Support Services Description (“SSD”) which will be incorporated by 

reference and  is  published by Microsoft from time to time at http://www.microsoft.com/en-

us/microsoftservices/PubSec-support-services-description. The support services you purchase 

under this agreement may be updated from time to time and that update will supersede any 

services previously listed. 

 

 

 

 

 

file:///C:/Users/chabrown/Documents/Unified%20Support/%09http:/www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoftservices/PubSec-support-services-description
file:///C:/Users/chabrown/Documents/Unified%20Support/%09http:/www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoftservices/PubSec-support-services-description


 

9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 3 of 7 

 

 

Services by Support Location 

Unified Advanced Support for TX-County of Williamson      US - SLG - Central      11/1/2020 - 

10/31/2021 

Quantity  Service  Service Type  

Included Advanced Advisory Support Hours As-needed Advisory Services  
Advanced Built-in Proactive Services 

 

1 ea 
• Advanced Built-in Proactive Services - 

Generic 
Administrative 

Included Advanced Problem Resolution Hours As-needed Problem Resolution 

Support 

Included Advanced Service Delivery Management Service Delivery 

Management 

1 ea Modern Service Management - Cloud Success 

Plan Generic 

IT Service Management 

Included On-demand Assessment On-Demand Assessment 

1 ea On-Demand Assessment - Setup and Config 

Service 

On-Demand Assessment 

Remote 

Included On-demand Education On-Demand Education 

Included Online Support Portal Administrative 

100 ea Reactive Enabled Contacts Problem Resolution 

Support 

Included Webcasts As-Needed Webcast 
 

Unified Adv. Support (Add-On) for TX-County of Williamson      US - SLG - 

Central      11/1/2020 - 10/31/2021 

Quantity  Service  Service Type  

1 ea Onsite Visit Onsite Support 

Included Service Delivery Management Extended Service Delivery 

Management 

25 ea Proactive Credits Proactive Credits 
 

 

1.3. Support Services Fees.  

The items listed in the table above represent the services that Customer has pre-purchased for use 

during the term of this Work Order, and applicable fees are shown in the table below. Microsoft 

Support Services are a non-refundable prepaid service.  Microsoft must receive Customer purchase 

order or payment before Microsoft commences or continues, as applicable, provision of Microsoft 

Support Services. If Customer issues a purchase order, Microsoft will invoice Customer, and 

Customer agrees to pay Microsoft within 30 calendar days of the date of Microsoft invoice. 

Microsoft reserves the right to adjust Microsoft fees prior to entering into any changes to the 

Microsoft Support Services ordered herein.  



 

9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 4 of 7 

 

 

  

Services Summary  Billing Date  Fee USD 

Unified Advanced Support for TX-County of Williamson 11/1/2020 105,441 

Unified Adv. Support (Add-On) for TX-County of 

Williamson 

11/1/2020 4,450 

Subtotal 109,891 

Software Assurance Benefits *  (6,915)  

One Time Microsoft Business Investment ** (20,595) 

Total Fees (excluding taxes) 82,381 
 

Software Assurance Benefits  

* Customer will transfer 5.00 Software Assurance PRS incidents to this support agreement as 

part of this support package.  

**Business Investment Funds: The services described above constitute “gratuitous” services for 

which you shall have no legal or moral obligation to pay and for which we waive any entitlement 

to compensation. It is our intent that our performance of such services be in compliance with 

applicable laws and regulations regarding the provision of gratuitous services. It is specifically 

understood that all services and services deliverables provided under this Work Order are for the 

sole benefit and use of County Of Williamson, directly or indirectly, and are not provided to or 

for the benefit of any government employee or individual.
 

Support for Microsoft Products 

Microsoft will provide support for Customer’s licensed, commercially released and generally 

available Microsoft products, and cloud services subscriptions by Customer in Appendix A.  

1.4. Customer Named Contacts. 

Any changes to the named contacts should be submitted to Microsoft Contact. 

Name of Customer Support Service Administrator  

Jim Daniels 

Street Address  

301 SE Inner Loop Ste 104 

Contact E-Mail Address  

jdaniels@wilco.org 

City  

Georgetown 

State/Province  

Texas 

Phone  

512-943-1485 

Country  

United States 

Postal Code  

78626-8207 

Fax  

 

 



 

9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 5 of 7 

 

 

Use, ownership, rights, and restrictions. 

1.5. Products.  

“Product” means all products identified in the Product Terms, such as all Software, Online Services 

and other web-based services, including pre-release or beta versions. Product availability may 

vary by region. “Product Terms” means the document that provides information about Microsoft 

Products available through volume licensing. The Product Terms document is published on the 

Volume Licensing Site (http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts or successor site) and is 

updated from time to time. 

All products and related solutions provided under this Work Order will be licensed according to 

the terms of the license agreement packaged with or otherwise applicable to such product. 

Customer is responsible for paying any licensing fees associated with Products.  

1.6. Fixes 

“Fixes” means Product fixes, modifications, enhancements, or their derivatives, that Microsoft 

either releases generally (such as service packs), or that Microsoft provides to Customer when 

performing Professional Services (all support, planning, consulting and other professional services 

or advice, including any resulting deliverables provided to Customer under this Work Order, to 

address a specific issue.  “Professional Services” means Product support services and Microsoft 

consulting services provided to Customer under this Work Order. “Professional Services” or 

“services” does not include Online Services, unless specifically noted. 

Fixes are licensed according to the license terms applicable to the Product to which those Fixes 

relate. If the Fixes are not provided for a specific Product, any other use terms Microsoft provides 

with the Fixes will apply.  

1.7. Pre-existing Work.  

“Pre-existing Work” means any computer code or other written materials developed or otherwise 

obtained independent of this Work Order.  

All rights in Pre-existing Work shall remain the sole property of the party providing the Pre-

existing Work. Each party may use, reproduce and modify the other party’s Pre-existing Work only 

as needed to perform obligations related to Professional Services. 

1.8. Services Deliverables.  

“Services Deliverables” means any computer code or materials, other than Products or Fixes that 

Microsoft leaves with Customer at the conclusion of Microsoft’s performance of Professional 

Services. Upon payment in full for the Professional Services, Microsoft grants Customer a non-

exclusive, non-transferable perpetual, fully paid-up license to reproduce, use and modify the 

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Services Deliverable, solely in the form delivered to Customer and solely for Customer’s internal 

business purposes, subject to the terms and conditions of this Work Order. 

1.9. Affiliates’ rights.  

“Affiliate” means any government agency, department, office, instrumentality, division, unit or 

other entity of Customer’s state or local government that is supervised by or is part of Customer, 

or which supervises Customer or of which Customer is a part, or which is under common 

supervision with Customer; together with, as mandated by law, any county, borough, 

commonwealth, city, municipality, town, township, special purpose district, or other similar type 

of governmental instrumentality located within Customer’s state jurisdiction and geographic 

boundaries; provided that a state and its Affiliates shall not, for purposes of this definition, be 

considered to be Affiliates of the federal government and its Affiliates. 

Customer may sublicense the rights contained in this subsection relating to Services Deliverables 

to its Affiliates, but Customer’s Affiliates may not sublicense these rights and Customer’s Affiliates’ 

use must be consistent with the license terms contained in this Work Order. 

1.10.Restrictions on use.  

Customer must not (and must not attempt to) (1) reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble any 

Product, Fix, or Services Deliverable, (2) install or use non-Microsoft software or technology in any 

way that would subject Microsoft's intellectual property or technology to obligations beyond 

those included in this Work Order; or (3) work around any technical limitations in the Products or 

Services Deliverables or restrictions in Product documentation. Except as expressly permitted in 

this Work Order, Customer must not (1) separate and run parts of a Product on more than one 

device, upgrade or downgrade parts of a Product at different times, or transfer parts of a Product 

separately; or (2) distribute, sublicense, rent, lease, lend, or use any Product, Fix, or Services 

Deliverable to offer hosting services to a third party. 

1.11.Reservation of rights.  

All rights not expressly granted are reserved to Microsoft. 

Microsoft Contact 

Customer contact for questions and notices about this Work Order. 

Microsoft contact name 

Mark Haider 

Phone 

701-281-6794 

Contact e-mail address 

Mark.Haider@microsoft.com 



 

9.1 US SLG Unified ESWO (PSUS)(Nov2019) Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Appendix A 

Below is a list of your declared licensed products and cloud services for which Microsoft will 

provide support services as defined within this document. 

 

Customer Name  Licensing Program  Licensing 

Enrollment/Agreement 

Number  

WILLIAMSON COUNTY Enterprise 6 59861124 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY CSCD Select Plus 7118883 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY Enterprise 6 62421705 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY Select Plus 7118883 
 

 

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 16.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Approving Blanket PO - Annual Kronos Renewal FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing a blanket purchase order for ITS
to Immix Technology Inc. for annual Kronos Maintenance, in the amount of $85,177.04 as
per GSA Contract GS-35F-0265X.

Background
This is a blanket PO for Kronos Annual Maintenance Renewal for ITS.  Funding source
01.0100.0503.004505. Funding was approved in FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:27 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:46 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/15/2020 09:18 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Shawna Simons
WILLIAMSON , COUNTY OF
301 SE Inner Loop-Suite 105
Georgetown, TX 78626
PH: 512-943-1498
ssimons@wilco.org

Contract No.: GS-35F-0265X

CAGE Code:
DUNS No.:
TAX ID#:
Terms:
FOB:

3CA29
09-869-2374
54-1912608

NET 30
Destination

Quote Number:
Quote Date:
Expiration Date:

QUO-1137316-B8G5C2
8/7/2020
9/6/2020

Order Address:
immixTechnology, Inc.
8444 Westpark Drive, Suite 200
McLean, VA 22102
PH: 703-752-0610 FX: 703-752-0611

Manufacturer Contact:

Mariama.Paquette@Kronos.com 978.947.7320

Paquette, Mariama

immixTechnology, Inc. 
Contact:

Vinu_Mohan@immixgroup.com

Mohan, Vinu

Manufacturer Ref #: 6042053

Manufacturer Quote #:

Item Part Number Contract Trans 
Type Product Description Qty Price Extended 

Price

1 8800175-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Timekeeper 
V8 - per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

1850 $10.4400 $19,314.00

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

2 8800175-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Timekeeper 
V8 - per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

50 $3.1400 $157.00

Period of Performance: 7/13/2021 to 10/31/2021.

3 8800177-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Employee V8 
- per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

1450 $7.0800 $10,266.00

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

4 8800178-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Manager V8 - 
per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

295 $81.7400 $24,113.30

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

5 8800178-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Manager V8 - 
per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

10 $50.9800 $509.80

Period of Performance: 3/17/2021 to 10/31/2021.

6 8800182-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Leave V8 - 
per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

1850 $8.1400 $15,059.00

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

7 8800182-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Leave V8 - 
per employee** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

50 $2.4500 $122.50

Period of Performance: 7/13/2021 to 10/31/2021.

All Pricing information is confidential Page 1 of 3 Quote #  QUO-1137316-B8G5C2

Sales Quotation



SID: 6042053
11/01/2020 - 10/31/2021

Item Part Number Contract Trans 
Type Product Description Qty Price Extended 

Price

8 8800185-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Integration 
Manager V8 - per employee** TRUSTED 
PRODUCT **

1850 $0.9300 $1,720.50

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

9 8800185-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Integration 
Manager V8 - per employee** TRUSTED 
PRODUCT **

50 $0.6900 $34.50

Period of Performance: 7/13/2021 to 10/31/2021.

10 8800187-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Mobile 
Employee V8 - per employee** TRUSTED 
PRODUCT **

10 $1.4200 $14.20

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

11 8800188-000GM GS-35F-0265X MNT Gold Maintenance for Workforce Mobile 
Manager V8 - per employee** TRUSTED 
PRODUCT **

10 $11.5000 $115.00

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

Group Total: $71,425.80

12 99X9000-018 GS-35F-0265X HW MNT Optional Depot Exchange Maintenance for ALL 
above In Touch** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

28 $229.2000 $6,417.60

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

13 99X2000-011 GS-35F-0265X HW MNT Depot Exchange 4500 Numeric Bar Code 
Modem** TRUSTED PRODUCT **

13 $216.8700 $2,819.31

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

14 99X2000-001 GS-35F-0265X HW MNT DEPOT EXCHANGE 4500 NUMERIC BAR 
CODE 10/100 MBIT ETHERNET** TRUSTED 
PRODUCT **

3 $158.4800 $475.44

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

15 99X9043-001 GS-35F-0265X HW MNT Kronos Touch ID Biometric Option for InTouch 
H3/H4 Depot Exchange** TRUSTED 
PRODUCT **

5 $96.5100 $482.55

Period of Performance: 11/1/2020 to 10/31/2021.

Group Total: $10,194.90

16 ED-
SUBSCRIPTION - 
1501-2500

GS-35F-0265X LIC KnowledgePass Ed Services Subscription 1501
-2500 (POP: 11/01/2020 - 10/31/2021)** 
TRUSTED PRODUCT **

1 $3,556.3400 $3,556.34

Group Total: $3,556.34

HARDWARE MAINTENANCE $10,194.90

LICENSE $3,556.34

SW MAINTENANCE $71,425.80

Grand Total $85,177.04

All Pricing information is confidential Page 2 of 3 Quote #  QUO-1137316-B8G5C2

Sales Quotation Continued



Subject to the Terms and Conditions of GSA MAS Contract Number GS-35F-0265X; See GSA eLibrary: 
http://www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov/ElibMain/home.do

Taxes: Sales tax shall be added at the time of an invoice, unless a copy of a valid tax exemption or resale certificate is provided.

All Purchase Orders must include:  End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address, Purchase Order Number, Government Contract 
Number or Our Quote Number, Bill-To and Ship-To Address (Cannot ship to a PO Box), Period of Performance (if applicable), and a 
Signature of a duly Authorized Representative.

The identified line items are Trusted Products under the immixGroup Trusted Supplier Program.  
immixGroup Trusted Supplier Program Policies, Commitments and Guarantees/Warranties can be obtained at:  
http://www.immixgroup.com/uploadedFiles/Trusted-Supplier-Program_Guarantee-and-Warranty.pdf

All Pricing information is confidential Page 3 of 3 Quote #  QUO-1137316-B8G5C2

Sales Quotation Continued



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Malpractice Insurance for Williamson County EMS FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Specific Malpractice Insurance
Coverage for Williamson County EMS from Higginbotham Insurance for the annual premium
of $25,709.00.

Background
Purchasing solicited quotes for coverage of malpractice insurance. The request was issued for
a period of 1 week and specifically submitted to those vendors known to provide the type of
coverage required by the County. No responses were received for this request. EMS then
reached out to their current carrier for a new proposal to continue coverage. There are
numerous factors indicating that the benefits outweigh the risks of the county being self-insured
with regard to EMS workers. As a result, the recommendation is to accept the coverage quoted
for FY21 by Higginbotham for EMS workers, in the amount of $25,709.00 for the annual
premium. Funding source 01.0100.0540.004410. Department point of contact Mike Knipstein.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
proposal 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:38 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:07 PM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/13/2020 04:36 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



 
 

2010 SW HK Dodgen Loop Suite 106, Temple, TX 
76504 
(254) 217 8622 |  www higginbotham net 

Prepared for: 

INSURANCE 
PROPOSAL 

Williamson County EMS 



 
 

Explanations are in general terms and do not change or replace the terms or conditions of the policies 

YOUR BUSINESS INSURANCE SERVICE TEAM 

Core Service Tea m 
Core Service Tea m 

Core Service Team 

Austin Malone, CLCS 
Associate (254) 761-2175 AMalone@higginbotham.net 

Allison Lueck, ACSR 
Account Manager (254) 217-8624 Alueck@higginbotham.net 

Cadda Eary 
Customer Service Representative (254) 386-1026 Ceary@Higginbotham.net 



 
 

Explanations are in general terms and do not change or replace the terms or conditions of the policies 

SUPPLEMENTAL TO PROPOSAL 

Supple mental  

This insurance document is furnished to you as a matter of information for your convenience.  It only 
summarizes the listed proposed policy and is not intended to reflect all terms and conditions or exclusions of 
each proposed policy.  Moreover, the information contained in this document reflects proposed coverage as 
of the effective date(s) of the proposed policy and does not include subsequent changes.  This document is 
not an insurance policy and does not amend, alter or extend the coverage afforded by the listed proposed 
policy.  The insurance afforded by the listed proposed policy is subject to all terms, exclusions and conditions 
of such proposed policy.  All coverages, coverage forms, rates, rating procedures, rating plans, deductibles 
and other provisions will apply in conformance with those used by the various Insurance Companies and 
authorized by the State Regulatory Authorities.  Any provision contained herein which conflicts with State 
Regulations will be amended as required to conform. 
 
Higginbotham receives a commission based on a percentage of the premium from insurance companies for 
placement of insurance and service of our clients.  Higginbotham may be eligible for additional compensation, 
bonuses or awards based on volume and profitability of business placed with some insurance providers.



Phone: (800) 247-0712

Date: 9/21/2020

Carrier: Arch Insurance Company A.M. Best Rating: A+ Superior

Emergency Services Insurance Program

McNeil & Company Insurance and Risk Services

P.O. Box 5670

67 Main Street

Cortland, NY 13045

Phone: (800) 822-3747

Fax:     (607) 756-5051

Website: www.esip.com

Presented By:

Fax:     (214) 987-2834

Higginbotham Insurance Agency, Inc.

500 West 13th Street

Fort Worth, TX 76102

Insurance Proposal For:

Williamson County E.M.S.

3189 SE Inner Loop

Georgetown, TX 78626

This proposal is valid for 90 days.



DISCLAIMER

GENERAL CONDITIONS:

This proposal is based on information provided to McNeil & Company by your Agent. An
application signed and dated by an official of the entity and the agent/broker must be
received prior to binding coverage.

The quotation in this proposal does not necessarily match the coverages or limits requested
in any bid specifications and/or application.

Each individual policy contains the actual terms, conditions and exclusions. This proposal
highlights certain features and benefits of the program.

Final premium is subject to adjustment based on any changes to limits and coverages
received subsequent to the release of this proposal.

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 1



OUR PROMISE

We developed your Insurance Proposal based on information provided by your ESIP insurance
agent.  We depend on your agent’s knowledge of your organization and on interviews with your
organization’s personnel, to design the best policy and coverages for you.  If you have any
questions or concerns about the adequacy or appropriateness of the proposed coverage, please
discuss them with your ESIP agent.  Many of the policy features can be customized to meet your
special needs.

In this proposal we outline the various coverages being offered.  However this document can not
take the place of an actual policy.  Only an actual policy contains all of the terms, conditions, and
exclusions that affect your coverage.  Please review your policies carefully with your agent to be
certain that you clearly understand your insurance program.

We believe that the Emergency Services Insurance Program (ESIP) provides emergency service
organizations such as yours with the best insurance products available.  We promise that you will
find our coverage and service to be beyond your expectations!

For more information about ESIP’s products and services, visit us on the Internet at
www.esip.com.

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 2



NAMED INSURED

Named Insured will read on the policy as:                                                     

First Named Insured:

Williamson County E.M.S.

Other Named Insureds should include all legal entities under which you operate or own
property, including any Fire Company, Volunteer Association, Auxiliary, or Cadet Program.
If the named insureds shown above are not correct please advise your ESIP agent.

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 3



GENERAL LIABILITY

Limits of Insurance

$10,000,000General Aggregate

$10,000,000Products/Completed Operations Aggregate

$1,000,000Each Occurrence

$1,000,000Personal & Advertising Injury

$100,000Damage to Premises Rented to You *

* Damage by Fire, Lightning or Explosion

$5,000Medical Expense

Schedule of all Premises you Own, Rent or Occupy

Location 1: 1781 E Old Settlers Blvd, Round Rock, TX 78665

Location 2: 150 Church Park St, Cedar Park, TX 78613

Location 3: 450 FM 1105, Georgetown, TX 78626

Location 4: 1612  Red Bud Ln., Round Rock, TX 78664

Location 5: 350 Deepwood Dr, Round Rock, TX 78681

Location 6: 1991 Rawhide Dr, Round Rock, TX 78681

Location 7: 200 Bagdad St, Leander, TX 78641

Location 8: 1311 Highland Dr, Cedar Park, TX 78613

Location 9: 301 Loop 332 , Liberty Hill, TX 78642

Location 10: 155 County Rd 313, Jarrell, TX 76537

Location 11: 2604 Northlawn Dr , Taylor, TX 76574

Location 12: 1427 N Main St, Taylor, TX 76574

Location 13: 501 Exchange Blvd , Hutto, TX 78634

Location 14: 16248 Great Oaks Dr, Round Rock, TX 78681

Location 15: 1570 Cypress Creek Rd, Cedar Park, TX 78613

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 4



GENERAL LIABILITY

Schedule of all Premises you Own, Rent or Occupy

Location 16: 1501 Cottonwood Creek Dr, Cedar Park, TX 78613

Location 17: 2721 Sam Bass Rd, Round Rock, TX 78681

Location 18: 3189 SE Inner Loop, Georgetown, TX 78626

Location 19: 301 S Patterson Ave, Florence, TX 76527

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 5



GENERAL LIABILITY

Coverages Included

Watercraft

Owned Watercraft less than 35 feet

Owned Unmanned Aircraft (Drones)

Contractual Liability

Fund Raising Activities

Host Liquor Liability

Temporary Liquor Liability for Events Lasting 10 Days or Less

Members as Insureds

Includes Physicians acting within the scope of their duties for Insured

Fire and Rescue Service Liability

Emergency Services E&O

Medical Malpractice Liability

Dispatcher's Liability

Medical Director's E&O

Good Samaritan Liability

Emergency Services Liability

Directors and Officers Liability

Spousal Liability

Estates, Heirs & Legal Representatives Liability

Employee Benefits Liability

Employment Related Practices Liability

Unintentional Release of Individually Identifiable Health Information

Outside Directorships

$100,000 Non-Monetary Relief

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 6



GENERAL LIABILITY

Coverages Included

Pollution Liability

Includes Above Ground Fuel Storage Tanks
On-Premises

$1,000,000 Sub-Limit for Corrective Action Costs
Off-Premises

Includes short term pollution events arising from pesticide or herbicide application

Fellow Member Liability

Bodily Injury and Property Damage

Property Damage to Rented Premises (other than fire) $50,000

Enhanced Property Damage

Use of Reasonable Force to Protect Persons or Property

Bail Bonds - $5,000

Your Expenses - $1,000 per day

Blanket Additional Insured

Persons or Organizations - As Required by Contract

Managers, Landlords or Lessors of Premises

Lessors of Leased Equipment

Waiver of Subrogation

Newly Acquired/Formed Organizations - 180 Days

Duties in the Event of an Occurrence, Offense, Claim or Suit

Limits Persons Required to Give Notice

Liberalization

Bodily Injury Includes Mental Anguish

Damage to Customer's Autos - $50,000

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 7



GENERAL LIABILITY

Coverages Included

Damage to Patient's Property - $50,000

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 8



GENERAL LIABILITY

Coverages Included

Network Security & Data Breach Liability

$1,000,000Network Security & Data Breach Liability Each Event Limit

$10,000,000Network Security & Data Breach Liability Aggregate Limit

10/09/2014Network Security & Data Breach Liability Retroactive Date

Provides liability coverage for third party claims or suits involving:

Disclosure, loss or theft of personally identifiable or confidential corporate information
in your care, custody or control which is obtained or released from your computer system

Failure to disclose or warn of the actual or potential disclosure or misappropriation of
personally identifiable or confidential corporate information

Violation of any federal, state or local privacy statute addressing disclosure or
misappropriation of personally identifiable or confidential corporate information

Transmission of malware from your computer system

A denial of service attack which blocks access to your website or computer system

Coverage applies to personally identifiable information of your members.
Coverage applies to events first discovered and reported during the policy period or any
extended reporting period.

Privacy Event Mitigation Expense

$50,000Privacy Event Mitigation Expense Each Event Limit

$50,000Privacy Event Mitigation Expense Aggregate Limit

10/09/2014Privacy Event Mitigation Expense Retroactive Date

Provides coverage for reasonable and necessary fees and expenses for:

Computer forensic analysis of your computer system to determine the cause and
extent of the privacy event

Review of the privacy event by an approved crisis management or legal firm to advise
you of the appropriate response

Travel by your directors, executive officers or employees which is done to mitigate
the damage of a privacy event

Costs associated with notifying affected parties of the privacy event

Expenses for services, such as credit monitoring, provided to individuals for the
purpose of mitigating the effect of a privacy event on them

Coverage applies to events first discovered and reported during the policy period or any
extended reporting period.

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 9



SAFETY AND TRAINING

McNeil & Co.’s commitment to our client doesn’t end with our comprehensive,
industry-tailored polices. More than any other insurance company, we want to help you
mitigate risk, increase safety, and control losses. We are proud to offer a variety of
valuable Risk Management Services with every policy we write.

 ESIP RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Designated Account Safety Specialist                                               -  Employment Practices Hotline-
Wheelchair Van Safety & Security Checklist                                     -  Alcohol Server Training-

Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) Reviews-

Sample Policies & Policy Reviews                                                     -  Sample Liability Waivers-

Hazardous Materials & Incident Command Pocket Guides               -  Safety Posters-

Specialized Safety Forms, Checklists, and Self-Inspection Sheets-

Driver Training & Evaluation Info, including EVOC, accident investigation guides, etc.-

Risk Management Surveys & Recommendations, to help identify potential areas of loss-

 Don't Forget About  

E-Learning is our internet-based training and tracking management platform with instant,
24/7 access to a wide range of courses. This platform enables your members to access
vital information and training anywhere with an internet connection, including via most
mobile devices. Our management tools empower your organization's leaders to create
customized training programs, track user activity, and easily maintain detailed records. We
also offer document dropbox for uploading your own policies and training materials.
Training specialists are available to help set up E-Learning for your organization, lead
system walkthroughs and tutorials, and provide technical support. Best of all, these
services come at no additional cost to you!

For more information on our Risk Management Services or E-Learning,
visit esip.com or call 1-800-822-3747 ext. 176.

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 10



PREMIUM SUMMARY

Policy Premium

Includes TRIA of FeesPremium

Commercial Package $25,709 $76

Total: $25,709 $76

Binding Requirements

Policy Request Form
Signed Terrorism Form, only if rejecting coverage
Signed Renewal Survey

Additional Coverage Lines Available

Commercial Property

Crime

Business Automobile

Commercial Inland Marine

Commercial Umbrella

Accident & Health

Group Life

24hr AD&D

NetSafe Cyber Liability

Williamson County E.M.S.  10/9/2020 Page 11



 
 

Explanations are in general terms and do not change or replace the terms or conditions of the policies 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Recommendations  

PROPERTY & CASUALTY COMMON INSURANCE COVERAGE RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Property Coverages 
• Liability Coverages 
• Cyber / Identity Theft / Crime 
• Automobile Coverage 
• Workers’ Compensation Coverages 
• Umbrella 
• Directors & Officers Liability / Employment Practices / Fiduciary 
• Foreign Coverages 
 
BOND RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Contract 
• Court 
• Fidelity 
• Financial Institution 
• License & Permit 
• Probate 
• Public Official 
• Surety 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS RECOMMENDATIONS 
• HR Services 
• Group Medical 
• Group Dental 
• Group Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment 
• Long Term Care 
• Section 125 Cafeteria Plans 
• Short Term Disability 
• Vision 
• Individual Medical/Dental 
 
LIFE DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Business Planning 
• Estate Planning 
 
RETIREMENT PLAN SERVICES RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Qualified Plans 
• Non-Qualified Plans 
 
PERSONAL LINES INSURANCE RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Automobile 
• Home 
• Flood/Earthquake 
• Umbrella 
• Farm & Ranch 
• Watercraft/Recreational Vehicles 
• Personal Articles Floater  



 
 

Explanations are in general terms and do not change or replace the terms or conditions of the policies 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

INSURANCE CERTIFICATE MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CertCon Services (an affiliate of Higginbotham) 

• Reviews Certificates of Insurance to ensure that the requirements in Master Service Agreements, leases, 
subcontracts and other agreements are met 

• Provides web access to the compliance status of any vendor, tenant or subcontractor  
• Controls insurance costs by avoiding unnecessary claims payments under the policy 
• Helps reduce premiums and keeps clients insurable 
 
 
Certificate Processing 

• Helps to implement industry-specific agreements 
• Requests and receives certificates from vendors, tenants, subcontractors, suppliers and others 
• Analyzes certificates for compliance with agreements 
• Mails or emails non-compliance reports requesting corrections 
• Monitors expiration dates and requests renewal certificates 
• Re-analyzes certificates upon renewal of insurance 
• Updates clients of the insurance status (e.g. compliance standing, contract information, requirements, etc.) via 

website login 
 

 
  

CertCon Services Contact 
Rick Carson, Director of Operations 
817-810-0870 
rcarson@certcon.com 



 
 

Explanations are in general terms and do not change or replace the terms or conditions of the policies 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

RISK MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
MyWavePortal® 

MyWave is a personalized Web site that allows you to click, connect and communicate with Higginbotham. It’s designed 
to offer you time-saving resources that build convenience into managing your everyday work tasks—whether you want 
to collaborate with our agency online, quickly access timely news, information and resources, or connect with more than 
100,000 peers in your industry. 
• Collaboration Center 
• Survey Benchmarking 
• Community 
 
MyWaveRM® 
Whether you’re looking for flyers to help support your employee safety programs or searching for Workers’ 
Compensation information, MyWave’s Risk Management Center combines efficiency with user-friendly tools and 
resources you will use time and time again. 
• Safetyzone 
• Documents on Command 
• Resources 
• Online Services 
 
MyWaveOSHA® 
To help you simplify and manage your OSHA reporting, we’ve gathered the occupational safety resources you need into 
one easily-accessible spot, with functionality and content designed to help you efficiently meet your OSHA reporting 
needs. 
• Local and Resourceful 
• OSHA Log Forms 
• Reports and Analyses 
• FAQs 
 
SUCCEED RISK MANAGEMENT CENTER™ 
The Risk Management Center is a repository of tools that empowers you to proactively manage your risk exposures and 
reduce claims, losses and associated costs.  Too, importing your claims data into the Center reveals the root causes of 
your losses through vivid reports.  This information assists in determining the effectiveness of your overall property and 
casualty insurance programs and provides vital information for making loss control and risk management program 
changes.  Nearly every exhibit contains brilliant charts to make the data easier to comprehend. 
• Online Training Library 
• Incident Tracking/Trending and Claims Reporting 
• Employee Training Management 
• Safety Data Sheet Management 
• Behavior Based Safety Track 
• Job Description Track 
• Certificate of Insurance Management 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Authorize the execution of the 90-day survivability period to RFP 13RFP00101
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving addendum to RFP 13RFP00101 to
execute 90-day survivability period and authorizing execution of the addendum.

Background
Williamson County requires a re-bid for revision of the specifications and this addendum is
allowing the survivability period to take effect.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Signed Addendum 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:53 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 08:48 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Lexipol
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving agreement between Lexipol, LLC
and Williamson County for Online Subscription Services in the amount of $6,446.00 and
exempting this purchase from the competitive bidding requirement per TLGC Discretionary
Exemption for 262.024 (a)(7)(A) and authorizing the execution of the agreement.

Background
This service is for the Williamson County Precinct 4 Constable's Office for Annual Law
Enforcement Policy Manuals and Daily Training Bulletins for 12 months along with Annual Law
Enforcement Supplemental Manual(s).  The end-user contact will be Chief Deputy Brian Olson.
This expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0554.004210. Funding was approved in the FY21
budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Lexipol Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:55 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:18 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 10/12/2020 03:59 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



AGREEMENT FOR USE OF SUBSCRIPTION MATERIAL

Agency's Name: Williamson County Constable - Precinct 4
Agency's Address: 412 Vance St

Taylor, Texas 76574

Attention: Chief Deputy Brian Olson

Lexipol's Address: 2611 Internet Boulevard, Suite 100
Frisco, Texas 75034

Attention: Jean Farmer

Effective Date: EFFECTIVE_DATE_DS
(to be completed by Lexipol upon receipt of signed Agreement)

The Agreement for Use of Subscription Material is between Lexipol, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company ("Lexipol"), and the Agency identified above. The Agreement consists of (a) this cover sheet;
(b) Exhibit A (Subscriptions Being Purchased and Subscription Fees) attached to this cover sheet, (c)
Exhibit B (General Terms and Conditions) attached to this cover sheet, and (d) Exhibit C (Scope of
Services) attached to this cover sheet. Capitalized terms that are used in Exhibit A and not defined
therein shall have the respective meanings given to them in Exhibit B.

Agency Lexipol

Signature: CUSTSIG_DS Signature: COUNTERSIG_DS

Print Name: CUSTNAME_DS Print Name: Van Holland

Title: CUSTTITLE_DS Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date Signed: CUSTDATE_DS Date Signed: COUNTERSIGDATE_DS

Copyright 2020 © Lexipol - Rev 6/28/2018

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03

10/1/2020

10/7/2020



EXHIBIT A
 

SUBSCRIPTIONS BEING PURCHASED AND SUBSCRIPTION FEES
 
Agency is purchasing the following:
 

Annual Subscription for Law
Enforcement Manuals
QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

1 Annual Law Enforcement Policy Manual & Daily Training Bulletins (12
Months)

USD 5,530.00 USD 5,530.00

1 Annual Law Enforcement Supplemental Manual(s) (12 Months) USD 916.00 USD 916.00

Subscription Line Items Total USD 6,446.00

USD 6,446.00

Annual Subscription for Law Enforcement Manuals TOTAL: USD 6,446.00

*Law Enforcement pricing is based on 10 Law Enforcement Sworn Officers.

*The above subscription services, and when applicable, implementation services, shall be invoiced by
Lexipol upon the execution of this Agreement.

Copyright 2020 © Lexipol - Rev 6/28/2018

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



EXHIBIT B 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Definitions.  For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms will have the meaning
indicated in this Section:

1.1 Agency’s Account.  “Agency’s Account” means the account by which Agency 
accesses the Subscription Materials. 

1.2 Agreement.  “Agreement” means (a) the cover sheet to which these General Terms 
and Conditions are attached, (b) Exhibit A (Subscriptions and Services Being Purchased and Related 
Fees) attached to that cover sheet, (c) these General Terms and Conditions, and (d) Exhibit C (Scope of 
Services). 

1.3 Initial Term/Contract Year.  “Initial Term” means the twelve-month period commencing 
on the Effective Date and “Contract Year” means each twelve-month period commencing on each 
anniversary of the Effective Date, except as may otherwise be modified by Section 2.1 Term below. 

1.4 Derivative Work.  “Derivative Work” means a work that is based on the Subscription 
Material or any portion thereof, such as a revision, modification, abridgement, condensation, expansion, 
or any other form in which the Subscription Material or any portion thereof may be recast, transformed, 
or adapted.  For purposes of this Agreement, a Derivative Work also includes any compilation that 
incorporates any portion of the Subscription Material.  Further, “Derivative Work” includes any work 
considered a “derivative work” under United States copyright law. 

1.5 Effective Date.  “Effective Date” means the date specified on the cover sheet to which 
these General Terms and Conditions are attached. 

1.6 Subscription Materials.  “Subscription Materials” means the policy manuals, 
supplemental policy publications, daily training bulletins and other materials provided by Lexipol to 
Agency from time to time during the term of this Agreement under the subscriptions purchased by 
Agency as specified in Exhibit A. 

2. Term and Termination.

2.1 Term. This Agreement is effective upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement by 
both Lexipol and Agency, and shall continue in effect until the expiration of the Initial Term; provided, 
however, that the term of this Agreement will automatically be extended for successive one-year periods 
thereafter (each a Contract Year), unless either party gives written notice to the other party to the contrary 
not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the then current Contract Year, as 
the case may be. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, this Agreement will be subject to termination 
as provided in Section 2.2 below. 

2.2 Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party, effective 
immediately, (a) in the event that the other party fails to discharge any obligation or remedy any 
default under this Agreement for a period of more than thirty (30) calendar days after it has been 
given written notice of such failure or default; or (b) in the event that the other party makes an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or commences or has commenced against it any proceeding 
in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization pursuant to the bankruptcy laws of any applicable jurisdiction. 
This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of either party, without future or prospective 
liability for performance upon giving thirty (30) days written notice thereof.

2.3 Effect of Expiration or Termination.  Upon the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, all of the rights granted to Agency by this Agreement to the subscriptions identified on Exhibit 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



A shall automatically terminate.  The termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not, however, 
relieve either party from any obligation or liability that has accrued under this Agreement prior to the date 
of such termination or expiration.  The right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 2.2 above 
shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedy, legal or equitable, to which the terminating 
party shall be entitled at law or in equity.  The provisions of Sections 1 (Definitions), 4 (Copyright; 
Derivative Works; Lexipol’s Ownership), 5 (Right to Use; Limitations on Use of Subscription Material and 
Derivative Works), 7 (Privacy Policy), 8 (Policy Adoption), 9 (Disclaimer of Liability), 10 (Limitation of 
Liability), 13 (Miscellaneous), and this Section 2.3 shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for any reason whatsoever. 

3. Subscription Fees, Etc.

3.1 Subscription Fee/Invoicing.  Lexipol will invoice Agency at the commencement of the 
Subscription Service (Initial Term) and thirty (30) days prior to the date for each Contract Year (refer to 
2.1 above).  Agency will pay to Lexipol the subscription fee specified on Exhibit A within thirty (30) days 
following Agency’s receipt of the invoice for such subscription and renewal fees.  All invoices will be sent 
to Agency at the address for Agency specified on the cover sheet to which these General Terms and 
Conditions are attached. All payments will be made to Lexipol at the address for Lexipol specified on the 
cover sheet to which these General Terms and Conditions are attached.  Lexipol reserves the right to 
increase pricing for subsequent Contract Years.  

3.2 Taxes; Past Due Amounts.  All amounts required to be paid under this Agreement, 
unless otherwise stated on Exhibit A, are exclusive of all taxes and similar fees now in force or enacted in 
the future imposed on the subscriptions purchased by Agency under this Agreement and/or delivery by 
Lexipol to Agency of Subscription Material, all of which Agency will be responsible for and will pay in full, 
except for taxes based on Lexipol’s net income. Payment for goods and services shall be governed by 
Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after 
the later of (1) the date licensee receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of 
the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an 
invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by licensee in 
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that 
shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of licensee’s fiscal year in which the 
payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent 
(1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding 
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

4. Copyright; Derivative Works; Lexipol’s Ownership.  Agency acknowledges and agrees that
the Subscription Material is a proprietary product of Lexipol, protected under U.S. copyright law, and that
Lexipol reserves all rights not expressly granted in this Agreement.  Subject to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, Lexipol hereby grants Agency the right to prepare Derivative Works, except
as limited by the terms of this agreement; provided, however, that Agency acknowledges and agrees that
Lexipol will be the sole owner of all right, title and interest in and to all Derivative Works prepared by or for
Agency, including all copyrights and other intellectual property and proprietary rights therein or pertaining
thereto, and Agency hereby assigns and transfers to Lexipol all right, title and interest in and to all
Derivative Works prepared by or for Agency, including all copyrights and other intellectual property and
proprietary rights therein or pertaining thereto.  Agency will not remove from any copies of the
Subscription Material provided by Lexipol to Agency any copyright notice or other proprietary notice of
Lexipol appearing thereon, and shall include such copyright and other notices at the appropriate place on
each copy of the Subscription Material and each copy of any Derivative Work made by or for Agency, in
any form.

5. Right to Use; Limitations on Use of Subscription Material and Derivative Works.
Subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, Lexipol hereby grants to Agency a

perpetual, personal, fully paid-up, right to use, except as limited by the terms of this agreement the

Subscription Material and any Derivative Works prepared by or for Agency, solely for the Agency’s

internal purposes.  Agency will not use, copy, republish, lend, distribute, post on servers, transmit,

redistribute, display, in whole or in part, by any means or medium, electronic or mechanical, or by any

information storage and retrieval system, any Subscription Material or any Derivative Work prepared by or

for Agency other than as expressly authorized by the immediately preceding sentence.  Without limiting

the generality of the foregoing, Agency will not import, upload, or otherwise make available any

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



Subscription Material or any Derivative Work prepared by or for Agency into or onto any third party 

knowledge, document, or other content management system or service without Lexipol’s prior written 

consent.  The foregoing does not, however, prohibit or restrict Agency from providing Subscription 

Material or Derivative Works prepared by or for Agency pursuant to an order from a court or other 

governmental agency or other legal process, or Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request, or Public 

Records Act (PRA) request, nor does it prohibit or restrict Agency from displaying the adopted/approved 

final policy document on a publicly accessible website for official Agency purposes, so long as Agency 

includes the appropriate copyright and other proprietary notices on such final policy document as required 

by Section 4 above. 

6. Account Security.  Agency is solely responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of Agency’s
user name(s) and password(s) and the security of Agency’s Account.  Agency will not permit access to
Agency’s Account, or use of Agency’s user name(s) and/or password(s) by any person or entity other
than authorized Agency personnel.  Agency will immediately notify Lexipol in writing if Agency becomes
aware that any person or entity other than authorized Agency personnel has used Agency’s Account or
Agency’s user name(s) and/or password(s).

7. Privacy Policy.  Lexipol will hold all information Agency provides in confidence unless required to
provide information in accordance with an order from a court or other governmental agency or other legal
process such as a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request, or Public Records Act (PRA) request.
Lexipol will use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure the security of information provided by Agency.
Lexipol’s system also uses Secure Socket Layer (SSL) Protocol for browsers supported by Lexipol
application(s).  SSL encrypts information as it travels between the Agency and Lexipol.  However, Agency
acknowledges and agrees that Internet data transmission is not always 100% secure and Lexipol does
not warrant or guaranty that information Agency transmits utilizing the Lexipol system or online platform is
100% secure.

Agency acknowledges that Lexipol may provide view-only access and summary information (including but 
not limited to, status of number of policies developed or in development, percentage of staff reviews of 
developed policies, and percentage of DTBs taken) to the Agency’s affiliated Risk Management Authority, 
Insurance Pool or Group, or Sponsoring Association, if they are actively funding their member Agencies’ 
Subscription Fees. 

8. Policy Adoption.  Agency hereby acknowledges and agrees that any and all policies and Daily
Training Bulletins (DTBs) included in the Subscription Material provided by Lexipol have been individually
reviewed, customized and adopted by Agency for use by Agency.  Agency further acknowledges and
agrees that neither Lexipol nor any of its agents, employees or representatives shall be considered
“policy makers” in any legal or other sense and that the chief executive of Agency will, for all purposes, be
considered the “policy maker” with regard to each and every such policy and DTB.

9. Disclaimer of Liability.  Agency acknowledges and agrees that Lexipol its officers, agents,
managers, and employees will have no liability to Agency or any other person or entity arising from or
related to the Subscription Materials, or any act or omission by Agency or its personnel pursuant to, or in
reliance on, any of the Subscription Materials.  All indemnifications or limitations of liability or statutes of 
limitations shall be to the extent authorized under Texas law and shall follow Texas law without modifying 
the County’s rights.

10. Limitation of Liability.  Lexipol’s cumulative liability to Agency and any other person or entity for
any loss or damages resulting from any claims, demands, or actions arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the use of any Subscription Materials shall not exceed the subscription fees actually paid to
Lexipol for the use of the Subscription Materials under this Agreement during the twelve-month period
immediately prior to the assertion of such claim, demand or action.  In no event shall Lexipol be liable for
any indirect, incidental, consequential, special, or exemplary damages or lost profits, even if Lexipol has
been advised of the possibility of such damages.  The limitations set forth in this Section shall apply
whether Agency’s claim is based on breach of contract, tort, strict liability, product liability or any other
theory or cause of action.

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



11. Non-Transferability.  The subscriptions and rights to use the Subscription Material granted by
this Agreement are personal to Agency and Agency shall not assign or otherwise transfer the same to
any other person or entity.

12. Confidentiality.  From time to time during the term of this Agreement, either party may be
required to disclose information to the other party that is marked “confidential” or the like, or that is of
such a type that the confidentiality thereof is reasonably apparent (“Confidential Information”). The
receiving party will: (a) limit disclosure of any Confidential Information of the other party to the receiving
party’s directors, officers, employees, agents and other representatives (collectively “Representatives”)
who have a need to know such Confidential Information in connection with the business relationship
between the parties to which  this Agreement relates, and only for that purpose; (b) advise its
Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential Information and of the obligations set forth
in this Agreement and require such Representatives to keep the Confidential Information confidential and
to use it only as permitted by this Agreement; (c) keep all Confidential Information confidential by using a
reasonable degree of care, but not less than the degree of care used by it in safeguarding its own
confidential information; and (d) not disclose any Confidential Information received by it to any third party
(except as otherwise provided for herein).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, a party may disclose
Confidential Information of the other party pursuant to any governmental, judicial, or administrative order,
subpoena, discovery request, regulatory request, or Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request, or Public
Records Act (PRA) request, or similar method, provided that the party proposing to make any such
disclosure will promptly notify, to the extent practicable, the other party in writing of such demand for
disclosure so that the other party may, at its sole expense, seek to make such disclosure subject to a
protective order or other appropriate remedy to preserve the confidentiality of the Confidential
Information.  Each party shall be responsible for any breach of this Section by any of such party’s
Representatives.

Miscellaneous. 

13.1 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of 
the State of Texas, the venue of this contract shall be Williamson County, Texas, without giving effect to
any choice of law doctrine that would cause the law of any other jurisdiction to apply.  

13.2 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding 
of the parties hereto and hereby expressly supersedes any and all prior written and oral agreements and 
understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof, including without limitation any and all 
agreements and understandings pertaining to the use of the Subscription Materials by Agency.  No 
representation, promise, inducement, or statement of intention has been made by any party hereto that is 
not embodied in this Agreement.  Terms and conditions set forth in any purchase order, or any other form 
or document of Agency, which are inconsistent with, or in addition to, the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement, are hereby objected to and rejected in their entirety, regardless of when received, without 
further action or notification by Lexipol, and shall not be considered binding on Lexipol unless specifically 
agreed to in writing by it. 

13.3 Headings.  The captions and other headings contained in this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not be considered a part of or affect the construction and interpretation of any 
provision of this Agreement. 

13.4 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

13.5 Amendment.  No amendment, modification, or supplement to this Agreement shall be 
binding unless it is in writing and signed by the party sought to be bound thereby. 

13.6 Attorneys’ Fees.  If any action is brought by either party to this Agreement against the 
other party regarding the subject matter hereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition 
to any other relief granted, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses of litigation. The parties agree to 
use of mediation for dispute resolution prior to any formal legal action being taken on this Contract.

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



13.7 General Interpretation.  The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
the language chosen by the parties hereto to express their mutual intent.  This Agreement shall be 
construed without regard to any presumption or rule requiring construction against the party causing such 
instrument or any portion thereof to be drafted, or in favor of the party receiving a particular benefit under 
the Agreement.  No rule of strict construction will be applied against any person or entity. 

13.8 Notices.  Any notice required by this Agreement or given in connection with it, shall be 
in writing and shall be given by personal delivery, by certified mail, postage prepaid, or by recognized 
overnight delivery service to the appropriate party at the address of such party stated on the cover sheet 
to which these General Terms and Conditions are attached, or such other address as such party may 
indicate by a notice delivered to the other party in accordance with the terms of this Section.  
Alternatively, electronic mail or facsimile notice is acceptable when acknowledged by the receiving party. 

13.9 Invalidity of Provisions.  Each of the provisions contained in this Agreement is distinct 
and severable and a declaration of invalidity or unenforceability of any such provision or part thereof by a 
court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.  
Further, if a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Agreement to be invalid or 
unenforceable, then the parties agree that the court should endeavor to give effect to the parties’ intention 
as reflected in such provision to the maximum extent possible. 

13.10 Waiver.  Lexipol’s failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right or remedy under 
any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such right or remedy.  Nothing in this 
agreement will be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of licensee, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

13.11 Right to Audit: Lexipol agrees that licensee or its duly authorized representatives shall, 
until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the 
right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Lexipol which are 
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Lexipol agrees that licensee shall have access during 
normal working hours to all necessary Lexipol facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate 
work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section.  Licensee shall 
give Lexipol reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

End of General Terms and Conditions 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



EXHIBIT C
 

Scope of Services
 

Policy Manual
Legally defensible, up-to-date policies are the foundation for consistent, safe public safety
operations and are key to lowering liability and risk. Lexipol's comprehensive policy manual covers
all aspects of your agency's operations.

• More than 155 policies researched and written by public safety attorneys and subject
matter experts

• Policies based on State and federal laws and regulations as well as nationwide best
practices

• Content customized to reflect your agency's terminology and structure

Daily Training Bulletins (DTBs)
Even the best policy manual lacks effectiveness if it's not backed by training. Lexipol's Daily
Training Bulletins are designed to help your personnel learn and apply your agency's policy content
through 2-minute training exercises.

• Scenario-based training ties policy to real-world applications
• Understanding and retention of policy content is improved via a singular focus on one

distinct aspect of the policy
• Each Daily Training Bulletin concludes with a question that confirms the user understood

the training objective
• Daily Training Bulletins can be completed via computers or from smartphones, tablets or

other mobile devices
• Reports show completion of Daily Training Bulletins by agency member and topic

Policy Updates
Lexipol's legal and content development teams continuously review state and federal laws and
regulations, court decisions and evolving best practices. When needed, we create new and updated
policies and provide them to your agency, making it simple and efficient to keep your policy content
up to date.

• Updates delivered to you through Lexipol's web-based content delivery platform
• Changes presented in side-by-side comparison against existing policy so you can easily

identify modifications/improvements
• Your agency can accept, reject or customize each update

Web-Based Delivery Platform and Mobile App (Knowledge Management System)
Lexipol's online content delivery platform, called KMS, provides secure storage and easy access
to all your policy and training content, and our KMS mobile app facilitates staff use of policies and
training completion.

• Ability to edit and customize content to reflect your agency's mission and philosophy
• Efficient distribution of policies, updates and training to staff
• Archival and easy retrieval of all versions of your agency's policy manual
• Mobile app provides in-the-field access to policy and training materials

Reports
Lexipol's Knowledge Management System provides intuitive reporting capabilities and easy-to-read
reports that enhance command staff meetings and strategic planning.

Copyright 2020 © Lexipol - Rev 6/28/2018

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



• Track and report when your personnel have acknowledged policies and policy updates
• Produce reports showing completion of Daily Training Bulletins
• Sort reports by agency member, topic and other subgroups (e.g., shift, assignment)
• Reduce the time your supervisors spend verifying policy acknowledgement and training

completion

Supplemental Publication Service
Lexipol's Supplemental Publication Service (SPS) streamlines the storage of your agency's content,
giving you one place to access procedures, guidelines, general orders, training guides or secondary
policy manuals.

• Electronically links department-specific procedural or supplemental content to your policy
manual

• Provides electronic issuance and tracking for your agency's procedural or supplemental
content

• Allows you to create Daily Training Bulletins against your procedural content
• Designed for standard operating guidelines, procedures, general orders or field guides

Copyright 2020 © Lexipol - Rev 6/28/2018

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2817184-34F9-468B-A340-1C23CBBA9B03



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Sharp Electronics for Sheriff's Office - Holly St.
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Laura Zavala, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the lease of one (1) Sharp MX-3071
copier to support the operations of Williamson County Sheriff's Office, in the amount of $184.84
per month per terms of DIR Contract #DIR-CPO-4433.

Background
This item is for the approval of a 48-month lease for Sharp MX-3071 copier for the Sheriff's
Office. The lease will cost $184.84 per month (includes 1000 black copies/prints per month;
overages at $0.0085 each, 1000 colored copies/prints per month; overages at $0.0500 each)
per month, effective 11/01/2020. This includes, delivery, installation, parts, labor and toner.
Department contact will be Mary Johnson. The expenditure will be charged to
01.0100.0560.004621.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Sharp Copier Holly St 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:30 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:15 AM
Form Started By: Laura Zavala Started On: 10/07/2020 04:29 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Sharp Copier County Atty
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Laura Zavala, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the lease with Sharp Electronics
Corp for two (2) copiers in the amount of $143.00 per month and $210.12 per month for the
County Attorney's Office, pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR -CPO-4433.

Background
Approval of these two leases will support the operations of the Williamson County Attorney's
office for a term of 48 months per machine. The cost of the first machine is at $210.12 per
month, with overages being billed at $0.0070 each including 10,000 copies/prints per month,
delivery, installations, training, professional services, parts, labor and staples. The
second machine is at $143.00 per month with overages being billed at $0.0072 each including
5,000 copies/prints per month, delivery, installation, training, professional services, parts, labor
and staples. The expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0475.004621. Department contact is
Stephanie Lloyd.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Sharp County Atty 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:31 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:44 AM
Form Started By: Laura Zavala Started On: 10/01/2020 09:41 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

TX ST Library Com Blanket PO
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order for
microfilm and storage to the Texas State Library Commission in the amount of $95,000.

Background
Approval of this blanket purchase order will support the operations of the Williamson County
Clerk's Office.  The original agreement for this purchase was approved by commissioner's court
on 9/29/2020.  The Texas State Library Commission has the authority to provide and invoice for
these services as granted in Texas Goverment Code Chappter 441, § 441.006, § 441.017, and
§ 441.182.  Agreement has a not to exceed amount of $98,400.  This expenditure will be
charged to 01.0384.0384.004550.  Department contact is Nancy Rister.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Original Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:49 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:00 PM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/13/2020 02:19 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #21
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the Williamson County
Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change Order #21 in the amount of
$4,511.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s contingency from within the original
project budget.

Background
This change order is for labor and materials to provide 8 data drops for the modular furniture in
Open Office 501.   There are no time extensions included.  On January 7, 2020, the Williamson County
Commissioners Court granted Dwayne Gossett, Williamson County Facilities Project Manager, with general
authority to approve change orders up to $30,000 in relation to Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project,
pursuant to Local Government Code 262.031.  This report is being provided for purposes of notifying the court of
such change order and to place it in the minutes of the Commissioners Court.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #21 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 11:08 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:41 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 10:59 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #22
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the Williamson County
Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change Order #22 in the amount of
$781.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s contingency from within the original
project budget.

Background
This change order is to provide and install sound insulation to Offices 707 and 708.   There are
no time extensions included.  On January 7, 2020, the Williamson County Commissioners Court granted
Dwayne Gossett, Williamson County Facilities Project Manager, with general authority to approve change orders
up to $30,000 in relation to Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project, pursuant to Local Government Code
262.031.  This report is being provided for purposes of notifying the court of such change order and to place it in
the minutes of the Commissioners Court.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #22 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 11:08 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:40 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 11:02 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #23
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the Williamson County
Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change Order #23 in the amount of
$5,766.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s contingency from within the original
project budget.

Background
This change order is for labor and materials to provide saw cutting and pour-back across
roundabout to feed the pole light, flag fixtures.   There are no time extensions included.  On
January 7, 2020, the Williamson County Commissioners Court granted Dwayne Gossett, Williamson County
Facilities Project Manager, with general authority to approve change orders up to $30,000 in relation to Williamson
County Inner Loop Annex Project, pursuant to Local Government Code 262.031.  This report is being provided for
purposes of notifying the court of such change order and to place it in the minutes of the Commissioners Court.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #23 
Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #23 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 11:08 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:41 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 11:04 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 26.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #24
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the Williamson County
Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change Order #24 in the amount of
$4,124.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s contingency from within the original
project budget.

Background
This change order is to provide and install carpet and base in Storage 800 and 501B.   There
are no time extensions included.  On January 7, 2020, the Williamson County Commissioners Court granted
Dwayne Gossett, Williamson County Facilities Project Manager, with general authority to approve change orders
up to $30,000 in relation to Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project, pursuant to Local Government Code
262.031.  This report is being provided for purposes of notifying the court of such change order and to place it in
the minutes of the Commissioners Court.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #24 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:38 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 11:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 













   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 27.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #25
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the Williamson County
Inner Loop Annex Project (P434); Vaughn Construction Change Order #25 in the amount of
$4,763.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s contingency from within the original
project budget.

Background
This change order is to demolish fabric duct sock and install new spiral duct work and
diffusers.   There are no time extensions included.  On January 7, 2020, the Williamson County
Commissioners Court granted Dwayne Gossett, Williamson County Facilities Project Manager, with general
authority to approve change orders up to $30,000 in relation to Williamson County Inner Loop Annex Project,
pursuant to Local Government Code 262.031.  This report is being provided for purposes of notifying the court of
such change order and to place it in the minutes of the Commissioners Court.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #25 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 11:20 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:42 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 11:11 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 











   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 28.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Expo Support Amenities-West Arena Parking (P562) Work Authorization No. 3 with Kleinfelder,
Inc.
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Work Authorization No. 3 for the
Expo Center West Arena Parking (P562) in the amount of $17,000.00 to expire on January 31,
2021, under Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services between Williamson County
and Kleinfelder, Inc. dated May 5, 2020.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Expo Support Amenities W Arena Parking (P562)WA #3 Kleinfelder 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 11:20 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 11:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 1 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

 

 

 

 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 3 

PROJECT: Williamson County Expo Center Support Amenities – West Arena 
Parking (P562)  

This Work Authorization is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract for 
Engineering Services, being dated May 5, 2020, and entered into by and between Williamson 
County a political subdivision of the State of Texas, ("County"), and [Kleinfelder, Inc.], 
(“Engineer"). 

ARTICLE 1 
Engineer shall provide Geotechnical Engineering Services set forth in Attachment A of this Work 
Authorization. 

ARTICLE 2 
The maximum amount payable for Basic Services under this Work Authorization without 
modification is Seventeen Thousand Dollars ($ 17,000.00) as set forth in Attachment B of this 
Work Authorization. 

ARTICLE 3 
Payment to Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 
accordance with the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 
This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance and full execution 
of the parties hereto and shall terminate on January 31, 2021 as set forth in Attachment C of this 
Work Authorization.  The Engineering Services set forth in Attachment A of this Work 
Authorization shall be fully completed on or before said date unless extended by a Supplemental 
Work Authorization.   

ARTICLE 5 
This Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations provided 
under the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 
County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Work Authorization.  A/E understands and agrees that County’s payment 
of amounts under this Work Authorization is contingent on County receiving appropriations or 



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 2 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

other expenditure authority sufficient to allow County, in the exercise of reasonable 
administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement.  It is further 
understood and agreed by A/E that County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at 
the end of any County fiscal year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient 
funds as determined by County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may affect such 
termination by giving written notice of termination to A/E. 

ARTICLE 7 
This Work Authorization is hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

EXECUTED this   day of    , 20 . 

 

A/E:       COUNTY: 

Kleinfelder, Inc.     Williamson County, Texas    

 

By:        By:        
Signature       Signature  

              
Printed Name      Printed Name 

              
Title       Title 

  

Jason Reeves, PE

Texas Materials Testing Manager



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 3 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

ATTACHMENT A  

SERVICES PROVIDED BY ENGINEER 

 

Site Reconnaissance and Utility Clearance 

Prior to drilling operations, we will contact the Texas 811 system for utility locations; however, 
be aware that the Texas 811 system only locates buried utilities within existing public easement 
and rights-of-way. All private on-site utilities such as irrigation lines, data lines, fire lines, electric 
lines, gas lines, and any other underground features must be located by Williamson County prior 
to the start of our field work. Due to safety concerns, it is critical that the underground utilities 
are properly located. Notifying the Texas 811 system alone may not provide the level of assurance 
required by Williamson County. The disruption of utilities or damage to underground structures 
which have not been marked by their owner will be the responsibility of others. To achieve a 
higher level of assurance, it may be required by Engineer to retain a utility locator (for an 
additional fee) to locate these utilities (marked or unmarked) prior to drilling. We will consult 
with Williamson County to determine whether this step is necessary on a case-by-case basis. Also, 
we can provide the name of a private utility locator that Williamson County can retain directly 
for these services, if needed. 

Prior to the start of field activities, Engineer will prepare a site-specific Health and Safety Plan, 
which designates Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and safe work practices to be used during 
field exploration activities. 

Engineer will record the boring locations with a hand-held global positioning system (GPS) 
device with a horizontal accuracy of approximately 15 feet. Locations may also be located by field 
measuring distances from a known location on the site map for better accuracy. 

Field Exploration 

Based on our conversations with Williamson County, Engineer understands that the borings are 
accessible to truck-mounted drilling equipment, and no special training, clearing, grading, traffic 
control  or permits will be required to access the boring locations on the property. Field work for 
this project will be performed under the direct supervision of a professional engineer, and soils 
will be logged in the field by an Engineer’s representative. Field exploration will include the 
following: 
 

• Coordinate field activities with Williamson County personnel. 
• Five (5) borings to depths of 25 feet within the building footprint. 
• Three (3) borings to a depth of 10 feet within the proposed pavement footprint. 



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 4 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

• Borings will be completed with a truck-mounted drill rig during regular working 
hours (Monday to Friday 7 am to 6pm). No weekend or evening work will be required 

• Obtain relatively undisturbed tube samples and standard penetration test (SPT) samples 
as appropriate for the soils encountered. 

• Core rock with an NX-size core barrel or evaluate with the Texas Department of 
Transportation’s (TxDOT’s) Cone Penetrometer test ,if competent bedrock is 
encountered. 

• Observe for groundwater seepage during drilling and at completion of individual 
borings. Observations may also be made at the end of the day. 

• Loosely backfill boreholes with cuttings upon completion or after delayed water levels 
are recorded. Extra cuttings will be spread on the ground surface nearby in grass-
covered areas. 

• Patch borings that are located in pavement areas with cold asphalt at the surface. 
 

Laboratory Testing 
 

Select laboratory testing will be conducted on representative samples obtained during the 
field exploration. The tests will be used to classify the soils, identify subsurface site 
characteristics, and provide data for analysis. These tests may include: 

 
• Moisture content; 
• Atterberg limits (liquid and plastic limits); 
• Unconfined compressive strength; 
• Percent passing No. 200 sieve; 
• Swell Tests; and 
• Soil chemistry including pH, electrical resistivity, sulfates, sulfides, chlorides, and 

oxidation reduction. 
 

Kleinfelder will retain soil/rock samples for 30 days after submission of the final report, at 
which time samples will be discarded. Further storage or transfer of samples can be made at 
owner expense upon written request. 

 
Geotechnical Report 

 

Evaluation of the field and laboratory data will be performed for the project, based on available 
project concepts. A report will be prepared under the direction of a registered professional 
engineer. Information to be provided in the report will include: 

 
• Plan of borings illustrating the approximate location of each boring. 
• A log of each boring indicating the boring number, depth of each stratum, soil and 

rock classification and description, and groundwater information. 
• Description of the field exploration and laboratory testing. 
• General discussion of the site geology. 
• Discussion of subsurface soil, rock, and groundwater conditions. 
• Calculated potential vertical rise (PVR) from expansive soil. 
• Recommended remedial measures for the floor slab subgrade to reduce the impact 



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 5 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

of expansive soil. 
• Recommendations for foundation type, depths, and allowable bearing pressures. 
• Earthwork recommendations, including suitability of on-site materials for use as 

structural fill and remedial measures (if necessary) for existing fill. 
• Seismic geotechnical criteria based on IBC 2018. 
• Recommendations for pavement thickness. For pavements with concentrated truck 

and bus traffic, Williamson County must provide an estimate of the anticipated traffic. 
  



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 6 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

COST OF SERVICES 
 

Engineer proposes to perform the Scope of Services for a Not To Exceed fee of $17,000. Invoices 
will be issued on a monthly basis and upon completion of the project. These amounts will not 
be exceeded without prior approval. The County and Engineer may subsequently agree in 
writing to provide for additional services to be rendered under this agreement for 
additional, negotiated compensation. 

 
The schedule summarized above may be significantly impacted by work limitations imposed 
by government mandates and general health concerns related to COVID-19. If the work is 
limited due to these concerns, our schedule will be extended. We will notify Williamson 
County immediately if this occurs. 

 
 
  



10/12/2020   
WA#3 2020-P562 

Work Authorization  Page 7 of 7    0509-20-007-WA3 
Form rev. 07/2020            P530 

ATTACHMENT C 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 
 
 

 
The field exploration will begin approximately 5 to 7 days from the time written authorization 
is received, depending on driller  availability. The fieldwork will require approximately  2 
days, depending on weather conditions and site accessibility. The laboratory testing should 
be completed within 2 weeks after completion of the field exploration. The report preparation 
should be completed within 2 weeks after completion of the laboratory testing. 

 
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 29.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

River Ranch Ph I Improvements (P315) Supplemental Work Authorization #2 to Work
Authorization #2 with Raba Kistner, Inc.
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Supplemental Work Authorization
No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 2 for the River Ranch County Park Ph I Improvements (P315)
for a time extension only to expire on January 31, 2021, under Williamson County Contract for
Engineering Services between Williamson County and Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc. effective
December 4, 2018.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
River Ranch Ph I (P315) SWA#2 to WA#2 with Raba Kistner, Inc. 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 12:30 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:49 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 11:16 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 2 
TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 2 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PROJECT:   
River Ranch Park Phase I Improvements (P315) 

This Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 2 is made pursuant to 
the terms and conditions of the Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services, being dated 
December 1, 2016 (“Contract”) and entered into by and between Williamson County, Texas, a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the "County") and Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc. (the 
"Firm"). 

WHEREAS, the County and the Firm executed Work Authorization No. 2 dated effective 
December 4, 2018 (the “Work Authorization”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Contract, amendments, changes and modifications to a fully executed 
Work Authorization shall be made in the form of a Supplemental Work Authorization; and 

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend, change and modify the Work Authorization. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the Firm agree that the Work 
Authorization shall be amended, changed and modified as follows:  

ARTICLE 3 

The above referenced Work Authorization termination date shall be modified to December 31, 
2020.  The Services to be Provided by the Firm shall be fully completed on or before said date 
unless extended by an additional Supplemental Work Authorization.   

County believes it has sufficient funds currently available and authorized for expenditure to 
finance the costs of this Supplemental Work Authorization.  Firm understands and agrees that 
County’s payment of amounts under this Supplemental Work Authorization is contingent on the 
County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in 
the exercise of reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under the 
Supplemental Work Authorization.  It is further understood and agreed by Firm that County shall 
have the right to terminate this Supplemental Work Authorization at the end of any County fiscal 
year if the governing body of County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by 
County’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  County may effect such termination by giving 
written notice of termination to Firm. 



Except as otherwise amended by prior or future Supplemental Work Authorizations, all other terms 
of the Work Authorization are unchanged and will remain in full force and effect.  

This Supplemental Work Authorization does not waive the parties’ responsibilities and obligations 
provided under the Contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Firm have executed this Supplemental Work 
Authorization, in duplicate, to be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below.  

FIRM: Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc. COUNTY: 

By:  By: 
Signature Signature 

Bill Gravell, Jr. 
Printed Name Printed Name 

County Judge 
Title Title 

Date Date 

Gabriel Ornelas, Jr. 

Senior Vice President

October 12, 2020



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 30.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

North Campus Facilities P324 Vaughn Construction Change Order 74
Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting a report on the Williamson County
North Campus Facilities Project (P324); Vaughn Construction Change Order #74 in the amount
of $12,898.00. This change order is being funded by owner’s contingency from within the
original project budget.

Background
This change order is to provide materials and labor for additional fencing and swale work,
plywood for gable ends and additional electrical work for the Sign Shop printer.  There are no
time extensions included.  Change order was executed by Dwayne Gossett, Williamson County Facilities
Project Manager, pursuant to the previous grant of authority under Local Government Code 262.031.  This report
is being provided for purposes of notifying the court of such change order and to place it in the minutes of the
Commissioners Court.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
North Campus Facilities P324 Vaughn Construction Change Order 74 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 03:06 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:48 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 01:46 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 31.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Expo Concessions (P475) - Supplemental WA#2 to WA#2 with Alliance Engineering Group, Inc.
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Supplemental Work Authorization
No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 2 for the Williamson County Expo Concessions (P475) for a
time extension only to expire on December 31st, 2020, under Williamson County Contract for
Engineering Services between Williamson County and Allilance Engineering Group, Inc.
effective September 17th, 2019.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
SWA#2 to WA#2 Alliance_P475 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 04:34 PM
Building Maintenance (Originator) Wendy Danzoy 10/15/2020 10:27 AM
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/15/2020 10:52 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:43 AM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/14/2020 04:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Concessions P475





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 32.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Williamson County Expo Center Project P474 and P475 2nd Amendment to Supplemental
Agreement No. 2 with Populous
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Wendy Danzoy, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the 2nd Amendment to
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Populous, Inc., under Williamson County Agreement for
Architectural and Engineering Services between Williamson County and Populous, Inc. effective
January 16, 2015.  A/E is providing additional part-time construction observation for October,
November and December, 2020, for a Not-to-Exceed amount of $10,000 and for Additional Civil
Engineer Professional Services for a Lump Sum of $5,000.  This scope will be funded through
project contingencies for P474 and P475.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Expo Center P474 and P475 2nd Amendment to SWA#2 with Populous 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/15/2020 12:24 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 01:01 PM
Form Started By: Wendy Danzoy Started On: 10/15/2020 11:53 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO  
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 

TO 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL  

AND  
ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

This Second Amendment to Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Agreement for 

and between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, County and A/E entered into an Agreement for Architectural and Engineering 
Services dated effective as of January 16, 2015 (the "Agreement") for the provision of professional 
services in connection with the Williamson County Expo Ce
 
WHEREAS
the Agreement, the parties executed a Supplemental Agreement wherein A/E agreed to provide 
Additional Services in relation to the addition of a horse barn, restrooms and concessions for the 

 
WHEREAS above-mentioned Supplemental Agreement, 
the parties executed a Supplemental Agreement No. 2 dated effective October 31, 2018 to change 
and modify the scope of Additional Services described under the Supplemental Agreement 
mentioned above and agreed to Additional Services relating to the addition of a horse stall barn, 
restroom/concessions building on the east side of the existing Expo Arena site and the rerouting 
of the existing water main, which constitute Additional Services that were not originally a part of 
the Basic Services under the Agreement and which are sometimes collectively referred to as being 

 
WHEREAS, Supplemental Agreement No. 2 provided a description of the scope of Additional 
Services that were necessary, the Additional Services compensation,  a schedule for the 
performance of the Additional Services, an amendment to Section V, Paragraph A. of the 
Agreement and supplanted and replaced the Supplemental Agreement previously executed in 
February of 2018; and 
 



WHEREAS, due to construction delays, County and A/E executed a First Amendment to 
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to amend the Additional Services and Additional Services 
compensation provided under Supplement Agreement No. 2; 
 

WHEREAS, due to continuing construction delays, it has become necessary to supplement, 
modify and amend the Supplemental Agreement No. 2 in accordance with this Second 
Amendment to Supplemental Agreement No. 2. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the A/E agree that Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 is supplemented, amended, and modified as follows: 

 
I. Background 

 
tion and expenses were based on providing 

eight (8) months of construction administration services.  Under Supplemental Agreement 
No. 2, October 1, 2019 was to be the commencement date of the construction 
administration services and June 1, 2020 was to be the end date for construction 
administration services. This above referenced First Amendment to Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 provided additional construction administration services beyond the 
original end date of June 1, 2020 to September 30, 2020, as well as provided for 
Additional Services compensation and expenses relating to such services. Due to 
continuing construction delays, it has now become necessary to amend Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 further to provide for additional construction phase administration 
services from October 1, 2020 until December 31, 2020, along with compensation for 
such Additional Service.  
 

II. Amendment to Additional Services.  
 

A. A/E anticipates providing additional part-time construction administration services on 
the Williamson County Expo Pavilion and Concessions/Restroom Additions project 
during the months of October, November, and December 2020.  

B. A/E, by and through its subconsultant(s), anticipates providing Additional Services in 
the form of Civil Engineer Professional Serv

 requests for informa
the final walk thru meeting at the end of the Project, provide a contractor punch list 
of items to be addressed by the contractor, and provide civil record drawings 
contingent upon documented field change data from the contractor.  

C. In the event Additional Services under this Second Amendment to Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 have not been completed by December 31, 2020 through no fault of 
the A/E, further amendment of the Supplemental Agreement No. 2 may be necessary. 

 
 
 
 



III. Additional Services Compensation and Reimbursable Expenses

A. For part-time construction administration services on the Williamson County Expo
Pavilion and Concessions/Restroom Additions for the months of October, November
and December 2020, the fee is as follows:

rd hourly rates, which are set forth in 
Attachment C, not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.)  

B. For additional Civil Engineer Professional Service defined in Section II. above, the fee
shall be a lump sum of:

Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.) 

C. Reimbursable Expenses.  Except for reimbursable expenses that may be incurred and
charged under Supplemental Agreement No. 2, the parties agree there will be no
additional reimbursable expenses incurred or charged hereunder.

IV. Terms of Agreement and Supplemental Agreement No. 2 Control and Extent of
Second Amendment to Supplemental Agreement No. 2

All Additional Services described herein will be performed in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Agreement and Supplemental Agreement No. 2.  County
and A/E hereby agree that, except as otherwise set out herein, all terms of the
Agreement,  Supplemental Agreement No. 2 and any prior amendments thereto which
have not been specifically amended herein shall remain the same and shall continue in
full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the A/E have executed this Second 
Amendment to Supplemental Agreement No. 2, to be e
execution below. 

A/E: COUNTY: 

Populous, Inc. Williamson County, Texas 

By:   By:  
Signature Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge 

Printed Name:   Date:   , 20 

Title:  

Date:   , 20 

John P. Fickel

Principal

September 28th
20



ATTACHMENT 1 

2020 Billing Rates 
 

Job Title       Hourly Rate 

Senior Principal ........................................................................ $ 420 
Senior Architect - PIC............................................................... $ 325 

Senior Project Manager ........................................................... $ 275 
Senior Project Architect ........................................................... $ 275 
Senior Project Designer ........................................................... $ 275 

Architect ................................................................................... $ 200 

Project Manager ....................................................................... $ 205 
Project Architect ....................................................................... $ 205 

Project Designer....................................................................... $ 205 

Architecture Designer III .......................................................... $ 155 
Architecture Designer II ........................................................... $ 140 
Architecture Designer I ............................................................ $ 120 

Senior Planner ......................................................................... $ 375 

Planner ..................................................................................... $ 245 
Senior Landscape Architect ..................................................... $ 250 

Landscape Architect................................................................. $ 165 
Landscape Designer II ............................................................. $ 120 

Landscape Designer I .............................................................. $ 110 
Senior Interior Designer ........................................................... $ 220 

Interior Designer....................................................................... $ 155 
Interiors Designer III ................................................................. $ 140 

Interiors Designer II .................................................................. $ 125 

Interiors Designer I ................................................................... $ 110 
Senior Graphic Designer.......................................................... $ 180 

Graphic Designer ..................................................................... $ 150 

Graphics Designer II ................................................................ $ 130 

Graphics Designer I ................................................................. $ 110 
Computer Animation Specialist ................................................ $ 200 
Specifications Writer ................................................................ $ 205 

Quality Coordinator .................................................................. $ 220 

Intern ......................................................................................... $ 70 

BIM Technician ........................................................................ $ 115 

Administrative Assistant ........................................................... $ 115 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 33.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Tax Office Drop Box Wall Opening
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on ratifying the agreement with Texas Cutting &
Coring, L.P.and Williamson County for the Drop Box Wall Opening at the Tax Office in the
amount of $1,980.00 and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Background
This service agreement is for the creation of an opening and the installation of a drop box at the
Williamson County Tax Office in Georgetown. This project was completed on 10.12.2020 due to
the Tax Office being closed that day. The completion of the project prior to agenda item
placement was approved by Legal due to the low risk and cost. Point of Contact is Dale Butler.
Funding source 01.0100.1051.004510.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
agreement and quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:42 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:44 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/14/2020 09:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 

















Georgetown Tax Office
904 S Main

Georgetown, TX
(512) 695-8404

10/02/20

WILLIAMSON COUNTY
FACILITES MAINTENANCE
3101 SE INNER LOOP

Attn:

 JOB SITE LOCATION

(254) 654-1495 Fax:
GEORGETOWN ,TX

TEXAS CUTTING & CORING…
17 Indian Meadows
Round Rock, TX  78665-9516
(512) 447-4477 (512) 255-5974 Fax

746628QUOTE:

Quantity Description Unit Price

Phn:

SCOPE OF WORK

1.00 Hydraulic Hand saw / Ring saw / Chain saw / Core drill 
1 Opening Into 8" Tilt Wall For Drop Box 
The Opening Is Approximately 17-1/4" Wide x 8-1/2" Tall
On The Outside & 15" Tall Inside On A 35 Deg Angle. 
This Price Is Based On Work To Be Done During Normal
Business Hours 
This Includes Hanging Plastic, Removal & Haul Off.

1,980.00 1,980.00

Daniel (512) 695-8404
-CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LAYOUT OF SAWING ON SLABS / WALL PRIOR
TO OUR ARRIVAL ON SITE.
-TEXAS CUTTING AND CORING IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY HIDDEN
OR UNMARKED UTILITIES LOCATED INSIDE, NEAR OR UNDERNEATH THE WORK
AREA.
-STANDBY TIME WILL BE CHARGED AT A RATE OF $112.50 PER PERSON / PER
HOUR FOR ANY JOB SITE CONDITION THAT WOULD PREVENT US FROM PERFORMING
THE ABOVE SCOPE OF WORK.  I.E. LACK OF LAYOUT.
-ANY ALTERATION FROM THE SPECIFICATIONS INVOLVING EXTRA COST WILL BE
EXECUTED ONLY UPON WRITTEN ORDERS, AND WILL BECOME AN EXTRA CHARGE
OVER AND ABOVE THE PROPOSED PRICE.

$1,980.00TOTAL:

To be provided by others:
Lay out of opening/s, sufficient water and electricity for equipment.  Area to be free and clear of obstructions. Access for our operator and equipment.

$1,980.00( ).
Texas Cutting & Coring, L. P. proposes  to furnish equipment and labor in accordance with defined specifications, for the sum of:

Payment to be made as follows:

WILLIAMSON COUNTY
All Invoices due net 30 days for materials stored or delivered to job and/or labor performed.  Interest will be charged at 2% per month on all amounts. 

 All legal fees incurred for collection of this contract will be paid by:

Acceptance of this proposal: The above prices, specifications and conditions have been read and are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. 
Texas Cutting & Coring, L.P. is authorized to perform the work as specified.

Date of accptance: Signature:

(Must be an officer of the company)

Texas Cutting & Coring, L.P. assumes no responsibility for layout or damage to hidden utilities. Changes in job conditions may result in price adjustments.
NOTE: Texas Cutting & Coring L.P. may withdraw this proposal, if not accepted within 30 days.

Safety person or barriers if necessary.  Texas Cutting & Coring, L.P. is not responsible for cleaning of concrete slurry other than light 
water hosing (unless specified as a condition).



Georgetown Tax Office
904 S Main

Georgetown, TX
(512) 695-8404

10/02/20

WILLIAMSON COUNTY
FACILITES MAINTENANCE
3101 SE INNER LOOP

Attn:

 JOB SITE LOCATION

(254) 654-1495 Fax:
GEORGETOWN ,TX

TEXAS CUTTING & CORING…
17 Indian Meadows
Round Rock, TX  78665-9516
(512) 447-4477 (512) 255-5974 Fax

746628QUOTE:

Quantity Description Unit Price

Phn:

SCOPE OF WORK

-TEXAS CUTTING AND CORING WILL VACUUM UP THE SLURRY BUT IS NOT
RESPONSIBLE FOR FINE CLEANING SUCH AS MOPPING OR PRESSURE WASHING.
Justin Ketchum - 512-627-9346

To be provided by others:
Lay out of opening/s, sufficient water and electricity for equipment.  Area to be free and clear of obstructions. Access for our operator and equipment.

$1,980.00( ).
Texas Cutting & Coring, L. P. proposes  to furnish equipment and labor in accordance with defined specifications, for the sum of:

Payment to be made as follows:

WILLIAMSON COUNTY
All Invoices due net 30 days for materials stored or delivered to job and/or labor performed.  Interest will be charged at 2% per month on all amounts. 

 All legal fees incurred for collection of this contract will be paid by:

Acceptance of this proposal: The above prices, specifications and conditions have been read and are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. 
Texas Cutting & Coring, L.P. is authorized to perform the work as specified.

Date of accptance: Signature:

(Must be an officer of the company)

Texas Cutting & Coring, L.P. assumes no responsibility for layout or damage to hidden utilities. Changes in job conditions may result in price adjustments.
NOTE: Texas Cutting & Coring L.P. may withdraw this proposal, if not accepted within 30 days.

Safety person or barriers if necessary.  Texas Cutting & Coring, L.P. is not responsible for cleaning of concrete slurry other than light 
water hosing (unless specified as a condition).



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 34.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Authorize issuing T2086 RFQ Materials Testing and Geotechnical Testing
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed qualifications for Materials Testing and Geotechnical Testing for Williamson
County under RFQ T2086.

Background
Williamson County seeks Professional services include but are not limited to:
• Perform Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC) for construction material sampling
and testing, both field and laboratory testing to include but not be limited to structural fasteners,
structural welds, asphalt, emulsions ,asphaltic concrete, cement, Portland cement concrete,
aggregates, soils and flexible base. Testing shall be in compliance with ASTM or TxDOT
testing methods.
• Perform geotechnical investigations including borings, pavement cores, collect samples,
perform laboratory testing, interpret field data and prepare geotechnical reports, provide
recommendations and prepare written reports for pavement design, foundation design and
slope stability.Dale Butler is the Point of contact. Funding source for FY2021:
01-0100-0509-004100

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:52 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 07:59 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 35.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Asphalt Mixes 1809-262 renewal 2
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Dianne West, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the extension of Asphalt Mixes
Contract 1809-262, renewal period 2, covering the term of 11/3/2020 – 11/2/2021, for the same
pricing, terms and conditions as the existing contract with Industrial Asphalt, LLC.

Background
This is the second extension for this contract.  The Road and Bridge Department submitted a
Vendor Performance Report (VPR) that reflects the vendor met all county requirements on this
contract and request to renew.  The department point of contact is James Williams. This is in
the FY21 budget under Asphalt, 01.0200.0210.003550.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
1809-262 renewal 2 Asphalt Mixes 
1809-262 renewal 1 Asphalt Mixes 
Bid Tabulation Packet for 1809-262 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:52 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:55 AM
Form Started By: Dianne West Started On: 10/07/2020 11:07 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 







55

66

Bid Tabulation Packet
for

Solicitation 1809-262

Asphalt Mixes

Bid Designation: Public

Williamson County, Texas

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 1



55

66

Bid #1809-262 - Asphalt Mixes

Creation Date    Sep 20, 2018 End Date Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Start Date Oct 2, 2018 3:02:36 PM CDT Awarded Date   Not Yet Awarded

1809-262--01 -01   Please attach all  i tems to this l ine.

Supplier Unit Price Qty /Uni t Total Price Attch. Docs

Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate [Ad] First Offer -   1 / each Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Oldcastle Materials Texas First Offer -   1 / each Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Supplier Totals

f   Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Robert Sutton 

padraic.dillon@austinmaterials.com 

Ph 817-403 -7146   

 Address  9020 Capital of Texas Highway

Building II, Suite 250

Austin, UT 84003 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head 

Attch:

f   Oldcastle Materials Texas  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Bailey Lewis 

bailey.lewis@texasmaterials.com 

Ph   

 Address  1320 Arrow Point Drive.

Cedar Park, TX 78613 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head 

Attch:

* *

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 2



55

66

 Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate 

 Bid Contact Robert Sutton 

padraic.dillon@austinmaterials.com 

Ph 817-403 -7146   

 Address 9020 Capital of Texas Highway

Building II, Suite 250

Austin, UT 84003 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1809 -262--01-01   Please attach all items 

to this line.  

Supplier 

Product Code:

First Offer -    1 / each Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 3



55

66

 Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

 Item: Please attach all items to this line. 

 Attachments

 2018 Asphalt_Mixes_Bid_Items.pdf

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 4



Road & Bridge 
Asphalt Mixes Bid Tab 2018 1 of 2 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY BID FORM 

IFB 1809-262 ASPHALT MIXES 

DESCRIPTION UNIT Delivery Site UNIT PRICING - 
DELIVERED 

UNIT PRICING - 
PICKED UP 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type B PG 64-22 SAC B, TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 

Ton 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type B PG 64-22 SAC B, TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 with 20% UNFRACTIONATED 
RAP 

Ton 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type B PG 64-22 SAC B, TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 with 20% FRACTIONATED RAP 

Ton 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type B PG 64-22 SAC B, TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 with 30% FRACTIONATED RAP 

Ton 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type C PG 70-22 SAC B, TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 

Ton 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type C PG 70-22 SAC B, TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 with 10% FRACTIONATED OR 
UNFRACTIONATED RAP 

Ton 

NAME OF BIDDER: __Industrial Asphalt, LLC._____________________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _9020 N Capital of Tx Hwy Bldg II Ste 250___________________________________ 

City: _Austin________________ State: _Texas___ Zip:__78759___________  

Email Address: ___Robert.Sutton@austinmaterials.com___________________________________________________ 

Telephone: (_512_) __251-3713_________________________ Fax: (_512_) __251-3709________________________ 

Mobile Phone: (_817_) __403-7146_______________________ 

$48.00

$46.00

$47.00

$46.00

$53.00

$51.00

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 5



Road & Bridge 
Asphalt Mixes Bid Tab 2018 2 of 2 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type D PG 70-22 SAC B TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 

Ton 

Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete Pavement 
Type D PG 70-22 SAC B TX DOT ITEM 
# 340 with 10% FRACTIONATED OR 
UNFRACTIONATED RAP 

Ton 

Hot Mix Cold Lay Type D SAC B TX 
DOT ITEM #334   
To reach 95% Lab Density 

Ton 

Hot Mix Cold Lay Black Base Type B 
TX DOT ITEM #334   
To reach 95% Lab Density 

Ton 

Hot Mix Cold Lay Type D SAC B TX 
DOT ITEM #334   
To reach 95% Lab Density 

Ton 

Central Maintenance 
Facility Road and Bridge 

3151 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Tx 78626 

Hot Mix Cold Lay Black Base Type B 
TX DOT ITEM #334  
To reach 95% Lab Density 

Ton 

Central Maintenance 
Facility Road and Bridge 

3151 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, Tx 78627 

The undersigned, by his/her signature, represents that he/she is authorized to bind the bidder to fully comply with the terms and 
conditions of the attached Invitation for Bid, Specifications, and Special Provisions for the amount(s) shown on the accompanying 
bid sheet(s). 

 _______________________________________________________________ Date of Bid: __________________ 
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign Bid  

Printed Name and Title of Signer:_____________________________________________________________________ 

10/30/2018

$60.00

$60.00

$53.00

$53.00

$51.00

$52.00

Robert Sutton, Sales Manager

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 6



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1809-262

Asphalt Mixes

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 7



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1809-262

Asphalt Mixes

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 8



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Jordan Foster FM 972 Project

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Josh Little Project Manager

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-799-7788 Jlittle@jordanfosterconstruction.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 6/10/16 320,000

Scope of Work:
Road Base Supplier

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
DNT Construction Pearson Place 8801 Pearson Ranch Road

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Chance Wheeless Project Manager

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-287-9800 cwheeless@dntconstruction.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 8/4/2016 200,000

Scope of Work:
Road Base Supplier

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
OHL Construction FM 1460

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Justin Garza Project Manager

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-457-9775 bchaffe@ohlusa.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 8/18/16 990,000

Scope of Work:
Road Base Supplier

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 9



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Jordan Foster FM 972 Project

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Josh Little Project Manager

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-799-7788 Jlittle@jordanfosterconstruction.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 6/10/16 320,000

Scope of Work:
Road Base Supplier

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
DNT Construction Pearson Place 8801 Pearson Ranch Road

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Chance Wheeless Project Manager

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-287-9800 cwheeless@dntconstruction.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 8/4/2016 200,000

Scope of Work:
Road Base Supplier

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
OHL Construction FM 1460

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Justin Garza Project Manager

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-457-9775 bchaffe@ohlusa.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 8/18/16 990,000

Scope of Work:
Road Base Supplier

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 10



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Industrial Asphalt

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None Known

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 11



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Industrial Asphalt

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None Known

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 12



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Industrial Asphalt

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None Known

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 13



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Industrial Asphalt

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None Known

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 14



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Name of Bidder: Robert Sutton
Address of Bidder: 9020 N Capitol of TX HWY Bldg II Ste 250
Email: robert.sutton@austinmaterials.com

Telephone: 8174037146

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Robert Sutton

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Robert Sutton

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 15



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Name of Bidder: Robert Sutton
Address of Bidder: 9020 N Capitol of TX HWY Bldg II Ste 250
Email: robert.sutton@austinmaterials.com

Telephone: 8174037146

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Robert Sutton

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Robert Sutton

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 16



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Name of Bidder: Robert Sutton
Address of Bidder: 9020 N Capitol of TX HWY Bldg II Ste 250
Email: robert.sutton@austinmaterials.com

Telephone: 8174037146

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Robert Sutton

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Robert Sutton

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 17



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 18



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 19



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 20



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 21



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 22



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 23



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 24



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 25



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 26



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 27



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 28



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 29



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 30



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 31



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 32



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 33



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 34



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Industrial Asphalt & Aggregate

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 35



55

66

 Oldcastle Materials Texas 

 Bid Contact Bailey Lewis 

bailey.lewis@texasmaterials.com 

Ph   

 Address 1320 Arrow Point Drive.

Cedar Park, TX 78613 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1809 -262--01-01   Please attach all items 

to this line.  

Supplier 

Product Code:

First Offer -    1 / each Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 36



55

66

 Oldcastle Materials Texas

 Item: Please attach all items to this line. 

 Attachments

 Old Castle Materials -  Texas.pdf

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 37



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 38



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 39



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 40



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 41



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 42



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 43



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 44



1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 45



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1809-262

Asphalt Mixes

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 46



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1809-262

Asphalt Mixes

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Oct 31, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 47



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 48



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 49



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 50



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 51



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 52



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 53



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:
Email:

Telephone:

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 54



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:
Email:

Telephone:

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 55



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:
Email:

Telephone:

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 56



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 57



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 58



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 59



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 60



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 61



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 62



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 63



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 64



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 65



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 66



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 67



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 68



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 69



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 70



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 71



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 72



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 73



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Oldcastle Materials Texas

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1809-262Williamson County, Texas

BidSync11/2/2018 p. 74



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 36.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Williamson County Pollution Liability Insurance renewal request
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Dianne West, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the renewal of Williamson County
Pollution Liability Insurance AIG Storage Tank Third Party Liability TankGuard Warranty for
Policy Number PLC000168373 with Commerce and Industry Insurance Company, for the term
of 12/18/20 – 12/18/21.

Background
This is a recurring annual policy that is required for the underground storage tanks.  Fleet
Services Department point of contact is Kevin Teller. The funding source is 0882.0882.004416 –
Other Liability Insurance and was included in the FY21 budget with an estimated cost of
$1,255.00.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Williamson County Pollution Liability Insurance 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:55 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:57 AM
Form Started By: Dianne West Started On: 10/07/2020 11:25 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 37.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Cobb Fendley 1811-273 WA2 Utility Coordination S San Gabriel Ranches
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 2 in the amount of
$62,287.40 to expire on December 31, 2021 under Williamson County Contract for Engineering
Services between Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc. and Williamson County dated July 16, 2019
for Utility Coordination for South San Gabriel Ranches Subdivision (Aqua Water). Funding
source: P489.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Cobb Fendley 1811-273 WA2 Utility Coordination S San Gabriel Ranches 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/12/2020 09:45 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/12/2020 10:39 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 10/09/2020 01:34 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/12/2020 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 38.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Bucket Truck Purchase for R&B 
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase of one (1) 2021 Ford
F-450 Regular Cab Bucket Truck in the amount of $91,818.50 including a one-time
administrative fee of $300 from Silsbee Ford, as per GoodBuy Contract #20-8F000 and
authorizing signature of the quote.

Background
This purchase is for Road and Bridge. See attached quote for details. Department Contact is
Daniel Shea. Funding Source: 01.0100.0509.005003.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:41 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:07 PM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/14/2020 09:15 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 39.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

1807-245 renewal 2 Bulk Fuel for Williamson County
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Dianne West, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the extension of Bulk Fuel for
Williamson County Contract 1807-245, renewal option period 2, for the term of December 1,
2020 – November 30, 2021, for the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing contract
with Petroleum Traders Corporation.

Background
This is the second and last available renewal option for this bulk fuel contract that provides
supply of gasoline and diesel fuel to Williamson County on an "as needed" basis in order to
service County owned equipment and vehicles.  The Fleet Department provided a Vendor
Performance Report stating the vendor met all requirements and requests renewal.  The
department point of contact is Kevin Teller, Director of Fleet Services.  The funding source in
the FY21 budget is 0882.0882.003301 Gasoline.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
1807-245 renewal 2 Bulk Fuel - vendor signed 
1807-245 renewal 1 Bulk Fuel - fully executed 
Bid Tab Packet 1807-245 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:45 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:50 AM
Form Started By: Dianne West Started On: 10/14/2020 11:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



 

 

 

Summary Agreement for Renewal of Williamson County Contract 

 
 

Purchase/Contract Type: Material Department:  Fleet Services 

Vendor Name:  Petroleum Traders Corporation 
Vendor Address:  7120 Pointe Inverness Way, Fort Wayne, IN 46804 
Purpose/Intended Use of Product or Service (summary): 
Bulk Fuel - provide gasoline and diesel fuel 

P.O./Contract Number: 1807-245 Effective Date: 12/01/2020 
Purchaser/Contract Specialist: Dianne West Expiration Date: 11/30/2021 
Requested By: Kevin Teller, Department of Fleet Services 
Detailed description of renewal of product and/or service.  
 Williamson County wishes to extend this bid/proposal, for the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing 

contract.  
 Please include the following:  

- Completed Texas Ethics Commission Form 1295; And 

- Renewed Certificate of Insurance if it was required in bid/proposal.  

 Extend Contract for the 2nd of two (2) one year renewal option periods:  
Renewal Option Period 2                            December 1, 2020 – November 30, 2021    
Renewal Option Period 1  December 1, 2019 – November 30, 2020 
Initial Contract Period   December 1, 2018 – November 30, 2019  
 
BY SIGNING BELOW, THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE TERMS OF EXTENSION SET OUT HEREIN 
 
Vendor _Petroleum Traders Corporation__      Williamson County, 710 Main St., Georgetown, TX 78626 

Name__Gayle Newton_________________     Bill Gravell 

Title __Contract Sales Manager__________     Williamson County Judge 

Signature____________________________     Signature___________________________________ 

Date__10/08/2020____________________     Date _______________________________________ 

   



 

 

 







55

66

Bid Tabulation Packet
for

Solicitation 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

Bid Designation: Public

Williamson County, Texas

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 1



5

6

Bid #1807-245 - Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

Creation Date    Jul 3, 2018 End Date Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Start Date Jul 24, 2018 11:45:37 AM CDT Awarded Date   Not Yet Awarded

1807-245--01 -01   Please attach all  documents to this  l ine

Supplier Unit Price Qty /Uni t Total Price Attch. Docs

Petroleum Traders Corporation [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:  all products

Supplier Notes:

Sun Coast Resources Inc. [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

IPC (USA), Inc. [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Mansfield Oil Company [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:  Please see attached for all additional required 

information. 

RKA Petroleum First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Supplier Totals

f   Sun Coast Resources Inc.  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Terri Bateman 

national@suncoastresources.com 

Ph 713-429 -6702   

Fax 713 -969 -3383 

 Address  6405 Cavalcade

Houston, TX 77026 

 Bid Notes   On behalf of Sun Coast Resources Inc., we would like to thank you for the opportunity to 

provide a response to the RFP. Please feel free to reach out should you require any 

additional documents or have questions regarding our attached RFP proposal. 

We look forward to working with you in the near future! 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

On behalf of Sun Coast Resources Inc., we would like 

to thank you for the opportunity to provide a response 

to the RFP. Please feel free to reach out should you 

require any additional documents or have questions 

regarding our attached RFP proposal. 

We look forward to working with you in the near 

future! 

Head 

Attch:

f   Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Liz McKinley 

lmckinley@pinnaclepetroleum.com 

Ph 714-841 -8877   

Fax 714 -841 -8877 

 Address  16651 Gemini Lane

Huntington Beach, CA 92647 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head 

Attch:

f   IPC (USA), Inc.  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Blanca Hurtado 

helena.schecter@usipc.com 

Ph 949-648 -5620   

Fax 949 -648 -5612 

 Address  4 Hutton Center Drive

Suite 700

Santa Ana, CA 92707 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head Attch:

f   Mansfield Oil Company  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Diane Burke 

mocbids@mansfieldoil.com 

Ph 678-450 -2283   

Fax 678 -450 -2242 

 Address  1025 Airport Pkwy

Gainesville, GA 30501 

 Bid Notes   Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this bid. 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this 

bid. 

Head 

Attch:

f   Petroleum Traders Corporation  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Gayle Newton 

gnewton@petroleumtraders.com 

Ph 800-348 -3705   

Fax 260 -203 -3820 

 Address  7120 Pointe Inverness Way

Fort Wayne, IN 46804 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head 

Attch:

f   RKA Petroleum  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Cynthia Kilian 

ckilian@rkapetroleum.com 

Ph   

 Address  28340 Wick Rd

Romulus , MI 48174 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head Attch:

* *

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 2



5

6

Bid #1807-245 - Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

Creation Date    Jul 3, 2018 End Date Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Start Date Jul 24, 2018 11:45:37 AM CDT Awarded Date   Not Yet Awarded

1807-245--01 -01   Please attach all  documents to this  l ine

Supplier Unit Price Qty /Uni t Total Price Attch. Docs

Petroleum Traders Corporation [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:  all products

Supplier Notes:

Sun Coast Resources Inc. [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

IPC (USA), Inc. [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Mansfield Oil Company [Ad] First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:  Please see attached for all additional required 

information. 

RKA Petroleum First Offer -   1 / gallon Y Y

Product Code: 

Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:

Supplier Totals

f   Sun Coast Resources Inc.  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Terri Bateman 

national@suncoastresources.com 

Ph 713-429 -6702   

Fax 713 -969 -3383 

 Address  6405 Cavalcade

Houston, TX 77026 

 Bid Notes   On behalf of Sun Coast Resources Inc., we would like to thank you for the opportunity to 

provide a response to the RFP. Please feel free to reach out should you require any 

additional documents or have questions regarding our attached RFP proposal. 

We look forward to working with you in the near future! 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

On behalf of Sun Coast Resources Inc., we would like 

to thank you for the opportunity to provide a response 

to the RFP. Please feel free to reach out should you 

require any additional documents or have questions 

regarding our attached RFP proposal. 

We look forward to working with you in the near 

future! 

Head 

Attch:

f   Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Liz McKinley 

lmckinley@pinnaclepetroleum.com 

Ph 714-841 -8877   

Fax 714 -841 -8877 

 Address  16651 Gemini Lane

Huntington Beach, CA 92647 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head 

Attch:

f   IPC (USA), Inc.  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Blanca Hurtado 

helena.schecter@usipc.com 

Ph 949-648 -5620   

Fax 949 -648 -5612 

 Address  4 Hutton Center Drive

Suite 700

Santa Ana, CA 92707 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head Attch:

f   Mansfield Oil Company  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Diane Burke 

mocbids@mansfieldoil.com 

Ph 678-450 -2283   

Fax 678 -450 -2242 

 Address  1025 Airport Pkwy

Gainesville, GA 30501 

 Bid Notes   Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this bid. 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this 

bid. 

Head 

Attch:

f   Petroleum Traders Corporation  [Ad] $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Gayle Newton 

gnewton@petroleumtraders.com 

Ph 800-348 -3705   

Fax 260 -203 -3820 

 Address  7120 Pointe Inverness Way

Fort Wayne, IN 46804 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head 

Attch:

f   RKA Petroleum  $0.00    

 Bid Contact  Cynthia Kilian 

ckilian@rkapetroleum.com 

Ph   

 Address  28340 Wick Rd

Romulus , MI 48174 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head Attch:

* *

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 3



55

66

 Sun Coast Resources Inc. 

 Bid Contact Terri Bateman 

national@suncoastresources.com 

Ph 713-429 -6702   

Fax 713 -969 -3383 

 Address 6405 Cavalcade

Houston, TX 77026 

 Bid Notes  On behalf of Sun Coast Resources Inc., we would like to thank you for the opportunity to provide a 

response to the RFP. Please feel free to reach out should you require any additional documents or 

have questions regarding our attached RFP proposal. 

We look forward to working with you in the near future! 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1807 -245--01-01   Please attach all 

documents to this line  

Supplier 

Product Code:

First Offer -    1 / gallon Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 4



55

66

 Sun Coast Resources Inc.

 Item: Please attach all documents to this line 

 Attachments

 Williamson County BID -Air Quality Response.pdf

 1295.pdf

 CIQ.pdf

 Williamson County Exceptions Page.pdf

 Sun Coast Copyright Letter_04262016.pdf

 SUN COAST BID -  PRICE SHEET.pdf

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 5



   

  

6405 Cavalcade Street •  Building 1  •  Houston, Texas 77026  •  800-677-FUEL (3835)  •  713-844-9600 

www.suncoastresources.com 

 

Invitation for Bid: Bulk Fuel for Williamson County 

Solicitation Number 1807-245 

  
Air Quality- Section 4.36 (Page 30) 

 

Sun Coast Resources, Inc. meets or exceeds all state or federal environmental standards. The Sun 

Coast Safety Team includes a subset team of experts in its environmental compliance department 

with over 37 years of experience in regulatory enforcement, environmental consulting, and 

industrial/petroleum compliance. Our terminal locations throughout Texas, Louisiana, and 

Oklahoma are permitted and in compliance with federal, state, and local requirements including: 

Hazardous Materials Transportation, Storm Water Pollution Prevention, Spill Prevention Control 

and Countermeasure Plans (as required under the Oil Pollution Act of 1990), Petroleum Storage 

Tank regulations, Industrial and Hazardous Waste, Sludge Transportation, Used Oil 

Transportation and Recycling. Regarding air quality, fuel transfers can contribute hazardous air 

pollutants in the form of volatile organic compounds. This can be mitigated by the use of vapor 

recovery systems, with which all Sun Coast trucks are equipped to use during fuel transfers. We 

also voluntarily run biodiesel in our fleet of trucks to minimize air emissions from the actual 

transportation component of fuel distribution. Sun Coast has a vehicle idling policy in which 

vehicles are to shut off their engines if they idle for 3 minutes or longer to prevent or minimize air 

emissions, unless the engine is needed to power a pump for product transfers, or in the case of 

extreme heat or cold for driver safety reasons.  
 

 

 

  

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 6



1
8

0
7

-2
4

5
W

ill
ia

m
s
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

, 
T

e
x
a

s

B
id

S
y
n

c
9

/2
5

/2
0

1
8

p
. 

7



1
8

0
7

-2
4

5
W

ill
ia

m
s
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

, 
T

e
x
a

s

B
id

S
y
n

c
9

/2
5

/2
0

1
8

p
. 

8



   

  

6405 Cavalcade Street •  Building 1  •  Houston, Texas 77026  •  800-677-FUEL (3835)  •  713-844-9600 

www.suncoastresources.com 

 

Invitation for Bid: Bulk Fuel for Williamson County 

Solicitation Number 1807-245 

Sun Coast Resources, Inc. Exceptions Page  

 

1. Testing and Inspections- Section 4.12 (Page 25) 

Bidder requests this section be amended to read: 

 

“The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality and 

compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be available 

for review upon reasonable written notice and secure an agreed time and date from the Bidder.  Should the 

goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation, the County can deem the 

Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s) if the Bidder does not 

cure the defect within a reasonable time.” 

  

2. Indemnification- Section 4.14 (Page 26) 

Bidder request that this section be amended to read: 

 

“The Successful Bidder agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law and to the extent caused by the 

Bidder, to indemnify and hold harmless, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agent’s employees 

from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising from 

activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, during the performance of services under this 

Contract, by the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder, or any of the Bidder agents, servants, or 

employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder’s and the County property, equipment, 

and/or supplies.” 

 

3. Indemnification- Section 4.14 (Page 26) 

Bidder requests this section be amended to read: 

 

“The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 

judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien or 

judgement provide the County with a written report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each 

matter, the schedule or planned proceedings with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, 

if any, of the County required by the Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter. The Successful 

Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and hold the County harmless shall be absolute. It shall not abate or end 

by reason of the expiration or termination of the Contract and/or an Ensuing Agreement(s), unless 

otherwise agreed by the County in writing. The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of 

the Contract and shall remain in full force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they 

arise.”  

 

4. Indemnification- Section 4.14 (Page 26) 

Bidder requests this sentence be stricken in its entirety. 

 

“Successful Bidder's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Bidder agrees to indemnify Williamson 

County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for having selected Successful 

Bidder to perform the work described in this request. The provision by Successful Bidder of insurance shall 

not limit the liability of Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.”  

 

5. Force Majeure- Section 4.18 (Page 27) 

Bidder requests this section be amended to read: 

 

“If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 

act of God, fuel allocation issues and/or regional supply shortages that cause price increases that are outside 

of the party’s control, commercial impracticability or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault 

or negligence of said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the performance. The burden 

of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the party obligated to perform. To obtain release based 

on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party. In the 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 9



   

  

6405 Cavalcade Street •  Building 1  •  Houston, Texas 77026  •  800-677-FUEL (3835)  •  713-844-9600 

www.suncoastresources.com 

 

event of such allocation issues or supply shortages, upon notice to the affected party, the performing party 

may temporarily adjust the pricing during the force majeure event to reflect the increased cost to the 

performing party. No such price adjustment permitted under this force majeure section shall be binding 

upon the affected party until such time the affected party has accepted such adjustments in writing; 

however, it is understood and agreed that absent such acceptance by the affected party, the performing 

party will be excused from any obligation to deliver product during the force majeure event.”  

 

6. Payment- Section 4.38 (Page 30) 

Bidder requests this section be amended to read: 

 

“In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 

notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 

receives the invoice. Until the error is resolved, County shall pay all undisputed amounts from the invoice 

within the timeframe allotted under the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement. If the error is resolved in 

favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid 

balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the 

invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit 

a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the time set forth above. The unpaid balance 

accrues interest as provided by the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not 

paid by the appropriate date.” 

 

7. Cooperative Purchasing Program- Section 4.40 (Page 31) 

Bidder will agree to this only with a written agreement signed by Bidder and any other governmental entity 

requesting purchase off the County’s Agreement. 

 

8. Insurance Requirements- Section 1.6(A)(4) Coverage Limits (Page 35) 

Bidder requests this section be stricken in its entirety. 

 

“Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000.00 per claim.” 

 

9. Insurance Requirements- Section 1.6(C) Premiums and Deductible (Page 35) 

Bidder requests this sentence be stricken in its entirety. Bidder considers this information to be confidential 

and proprietary.  

 

“…any deductibles or self-insured retentions over $50,000 in the Successful Bidder’s insurance must be 

declared and approved in writing by County in advance.”  

 

10. Bid Pricing (Page 38) 

Bidder requests this section be stricken in its entirety. Due to contractual obligations, Bidder cannot provide 

this information.  

 

 “The Successful Bidder is required to supply a current copy of the “Oil Pricing Information Service (OPIS) 

Report” to the Contract Administrator daily by email as follows: Email: kevin.teller@wilco.org.”  

 

11. Natural Disaster or Emergency Situation (Page 38) 

Bidder requests this section be stricken in its entirety. Bidder provides emergency services at an additional 

cost to be quoted separately.  

 

“In the event of a Natural Disaster or Emergency Situation, awarded bidder will escalate Williamson 

County to a Priority One level for fuel deliveries and will make deliveries as needed, required and 

requested, 24/7, to the best of their capabilities and available resources, equipment and manpower”   

  

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 10



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 11



TANK WAGON SUPPLY:THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 1500-4500 

GALLONS OF COMBINED PRODUCTS                                     
Brand Bid Opis Daily Average Firm Discount Markup Cost to County

Conventional Gasoline with 10% Ethanol

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend

Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified

TRANSPORT TRUCK SUPPLY: THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 5000-

9000 GALLONS OF SPLIT LOAD PRODUCT
Brand Bid Opis Daily Average Firm Discount Markup Cost to County

Conventional Unleaded Gasoline with 10% Ethanol 

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend

Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified

STANDBY GENERATOR FUELING: THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 

50-150 GALLONS OF A SINGLE PRODUCT
Brand Bid Cost Per Stop Firm Discount Markup Cost to County Demurrage Hourly

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend

Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified

Bid 1807-245Williamson County, Texas

7/30/2018 1:43 PM p. 43

Flint Hills 
Flint Hills 

n/a 
n/a 

+.0875 
+.0875 

Flint Hills      n/a     +.0452 $2.1955 
Flint Hills  $2.3278   n/a     +.0452 

Flint Hills  $200.00   n/a   +1.00 $3.3278 +     $75.00 see below 
            Per stop fee 
 

**Demurrage Charge: Driver is allowed 1 hour on location, any time after that will be charged at a rate of $1.25 per minute or $75.00 per hour.  
 

$75.00 
Please see below** 

Demurrage Charge 

Demurrage Charge 

$75.00 
Please see below** 

 

* Used the Daily Gross Opis Average, Austin price of $ 2.1503 for the unleaded and $2.3278 for the diesel on the date of 9/21/2018. 

$2.1503 
$2.3278 

$2.1503 

$2.2378 
$2.4153 

$2.3730 

SUN COAST RESOURCES, INC. BID SHEET 

 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 12



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 13



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 14



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Aldine ISD HOUSTON

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Michael Houston Director of Purchasing

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
281-985-6141 mehouston@aldineisd.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:
FUEL AND LUBRICANTS

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
County of Galveston GALVESTON

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Rufus Crowder Head of Purchasing

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
409-770-5403 Rufus.crowder@co.galveston.tx.us

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:
FUEL AND LUBRICANTS

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Harris County HOUSTON

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Melissa McCord Senior Buyer 

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
713-274-4424

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Melissa.McCord@pur.hctx.net

Scope of Work:
FUEL, LUBRICANTS, EMERGENCY RESPONSE

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 15



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Aldine ISD HOUSTON

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Michael Houston Director of Purchasing

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
281-985-6141 mehouston@aldineisd.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:
FUEL AND LUBRICANTS

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
County of Galveston GALVESTON

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Rufus Crowder Head of Purchasing

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
409-770-5403 Rufus.crowder@co.galveston.tx.us

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:
FUEL AND LUBRICANTS

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Harris County HOUSTON

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Melissa McCord Senior Buyer 

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
713-274-4424

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Melissa.McCord@pur.hctx.net

Scope of Work:
FUEL, LUBRICANTS, EMERGENCY RESPONSE

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 16



5

6

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Sun Coast Resources, Inc. 

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

N/A

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

7

tbateman@suncoastresources.com

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 17



5

6

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Sun Coast Resources, Inc. 

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

N/A

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

7

tbateman@suncoastresources.com

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 18



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Sun Coast Resources, Inc. 

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Terri Bateman

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

tbateman@suncoastresources.com

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 19



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Sun Coast Resources, Inc. 

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Terri Bateman

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

tbateman@suncoastresources.com

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 20



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Sun Coast Resources, Inc. 

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Terri Bateman

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

tbateman@suncoastresources.com

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 21



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Sun Coast Resources, Inc. 

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Terri Bateman

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

tbateman@suncoastresources.com

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 22



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Name of Bidder: Sun Coast Resources, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 6405 CAVALCADE
Email: NATIONAL@suncoastresources.com

Telephone: 7134296702

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.


I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 23



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Name of Bidder: Sun Coast Resources, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 6405 CAVALCADE
Email: NATIONAL@suncoastresources.com

Telephone: 7134296702

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.


I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 24



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Name of Bidder: Sun Coast Resources, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 6405 CAVALCADE
Email: NATIONAL@suncoastresources.com

Telephone: 7134296702

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.


I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 25



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 26



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 27



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 28



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 29



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 30



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 31



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 32



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 33



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 34



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 35



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 36



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 37



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 38



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 39



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 40



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 41



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 42



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Sun Coast Resources Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 43



55

66

 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. 

 Bid Contact Liz McKinley 

lmckinley@pinnaclepetroleum.com 

Ph 714-841 -8877   

Fax 714 -841 -8877 

 Address 16651 Gemini Lane

Huntington Beach, CA 92647 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1807 -245--01-01   Please attach all 

documents to this line  

Supplier Product 

Code:  all products

First Offer -    1 / gallon Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 44



55

66

 Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

 Item: Please attach all documents to this line 

 Attachments

 Fuel_Price_Sheet.xlsx

 WBENC Certification Exp 2019.pdf

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 45



TANK WAGON SUPPLY:THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 1500-4500 

GALLONS OF COMBINED PRODUCTS                                     
Brand Bid Opis Daily Average Firm Discount Markup Cost to County

Conventional Gasoline with 10% Ethanol Flint Hills 2.1317 0.0992 2.2309

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend Flint Hills 2.3376 0.1555 2.4931
Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified 9/19/2018 OPIS

TRANSPORT TRUCK SUPPLY: THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 5000-

9000 GALLONS OF SPLIT LOAD PRODUCT
Brand Bid Opis Daily Average Firm Discount Markup Cost to County

Conventional Unleaded Gasoline with 10% Ethanol Flint Hills 2.1317 0.0025 2.1342

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend Flint Hills 2.3376 0.0452 2.3828
Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified 9/19/2018 OPIS

STANDBY GENERATOR FUELING: THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 50-

150 GALLONS OF A SINGLE PRODUCT
Brand Bid Cost Per Stop Firm Discount Markup Cost to County Demurrage Hourly

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend Flint Hills $175 0.25 0.25 + $175 per stop $95
Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 46



Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

WBENC National WBE Certification was processed and validated by
Women's Business Enterprise Council - West, a WBENC Regional Partner
Organization.

Authorized by Pamela Williamson, President & CEO
Women's Business Enterprise Council - West

Certification Granted: March 10, 2003

Expiration Date: March 31, 2019

WBENC National Certification Number: 240301

NAICS: 324110, 324191, 424710, 424720
UNSPSC: 15101505, 15101506, 15101513, 15101801, 25121501, 25121503, 78102101

1
8

0
7

-2
4

5
W

illia
m

s
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

, T
e

x
a

s

B
id

S
y
n

c
9

/2
5

/2
0

1
8

p
. 4

7



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 48



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 49



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
State of California California

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Denelle Scott Contract Administrator

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
916-375-4492 Denelle.Scott@dgs.ca.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 2007 Over $100M

Scope of Work:
Purchase of bulk fuel: Gasoline, Diesel, E85, Dyed Diesel

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Texas Department of Public Safety Texas

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Tom Shugart Contract Administration Purchaser

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-424-2237 Thomas.Shugart@dps.texas.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
2020 2017 Over $5M

Scope of Work:
Purchase of bulk fuel: Gasoline, Diesel, and Dyed Diesel

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Antelope Valley Transit Authority Lancaster, CA

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Lyle Block Procurement and Contracts Officer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
661.729.2288 LBlock@avta.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
2019 2009 Over $10M

Scope of Work:
Purchase of bulk fuel: Gasoline, Dyed Diesel, and inventory management.

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 50



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
State of California California

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Denelle Scott Contract Administrator

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
916-375-4492 Denelle.Scott@dgs.ca.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Current 2007 Over $100M

Scope of Work:
Purchase of bulk fuel: Gasoline, Diesel, E85, Dyed Diesel

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Texas Department of Public Safety Texas

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Tom Shugart Contract Administration Purchaser

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-424-2237 Thomas.Shugart@dps.texas.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
2020 2017 Over $5M

Scope of Work:
Purchase of bulk fuel: Gasoline, Diesel, and Dyed Diesel

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Antelope Valley Transit Authority Lancaster, CA

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Lyle Block Procurement and Contracts Officer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
661.729.2288 LBlock@avta.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
2019 2009 Over $10M

Scope of Work:
Purchase of bulk fuel: Gasoline, Dyed Diesel, and inventory management.

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 51



5

6

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Liz McKinley

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

None.

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
None.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
None.







7

Liz McKinley 09/19/2018

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 52



5

6

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Liz McKinley

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

None.

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
None.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
None.







7

Liz McKinley 09/19/2018

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 53



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Liz McKinley

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

09/19/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 54



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Liz McKinley

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

09/19/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 55



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Liz McKinley

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

09/19/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 56



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Liz McKinley

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

09/19/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 57



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Name of Bidder: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 16651 GEMINI LN
Email: lmckinley@pinnaclepetroleum.com

Telephone: 7148418877

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Liz McKinley

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Liz McKinley

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Liz McKinley (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Liz McKinley , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly author ized o fficer of/agent for Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. (Name of Bidder)  and have been duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Liz McKinley

on this the 20day of September , 2018 .

J. Cruz
Notary Public in and for

The State of California

The County of Orange

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 58



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Name of Bidder: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 16651 GEMINI LN
Email: lmckinley@pinnaclepetroleum.com

Telephone: 7148418877

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Liz McKinley

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Liz McKinley

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Liz McKinley (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Liz McKinley , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly author ized o fficer of/agent for Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. (Name of Bidder)  and have been duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Liz McKinley

on this the 20day of September , 2018 .

J. Cruz
Notary Public in and for

The State of California

The County of Orange

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 59



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Name of Bidder: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 16651 GEMINI LN
Email: lmckinley@pinnaclepetroleum.com

Telephone: 7148418877

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Liz McKinley

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Liz McKinley

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Liz McKinley (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Liz McKinley , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly author ized o fficer of/agent for Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. (Name of Bidder)  and have been duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Liz McKinley

on this the 20day of September , 2018 .

J. Cruz
Notary Public in and for

The State of California

The County of Orange

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 60



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 61



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 62



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 63



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 64



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 65



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 66



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 67



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 68



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 69



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 70



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 71



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 72



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 73



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 74



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 75



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 76



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 77



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Pinnacle Petroleum, Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 78



55

66

 IPC (USA), Inc. 

 Bid Contact Blanca Hurtado 

helena.schecter@usipc.com 

Ph 949-648 -5620   

Fax 949 -648 -5612 

 Address 4 Hutton Center Drive

Suite 700

Santa Ana, CA 92707 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1807 -245--01-01   Please attach all 

documents to this line  

Supplier 

Product Code:

First Offer -    1 / gallon Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 79



55

66

 IPC (USA), Inc.

 Item: Please attach all documents to this line 

 Attachments

 Fuel_Price_Sheet.xlsx

 Credit Contingency.pdf

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 80



TANK WAGON SUPPLY:THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 1500-4500 

GALLONS OF COMBINED PRODUCTS                                     
Brand Bid Opis Daily Average Firm Discount Markup Cost to County

Conventional Gasoline with 10% Ethanol Unbranded 2.1501$                       0.0595$  2.2096$              

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend Unbranded 2.1985$                       0.0580$  2.2565$              
Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified

TRANSPORT TRUCK SUPPLY: THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 5000-

9000 GALLONS OF SPLIT LOAD PRODUCT
Brand Bid Opis Daily Average Firm Discount Markup Cost to County

Conventional Unleaded Gasoline with 10% Ethanol Unbranded 2.1501$                       0.0155$  2.1656$              

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend Unbranded 2.1985$                       0.0170$  2.2155$              
Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified

STANDBY GENERATOR FUELING: THE AVERAGE ORDER WILL BE 50-

150 GALLONS OF A SINGLE PRODUCT
Brand Bid Cost Per Stop Firm Discount Markup Cost to County Demurrage Hourly

Diesel Fuel S15 No.2-D Containing No Higher than a 5% Blend Unbranded $180.00 0.0170$  2.2155$              100.00$                      
Delivery Location: Williamson County, No Location Specified Cost Per Stop shall be invoiced as a separate line item not built into the Cost to County (Unit Sale Price for the Fuel)

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 81



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 82



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 83



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 84



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
City of San Antonio 329 S. Frio, San Antonio, TX 78207

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Martha Rivera Fuel Services Coordinator 

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
(210) 207-8383 martha.rivera2@sanantonio.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present 06/2011 18 Million

Scope of Work:
Gasoline and Diesel Fuel Supply - 4.5 million gallons annually

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
North County Transit District 810 Mission Avenue, Oceanside, CA 92054

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Christine Amely Buyer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
(760) 966-6682 cmurillo@nctd.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present 01/2014 6 Million

Scope of Work:
Gasoline and Diesel Fuel Supply - 1.5 million gallons annually

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
VIA Metropolitan Transit 1720 N. Flores Street, San Antonio, TX 78212

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Todd Peschong Contract Administrator

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
(210) 362-2418 todd.peschong@viainfo.net

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
05/2013 02/2010 22 Million

Scope of Work:
Diesel Fuel Supply - 5.5 million gallons annually

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 85



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
City of San Antonio 329 S. Frio, San Antonio, TX 78207

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Martha Rivera Fuel Services Coordinator 

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
(210) 207-8383 martha.rivera2@sanantonio.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present 06/2011 18 Million

Scope of Work:
Gasoline and Diesel Fuel Supply - 4.5 million gallons annually

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
North County Transit District 810 Mission Avenue, Oceanside, CA 92054

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Christine Amely Buyer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
(760) 966-6682 cmurillo@nctd.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present 01/2014 6 Million

Scope of Work:
Gasoline and Diesel Fuel Supply - 1.5 million gallons annually

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
VIA Metropolitan Transit 1720 N. Flores Street, San Antonio, TX 78212

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Todd Peschong Contract Administrator

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
(210) 362-2418 todd.peschong@viainfo.net

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
05/2013 02/2010 22 Million

Scope of Work:
Diesel Fuel Supply - 5.5 million gallons annually

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 86



5

6

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Tatsuya Tanaka, IPC (USA), Inc.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

None

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.
None

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
None







7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 87



5

6

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Tatsuya Tanaka, IPC (USA), Inc.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

None

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.
None

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
None







7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 88



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Tatsuya Tanaka

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
None

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 89



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Tatsuya Tanaka

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
None

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 90



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Tatsuya Tanaka

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
None

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 91



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Tatsuya Tanaka

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

None

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
None

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 92



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Name of Bidder: IPC (USA), Inc.
Address of Bidder: 4 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 700, Santa Ana, CA
Email: blanca.hurtado@usipc.com

Telephone: 949-648-5620

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Tatsuya Tanaka

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Tatsuya Tanaka

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Tatsuya Tanaka (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Tatsuya Tanaka , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly author ized o fficer of/agent for IPC (USA), Inc. (Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to

execute the foregoing on behalf of the said IPC (USA), Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Tatsuya Tanaka

on this the 19day of September , 2018 .

Blanca Hurtado
Notary Public in and for

The State of California

The County of Orange

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 93



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Name of Bidder: IPC (USA), Inc.
Address of Bidder: 4 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 700, Santa Ana, CA
Email: blanca.hurtado@usipc.com

Telephone: 949-648-5620

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Tatsuya Tanaka

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Tatsuya Tanaka

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Tatsuya Tanaka (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Tatsuya Tanaka , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly author ized o fficer of/agent for IPC (USA), Inc. (Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to

execute the foregoing on behalf of the said IPC (USA), Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Tatsuya Tanaka

on this the 19day of September , 2018 .

Blanca Hurtado
Notary Public in and for

The State of California

The County of Orange

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 94



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Name of Bidder: IPC (USA), Inc.
Address of Bidder: 4 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 700, Santa Ana, CA
Email: blanca.hurtado@usipc.com

Telephone: 949-648-5620

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Tatsuya Tanaka

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Tatsuya Tanaka

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Tatsuya Tanaka (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Tatsuya Tanaka , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly author ized o fficer of/agent for IPC (USA), Inc. (Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to

execute the foregoing on behalf of the said IPC (USA), Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Tatsuya Tanaka

on this the 19day of September , 2018 .

Blanca Hurtado
Notary Public in and for

The State of California

The County of Orange

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 95



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 96



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 97



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 98



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 99



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 100



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 101



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 102



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 103



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 104



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 105



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 106



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 107



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 108



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 109



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 110



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 111



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 112



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: IPC (USA), Inc.

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 113



55

66

 Mansfield Oil Company 

 Bid Contact Diane Burke 

mocbids@mansfieldoil.com 

Ph 678-450 -2283   

Fax 678 -450 -2242 

 Address 1025 Airport Pkwy

Gainesville, GA 30501 

 Bid Notes  Thank you for the opportunity to participate in this bid. 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1807 -245--01-01   Please attach 

all documents 

to this line  

Supplier Product Code:

Supplier Notes:  Please 

see attached for all 

additional required 

information. 

First Offer -    1 / gallon Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 114



55

66

 Mansfield Oil Company

 Item: Please attach all documents to this line 

 Attachments

 Mansfield Oil Completed Bid Documents.pdf

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 115



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 116



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 117



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 118



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 119



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 120



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 121



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 122



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 123



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 124



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 125



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 126



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 127



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 128



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 129



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 130



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 131



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 132



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 133



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 134



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 135



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 136



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 137



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 138



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 139



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 140



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 141



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 142



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 143



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 144



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 145



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 146



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 147



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 148



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 149



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 150



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 151



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 152



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Texas Association of School Boards 12007 Research Blvd Suite 100, Austin, TX 78767

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Jason Turner

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-467-0222 jason.turner@tasb.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
6/1/2013 Current TBD

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of petroleum products.

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
City of Amarillo, TX 509 SE 7th Ave, Amarillo, TX 79105

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Mickey Brown Contract Buyer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
806-378-6241 mickey.brown@amarillo.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
8/12/2013 8/1/2018 TBD

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of petroleum products.

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
City of Lake Jackson, TX 25 Oak Drive, Lake Jackson, TX 77566

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Giani Cantu Buyer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
979-415-2420 gcantu@lakejacksontx.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
9/1/2014 Current TBD

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of petroleum products

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 153



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Texas Association of School Boards 12007 Research Blvd Suite 100, Austin, TX 78767

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Jason Turner

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-467-0222 jason.turner@tasb.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
6/1/2013 Current TBD

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of petroleum products.

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
City of Amarillo, TX 509 SE 7th Ave, Amarillo, TX 79105

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Mickey Brown Contract Buyer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
806-378-6241 mickey.brown@amarillo.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
8/12/2013 8/1/2018 TBD

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of petroleum products.

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
City of Lake Jackson, TX 25 Oak Drive, Lake Jackson, TX 77566

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Giani Cantu Buyer

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
979-415-2420 gcantu@lakejacksontx.gov

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
9/1/2014 Current TBD

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of petroleum products

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 154



5

6

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
No relationships

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

None

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.
No business relationships

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
None







7

Josh Epperson 9/14/2018

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 155



5

6

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
No relationships

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

None

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
None

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.
No business relationships

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
None







7

Josh Epperson 9/14/2018

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 156



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

No relationships

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

N/A

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
No relationships

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Josh Epperson

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

9/14/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 157



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

No relationships

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

N/A

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
No relationships

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Josh Epperson

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

9/14/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 158



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

No relationships

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

N/A

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
No relationships

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Josh Epperson

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

9/14/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 159



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

No relationships

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

N/A

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No





5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
No relationships

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7 Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Josh Epperson

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity

9/14/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 160



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Name of Bidder: Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 1025 Airport Parkway SW, Gainesville, GA 30501-

6813
Email: mocbids@mansfieldoil.com

Telephone: 800-255-6699

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Josh Epperson

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Josh Epperson

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Josh Epperson (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Josh Epperson, (Name of Signer) am a 

duly authorized officer of/agent for Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc. (Name of Bidder) and have

been duly authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, 

Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Josh Epperson

on this the 14thday of September , 2018 .

Julie Tittle
Notary Public in and for

The State of Georgia

The County of Hall

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 161



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Name of Bidder: Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 1025 Airport Parkway SW, Gainesville, GA 30501-

6813
Email: mocbids@mansfieldoil.com

Telephone: 800-255-6699

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Josh Epperson

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Josh Epperson

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Josh Epperson (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Josh Epperson, (Name of Signer) am a 

duly authorized officer of/agent for Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc. (Name of Bidder) and have

been duly authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, 

Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Josh Epperson

on this the 14thday of September , 2018 .

Julie Tittle
Notary Public in and for

The State of Georgia

The County of Hall

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 162



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Name of Bidder: Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc.
Address of Bidder: 1025 Airport Parkway SW, Gainesville, GA 30501-

6813
Email: mocbids@mansfieldoil.com

Telephone: 800-255-6699

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Josh Epperson

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Josh Epperson

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Josh Epperson (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Josh Epperson, (Name of Signer) am a 

duly authorized officer of/agent for Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc. (Name of Bidder) and have

been duly authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, 

Inc. (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Josh Epperson

on this the 14thday of September , 2018 .

Julie Tittle
Notary Public in and for

The State of Georgia

The County of Hall

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 163



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 164



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 165



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 166



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 167



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 168



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 169



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 170



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 171



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 172



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 173



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 174



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 175



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 176



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 177



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 178



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 179



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 180



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Mansfield Oil Company

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 181



55

66

 Petroleum Traders Corporation 

 Bid Contact Gayle Newton 

gnewton@petroleumtraders.com 

Ph 800-348 -3705   

Fax 260 -203 -3820 

 Address 7120 Pointe Inverness Way

Fort Wayne, IN 46804 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1807 -245--01-01   Please attach all 

documents to this line  

Supplier 

Product Code:

First Offer -    1 / gallon Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 182



55

66

 Petroleum Traders Corporation

 Item: Please attach all documents to this line 

 Attachments

 williamson county tx -  submitted bid.pdf

 Addendum_No._2.docx

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 183



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 184



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 185



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 186



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 187



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 188



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 189



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 190



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 191



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 192



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 193



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 194



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 195



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 196



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 197



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 198



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 199



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 200



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 201



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 202



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 203



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 204



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 205



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 206



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 207



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 208



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 209



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 210



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 211



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 212



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 213



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 214



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 215



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 216



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 217



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 218



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 219



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 220



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 221



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 222



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 223



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 224



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 225



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 226



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 227



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 228



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 229



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 230



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 231



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 232



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 233



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 234



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 235



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 236



 
 
 

                                                                                                  
 

 
  Randy Barker, CPPO, CPPB 

                                                                                                                    Purchasing Agent / Director 
  

512.943.3553 / Fax 512.943.1575 
purchase@wilco.org / www.wilco.org 
901 S. Austin Ave, 
Georgetown, TX 78626 

 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 

Date:    September 20th, 2018 

 

Owner:   Williamson County, Texas 

 

Project Name:  Bulk Fuel for Williamson County 

 

Project No:   1807-245 

 

This Addendum forms a part of the Contract and clarifies, corrects or modifies the original Bid 

Specification language. 

 

Description of Addition or Change: 

 

This addendum is to clarify the following Bid Specification language: 

 

“The Successful Bidder is required to supply a current copy of the “Oil Pricing Information Service 

(OPIS) Report” to the Contract Administrator daily by email as follows: 

 

Email: kevin.teller@wilco.org 

 

The Oil Pricing Information Service (OPIS) report published on July 24th, 2018 or the last report 

published as close to that date as possible, will be used to establish the benchmark for your quotation. 

(Please Attach Report)” 

 

The current copy of the “Oil Pricing Information Service (OPIS) Report” we are requesting daily by 

email and to be attached to establish the benchmark for the quotation needs to be typed in excel.  We 

are not requesting a copy of the actual OPIS publication. 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 237

mailto:purchase@wilco.org
http://www.wilco.org/
mailto:kevin.teller@wilco.org


5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 238



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 239



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Austin Independent School District, TX 1111 West 6th St Austin, TX 78703

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Sheri Albin

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-414-2114 sheri.albin@austinisd.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present November 2009 ~ $500,000 annually

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of gasoline

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Brazoria County, TX 111 East Locust Angleton, TX 77515

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Elizabeth Morgan Assistant Contract Specialist

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
979-864-1825 emorgan@brazoria-county.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present September 2013 ~ $1,100,000 annually

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Wharton County, TX 309 East Milam St Wharton, TX 77488

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Sharon Boedeker

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
979-532-2640 sharon.boedeker@co.wharton.tx.us

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present January 2016 ~ $320,000 annually

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of diesel fuel

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 240



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Austin Independent School District, TX 1111 West 6th St Austin, TX 78703

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Sheri Albin

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
512-414-2114 sheri.albin@austinisd.org

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present November 2009 ~ $500,000 annually

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of gasoline

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Brazoria County, TX 111 East Locust Angleton, TX 77515

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Elizabeth Morgan Assistant Contract Specialist

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
979-864-1825 emorgan@brazoria-county.com

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present September 2013 ~ $1,100,000 annually

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:
Wharton County, TX 309 East Milam St Wharton, TX 77488

Contact Name:                                                      Title:
Sharon Boedeker

Phone:                                                                  E-mail
979-532-2640 sharon.boedeker@co.wharton.tx.us

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $
Present January 2016 ~ $320,000 annually

Scope of Work:
Supply and delivery of diesel fuel

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 241



5

6

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Petroleum Traders Corporation

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

n/a

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
n/a

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.
n/a

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
n/a

7

9/20/2018

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 242



5

6

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.
Petroleum Traders Corporation

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

n/a

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.
n/a

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.
n/a

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:
n/a

7

9/20/2018

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 243



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Petroleum Traders Corporation

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
n/a

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity
9/20/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 244



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Petroleum Traders Corporation

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
n/a

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity
9/20/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 245



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Petroleum Traders Corporation

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
n/a

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity
9/20/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 246



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

Petroleum Traders Corporation

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

n/a

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.
n/a

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity
9/20/2018

Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 247



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Name of Bidder: Petroleum Traders Corporation
Address of Bidder: 7120 Pointe Inverness Way Fort Wayne, IN 46804
Email: gnewton@petroleumtraders.com

Telephone: 888-637-7661

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Gayle Newton

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Gayle Newton

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Gayle Newton (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Gayle Newton , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly authorized officer of/agent for Petroleum Traders Corporation (Name of Bidder) and have been duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Petroleum Traders Corporation (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Gayle Newton

on this the 20thday of September , 2018 .

Michelle Beard
Notary Public in and for

The State of Indiana

The County of Allen

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 248



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Name of Bidder: Petroleum Traders Corporation
Address of Bidder: 7120 Pointe Inverness Way Fort Wayne, IN 46804
Email: gnewton@petroleumtraders.com

Telephone: 888-637-7661

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Gayle Newton

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Gayle Newton

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Gayle Newton (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Gayle Newton , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly authorized officer of/agent for Petroleum Traders Corporation (Name of Bidder) and have been duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Petroleum Traders Corporation (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Gayle Newton

on this the 20thday of September , 2018 .

Michelle Beard
Notary Public in and for

The State of Indiana

The County of Allen

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 249



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Name of Bidder: Petroleum Traders Corporation
Address of Bidder: 7120 Pointe Inverness Way Fort Wayne, IN 46804
Email: gnewton@petroleumtraders.com

Telephone: 888-637-7661

Printed Name of Person 
Submitting Affidavit:

Gayle Newton

Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

Gayle Newton

 I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared Gayle Newton (Name of

Signer), who after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, Gayle Newton , (Name of Signer) am a 

duly authorized officer of/agent for Petroleum Traders Corporation (Name of Bidder) and have been duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said Petroleum Traders Corporation (Name of Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named Gayle Newton

on this the 20thday of September , 2018 .

Michelle Beard
Notary Public in and for

The State of Indiana

The County of Allen

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 250



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 251



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 252



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 253



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 254



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 255



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 256



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 257



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 258



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 259



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 260



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 261



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 262



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 263



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 264



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 265



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 266



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 267



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: Petroleum Traders Corporation

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 268



55

66

 RKA Petroleum 

 Bid Contact Cynthia Kilian 

ckilian@rkapetroleum.com 

Ph   

 Address 28340 Wick Rd

Romulus , MI 48174 

 Item #  Line Item Notes Unit Price     Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

 1807 -245--01-01   Please attach all 

documents to this line  

Supplier 

Product Code:

First Offer -    1 / gallon Y Y

Supplier Total  $0.00   

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 269



55

66

 RKA Petroleum

 Item: Please attach all documents to this line 

 Attachments

 RKA Petroleum.pdf

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 270



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 271



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 272



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 273



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 274



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 275



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 276



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 277



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 278



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 279



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 280



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 281



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 282



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 283



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 284



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 285



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 286



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 287



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 288



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 289



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 290



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 291



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 292



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 293



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 294



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 295



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 296



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 297



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 298



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 299



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 300



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 301



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 302



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 303



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 304



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 305



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 306



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 307



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 308



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 309



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 310



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 311



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 312



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 313



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 314



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 315



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 316



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 317



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 318



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 319



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 320



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 321



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 322



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 323



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 324



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 325



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 326



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 327



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 328



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 329



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 330



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 331



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 332



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 333



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 334



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 335



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 336



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 337



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 338



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 339



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 340



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 341



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 342



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 343



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 344



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 345



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 346



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 347



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 348



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 349



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 350



1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 351



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 352



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
SOLICITATION 1807-245

Bulk Fuel for Williamson County

BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

BIDS WILL BE PUBLICLY OPENED: 
Sep 25, 2018 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Bids for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be
accepted by the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to 
distribute and receive bids.  Specifications for this IFB may be obtained by registering at
www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
Bid. 

All electronic bids must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

Electronic bids are requested, however paper bids will currently still be received, until further notice 
and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire IFB.

All interested Bidders are invited to submit a Bid in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Bid Format, Bid Specifications, and Definitions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
IFB.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two 
methods. Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive”  and will not be 
accepted or evaluated.

Williamson County will not accept any Bids received after the
submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the

Bidder.

General Information:

· If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope 
on or before the submittal deadline, a s noted in the Public Announcement and General
Information listed above for this IFB, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: BID NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

o Bidders should list the Bid Number, Bid Name, Name and Address of Bidder, and 
the Date of the Bid opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note
“Sealed Bid Enclosed.”

o Bidder should submit one (1) original.
o Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked 

envelopes.
o Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Bids being delivered by

third party carriers.
o Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

· Bids will be opened publicly in a manner; however, to avoid public disclosure of contents only 
the names and of Bidders and prices will be read aloud.

· All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

· It is the Bidder ’s responsibility to review all documents in BidSync, including any Addenda that 
may have been added after the document packet was originally released and posted. 

o Any Addenda and/or other information relevant to the IFB will be posted on
www.bidsync.com. 

o The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure
any interested Bidder has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional
information. 

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 353



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 354



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or
similar goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were
recently provided by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 355



5

6

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 356



5

6

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

Form 
CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later 

than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is 

pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes 

incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental 

entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with 
respect to expenditure of money.

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form 
CIQ

Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer 
has affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from 
the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of 
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 

governmental entity?

Yes No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 357



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 358



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 359



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 360



5

6

3 4

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us                                                       Revised 11/30/2015

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                               FORM CIQ
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and 
the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not 
later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

An offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received 

1 Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

2
      Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an 

updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date 
on which you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

3

Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

Name of Officer

4 Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the officer, 
as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer. Complete 
subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 

necessary.

A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,other than 
investment income, from the vendor?

  Yes                 No

B.Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the directionof the local 
government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the local governmental 
entity?

  Yes                 No

5 Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a 
corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or 
director, or holds an ownership interest of one percent or more.

6

  Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts 

as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

7
Signature is not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically;

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A  c o m p l e t e  c o p y  o f  C h a p t e r  1 7 6  o f  t h e  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t  C o d e  m a y  b e  f o u n d  a t  
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/ Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections 
cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1 -a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties 
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or 
anagency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency 
andthat is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or 
afamily member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable 
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period 
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

( i ) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been 
executed;or
(ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with 
thevendor;

(B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more 
giftsthat have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the 
date the officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; 
or                     (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the 

vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a -1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship 
with a local governmental entity and:

(1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that 
localgovernmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of 
the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), 
excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
(3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity. (a-1)  
The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records 
administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:

(2) the date that the vendor:
(A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local 
governmentalentity; or
(B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for 
proposalsor bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the 
local governmental entity; or

(3) the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or(C)  of a 
family relationship with a local government officer.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 361



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:
Email:

Telephone:

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 362



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:
Email:

Telephone:

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 363



5

6

BID AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Bid package

The undersigned attests that the company named below, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, 
Texas Government Code Chapter 2270:

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an 
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes; and

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, or any limited liability company, including a 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those 
entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.

The undersigned certifies that the IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid have been carefully reviewed and are
submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certi f ies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods
and/or services upon which prices are extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained 
in the IFB.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this
Bid. Further, I certify that the Bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or
indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of
services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit
a Bid thereon.”

Cooperative Purchasing Program
Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Bid will in no way have a negative 
impact on the County ’s evaluation of the Bid.

*If no box is checked, the Bidder agrees to make best efforts in good faith to offer the 
quoted prices to all authorized entities.*

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY.

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:
Email:

Telephone:

Printed Name of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:
Signature of Person Submitting 
Affidavit:

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the County ’s 
Contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, personally appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent for 

(Name of Bidder) and have been duly author ized to execute the foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of

Bidder).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20.

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

The County of 

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 364



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 365



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 366



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 367



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 368



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 369



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 370



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 371



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 372



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 373



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 374



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 375



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 376



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 377



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 378



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 379



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 380



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 381



5

6

3 4

Williamson County – Invitation for Bid (IFB)

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

Addendum/Addenda – means any written or graphic instruments issued by the County prior to the 
consideration of Bids which modify or interpret the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
or corrections.

Agreement/Ensuing Agreement(s) – means the Successful Bidder may be required by the County to 
sign an additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the IFB and the 
Bidder ’s Bid.  Such Ensuing Agreement(s) shall contain the Bid specifications, terms and conditions that 
are derived from the IFB.

Bid Documents – means the Legal Notice, IFB including attachments, and any Addenda issued by the 
County prior to the consideration of any Bids.

Bid – means the completed and signed bid form, (sometimes referred to as the Price Sheet), and ALL 
required forms and documentation listed in the IFB package which have been submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions described in the IFB package.  A Bid submitted in accordance with this IFB 
is irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Bids unless a waiver is 
obtained from the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

Bidder – means a person or entity who submits a Bid in response to this IFB.

Contract – means this IFB and the Bid of the Successful Bidder shall become a Contract between the 
Successful Bidder and the County once the Successful Bidder ’s Bid is properly accepted by the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Commissioner ’s Court – means the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

County – means Williamson County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

Invitation for Bid (IFB) – means this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future 
Addenda issued by the County.

Successful Bidder – means the liable Bidder to whom the County intends to award the Contract.

SECTION 2 - BID FORMS AND SUBMISSION

2.1 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No public official shall have interest in a Contract, in accordance with Vernon ’s Texas Codes Annotated, 
Local Government Code, Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. 

As of January 1, 2006, all Bidders are responsible for complying with Local Government Code, Title 5, 
Subtitle C, Chapter 176.  Additional information may be obtained from the County’s website at the 
following link: 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en
US/Default.aspx

Each Bidder must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the 
requirements of this IFB.  Examples of potential conflicts of interest may include an existing 
business or personal relationship between the Bidder, its principal, or any affiliate or 
subcontractor with the County or any other entity or person involved in any way with the project 
that is subject to this IFB .  Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Bidder, the 

principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor with any employee, or official of the County or its suppliers 
must be disclosed.  Any such relationship that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be 
disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal personal relationships with the County 
employees or officials may be cause for termination. 

The County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Bid disqualification. 

By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, all Bidders affirm they have not given, nor intend to give, at 
any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor, or service to a the County public servant or any employee, official or representative of same, in 
connection with this procurement. 

Each Bidder must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement with their Bid Package.  Package may 

be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES – FORM 1295

As of January 1, 2016, all Successful Bidders are responsible for complying with the Texas Government 
Code, Section 2252.908.  The law states that the County may not enter into certain contracts with a 
Bidder unless the Bidder submits a disclosure of interested parties to the County at the time the Bidder 
submits the signed Contract.  The law applies only to a Contract of the County on or after January 1, 
2016 that either:

A. Requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court before the Contract may be signed (all 
contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of the Commissioners Court approval, such as contracts 
resulting from an Initiation for Bid (IFB), RFP, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), etc., excluding, 
but not limited to, certain Juvenile Service contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff ’s seized fun 
monies, etc.); or

B. Has a value of at least $1,000,000. 

By January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission will make available on its website, a new filing 
application that must be used to file Form 1295.  Information regarding how to use the filing application is 
available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

A Respondent must:

A. Use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295.

B. Print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number.

C. An authorized agent of the Bidder must sign the printed copy of the form.

D. File the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) 
with Williamson County Purchasing Agent at the time the signed Bid and/or Contract is submitted 
for approval.

After the Commissioners Court award of the Contract, the County shall notify the Texas Ethics 
Commission, using the Texas Ethics Commission ’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 
1295 and certification of filing not later than the 30th day after the date the Contract binds all parties to the 
Contract. The Texas Ethics Commission will post the completed Form 1295 to its website within seven 
business days after receiving notice from the County.

2.3 BID AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder attests to abiding by Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 stating that 
they neither currently boycott Israel, nor will the boycott Israel during the term of the contract. Furthermore, 
the Bidder certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or services upon which prices are 
extended at the price Bid, and upon the conditions contained in the IFB. Additionally, the Bidder certifies 
that the Bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other Bidder or other person or persons engaged 
in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Bid. Further, Bidder certi f ies that the he or 
she is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly concerned in any pool
agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Bid on, or to influence any person 
or persons to submit a Bid or not to submit a Bid thereon. Each Bidder must provide a Bid Affidavit 
with their Bid Package.  Package may be deemed incomplete without this form.  

2.4 ETHICS

The Bidder shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement 
with any employee, official or agent of the County.

2.5 BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE

The Bid is due no later than the submittal date and time set forth in the Public Announcement and 
General Information listed in this IFB package.  Contents of each Bid shall be submitted in accordance 
with this IFB.

2.6 DELIVERY OF BIDS

The County uses BidSync to distribute and receive Bids and proposals.  It is preferred that Bids
submitted electronically through BidSync; however, Bidders can submit a hard copy.  

Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information on how to submit electronically.

If mailed or delivered in person, Bids and Bid Addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before
the submittal deadline, as noted in the Public Announcement and General Information listed in this IFB 
package, to:

            Williamson County Purchasing Department
            Attn: Bid Name and Number
            901 South Austin Avenue
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

Also, all Bidders should list their Name and Address, and the Date of the Bid opening on the outside
the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” The County will not accept any Bids received after 
the submittal deadline, and shall return such Bids unopened to the Bidder.  The County will not accept 
any responsibility for Bids being delivered by third party carriers.  

Supplier: RKA Petroleum

Bids will be opened publically and the names of Bidders and pricing will be read aloud.

SECTION 3 - INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

3.1 INSTRUCTIONS

Read this document carefully, and follow all instructions and requirements.  All Bidders are responsible 
for fulfilling all requirements and specifications.  Be sure to have a clear understanding of this IFB.

General requirements apply to all advertised IFBs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in 
part, by the bid specifications, Addenda and modifications issued as a part of this IFB.  Be sure your Bid 
package is complete.

3.2 AMBIGUITY, CONFLICT, OR OTHER ERRORS IN THIS IFB

If a Bidder discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this IFB, the Bidder 
shall immediately notify the County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document.

Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Bidder fails to notify the County prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Bids of an error or ambiguity in the IFB known to the Bidder, or an error
or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known to the Bidder, then the Bidder shall be deemed to 
have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

The County may also modify the IFB, no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date and time fixed
for submission of Bids, by issuance of an Addendum.  All Addenda will be numbered consecutively, 
beginning with one (1).

3.3 NOTIFICATION OF MOST CURRENT ADDRESS

All Bidders in receipt of this IFB shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any
address changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than forty-eight 
(48) hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Bids.

3.4 SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

A. If the Bidder is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation
Limited Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers 
authorized to sign on behalf of such entity.

B. If the Bidder is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the
signature of each partner authorized to sign.

C. If the Bidder is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall
provided with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.

D. If the Bidder is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.

E. If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 
Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney
equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department.

3.5 ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME

If the Bidder operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Bidder must have on file with the
Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same.

3.6 BID OBLIGATION 

The contents of the IFB, Bid, and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Bidder shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

3.7 COMPLIANCE WITH IFB SPECIFICATIONS

It is intended that this IFB describe the requirements and the Bid format in sufficient detail to secure 
comparable Bids.  Failure to comply with all provisions of the IFB may, at the sole discretion of the 
County, result in disqualification.

3.8 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

The Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written request with the company letterhead and the 
signature of an authorized individual, as described in Section 3.4, Signature of Bidder, to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline.  

The Bidder may submit a new Bid prior to the deadline. Alterations of the Bid in any manner will not be 
considered if submitted after the deadline.  Withdrawal of a Bid after the deadline will be subject to written 
approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

3.9 EVALUATION AND AWARD

The County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than 
disclosed in the Bid process) that might affect the County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of
award to the lowest and best evaluated Bid. This information may be appended to the Bid evaluation
process results. Information on a Bidder from reliable sources, and not within the Bidder ’s Bid, may also 
be noted and made part of the evaluation fi le.  The County shall have sole discretion for determining 
the reliability of the source.

To ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a solicitation, the County prohibits unsolicited communication 
initiated by the Bidder to the County Official or Employee evaluating or considering the Bids prior to the 
time an award has been made. Unsolicited communication may be ground for disqualifying the 
offending Bidder from consideration or award of the solicitation, or any future solicitation.

Communication between the Bidder and the County will be initiated by the appropriate County Official
Employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate 
evaluation of the solicitation.

The County intends to award a Contract to the most responsible and responsive Bidder whose Bid will 
be most advantageous to the County. In accordance with Texas Government Code and Local
Government Code, the County may consider, to the extent allowed by law, the following:

A. Price;
B. The Bidder ’s experience and reputation;
C. Quality of the Bidder ’s goods and/or services; 
D. The Bidder ’s safety record;
E. The Bidder ’s proposed personnel; 
F. The Bidder ’s financial capabilities; and 
G. Any other relevant factors specifically listed in this IFB or authorized by law.

3.10 CONDISERATION OF LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.905 , in purchasing any real property or personal
property that is not affixed to real property, if the County receives one or more Bids from a Bidder whose
principal place of business is in Williamson County and whose Bid is within three (3 )  percent of the
lowest Bid price received by the County from a Bidder who is not a resident of Williamson County, the 
County may enter into a contract with:

A. The lowest Bidder; or the Bidder whose principal place of business is in Williamson County if the
Commissioners Court determines, in writing, that the local Bidder offers the County the best 
combination of contract price and addit ional economic development opportunities
Williamson County created by the contract award, including the employment of residents
Williamson County and increased tax revenues to Williamson County.

3.11 REJECTION OR ACCEPTANCE.
It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to accept
or reject any and/or all Bids for any or all goods and/or services covered in this IFB, and to waive
informalities or defects in the Bid or to accept such Bid, if it shall deem to be in the best interest of the 
County.

Awards should be made approximately sixty (60) business days after the Bid opening date. Results may
be obtained by viewing the Williamson County vendor portal at the following link:

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/SearchforaPastBid/tabid/5213/language/en-
US/Default.aspx

3.12 RESPONSIBILITY 

It is expected that a prospective Bidder will be able to affirmatively demonstrate responsibility.  A 
prospective Bidder should be able to meet the following requirements:

A. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
C. Have a satisfactory record of performance that can be determined thru references provided; and 
D. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

The County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine the Bidder's ability 
to meet these minimum standards listed above.

3.13 FIRM PRICING 

For unit price items, all of the items listed are to be on a “per unit” basis, stating a firm price per unit or 
unit quantity of each item.  The Bidder must submit a firm price that must be good from the date of Bid 
opening for the fixed period of time set out in this IFB.  Unless the IFB expressly states otherwise, this 
period shall be until the end of the Initial Contract Period.

Bids which do not state a fixed price, or which are subject to change without notice, will not be 
considered.  The Court may award a Contract for the period implied or expressly stated in the lowest and 
best Bid.

3.14 PURCHASE ORDERS

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to 
the Successful Bidder for goods and/or services.  If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order 
number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

3.15 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a 
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are 
to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

3.16 REFERENCES

The County may require the Bidder to supply a list of at least three (3) references where like services
and/or goods have been supplied by their firm within the past five (5) years, to include names, titles, 
phone numbers and email addresses of key personnel, and dates of performance.

The County may contact some or all of the references in order to determine the Respondent
performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP.  The County reserves the right to 
contact references other than those provided in the response and to use the information gained from 
them in the evaluation process.

References, if requested, should be provided in accordance with this IFB.  Bid may not be deemed 
complete without the inclusion of requested references.

SECTION 4 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The Bidder hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of 
action arising out of or in connection with this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall lie 
exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of 
Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction.  Furthermore, except to 
the extent that this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) is governed by the laws of the United 
States, this IFB, the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

4.2 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND PRECEDENCE

A. The Contract shall be derived from the IFB and its Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’ s Bid.  In 
the event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose 
of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence:

1. The IFB and its Addenda (if applicable); and

2. The Bidder ’s Bid.

B. In the event the County requires that an Ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a 
dispute arises between the terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement, the IFB and its 
Addenda (if applicable), and the Bidder ’s Bid, applicable documents will be referred to for the 
purpose of clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: 

1. Terms and conditions of the Ensuing Agreement;

2. The IFB its Addenda; and 

3. The Bidder ’s Bid.

4.3 OWNERSHIP OF BID

Each Bid shall become the property of the County upon submittal and will not be returned to Bidders 
unless received after the submittal deadline.

4.4 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

Upon signing and submittal of the Bid, a Bidder offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment 
to the County, certifies that the Bidder has not violated the antitrust laws of the State of Texas codified in 
Business & Commerce Code, Section 15.01, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated 
directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of 
business.  Any or all Bids may be rejected if the County believes that collusion exists among the Bidders.

4.5 FUNDING

The County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to 
finance the costs of the Contract.  All Bidders understand and agree that the County’s payment of 
amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow the County, in the exercise of reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make payments under this Contract.

4.6 ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The Successful Bidder may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or 
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Commissioners Court.  The 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting 
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

4.7 IMPLIED REQUIREMENTS

Products or services not specifically described or required in the IFB, but are necessary to provide the 
functional capabilities described by the Bidder, shall be implied and deemed to be included in the Bid.

4.8 TERMINATION

A. Termination for Cause: The County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s) for default if the Successful Bidder breaches any of the Bid specifications,
terms and conditions, including warranties of the Bidder, if any, or if the Successful Bidder 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and
not in lieu of any other remedies the County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise
provided hereunder.  Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper 
goods and/or services within the proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform any and all 
other requirements to the County ’s satisfaction, and/or to meet all other obligations and
requirements.

B. Termination for Convenience: The County may terminate the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s) for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to the Successful Bidder. The County reserves the right to extend 
this period if it is in the best interest of the County.  In the event the County exercises its right to 
terminate without cause, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful 
Bidder for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including 
the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for the County
termination for convenience.

4.9 NON-PERFORMANCE

It is the objective of the County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set 
forth herein.  In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, 
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods and/or services 
that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction.  

In the event of such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to 
complete the services itself or by others and/or purchase the goods from other sources.  If the County 
elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the 
Successful Bidder shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs 
incurred by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, 
and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in correcting the 
nonperformance which the Successful Bidder fails to meet pursuant to the requirements set out herein.  
In the event the Successful Bidder refuses to reimburse the County as set out in this provision, the 
County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from any amounts that may be then 
owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Bidder.

4.10 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act upon receipt. If a Bidder does not desire proprietary information in the Bid to be 
disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more 
preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and 
marked as being proprietary.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set 
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and 
available to the public.  For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary 
by the Bidder, the County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar 
public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Bidder.

The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information 
that has been identified and marked as proprietary.  The final decision as to what information must be 
disclosed, however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this IFB or in the Bidder ’s Bid is in conflict with Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552, as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no 
force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood, and agreed, that the County, and its officers and 
employees, may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to the County as to 
whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that the County, and its 
officers and employees, shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney 
General, and that the County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party 
hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to the 
County by a party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas.

4.11 RIGHT TO AUDIT

The Successful Bidder agrees that the County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the services to be performed, have access 
to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of the 
Successful Bidder, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered 
for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.  The Successful Bidder 
agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  The County shall give the Successful Bidder reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits.

4.12 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS

The County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, materials and goods for quality 
and compliance with this IFB, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be 
available for review.  Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for 
evaluation, the County can deem the Bidder to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.13 BID PREPARATION COSTS

The cost of developing Bids is the sole responsibility of the Bidders and shall not be charged to the 
County.  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the County to reimburse the Bidders for any 
expense incurred in preparing a Bid in response to this IFB and the County will not reimburse the Bidders 
for such expenses.

4.14 INDEMNIFICATION

The Successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County, its officials, employees, 
agents and agent ’s employees from, and against, all claims, liability, and expenses including reasonable 
attorneys ’   fees, arising from activities of the Bidder, its agents, servants or employees, performed 
hereunder that result from the negligent act, error, or omission of the Bidder or any of the Bidder
agents, servants or employees, as well as all claims of loss or damage to the Bidder ’s and the County
property, equipment, and/or supplies. 

Furthermore, the County, its officials, employees, agents and agents ’ employees shall not be liable for 
damages to the Successful Bidder arising from any act of any third party, including, but not limited to, 
theft.  The Successful Bidder further agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the County from its 
officials, employee, agents and agents ’ employees against all claims of whatever nature arising from any 
accident, injury, or damage whatsoever, caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring 
in relation to the Successful Bidder ’s performance of any services requested hereunder during the term 
of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s). 

The Successful Bidder shall timely report all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liens or 
judgements to the County and shall, upon the receipt of any claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, lien 

or judgement, not later than the fifteenth (15 th) day of each month; provide the County with a written 
report on each such matter, setting forth the status of each matter, the schedule or planned proceedings 
with respect to each matter and the cooperation or assistance, if any, of the County required by the 
Successful Bidder in the defense of each matter.  The Successful Bidder’s duty to defend, indemnify and 
hold the County harmless shall be absolute.  It shall not abate or end by reason of the expiration or 
termination of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), unless otherwise agreed by the County in 
writing.  The provisions of this section shall survive the termination of the Contract and shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all such matters no matter when they arise. 

In the event of any dispute between the parties, as to whether a claim, demand, suit, action, proceeding, 
lien or judgement, that appears to have been caused by or appears to have arisen out of or in connection 
with acts or omissions of the County, the Bidder shall nevertheless fully defend such claim, demand, suit 
or action, proceeding, lien or judgement, until and unless there is a determination by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that the acts and omissions of the Bidder are not an issue in the matter. 

The Successful Bidder ’s indemnification shall cover, and the Successful Bidder agrees to, indemnify the 
County, in the event the County is found to have been negligent for having selected the Successful 
Bidder to perform the work described in this request.  The provision by the Successful Bidder of 
insurance shall not limit the liability of the Successful Bidder under the Contract and/or any Ensuing 
Agreement(s). 

4.15 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The Successful Bidder and the Successful Bidder ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights 
whatsoever with regard to subrogation against the County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of 
personal or property damages resulting from the Bidder ’s performance under this Contract and any 
Ensuing Agreement(s).

4.16 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

The Successful Bidder shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, 
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may 
appear to give the County the right to direct the Successful Bidder as to details of doing work herein 
covered, or to exercise a measure of control over the work, shall be deemed to mean that the Successful 
Bidder shall follow the desires of the County in the results of the work only.  The County shall not retain or 
have the right to control the Successful Bidder ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Bidder ’s performance of the work.  The County and the Successful Bidder hereby agree and declare that 
the Successful Bidder is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an 
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, 
that the Successful Bidder is not an employee of  the County, and that the Successful Bidder and its 
employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any 
other type of insurance coverage held by the County.

4.17 SOLE PROVIDER

The Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the 
goods and/or services described herein and that the County may contract with other providers of such 
goods and/or services if the County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same 
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of the County.

4.18 FORCE MAJEURE

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, 
act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other 
party shall grant such party relief from the performance.  The burden of proof for the need of such relief 
shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based on force majeure, the party 
obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party.

4.19 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire IFB, Contract or any Ensuing Agreement
(s) will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, 
and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith.  The 
parties acknowledge that if any provision of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be 
reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the maximum extent practicable, give effect to
the intent of this IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) and be deemed to be validated and
enforceable.

4.20 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, sex, religion or national origin.

4.21 NOTICE

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be distributed by personal delivery, or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

The County:    Williamson County Purchasing Department 
            Attn: Purchasing Agent 
            901 South Austin Avenue 
            Georgetown, Texas 78626

The Bidder:     Address set out in Bidder’s Submittal.

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (1) receipt by the party to which 
notice is given, or (2) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

4.22 SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION

The County is a body, corporate and politic, under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption 
from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code, Section 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or 
goods subject hereof are being secured for use by the County.

4.23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The County and the Successful Bidder shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s),
including, without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, 
licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the Successful Bidder shall furnish the County with 
certification of compliance with said laws, statues, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees 
above specified.

4.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS, APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set 
forth verbatim herein.  Any conflicting terms in the Contract documents will be resolved at the sole 
discretion of the Commissioners Court.

4.25 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity 
to the County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on 
behalf of any third party.  The County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the 
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the 
United States.

4.26 NO WAIVER

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this 
IFB, the Contract or any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such 
provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.  Furthermore, no term or 
provision hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or 
waiver of, a breach by the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver 
of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach.

4.27 CURRENT REVENUES

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) do not constitute a 
general obligation or indebtedness of the County for which the County is obligated to levy, pledge, or 
collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that the County shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) at the end of any the County fiscal year if the governing body of 
the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by the County ’s budget for the fiscal year 
in question.  The County may effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the 
Successful Bidder at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

4.28 FOB DESTINATION

To the extent applicable to this IFB, all of the items listed are to be Free On Board to final destination 
(FOB Destination) with all transportation charges if applicable to be included in the Bid, unless otherwise 
specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to the County until 
receipt and acceptance takes place at the FOB Destination point.

4.29 BINDING EFFECT

This Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

4.30 ASSIGNMENT

The Successful Bidder ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party 
without the express written consent of the County.

4.31 SAFETY

The Successful Bidder is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 
and programs in connection with any services to be provided hereunder. The safety program shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all 
other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

4.32 GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND RELIANCE

The Successful Bidder shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of services and/or goods required hereunder. The
Successful Bidder shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services.  The 
Successful Bidder agrees and acknowledges that the County is relying on the Successful Bidder's 
represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.  The Successful
Bidder agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in accordance
with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of the County 
accordance with the County ’s requirements and procedures.    T h e   Successful Bidder ’s duties,
set forth herein, shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County, nor
shall the Successful Bidder be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it 
being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Bidder ’s skill and 
knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

4.33 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

To the extent applicable to this IFB, the estimated quantity of each item listed in this IFB is only
estimate; the actual quantity to be purchased may be more or less. The County is not obligated
purchase any minimum amount, and the County may purchase any reasonable amount greater than the
estimate for the same unit price. Any limit on quantities available must be stated expressly in the Bid.

4.34 CONTRACTUAL DEVELOPMENT

The contents of the IFB and the Successful Bidder ’s Bid will become an integral part of the Contract, but 
may be modified, at the County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an Ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the 
Bidder must agree to an inclusion of an Ensuing Agreement of the Bid specifications, terms and 
conditions of this IFB.  If an Ensuing Agreement is required under this IFB, information relative to the 
Agreement will be located in the Special Provisions Section of this IFB.

4.35 SURVIVABILITY 

All applicable agreements that were entered into between the Successful Bidder and the County, under 
the terms and conditions of the Contract and/or any Ensuing Agreement(s), shall survive the expiration or 
termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

The County may exercise, by written notice to the Successful Bidder no later than ten (10) calendar days 
of the Contract expiration, this clause for emergencies only. 

4.36 AIR QUALITY

In determining the overall best Bid, the County may, to the extent applicable, exercise the option granted 
to local governments under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 271.907.

This option allows the County to evaluate Bids and give preference to goods and/or services of a Bidder 
that demonstrates that the Bidder meets or exceeds any and all state or federal environmental 
standards, including voluntary standards, relating to air quality.  If the Bid being submitted will have an 
effect on air quality for the County (as it relates to any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), 
then the Bidder is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact.  All Bidders are expected to meet all mandated state and federal air quality standards.

4.37 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract and any Ensuing Agreement(s) shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral 
between the Successful Bidder and the County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided.  Each of the 
provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered, 
except by writing signed by the Successful Bidder and the County.

4.38 PAYMENT

The County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by the Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 2251.  An invoice shall be deemed overdue the thirty-first (31st) day after the later of the 
following: 

A. The date the County receives the goods under the Contract; 
B. The date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or 
C. The date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services.  

Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in accordance with Texas 
Government Code, Section 2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late 
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 
due.  The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one (1) percent, and the prime 

rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first (1st) day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does 
not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by the Successful Bidder, the County shall 
notify the Successful Bidder of the error not later than the twenty-first (21st) day after the date the County 
receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of the Successful Bidder, the Successful Bidder 
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by the Successful 
Bidder beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue.  If the error is resolved in 
favor of the County, the Successful Bidder shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in 
accordance within the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by the 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date.

As a minimum, invoices shall include:

A. Name, address, and telephone number of the Successful Bidder and similar information in the 
event the payment is to be made to a different address. 

B. The County Contract, Purchase Order. 

C. Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract. 

D. Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices and total amount. 

E. Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract. 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the following address:       

            Williamson County Auditor’s Office, Accounts Payable Department
            Email: accountspayable@wilco.org
            Phone: 512-943-1500

4.39 CONTRACTUAL FORMATION AND ENSUING AGREEMENT

The IFB and the Bidder ’s Bid, when properly accepted by the Commissioners Court, shall constitute a
Contract equally binding between the Successful Bidder and the County.

If an Ensuing Agreement is required by this IFB, that information will be provided in Special 
Provisions section of this IFB.  The Successful Bidder shall be required to execute the Agreement at 
the Williamson County Purchasing Department approximately ten (10) calendar days after the 
Successful Bidder is notified of award.  The Ensuing Agreement shall be in the same form as the 
Agreement which is attached to the end of this IFB.  The only anticipated changes in the Ensuing 
Agreement will be to include additional exhibits, to fill in blanks to identify the Successful Bidder, and 
terms relating to the compensation, or to revise the Agreement to accommodate corrections, changes in 
the scope of services, or changes pursuant to Addenda issued.  Bidders should raise any questions 
regarding the terms of the Agreement in the form of written questions or submittals as 
described in the Public Announcement and General Information portion of this IFB.  Because the 
signed Ensuing Agreement will be substantively and substantially derived from the attached Agreement, 
each Bidder is urged to seek independent legal counsel as to any questions about the terms, conditions 
or provisions contained in the Agreement before submitting a Bid.  Again, the attached Agreement, if 
applicable, contains important legal provisions and is considered part and parcel of this IFB.  Failure or 
refusal to sign aforesaid Agreement shall be grounds for the County to revoke any award which has been 
issued, forfeit Bid security, if applicable, and select another Bidder.

4.40 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM 

During the term of the Contract resulting from this IFB, the County would like to afford the same prices, 
terms and conditions to other political subdivisions or public entities.  Another entity’s participation in the 
Contract resulting from this IFB is subject to a properly authorized Purchasing Cooperative Inter- local 
Agreement with the County.  Any liability created by purchase orders issued against the Contract shall be 
the sole responsibility of the governmental agency placing the order.

4.41 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

To the extent applicable Insurance information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in 
this IFB Package. 

4.42 BIDDERS BOND, WARRANTY BOND, PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

To the extent applicable Bond information will appear in the Additional Stipulations section that is in this 
IFB Package. 

4.43 LEGAL LIABILITY INFORMATION

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in including, but not limited to, potential or actual legal
matters with private parties and any local, state, federal or international governmental entities. The
County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed 
contract to the Commissioners Court.

4.44 INCLEMENT WEATHER

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on 
the date of a Bid submission deadline, the Bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes 
delays in carrier service operations, the County may issue an Addendum to all known Bidders interested 
in the project to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the Bidder to notify the County of their 
interest in the project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the 
stated deadline.  The County reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline. 

4.45 CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Bidder expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may 
be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized 
third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

1807-245Williamson County, Texas

BidSync9/25/2018 p. 382



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 40.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Authorize issuing T2232 IFB Hairy Man Road / Brushy Creek Road Improvements
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive sealed
bids for Hairy Man Road / Brushy Creek Road Improvements under IFB T2232 . Funding source: Project
P284.

Background
Williamson County is seeking qualified contractors for the construction of roadway widening, grading, retaining
walls, drainage structures, guardrail, and waterline, wastewater line, and manhole adjustments on Hairy Man Road
and Brushy Creek Road from Walsh Drive to Sam Bass Road.  Estimated amount is $4,300,000.00
Whit Friend- HNTB is the point of contact.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:54 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 08:21 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 41.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Authorize issuing t2164 IFB Crushed Granite Base
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed bids for Crushed Granite Base under IFB #T2164.

Background
Williamson County is seeking qualified companies to provide for the purchase of Crushed
Granite Base, picked up at plant site or delivered to Williamson County Central Maintenance
Facility in Georgetown, TX. Department point of contact is James R. Williams, PE. Budget
amount of $125,000.00  Funding Source for FY 2021 - 01.0200.0210.003551

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:57 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 08:24 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 42.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Authorize issuing t2240 IFB Asphalt Cement 
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed bids for Asphalt Cement under IFB #T2240.

Background
Williamson County is seeking qualified suppliers for the purchase and delivery of Asphalt
Cement (AC-10) per Item 300, Texas Department of Transportation, Standard Specifications for
Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges 2014. Department point of
contact is James R. Williams, PE.  Budget amount of $125,000.00  Funding Source for FY 2021
- 01.0200.0210.003597

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:00 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 08:26 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 43.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Final plat for Coupland Crossing subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Adam

Boatright,
Infrastructure

Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for Coupland
Crossing subdivision – Precinct 4.

Background
This subdivision consists of 18 lots and no new public roads.

Timeline 
2020-07-21 – Initial submittal of the final plat
2020-08-20 – 1st review complete with comments
2020-08-25 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2020-09-08 – 2nd review complete with comments
2020-09-08 – 3rd submittal of final plat
2020-09-23 – 3rd review complete with comments
2020-10-08 – 4th submittal of final plat 
2020-10-09 – 4th review complete with minor comments
2020-10-12 – shared driveway construction completed
2020-10-14 – receipt of final plat with all signatures 
2020-10-15 – final plat placed on the October 21, 2020 Commissioners Court agenda for
consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
final plat - Coupland Crossing 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:58 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 10/15/2020 08:22 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 44.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Hutto Education Foundation Presentation
Submitted For: Russ Boles  Submitted By: Michael

Cooper,
Commissioner
Pct. #4

Department: Commissioner Pct. #4
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on distribution of funds for the Hutto Education Foundation.

Background
The Hutto Education Foundation (HEF) provides grants and scholarships to students, teachers,
and faculty members in Hutto ISD. HEF is a conduit for the distribution of funds allocated by the
Commissioners Court to the Hutto Education Foundation. Per the Memorandum of
Understanding between the Commissioners Court and HEF, we have an agreement that up to
One Percent (1%) or no less than $20,000 of Solid Waste Fees shall be transferred to the Hutto
Education Foundation at the Commissioners Court's discretion, that 25% or a minimum of
$20,000 of the Solid Waste Fees received goes into the Permanent Endowment Fund. The
recommendation for last year was $170,000 in total, with $166,500 going toward the
Endowment Fund. 2019-2020 the organization met the minimum fund balance and was able to
utilize the available interest for its scholarship program. HEF funded $20,000 in scholarships to
Hutto ISD graduating students and renewal students and funded ALL eligible TSTC applicants
in their 3rd & 4th semester, totaling $5,000 to TSTC students.

This year’s recommendation is $175,000 to be divided as follows:
$171,500 for the Endowment Fund.
$ 3,500 for administration expenses.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
HEF Commissioners Court Presentation 2020-2021 
Report from Greater Round Rock Community Foundation 
TSTC Summer 2020 request for funds 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/01/2020 11:02 AM
Form Started By: Michael Cooper Started On: 10/01/2020 10:31 AM



Final Approval Date: 10/01/2020 



Hutto Education Foundation 
Endowment Presentation 

Solid Waste Funding Policy Update 
and Fund Request for  2020-21



Thank you 

#fundingfutures



Brief History Report 

• HEF was established in 2006. Our mission, and still to this day, is to 
partner with Hutto ISD to enrich, enhance, and maximize the quality of 
education by providing grants & scholarships to teachers, staff and 
students.

• The Solid Waste Founding Agreement with WILCO was established in 
2011. Currently, all funds donated since 2015 have gone to our 
Endowment Fund. 

• Commissioner Ron Morrison was an ardent supporter of higher 
education. His goal was to see our organization grow our endowment to 
$1 million to provide a forever fund providing scholarships to students in 
Hutto ISD. 

Providing the Williamson County Commissioners Court with a brief overview…



Creating Opportunities

Endowment: Our central goal for the use of the funds is the 
establishment of an endowment aimed at creating a fund for our 
students to attend 2-year, 4-year college or university or an accredited 
technical school. We have established that endowment and made 
progress with eight years of deposits.

• 2018-2019 School Year: This is the first year HEF met the minimum of 
$500,000 and the interest on the endowment was able to fund 12 
student scholarships, including: two $1,500 scholarships, eight $1,000 
scholarships and two $500 scholarships.  

• 2019-2020 School Year: HEF funded 15 Hutto High School graduating 
seniors at $15,000, 3 returning scholarship recipients at $5,000, and 
HEF provided $5,000 in a 1:1 match scholarship program with local 
accredited technical college.

Reviewing how the endowment is working currently…



How HEF Utilizes Funds
Overview of where the money goes…

• HEF Endowment is being held by the Greater Round 

Rock Community Foundation, Inc.

• $3,500 is being used for the audit or review to keep HEF 

transparent and ensure we are using our funds properly 

every 2 years.

• Up to 10% of the funds collected in excess of the  

Minimum Annual Investment Amount will be put towards 

the partnership with higher education center in Education 

Service Center Regions XII & XIII



HEF & TSTC

• HEF is partnered with a local 
accredited technical college to 
provide additional educational 
opportunities for Hutto ISD 
graduates. 

• Capturing a 1:1 match for Hutto 
ISD Students entering their 3rd & 
4th semester at Texas State 
Technical College

Providing the Williamson County Commissioners Court with a brief overview…



Endowment Fund Overview 
Initial  contribution $20,000

11/2011 $22,500

12/2012 $26,250

06/2014 (double ask) $87,000

10/2015 $86,500

10/2016 $91,500

12/2017 $146,500

12/2018 $146,5000

12/2019 $166,500

Total contributions : $793,250.0



Past Requests & New Request

**With the requested grant funding , HEF will reach a fund balance of over $960,000. This 
increased request will mirror the growth the Hutto Community and our school district and 

allow us to provide an increase in scholarships offered to Hutto ISD students**

History of HEF requests & new request for 2020-21

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Request $70,000 $75,000 $80,000 $85,000 $90,000 $95,000 $150,000 $150,000 $170,000 $175,000

EAFK $45,000 ------------ ----------- -----------

EAFK & 

Success

------------ $45,000 $37,000 -----------

EAFK I-

station

------------ ----------- ------------ $35,000

Endowme

nt

$22,500 $26,250 $40,000 $47,000 $86,500 $91,500 $146,50

0

$146,000 $166,500 $171,500

Operation

s

$2,500 $3,750 $3,000 $3,000 $3,500 $3,500 $3,5000 $3,500 $3,500 $3,500 

HUTTO ISD PROGRAMMING: (2011-15)



HEF Endowment Fund Policies

• We updated MOU to ensure we are staying constant with the 
purpose of this agreement by looking forward and ensuring 
there are goals set in place for future growth.

• We have created the Hutto Education Foundation 
Endowment Investment Policies in order to maximize the 
investment of the money given to us by the Williamson 
County Commissioners’ Court.

• Started partnership with local educators….
• We have created the Hutto Education Foundation Endowment Donor 

Policies to begin securing donations from other sources for 
scholarships and general Endowment Fund monies.



Fund Request 2020-21

Hutto Education Foundation is requesting $175,000 for 2020-21

FUNDING BREAKDOWN

• $175, 000 will go towards HEF Endowment Fund 
• Partnership with higher education center in Hutto; including TSTC 1:1 match for eligible 

students in there 3rd & 4th semester
• Up to 10% of the yearly gains from the endowment will go towards affirming the commitment to ensuring 

Hutto ISD students continue their education after high school. 

HEF’s GOAL

• To have perpetual scholarship funds that will impact Hutto ISD students forever
• To provide more opportunities to students & faculty members at the same rate our 

community is growing

Providing the Williamson County Commissioners Court with a brief overview…





Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Contributions
Restricted

08/29/2011 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. Hutto Education Foundation Donation 20,000.00
11/02/2011 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. 2nd Installment 22,500.00
12/29/2012 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. 3rd Installment 26,250.00
06/24/2014 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. 4th Installment 87,000.00
12/01/2015 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. 5th Installment 86,500.00
12/16/2016 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. 6th Installment 91,500.00
12/19/2017 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. Donation to Hutto Education Foundat... 146,500.00
12/28/2018 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. Donation to Hutto Education Foundat... 146,500.00
12/29/2019 Hutto Education Foundation, Inc. Donation to Hutto Education Foundat... 166,500.00

Total Restricted 793,250.00

Total Contributions 793,250.00

Investment Income
Cap Gain Distributions (Div)

12/31/2013 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Dec 2013 41.34
01/31/2014 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Jan 2014 0.06
04/30/2014 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Apr 2014 2.26
12/31/2014 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Dec 2014 184.94
04/30/2015 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Apr 2015 4.05
12/31/2015 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Dec 2015 262.47
12/31/2016 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Dec 2016 48.48
04/30/2017 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Apr 2017 0.63
12/31/2017 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Dec 2017 7.25
12/31/2018 Cap Gain Distrib Inc-Dec 2018 0.52

Total Cap Gain Distributions (Div) 552.00

Dividend Income
10/31/2013 Dividend Inc-Oct 2013 70.79
11/30/2013 Dividend Inc-Nov 2013 65.57
12/31/2013 Dividend Inc-Dec 2013 174.07
01/31/2014 Dividend Inc-Jan 2014 45.15
02/28/2014 Dividend Inc-Feb 2014 47.97
03/31/2014 Dividend Inc-Mar 2014 87.22
04/30/2014 Dividend Inc-Apr 2014 75.79
05/31/2014 Dividend Inc-May 2014 44.50
06/30/2014 Dividend Inc-Jun 2014 89.36
07/31/2014 Dividend Inc-Jul 2014 227.81
08/31/2014 Dividend Inc-Aug 2014 67.75
09/30/2014 Dividend Inc-Sep 2014 99.06
10/31/2014 Dividend Inc-Oct 2014 98.25
11/30/2014 Dividend Inc-Nov 2014 77.03
12/31/2014 Dividend Inc-Dec 2014 286.61
01/31/2015 Dividend Inc-Jan 2015 96.76
02/28/2015 Dividend Inc-Feb 2015 146.16
03/31/2015 Dividend Inc-Mar 2015 117.74
04/30/2015 Dividend Inc-Apr 2015 108.26
05/31/2015 Dividend Inc-May 2015 71.68
06/30/2015 Dividend Inc-Jun 2015 152.01
07/31/2015 Dividend Inc-Jul 2015 215.22
08/31/2015 Dividend Inc-Aug 2015 80.39
09/30/2015 Dividend Inc-Sep 2015 132.02
10/31/2015 Dividend Inc-Oct 2015 145.38
11/30/2015 Dividend Inc-Nov 2015 74.47
12/31/2015 Dividend Inc-Dec 2015 573.42
01/31/2016 Dividend Inc-Jan 2016 137.33
02/29/2016 Dividend Inc-Feb 2016 146.41
03/31/2016 Dividend Inc-Mar 2016 220.98
04/30/2016 Dividend Inc-Apr 2016 245.96
05/31/2016 Dividend Inc-May 2016 152.99

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 1



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

06/30/2016 Dividend Inc-Jun 2016 539.37
07/31/2016 Dividend Inc-Jul 2016 280.92
08/31/2016 Dividend Inc-Aug 2016 169.11
09/30/2016 Dividend Inc-Sep 2016 269.47
10/31/2016 Dividend Inc-Oct 2016 216.28
11/30/2016 Dividend Inc-Nov 2016 157.70
12/31/2016 Dividend Inc-Dec 2016 617.30
01/31/2017 Dividend Inc-Jan 2017 198.00
02/28/2017 Dividend Inc-Feb 2017 206.57
03/31/2017 Dividend Inc-Mar 2017 273.97
04/30/2017 Dividend Inc-Apr 2017 254.87
05/31/2017 Dividend Inc-May 2017 314.41
06/30/2017 Dividend Inc-Jun 2017 709.05
07/31/2017 Dividend Inc-Jul 2017 255.51
08/31/2017 Dividend Inc-Aug 2017 218.01
09/30/2017 Dividend Inc-Sep 2017 267.09
10/31/2017 Dividend Inc-Oct 2017 305.40
11/30/2017 Dividend Inc-Nov 2017 201.03
12/31/2017 Dividend Inc-Dec 2017 904.58
01/31/2018 Dividend Inc-Jan 2018 263.52
02/28/2018 Dividend Inc-Feb 2018 232.49
03/31/2018 Dividend Inc-Mar 2018 410.32
04/30/2018 Dividend Inc-Apr 2018 403.18
05/31/2018 Dividend Inc-May 2018 278.05
06/30/2018 Dividend Inc-Jun 2018 970.61
07/31/2018 Dividend Inc-Jul 2018 384.18
08/31/2018 Dividend Inc-Aug 2018 326.59
09/30/2018 Dividend Inc-Sep 2018 492.77
10/31/2018 Dividend Inc-Oct 2018 464.61
11/30/2018 Dividend Inc-Nov 2018 331.13
12/31/2018 Dividend Inc-Dec 2018 1,083.82
01/31/2019 Dividend Inc-Jan 2019 385.75
02/28/2019 Dividend Inc-Feb 2019 405.16
03/31/2019 Dividend Inc-Mar 2019 543.78
04/30/2019 Dividend Inc-Apr 2019 558.23
05/31/2019 Dividend Inc-May 2019 481.02
06/30/2019 Dividend Inc-June 2019 1,363.11
07/31/2019 Dividend Inc-July 2019 768.55
08/31/2019 Dividend Inc-Aug 2019 625.58
09/30/2019 Dividend Inc-Sep 2019 779.48
10/31/2019 Dividend Inc-Oct 2019 610.58
11/30/2019 Dividend Inc-Nov 2019 590.68
12/31/2019 Dividend Inc-Dec 2019 1,322.07
01/31/2020 Dividend Inc-Jan 2020 637.43
02/28/2020 Dividend Inc-Feb 2020 348.84
03/30/2020 Dividend Inc-Mar 2020 1,054.76
04/29/2020 Dividend Inc-April 2020 913.24
05/30/2020 Dividend Inc-May 2020 641.70
06/29/2020 Dividend Inc-Jun 2020 2,482.02
07/30/2020 Dividend Inc-Jul 2020 574.90
08/30/2020 Dividend Inc-Aug 2020 631.02

Total Dividend Income 32,091.92

Interest Income
10/31/2013 Interest Inc-Oct 2013 0.99
11/30/2013 Interest Inc-Nov 2013 1.17
12/31/2013 Interest Inc-Dec 2013 1.17
01/31/2014 Interest Inc-Jan 2014 1.00
02/28/2014 Interest Inc-Feb 2014 0.91
03/31/2014 Interest Inc-Mar 2014 1.03
04/30/2014 Interest Inc-Apr 2014 1.06
05/31/2014 Interest Inc-May 2014 1.16
06/30/2014 Interest Inc-Jun 2014 1.35
07/31/2014 Interest Inc-Jul 2014 2.18

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 2



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

08/31/2014 Interest Inc-Aug 2014 2.08
09/30/2014 Interest Inc-Sep 2014 2.46
10/31/2014 Interest Inc-Oct 2014 2.55
11/30/2014 Interest Inc-Nov 2014 2.44
12/31/2014 Interest Inc-Dec 2014 3.29
01/31/2015 Interest Inc-Jan 2015 2.89
02/28/2015 Interest Inc-Feb 2015 2.50
03/31/2015 Interest Inc-Mar 2015 2.24
04/30/2015 Interest Inc-Apr 2015 2.28
05/31/2015 Interest Inc-May 2015 1.81
06/30/2015 Interest Inc-Jun 2015 2.03
07/31/2015 Interest Inc-Jul 2015 1.99
08/31/2015 Interest Inc-Aug 2015 1.81
09/30/2015 Interest Inc-Sep 2015 1.86
10/31/2015 Interest Inc-Oct 2015 1.95
11/30/2015 Interest Inc-Nov 2015 1.99
12/31/2015 Interest Inc-Dec 2015 3.02
01/31/2016 Interest Inc-Jan 2016 3.33
02/29/2016 Interest Inc-Feb 2016 2.87
03/31/2016 Interest Inc-Mar 2016 3.11
04/30/2016 Interest Inc-Apr 2016 2.75
05/31/2016 Interest Inc-May 2016 2.52
06/30/2016 Interest Inc-Jun 2016 2.39
07/31/2016 Interest Inc-Jul 2016 2.25
08/31/2016 Interest Inc-Aug 2016 2.75
09/30/2016 Interest Inc-Sep 2016 2.75
10/31/2016 Interest Inc-Oct 2016 2.69
11/30/2016 Interest Inc-Nov 2016 2.42
12/31/2016 Interest Inc-Dec 2016 3.00
01/31/2017 Interest Inc-Jan 2017 3.51
02/28/2017 Interest Inc-Feb 2017 3.32
03/31/2017 Interest Inc-Mar 2017 3.55
04/30/2017 Interest Inc-Apr 2017 3.23
05/31/2017 Interest Inc-May 2017 6.61
06/30/2017 Interest Inc-Jun 2017 11.27
07/31/2017 Interest Inc-Jul 2017 51.06
08/31/2017 Interest Inc-Aug 2017 51.69
09/30/2017 Interest Inc-Sep 2017 34.88
10/31/2017 Interest Inc-Oct 2017 18.53
11/30/2017 Interest Inc-Nov 2017 8.09
12/31/2017 Interest Inc-Dec 2017 7.49
01/31/2018 Interest Inc-Jan 2018 94.58
02/28/2018 Interest Inc-Feb 2018 2.88
03/31/2018 Interest Inc-Mar 2018 3.49
04/30/2018 Interest Inc-Apr 2018 192.80
05/31/2018 Interest Inc-May 2018 9.75
06/30/2018 Interest Inc-Jun 2018 9.07
07/31/2018 Interest Inc-Jul 2018 289.46
08/31/2018 Interest Inc-Aug 2018 6.85
09/30/2018 Interest Inc-Sep 2018 12.23
10/31/2018 Interest Inc-Oct 2018 417.16
11/30/2018 Interest Inc-Nov 2018 4.94
12/31/2018 Interest Inc-Dec 2018 37.50
01/31/2019 Interest Inc-Jan 2019 578.76
02/28/2019 Interest Inc-Feb 2019 39.53
03/31/2019 Interest Inc-Mar 2019 41.77
04/30/2019 Interest Inc-Apr 2019 684.94
05/31/2019 Interest Inc-May 2019 39.81
06/30/2019 Interest Inc-June 2019 18.74
07/31/2019 Interest Inc-July 2019 718.10
08/31/2019 Interest Inc-Aug 2019 15.68
09/30/2019 Interest Inc-Sep 2019 21.30
10/31/2019 Interest Inc-Oct 2019 852.54
11/30/2019 Interest Inc-Nov 2019 12.08
12/31/2019 Interest Inc-Dec 2019 11.53

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 3



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

01/31/2020 Interest Inc-Jan 2020 869.71
02/28/2020 Interest Inc-Feb 2020 11.46
03/30/2020 Interest Inc-Mar 2020 4.98
04/29/2020 Interest Inc-Apr 2020 0.98
05/30/2020 Interest Inc-May 2020 0.22
06/29/2020 Interest Inc-Jun 2020 0.24
07/30/2020 Interest Inc-Jul 2020 0.25
08/30/2020 Interest Inc-Aug 2020 0.18

Total Interest Income 5,290.78

Interest/Dividend Income
09/30/2011 Dividends & Interest-Sep 2011 35.49
10/31/2011 Dividends & Interest-Oct 2011 22.23
11/30/2011 Dividends & Interest-Nov 2011 35.45
12/31/2011 Dividends & Interest-Dec 2011 91.69
01/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-Jan 2012 45.91
02/29/2012 Dividends & Interest-Feb 2012 64.15
03/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-Mar 2012 162.53
04/30/2012 Dividends & Interest-Apr 2012 73.47
05/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-May 2012 49.17
06/30/2012 Dividends & Interest-Jun 2012 88.55
07/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-Jul 2012 43.12
08/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-Aug 2012 70.38
09/30/2012 Dividends & Interest-Sep 2012 94.65
10/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-Oct 2012 58.61
11/30/2012 Dividends & Interest-Nov 2012 40.85
12/31/2012 Dividends & Interest-Dec 2012 117.56
01/31/2013 Dividends & Interest-Jan 2013 43.97
02/28/2013 Dividends & Interest-Feb 2013 61.66
03/31/2013 Dividends & Interest-Mar 2013 102.62
04/30/2013 Dividends & Interest-Apr 2013 89.68
05/31/2013 Dividends & Interest-May 2013 50.74
06/30/2013 Dividends & Interest-Jun 2013 105.56
07/31/2013 Dividends & Interest-Jul 2013 138.57
08/31/2013 Dividends & Interest-Aug 2013 58.83
09/30/2013 Dividends & Interest-Sep 2013 94.71

Total Interest/Dividend Income 1,840.15

Realized Gain/Loss-Securities
09/30/2011 Market Gain/Loss-Sep 2011 144.41
11/30/2011 Market Gain/Loss-Nov 2011 50.92
01/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Jan 2012 56.28
02/29/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Feb 2012 1,112.80
03/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Mar 2012 -36.01
04/30/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Apr 2012 168.54
05/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-May 2012 -29.55
06/30/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Jun 2012 79.45
07/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Jul 2012 -115.62
08/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Aug 2012 -171.00
10/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Oct 2012 -20.48
12/31/2012 Market Gain/Loss-Dec 2012 1.60
01/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss-Jan 2013 -51.89
02/28/2013 Market Gain/Loss-Feb 2013 1,333.39
03/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss-Mar 2013 -45.16
04/30/2013 Market Gain/Loss-Apr 2013 -8.45
05/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss-May 2013 67.99
06/30/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Jun 2013 66.10
07/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Jul 2013 99.08
08/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Aug 2013 154.60
09/30/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Sep 2013 698.58
10/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2013 415.10
11/30/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2013 70.19
12/31/2013 Market Gain/Loss- Dec 2013 -44.28
03/31/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Mar 2014 123.99

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 4



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

04/30/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Apr 2014 -164.23
05/31/2014 Market Gain/Loss- May 2014 749.75
07/31/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Jul 2014 1,261.73
08/31/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Aug 2014 -12.36
09/30/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Sep 2014 -6.30
10/31/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2014 3.53
11/30/2014 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2014 170.22
02/28/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Feb 2015 1,479.67
03/31/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Mar 2015 398.41
08/31/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Aug 2015 -55.73
09/30/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Sep 2015 55.83
10/31/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2015 625.50
11/30/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2015 -64.18
12/31/2015 Market Gain/Loss- Dec 2015 -739.41
01/31/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Jan 2016 154.18
02/29/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Feb 2016 -2,647.87
05/31/2016 Market Gain/Loss- May 2016 825.32
06/30/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Jun 2016 364.71
07/31/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Jul 2016 693.57
08/31/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Aug 2016 520.57
10/31/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2016 5.91
11/30/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2016 -39.93
12/31/2016 Market Gain/Loss- Dec 2016 707.41
01/31/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Jan 2017 878.31
02/28/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Feb 2017 442.45
05/31/2017 Market Gain/Loss- May 2017 -29.45
06/30/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Jun 2017 -17.60
08/31/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Aug 2017 705.47
09/30/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Sep 2017 1,273.00
10/31/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2017 1,192.01
11/30/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2017 -101.96
12/31/2017 Market Gain/Loss- Dec 2017 1.79
01/31/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Jan 2018 1,857.99
03/31/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Mar 2018 5,073.47
04/30/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Apr 2018 397.13
05/31/2018 Market Gain/Loss- May 2018 324.59
06/30/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Jun 2018 -6.11
07/31/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Jul 2018 -134.09
09/30/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Sep 2018 2,751.48
10/31/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2018 486.84
11/30/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2018 821.19
12/31/2018 Market Gain/Loss- Dec 2018 -39.73
01/31/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Jan 2019 -25.28
02/28/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Feb 2019 1,386.14
03/31/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Mar 2019 552.29
04/30/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Apr 2019 278.45
05/31/2019 Market Gain/Loss- May 2019 -382.37
06/30/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Jun 2019 2,013.82
07/31/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Jul 2019 544.52
09/30/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Sep 2019 2,602.29
10/31/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Oct 2019 1,984.14
11/30/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Nov 2019 -25.35
12/31/2019 Market Gain/Loss- Dec 2019 -32.73
02/28/2020 Market Gain/Loss-Feb 2020 1,433.32
03/30/2020 Market Gain/Loss-Mar 2020 277.14
05/30/2020 Market Gain/Loss-May 2020 -267.60
06/29/2020 Market Gain/Loss-Jun 2020 988.99

Total Realized Gain/Loss-Securities 35,611.43

Unrealized Gain/Loss-Securities
09/30/2011 Market Change-Sep 2011 -768.83
10/31/2011 Market Change-Oct 2011 816.70
11/30/2011 Market Change-Nov 2011 -96.42
12/31/2011 Market Change-Dec 2011 -24.83

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 5



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

01/31/2012 Market Change-Jan 2012 972.77
02/29/2012 Market Change-Feb 2012 -398.06
03/31/2012 Market Change-Mar 2012 -133.85
04/30/2012 Market Change-Apr 2012 -359.98
05/31/2012 Market Change-May 2012 -1,648.02
06/30/2012 Market Change-Jun 2012 665.96
07/31/2012 Market Change-Jul 2012 309.97
08/31/2012 Market Change-Aug 2012 497.41
09/30/2012 Market Change-Sep 2012 344.11
10/31/2012 Market Change-Oct 2012 -404.73
11/30/2012 Market Change-Nov 2012 403.88
12/31/2012 Market Change-Dec 2012 138.68
01/31/2013 Market Change-Jan 2013 2,139.32
02/28/2013 Market Change-Feb 2013 -1,576.31
03/31/2013 Market Change-Mar 2013 1,087.99
04/30/2013 Market Change-Apr 2013 393.96
05/31/2013 Market Change-May 2013 170.74
06/30/2013 Market Change-Jun 2013 -1,265.84
07/31/2013 Market Change-Jul 2013 1,914.56
08/31/2013 Market Change-Aug 2013 -1,657.16
09/30/2013 Market Change-Sep 2013 1,176.80
10/31/2013 Market Change-Oct 2013 1,356.48
11/30/2013 Market Change-Nov 2013 1,244.05
12/31/2013 Market Change-Dec 2013 943.31
01/31/2014 Market Change-Jan 2014 -1,258.27
02/28/2014 Market Change-Feb 2014 1,567.37
03/31/2014 Market Change-Mar 2014 108.65
04/30/2014 Market Change-Apr 2014 469.64
05/31/2014 Market Change-May 2014 100.88
06/30/2014 Market Change-Jun 2014 510.04
07/31/2014 Market Change-Jul 2014 -2,435.61
08/31/2014 Market Change-Aug 2014 1,488.36
09/30/2014 Market Change-Sep 2014 -1,487.31
10/31/2014 Market Change-Oct 2014 1,731.39
11/30/2014 Market Change-Nov 2014 1,358.71
12/31/2014 Market Change-Dec 2014 -968.43
01/31/2015 Market Change-Jan 2015 -1,010.73
02/28/2015 Market Change-Feb 2015 1,152.48
03/31/2015 Market Change-Mar 2015 -1,215.92
04/30/2015 Market Change-Apr 2015 611.89
05/31/2015 Market Change-May 2015 226.44
06/30/2015 Market Change-Jun 2015 -1,733.82
07/31/2015 Market Change-Jul 2015 843.49
08/31/2015 Market Change-Aug 2015 -3,836.09
09/30/2015 Market Change-Sep 2015 -1,819.63
10/31/2015 Market Change-Oct 2015 3,536.19
11/30/2015 Market Change-Nov 2015 327.84
12/31/2015 Market Change-Dec 2015 -3,185.62
01/31/2016 Market Change-Jan 2016 -4,119.27
02/29/2016 Market Change-Feb 2016 934.16
03/31/2016 Market Change-Mar 2016 6,012.14
04/30/2016 Market Change-Apr 2016 1,100.50
05/31/2016 Market Change-May 2016 59.42
06/30/2016 Market Change-Jun 2016 169.54
07/31/2016 Market Change-Jul 2016 2,473.82
08/31/2016 Market Change-Aug 2016 -449.93
09/30/2016 Market Change-Sep 2016 262.14
10/31/2016 Market Change-Oct 2016 -2,598.83
11/30/2016 Market Change-Nov 2016 1,697.33
12/31/2016 Market Change-Dec 2016 1,333.48
01/31/2017 Market Change-Jan 2017 2,104.58
02/28/2017 Market Change-Feb 2017 3,327.56
03/31/2017 Market Change-Mar 2017 659.61
04/30/2017 Market Change-Apr 2017 2,485.74
05/31/2017 Market Change-May 2017 1,408.90

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 6



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

06/30/2017 Market Change-Jun 2017 -1,162.41
07/31/2017 Market Change-Jul 2017 2,572.55
08/31/2017 Market Change-Aug 2017 16.13
09/30/2017 Market Change-Sep 2017 551.33
10/31/2017 Market Change-Oct 2017 2,365.91
11/30/2017 Market Change-Nov 2017 3,075.91
12/31/2017 Market Change-Dec 2017 1,008.45
01/31/2018 Market Change-Jan 2018 5,761.88
02/28/2018 Market Change-Feb 2018 -7,834.77
03/31/2018 Market Change-Mar 2018 -7,049.56
04/30/2018 Market Change-Apr 2018 61.75
05/31/2018 Market Change-May 2018 1,373.91
06/30/2018 Market Change-Jun 2018 -978.43
07/31/2018 Market Change-Jul 2018 5,489.96
08/31/2018 Market Change-Aug 2018 3,045.01
09/30/2018 Market Change-Sep 2018 -2,439.89
10/31/2018 Market Change-Oct 2018 -11,481.44
11/30/2018 Market Change-Nov 2018 2,097.32
12/31/2018 Market Change-Dec 2018 -10,680.18
01/31/2019 Market Change-Jan 2019 10,496.17
02/28/2019 Market Change-Feb 2019 3,529.61
03/31/2019 Market Change-Mar 2019 2,426.94
04/30/2019 Market Change-Apr 2019 6,644.66
05/31/2019 Market Change-May 2019 -6,895.54
06/30/2019 Market Change-Jun 2019 7,737.80
07/31/2019 Market Change-Jul 2019 605.78
08/31/2019 Market Change-Aug 2019 -559.22
09/30/2019 Market Change-Sep 2019 -225.54
10/31/2019 Market Change-Oct 2019 12.06
11/30/2019 Market Change-Nov 2019 3,719.33
12/31/2019 Market Change-Dec 2019 3,624.72
01/30/2020 Market Change-Jan 2020 -4,003.34
01/31/2020 Market Change-Jan 2020 1,307.84
02/28/2020 Market Change-Feb 2020 -29,274.95
03/30/2020 Market Change-Mar 2020 -37,545.32
04/29/2020 Market Change-April 2020 47,505.26
05/30/2020 Market Change-May 2020 25,128.46
06/29/2020 Market Change-June 2020 9,724.95
07/30/2020 Market Change-Jul 2020 30,107.36
08/30/2020 Market Change-Aug 2020 31,948.86

Total Unrealized Gain/Loss-Securities 109,994.81

Total Investment Income 185,381.09

Total Income 978,631.09

Gross Profit 978,631.09

Expense
Operational Expenses

Investment Fees
10/31/2011 Investment Fees-Oct 2011 17.07
12/31/2011 Investment Fees-Dec 2011 1.62
01/31/2012 Investment Fees-Jan 2012 41.99
02/29/2012 Investment Fees-Feb 2012 0.13
04/30/2012 Investment Fees-Apr 2012 109.38
07/31/2012 Investment Fees-Jul 2012 63.42
08/31/2012 Investment Fees-Aug 2012 0.48
10/31/2012 Investment Fees-Oct 2012 61.55
01/31/2013 Investment Fees-Jan 2013 131.85
02/28/2013 Investment Fees, Net Refund-Feb 2013 -40.46
04/30/2013 Investment Fees-Apr 2013 102.04
07/31/2013 Investment Fees-Jul 2013 103.15
10/31/2013 Investment Fees-Oct 2013 92.15
01/31/2014 Investment Fees-Jan 2014 93.63

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 7



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

04/30/2014 Investment Fees-Apr 2014 95.23
07/31/2014 Investment Fees-Jul 2014 118.14
10/31/2014 Investment Fees-Oct 2014 133.03
01/31/2015 Investment Fees-Jan 2015 139.61
04/30/2015 Investment Fees-Apr 2015 130.96
05/31/2015 Investment Fees-May 2015 -38.32
06/30/2015 Investment Fees-Jun 2015 42.39
07/31/2015 Investment Fees-Jul 2015 56.28
08/31/2015 Investment Fees-Aug 2015 46.68
09/30/2015 Investment Fees-Sep 2015 45.83
10/31/2015 Investment Fees-Oct 2015 45.21
11/30/2015 Investment Fees-Nov 2015 49.28
12/31/2015 Investment Fees-Dec 2015 64.37
01/31/2016 Investment Fees-Jan 2016 78.04
02/29/2016 Investment Fees-Feb 2016 76.32
03/31/2016 Investment Fees-Mar 2016 76.06
04/30/2016 Investment Fees-Apr 2016 79.75
04/30/2016 Foreign Div Tax-Apr 2016 9.89
05/31/2016 Investment Fees-May 2016 81.58
06/30/2016 Investment Fees-Jun 2016 80.45
07/31/2016 Investment Fees-Jul 2016 80.42
07/31/2016 Foreign Div Tax-Jul 2016 12.13
08/31/2016 Investment Fees-Aug 2016 82.52
09/30/2016 Investment Fees-Sep 2016 83.11
09/30/2016 Foreign Div Tax Adj-Sep 2016 -3.08
10/31/2016 Foreign Div Tax Adj-Oct 2016 8.90
10/31/2016 Investment Fees-Oct 2016 83.46
11/30/2016 Investment Fees-Nov 2016 82.09
12/31/2016 Investment Fees-Dec 2016 91.50
01/31/2017 Investment Fees-Jan 2017 98.76
01/31/2017 Foreign Div Tax-Jan 2017 10.16
02/28/2017 Investment Fees-Feb 2017 96.94
03/31/2017 Investment Fees-Mar 2017 98.12
04/30/2017 Investment Fees-Apr 2017 98.10
04/30/2017 Foreign Div Tax-Apr 2017 9.59
05/31/2017 Investment Fees-May 2017 97.23
06/30/2017 Investment Fees-Jun 2017 97.09
06/30/2017 Foreign Div Tax-Jun 2017 9.89
07/31/2017 Investment Fees-Jul 2017 96.82
08/31/2017 Investment Fees-Aug 2017 98.61
09/30/2017 Investment Fees-Sep 2017 89.15
10/31/2017 Investment Fees-Oct 2017 88.85
10/31/2017 Foreign Div Tax-Oct 2017 10.11
11/30/2017 Investment Fees-Nov 2017 87.20
12/31/2017 Investment Fees-Dec 2017 113.28
01/31/2018 Investment Fees-Jan 2018 101.60
01/31/2018 Foreign Div Tax-Jan 2018 11.93
02/28/2018 Investment Fees-Feb 2018 103.00
03/31/2018 Investment Fees-Mar 2018 98.86
04/30/2018 Investment Fees-Apr 2018 97.25
04/30/2018 Foreign Div Tax-Apr 2018 10.63
05/31/2018 Investment Fees-May 2018 92.51
06/30/2018 Investment Fees-Jun 2018 93.48
07/31/2018 Investment Fees-Jul 2018 93.45
07/31/2018 Foreign Div Tax-Jul 2018 9.51
08/31/2018 Investment Fees-Aug 2018 98.71
09/30/2018 Investment Fees-Sep 2018 100.44
10/31/2018 Investment Fees-Oct 2018 99.45
10/31/2018 Foreign Div Tax-Oct 2018 10.00
11/30/2018 Investment Fees-Nov 2018 93.04
12/31/2018 Investment Fees-Dec 2018 95.23
01/31/2019 Investment Fees-Jan 2019 97.65
01/31/2019 Foreign Div Tax-Jan 2019 10.53
02/28/2019 Investment Fees-Feb 2019 103.67
03/31/2019 Investment Fees-Mar 2019 106.03

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 8



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

04/30/2019 Investment Fees-Apr 2019 107.47
04/30/2019 Foreign Div Tax-Apr 2019 12.97
05/31/2019 Investment Fees-May 2019 109.56
06/30/2019 Investment Fees-Jun 2019 105.95
07/31/2019 Investment Fees-Jul 2019 110.00
07/31/2019 Foreign Div Tax-Jul 2019 14.02
08/31/2019 Investment Fees-Aug 2019 105.78
09/30/2019 Investment Fees-Sep 2019 101.76
10/31/2019 Investment Fees-Oct 2019 100.81
10/31/2019 Foreign Div Tax-Oct 2019 13.22
11/30/2019 Investment Fees-Nov 2019 101.13
12/31/2019 Investment Fees-Dec 2019 103.40
01/31/2020 Investment Fees-Jan 2020 185.52
01/31/2020 Foreign Div Tax-Jan 2020 13.25
02/28/2020 Investment Fees-Jan & Feb 2020 388.15
03/30/2020 Investment Fees-Mar 2020 344.59
04/29/2020 Investments Fees-April 2020 329.99
04/29/2020 Foreign Div Tax-Apr 2020 45.16
05/30/2020 Investment Fees-May 2020 349.46
06/29/2020 Investment Fees-Jun 2020 359.92
07/30/2020 Investments Fees-Jul 2020 365.40
08/30/2020 Investment Fees-Aug 2020 379.84

Total Investment Fees 9,184.05

Total Operational Expenses 9,184.05

Programs Expense
Grants

06/03/2019 Hutto Education Foundation Distrubution ffrom Endowment 12,000.00

Total Grants 12,000.00

Admin Fees
09/30/2011 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee - Balance of annual $500 ... 41.67
10/31/2011 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2011 16.14
11/30/2011 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2011 30.88
12/31/2011 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2011 35.53
01/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2012 35.55
02/29/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2012 36.38
03/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2012 37.00
04/30/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2012 36.97
05/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2012 36.75
06/30/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2012 35.36
07/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2012 36.02
08/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2012 36.14
09/30/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee - Balance of annual $500 ... 127.28
10/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2012 36.70
11/30/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2012 36.31
12/31/2012 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2012 42.12
01/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2013 58.71
02/28/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2013 60.32
03/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2013 60.16
04/30/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2013 61.06
05/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2013 61.32
06/30/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2013 61.51
07/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2013 60.55
08/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2013 62.21
09/30/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2013 60.95
10/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2013 62.54
11/30/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2013 63.95
12/31/2013 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2013 65.05
01/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2014 65.92
02/28/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2014 64.78
03/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2014 66.07
04/30/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2014 66.28

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 9



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

05/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2014 66.47
06/30/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2014 85.29
07/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2014 140.09
08/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2014 139.09
09/30/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2014 140.26
10/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2014 138.98
11/30/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2014 140.29
12/31/2014 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2014 141.51
01/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2015 140.98
02/28/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2015 139.99
03/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2015 142.19
04/30/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2015 141.49
05/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2015 141.87
06/30/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2015 142.03
07/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2015 140.56
08/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2015 141.28
09/30/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2015 137.95
10/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2015 136.44
11/30/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2015 139.88
12/31/2015 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2015 212.09
01/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2016 209.28
02/29/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2016 205.86
03/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2016 204.32
04/30/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2016 209.28
05/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2016 210.16
06/30/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2016 210.78
07/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2016 211.44
08/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2016 214.06
09/30/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2016 214.01
10/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2016 214.21
11/30/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2016 211.98
12/31/2016 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2016 251.37
01/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2017 291.47
02/28/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2017 293.79
03/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2017 296.78
04/30/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2017 297.23
05/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2017 299.18
06/30/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2017 300.27
07/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2017 299.55
08/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2017 301.62
09/30/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2017 302.11
10/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2017 303.55
11/30/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2017 306.45
12/31/2017 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2017 369.82
01/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2018 432.07
02/28/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2018 438.26
03/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2018 431.48
04/30/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2018 429.73
05/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2018 430.16
06/30/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2018 431.38
07/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2018 430.94
08/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2018 435.52
09/30/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2018 437.89
10/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2018 438.12
11/30/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2018 429.24
12/31/2018 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2018 462.04
01/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2019 545.14
02/28/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2019 554.12
03/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2019 558.04
04/30/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2019 560.46
05/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2019 566.70
06/30/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2019 553.00
07/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2019 559.23
08/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2019 560.86
09/30/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Sep 2019 560.37

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 10



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

10/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Oct 2019 562.47
11/30/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Nov 2019 564.79
12/31/2019 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Dec 2019 602.50
01/31/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jan 2020 710.08
02/29/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Feb 2020 708.34
03/31/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Mar 2020 637.02
04/30/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Apr 2020 606.03
05/31/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-May 2020 645.56
06/30/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jun 2020 665.98
07/31/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Jul 2020 676.12
08/31/2020 Greater Round Rock Community ... Admin Fee @ 1/12 of 1%-Aug 2020 700.82

Total Admin Fees 27,959.94

Other - Programs
02/27/2020 To set up Hutto EF Agency Fund 57,000.00

Total Other - Programs 57,000.00

Total Programs Expense 96,959.94

Total Expense 106,143.99

Net Ordinary Income 872,487.10

Net Income 872,487.10

11:40 AM Greater Round Rock Community Foundation, Inc.
09/18/20 Hutto Education Foundation Endowment
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2020

Page 11



THE TSTC FOUNDATION 

3801 Campus Drive 
Waco, Texas  76705 

O: 254-867-3900 
F: 254-867-3997

TSTCFoundation.org 
A not-for-profit foundation for the sole benefit of Texas State Technical College and its students

Mrs. Samples and Mr. Walker, 
 
 
 In the Summer of 2018, The City of Hutto created a scholarship to support Students from Hutto to planned to attend TSTC in 

Williamson County during the beginning of their academic journey.  In the Spring of 2019 The TSTC Foundation and Hutto Education 

Foundation announced our partnership to extend that support through future semesters as well, beginning in the Summer of 2020.  

 This Spring we awarded $5,500 in scholarships to 12 Hutto students, and project to surpass that for the upcoming semester.   

The TSTC Foundation is requesting $5,000 from The Hutto Education Foundation.  This would fund up to 10 students from Hutto High 

School that are attending either the Hutto or Waco campuses for one semester.   

 We greatly appreciate your continued advocacy and support.  With your help we re continuing to increase the number of 

Hutto students that are skilled and find gainful employment right here in their own backyards.   

 
Very Respectfully, 
 
Michael J. Smith 
Senior Field Development Officer 
Texas State Technical College 



THE TSTC FOUNDATION 

3801 Campus Drive 
Waco, Texas  76705 

O: 254-867-3900 
F: 254-867-3997

TSTCFoundation.org 
A not-for-profit foundation for the sole benefit of Texas State Technical College and its students

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 45.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Breast Cancer Presentation 
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on resolution recognizing the month of October
as "Breast Cancer Awareness Month".

Background
Women young and old are diagnosed with breast cancer.  It has impacted many of our families,
including some of our Williamson County family.  In 2019, it was estimated that 17,921 Texas
women would be diagnosed with breast cancer. An estimated 3,213 were expected to die from
it.  Breast cancer is the second most common cause of cancer death in Texas women.  It is
important for women to receive annual breast screenings, as the likelihood of survival drastically
improves if the disease is discovered early during Stage-1.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:23 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 10/15/2020 09:00 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



State of Texas 

County of Williamson  

Know all men by these presents: 
 

That on the 20th day of October 2020 the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas met in duly 

called session at the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas, with the following 

members present:   

 

     Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge  

     Terry Cook, Commissioner Precinct One  

     Cynthia P. Long, Commissioner Precinct Two  

     Valerie Covey, Commissioner Precinct Three 

     Russ Boles, Commissioner Precinct Four   

 

And at said meeting, among other business, the Court considered the following:  

 

RESOLUTION 

 

WHEREAS, one in eight women will be diagnosed with breast cancer sometime during their lifetime; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2019, an estimated 268,600 new cases of invasive breast cancer were diagnosed among 

women and approximately 2,700 more cases diagnosed in men; and  

 

WHEREAS, the breast cancer death rate is decreasing due to improvements in treatment and earlier detection; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the rate of survival dramatically increases when breast cancer is diagnosed early at Stage-1, with 

a recent study showing that 4-year relative survival was 98% or greater; and  

 

WHEREAS, according to American Cancer Society, only 30% of uninsured women were up do date with 

breast cancer screening in 2018, compared to 64% of insured women; and  

 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 has further increased the number of uninsured women that have not received vital 

healthcare screenings, due to shut down of diagnostic facilities and fear of the global pandemic; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court encourages all women to receive breast cancer 

screenings and preventative healthcare that can save lives. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Williamson County Commissioners Court declares the 

month of October as “Breast Cancer Awareness Month”.  

 

RESOLVED THIS 20th Day of October 2020. 

 

 

     _______________________________________ 

     Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge   

 

  

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 46.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Breast Cancer Presentation 
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on presentation on breast cancer and allocation
of HUD CDBG CARES funds for breast cancer screening and treatment of other medically
deferred healthcare during COVID-19 pandemic.

Background
There are two allocations of CDBG CARES funding that the County can receive with
amendment of the last approved action plan.  The two CDBG CARES allocations are in the
amounts of $939,026 and $1,343,984.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Breast Cancer Presentation 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:33 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 10/15/2020 09:49 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



October is 
Breast Cancer 
Awareness 
Month 



Breast Cancer can effect women of 
all races from age 20 to 80’s



It impacts our grandmothers, mothers, aunts, 
daughters, nieces and grand-daughters.



1 in 8 women will be diagnosed with Breast 
Cancer in their lifetime.



But….Breast 
Cancer also 
impacts the 
patients’ 
Families, 
Friends and 
Children too. 



The overall breast 
cancer death rate 
has declined by 40% 
from 1989 to 2017.  



The decline in mortality is due to both 
improved treatments and earlier detection. 



Survival of 
women 

diagnosed with 
Stage-1 breast 

cancer is 98% or 
higher. 



Hope decreases if you are uninsured –
Especially during the COVID-19 Pandemic. 



COVID-19 Shutdowns & FEAR

• All non-emergent medical 
procedures were stopped for 2+ 
months. 

• Women (and men) had procedures 
cancelled. 

• Many were fearful of contracting 
COVID & did not reschedule 
lifesaving screenings. 



We can make a difference in Wilco!
Wilco has available CDBG CARES funds of $939K and $1.3M.  With part 
of this money, we can: 

❖Provide breast screenings.

❖Provide Outreach to educate on importance of health screenings.

❖Provide PPE to prevent COVID-19 spread. 

❖Provide postponed health procedures, tests & immunizations for 
uninsured, Lo-Mod residents of Williamson County. 

❖Provide other wellness and mental health services needed but 
delayed due to fear and anxiety created by COVID-19. 

❖Pay for care of women identified with breast cancer, who would 
potentially die if left untreated.



Williamson County 
can help make a 
difference!



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 47.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Veterans Treatment Court Funding 
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on contingency plan for funding of Williamson
County Veterans Treatment Court for FY-2020/2021.

Background
The Williamson County Veterans Treatment Court is an extremely successful program that has
been transformational in the lives of veterans that have served our country. The program has
been funded through the Office of the Governor since its inception.  Currently, we have not been
notified if grant funding will be awarded for the state fiscal year that began September 1st. We
have learned that no new programs will be considered this year, due to COVID-19 and existing
programs were asked to reduce requested budgets by 5%.  With grant funding still pending, a
contingency plan has been proposed to help keep the VTC program operational.  This is
especially important during the COVID-19 pandemic, as there is a need for close monitoring of
veterans (many of which have co-occurring mental health and substance abuse disorders)  that
are compounded during these stressful times.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:42 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 10/15/2020 11:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 48.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

AgriLife Extension Service Agreement
Submitted By: Katherine Whitney, Extension Service
Department: Extension Service
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a salary contribution agreement
with Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
FY21 Williamson County Salary Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/14/2020 09:10 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 09:48 AM
Form Started By: Katherine Whitney Started On: 10/14/2020 08:28 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 













   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 49.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Orphan Kitten Grant Request
Submitted For: Misty Valenta  Submitted By: Misty Valenta, Animal

Services
Department: Animal Services
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a request for the Williamson County Regional
Animal Shelter to apply for a grant to aid in the care of shelter kittens from the Orphan Kitten
Club.

Background
During the months of spring through early fall, the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter
receives an increased number of cats and kittens. This particular grant application, if awarded,
would provide $15,000 to cover all costs associated with hiring a temporary position to aid in
the care of kittens 12 weeks and younger.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Orphan Kitten Grant 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/01/2020 01:42 PM
Form Started By: Misty Valenta Started On: 10/01/2020 01:08 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/01/2020 



10/1/2020 Print

https://wilco365.sharepoint.com/apps/Lists/Grants_Management_Request/DispForm.aspx?ID=63&Source=https%3A%2F%2Fwilco365%2Esharepoint… 1/3

Grant Title/Project Name: Orphan Kitten Club

Department: Animal Services

Requestor: Misty Valenta

Contact Email: mvalenta@wilco.org

Contact Phone Number: 512-943-3597

Start Date: 4/1/2021

End Date: 9/30/2021

Please select request category: Personnel

Describe the purpose of the grant in detail to
include all requirements.  The purpose of this grant is to fund a seasonal temporary employee during

our busiest months of kitten intake (April - September). This
temperary employee will work directly with some of our most vulnerable
animals, kittens. 

Select the type of grant your department is
applying for:

Private Foundation

What is the amount of the grant? $15,000.00

Please provide a breakdown of the total cost
above.  Funding the entire cost of a seasonal temporary position.

Is there a match requirement? No

What is the source of the match?

Does the grant cover the cost of the request
100%?

Yes

If not, how much is left unpaid?

What is the plan to obtain grants/funds for the
remaining amount?

List other similar assets in the County and/or region
and if they are available for use?

How is this asset request different from any similar
assets currently in the County and/or region?

What types of events/purpose would this asset be
used for that cannot be accomplished with a
current County asset?

How often do these events occur?

Identify the number of personnel required to
operate this asset and/or be available for the
function where it is to be used? How much time is
required of those personnel? What is the cost of
the personnel?

Where will the asset be stored?

What is the useful life of the asset?

Will a replacement be requested from general
funds when useful life has been exhausted?

Will other agencies be billed for the use of this
asset (e.g. vendors paid, employee worked hours
and paid, inventory costs etc.)?

Does this asset require insurance coverage?

If yes, what is the estimate of asset insurance



10/1/2020 Print

https://wilco365.sharepoint.com/apps/Lists/Grants_Management_Request/DispForm.aspx?ID=63&Source=https%3A%2F%2Fwilco365%2Esharepoint… 2/3

coverage?

Will this asset require on-going maintenance?
Please describe the maintenance required along
with an estimate for these costs.

How will this asset be funded when the grant ends?

What is the impact if the grant is not received?

New Personnel position is: Full Time

Where will this position office? Animal Shelter Kitten Nursery

Who will this position report to? Erin Duran

What tasks will this position perform? Include the
five primary functions and the percentage of time
spent to be spent on each function.

 1. Providing work up examinations of kittens younger than 12 weeks of age.
- 50%

2. Working with Foster/Volunteer Coordinator to identify and place kittens into
foster homes. - 5%

3. Feeding bottle baby kittens as needed. - 10%

4. Providing standard kennel care in the Kitten Nursery and the Cat Maternity
Ward including cleaning, feeding, and daily rounds. - 30%

5. Assisting with other kitten needs as necessary. - 5%

Will this position take over tasks from current
County employee?

No

If yes, please explain the impact to current
employee.

How will this position be funded when the grant
ends?  Fundraising through the animal shelter's donors and donations taken during

the intake of orphaned kittens and pregnant mother cats. 

Does this position or a similar position currently
exist within the department?

No

If “yes” how many of these similar positions exist

Describe any alternatives considered to achieve
desired outcome in lieu of a position (i.e.
equipment, software, technology or change in
business practice).

 Receiving a kitten into an animal shelter requires a skilled individual to assess
the kitten and provide the care needed. The cat staff does a remarkable job
assisting the cats through most of the year. When the monthly cat intake
jumps from  242 (Jan. 2020) to 423 (June 2020), having an individual to assist
is lifesaving to those almost 200 additional cats and kittens. 

Describe how workload will be accomplished/re-
allocated should grant not be approved.  The temporary position will work in line with fellow cat staff members. They

will also act as a liason from the cat team to the Foster/Volunteer Coordinator
to seamlessly link the two programs. 

List other similar items in the County and/or region
and if they available for use?

How is this item request different from any similar
assets currently in the County and/or region?

What types of events/purpose would this item be
used for that cannot be accomplished with a
current County asset?

Identify the number of personnel required to
operate this item and/or be available for the
function where it is to be used?

Please explain how this item will create the need
for more or less personnel (or mark n/a for no



10/1/2020 Print

https://wilco365.sharepoint.com/apps/Lists/Grants_Management_Request/DispForm.aspx?ID=63&Source=https%3A%2F%2Fwilco365%2Esharepoint… 3/3

change)?

Where will the item be stored?

What is the useful life of the item?

Will other agencies be billed for the use of this item
(e.g. vendors paid, employee worked hours and
paid, inventory costs etc.)?

Does this item require insurance coverage?

Will this item require any form of licensing?

Will this item require on-going maintenance?
Please describe the maintenance required along
with an estimate for these costs?

How will this item be funded when the grant ends?

What is the overall budgetary impact? (i.e. revenue
generation, expense reduction, etc.)

All donations raised by this position will help fund its future.

Please identify any additional equipment
needed/required (now or in the future) should the
grant/asset is awarded.

$0

What is the cost and frequency to maintain/update
the additional equipment?

$0

What is the impact of this grant application on other
internal/county departments?  Internally at Animal Services, this grant will provide us with an extra

temporary staff member during our busiest season. This will allow staff to
properly care for each individual and to handle the influx of kittens during the
summer.  

If yes, what is the estimate of that license fee?

If yes, what is the estimate of insurance coverage?

Will a replacement be requested from general
funds when useful life has been exhausted? (OR)

If yes, how much is the match amount?

ID 63

Version 2.0

Attachments False

Created 10/1/2020 12:53 PM

Created By Misty Valenta

Modified 10/1/2020 1:04 PM

Modified By Misty Valenta



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 50.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

WCCHD - EMS NACCHO Grant
Submitted By: Michael Knipstein, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving an interlocal agreement between
Williamson County and Williamson County and Cities Health District for EMS assistance with
National Association of County and City Health Officials grant implementation.

Background
Approval will allow for the use of Williamson County EMS Community Health Paramedic
personnel for planning and training related to the grant from National Association of County and
City Health Officials.  Participation was approved by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court on 9/15/2020.  Agreement has been reviewed and approved by WilCo legal, purchasing,
and audit.  WCCHD is undertaking this agreement as part of a pre-authorized COVID-19
response action and will ratify the agreement at its regular meeting on November 5, 2020.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
ILA 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/01/2020 12:02 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/01/2020 01:17 PM
Form Started By: Michael Knipstein Started On: 10/01/2020 11:35 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/01/2020 



00166581/jkg 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN WILLIAMSON COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT 

AND WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, 
FOR ASSISTANCE WITH GRANT IMPLEMENTATION 

(Use of Community Health Paramedic Personnel for Planning/Training) 
(Grant from National Association of County and City Health Officials) 

 
THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the 

Williamson County and Cities Health District (hereinafter the “Health District”), a local 
governmental entity in the State of Texas acting herein by and through its governing body, and 
Williamson County, Texas (hereinafter the “County”), a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas, also acting herein by and through its governing body. The Health District and the County 
are herein referred to collectively as the “Parties” and individually as “Party. 

 
 WHEREAS, Texas Government Code, Chapter 791, Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
allows these entities to contract with one another to perform governmental functions and services. 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to contract with each to allow Health District personnel and 
County Community Health Paramedic Personnel to work together for planning and training to 
develop COVID-19 response capacity  

 WHEREAS, the Parties hereby make a determination that entering into this Agreement 
would be mutually beneficial and not detrimental to the Parties.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. AUTHORITY 
 

 This Agreement is entered into by and between the Parties pursuant to the authority 
contained in Texas Government Code, Chapter 791, Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act.  The 
provisions of Chapter 791 of the Government Code are incorporated into this Agreement, and this 
Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the Act. 

 
2. PURPOSE 

 2.1 The Parties recognize the importance and need for promoting and ensuring public 
health and safety. 

 2.2 The purpose of this Agreement is promote public health and safety by authorizing 
the use of Community Health Paramedic Personnel for planning and training to assist implement 
a grant from the National Association of County and City Health Officials (NACCHO) for building 
local COVID-19 response operational capacity. 
 

3. TERM 



 2 

 
3.1 The term of this Agreement shall extend from the effective date hereof until the 

first anniversary of the effective date or upon completion of the Scope of Work set forth in the 
attached Exhibit A, whichever is sooner.  
 

3.2 It is understood and expressly acknowledged by the Parties that Subsection 3.1 is 
subject to the provisions for early termination contained in Section 7 herein, and that this 
Agreement may be terminated for cause or convenience by either of the Parties in accordance with 
Section 7 herein, and that such termination may be effected at any time during the term 
 

4. OBLIGATIONS OF THE HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

 4.1 The Health District will pay $47,000.00 to the County from grant funding received 
by the Health District from the National Association of County and City Health Officials to assist 
with building COVID-19 response operational capacity. 

 
 4.2 Payments will be made by the Health District to the County pursuant to the 

following schedule: $23,500 by January 31, 2021; and $23,500 after receipt of funds from 
NACCHO for July 31, 2021 invoice. The Health District requests that the County submit invoices 
for each of these payments, to document the transactions for the grant funder. 

 
5. OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 

 
5.1 The County will use its Community Health Paramedic Personnel to provide certain 

planning and training services as set forth in the Scope of Work contained in the attached Exhibit 
A, which is incorporated for all purposes. 
 

5.2 It is understood and agreed that the County shall only be responsible for the 
scope of work items set forth in attached Exhibit A and the Health District is responsible for 
the administration of all other grant-required scope of work items as well as all reporting 
and all other grant requirements. 

 
6. LIABILITY 
 
6.1 The Parties expressly agree that nothing in this Agreement adds to or changes the 

liability limits and immunities for a governmental unit provided by the Texas Tort Claims Act, 
Chapter 101, Civil Practice and Remedies Code, or other law.  The Parties expressly agree that, in 
the execution of this Agreement, neither Party waives, nor shall be deemed hereby to waive, any 
immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to it against claims arising in the exercise 
of its powers or functions or pursuant to the Texas Tort Claims Act or other applicable statutes, 
laws, rules, or regulations. 

 
 
 7. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
 7.1 Either Party has the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for 
convenience and without cause, at any time upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other Party.   



 3 

 7.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated prior to completion of the Scope of Work, 
the Parties agree to reasonably allocate the payments required under Section 4 to correspond to the 
portion of the Scope of Work that has been completed by the County. 

 8. NOTICE 
 All notices, demands and requests, including invoices which may be given or which are required 
to be given by either Party to the other, and any exercise of a right of termination provided by this 
Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed effective when sent, by certified or registered mail, 
return receipt requested, addressed to the intended recipient at the address specified below: 
 

If to Williamson County:   
Name:  Hon. Bill Gravell, Williamson County Judge 
Address:  710 Main St. 
  Georgetown, Texas 78626  
 
If to Health District:  
Name:  Derrick L. Neal, MPA, Executive Director  
Address:  355 Texas Ave. 
  Round Rock, Texas 78664 
 
The Parties may change the person designated for receipt of notice from time to time 
by giving notice in writing to the other parties, identifying the new person designated 
for receipt of service and identifying his/her name, title, address for notice and phone 
number.  
 

9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

  9.1 If a dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the Parties agree to first 
try to resolve the dispute or claim by appropriate internal means, including referral to each Party’s 
senior management.  If the Parties cannot reach a mutually satisfactory resolution, then any such 
dispute or claim will be sought to be resolved with the help of a mutually selected mediator. If the 
parties cannot agree on a mediator, the Health District and the County shall each select a mediator 
and the two mediators shall agree upon a third mediator. Any costs and fees, other than attorney 
fees, associated with the mediation shall be shared equally by the Parties. 
 
  9.2 The Health District and County hereby expressly agree that no claims or 
disputes between the Parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement or a breach thereof shall 
be decided by any arbitration proceeding, including without limitation, any proceeding under the 
Federal Arbitration Act (9 USC Section 1-14) or any applicable state arbitration statute. 
 



 4 

10.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
  
  10.1 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  No term or provision of this Agreement is 
intended to, or shall, create any rights in any person, firm, corporation, or other entity not a party 
hereto, and no such person or entity shall have any cause of action hereunder. 

 
  10.2 No Other Relationship.  No term or provision in this Agreement is intended 
to create a partnership, joint venture, or agency arrangement between the Parties.  

 
  10.3 Current Revenues.  Pursuant to Section 791.011(d)(3) of the Texas 
Government Code, each Party performing services or furnishing services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall do so with funds available from current revenues of the Party.   

 
  10.4 Amendment.  Amendment of this Agreement may only be by mutual written 
consent of the Parties. 

 
  10.5 Governing Law and Venue.  The Parties agree that this Agreement and all 
disputes arising thereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, and that exclusive 
venue for any action arising under this Agreement shall be in Williamson County, Texas.  

  
  10.6 Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to 
the contrary, no failure, delay or default in performance of any obligation hereunder shall constitute 
an event of default or a breach of this Agreement if such failure to perform, delay or default arises 
out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Party otherwise 
chargeable with failure, delay or default; including but not limited to acts of God, acts of public 
enemy, civil war, insurrection, riots, fires, floods, explosion, theft, earthquakes, natural disasters 
or other casualties, strikes or other labor troubles, which in any way restrict the performance under 
this Agreement by the Parties. 

 
10.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the 

Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein.  The Parties may not modify or amend this 
Agreement, except by written agreement approved by the governing bodies of each Party and duly 
executed by both Parties. 

 
10.8 Approval.  This Agreement has been duly and properly approved by each 

Party’s governing body and constitutes a binding obligation on each Party. 
 

10.9 Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a Party may 
not assign this Agreement or subcontract the performance of services without first obtaining the 
written consent of the other Party. 
 
 



 5 

  10.10 Non-Appropriation and Fiscal Funding.  The obligations of the Parties 
under this Agreement do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of either Party for 
which such Party is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any form of taxation.  It is understood and 
agreed that either Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of either Party’s 
fiscal year if the governing body of Party does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by 
Party’s budget for the fiscal year in question.  Party may effect such termination by giving other 
the other Party written notice of termination at the end of its then-current fiscal year. 

10.11 Non-Waiver.  A Party’s failure or delay to exercise a right or remedy does 
not constitute a waiver of the right or remedy.  An exercise of a right or remedy under this 
Agreement does not preclude the exercise of another right or remedy.  Rights and remedies under 
this Agreement are cumulative and are not exclusive of other rights or remedies provided by law. 
 

10.12 Paragraph Headings.  The various paragraph headings are inserted for 
convenience of reference only, and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement 
or any section thereof. 
 

10.13 Severability.  The Parties agree that in the event any provision of this 
Agreement is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction that part of the Agreement is 
severable and the decree shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement. The remainder of the 
Agreement shall be and continue in full force and effect. 

 
10.14 Open Meetings Act.  The Parties hereby represent and affirm that this 

Agreement was adopted in an open meeting held in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act (Tex. Gov. Code, Ch. 551), as amended.  

 
10.15 Right to Audit.  Both Parties agree that the other Party or its duly authorized 

representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, 
papers and records of the other Party which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed 
under this Agreement by such other Party for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcriptions.  The Parties agree that the other Party shall have access during normal 
working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space 
in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section.  The Party performing 
the audit shall give the other Party reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 

  
10.16 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts 

which, when taken together, shall be considered as one original. 
   

10.17 Effective Date.  This Agreement is made to be effective on the latest date 
accompanying the signatures below. 
  



6 

APPROVED by the Williamson County and Cities Health District, in its 
meeting held on the _____ day of ________________, 20_____, and executed by its 
authorized representative. 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT 

By:   

Printed Name:  _______________________ 

Date Signed:   ________________________ 

APPROVED by the Commissioners Court of Williamson County in its meeting 
held on the _____ day of      , 20_____, and executed by its 
authorized representative. 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY 

By: _________________________________ 
Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge 

Date Signed:  ___________________ 

31st March 20

Derrick L. Neal

October 1, 2020



 7 

EXHIBIT A – Scope of Work Items for County Community Health Paramedic 
Personnel (Incorporated herein for all purposes) 

 
Community Health Paramedic (CHP) personnel will assist WCCHD with completing the 
following NACCHO grant deliverables: 
 
Baseline: 
 
“Task 3: Coordination and implementation of outreach and response activities including 
educating facilities regarding reporting requirements and conducting Infection Control 
Assessment and Response (ICAR) assessments with high-risk facilities. 
 

3.3.   Develop a prioritized list of facilities to target for outreach and response 
activities 
3.4.    Complete and track at least 40 outreach and response activities including 
ICAR assessments (via telephone, video chat, or in-person)” 

 
Supplemental: 
 
“Task A: Provision of additional support to high-risk facilities requiring further education 
or assistance 
 

A. 1.  Documentation of participation in at least 10 of the calls or visits with high-
risk facilities who have completed an ICAR (conducted by the applicant or by the 
state healthcare associated infection (HAI) program or other entity) to provide 
additional education or assistance to address gaps identified through the 
assessment.  

 
 
Task B: Develop materials (checklists, toolkits, educational resources, trainings, 
handouts, signs, etc.) to support local health department (LHD) implementation of federal 
guidance related to monitoring and responding to HAIs and emerging threats including 
COVID-19 in high-risk facilities” 
 

B. 1.    Development of at least 6 materials including: 
• One modified ICAR tool 
• One survey tool to collect census, personal protective equipment (PPE) 

needs 
• One ICAR training presentation 
• One long term care facility cluster process 
• Two other resources in response to identified needs." 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 52.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Investigative Statement Analysis training for Sheriff's Office
Submitted For: Robert Chody  Submitted By: Starla Hall, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to authorize Williamson County to enter into a
contract with Public Agency Training Council (PATC) to host the Investigative Statement
Analysis training for the Sheriff's Office. (Funds will be provided by the Cold Case Task Force
and Coalition grant previously awarded by the Criminal Justice Division Criminal Justice
Program).

Background
Williamson County Sheriff's Office is seeking approval for Williamson County to enter into a
contract with Public Agency Training Council to host the 2 1/2 day Investigative Statement
Analysis training. The funder has approved this training and it will be paid in full by grant funds.
The Williamson County Sheriff's Office was approved to accept this grant on October 15, 2019
by the Commissioners Court.

Staff recommends the following action: Approve Williamson County to enter into this contract
and approve appropriate County department personnel to complete documentation relevant to
the implementation of the grant.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Cold Case Training Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/01/2020 02:36 PM
Sheriff (Originator) Brenda Staples 10/01/2020 02:45 PM
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/01/2020 03:22 PM
Sheriff (Originator) Brenda Staples 10/05/2020 03:34 PM
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/05/2020 03:38 PM
Sheriff (Originator) Brenda Staples 10/05/2020 04:54 PM
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 10/05/2020 05:00 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/06/2020 08:42 AM
Form Started By: Starla Hall Started On: 10/01/2020 10:05 AM



Final Approval Date: 10/06/2020 



 

PATC ® 2016 

 

Public Agency Training Council 
2230 Stafford Rd., STE 115, PMB 379 

Plainfield, Indiana 46168 
1-800-365-0119 ⚫ www.patc.com ⚫ E-mail: scoomer@patc.com 

AGENCY AGREEMENT  
 

This Agreement by and between the Williamson County Sheriff’s Office “Agency”, Georgetown, 

Texas, acting by and through Williamson County Commissioners Court and Aegean, LLC d/b/a Public 
Agency Training Council (“PATC”), Indianapolis, IN. 

I. PATC agrees to provide a two and a half day (20 hour) Training Module “Investigative Statement 

Analysis” on November 16, 17, and 18, 2020 in Georgetown, Texas.  

II. Location of Training:  

TBT 

III. It is Agency’s responsibility to contact 

PATC with any changes. 

Please Initial:          

 
IV. The fee for service is inclusive of: 

A. Instructor Fees- To include travel and housing 

B. Certificate of Completion 

V. Williamson County agrees to: 

A. Pay a Fee of $8,500.00 

B. Remittance must be made payable and mailed to: 

Public Agency Training Council 
2230 Stafford Rd., STE 115, PMB 379 

Plainfield, IN 16168 

Federal ID: 47-4078912 

This box must be initialed to verify the reading and understanding of payment process   

 

C. Training fees are for up to 50 attendees: With a maximum of sixty [60] attendees; a fee of 
$100.00 will be assessed for each attendee over fifty [50] 

D. Fee for service and terms of agreement valid ten days from receipt of 

agreement 

This box must be initialed to verify the reading and understanding of the assessment fees  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

http://www.patc.com/
mailto:E-mail:%20scoomer@patc.com


 

PATC ® 2016 

 

Public Agency Training Council 
2230 Stafford Rd., STE 115, PMB 379 

Plainfield, Indiana 46168 
1-800-365-0119 ⚫ www.patc.com ⚫ E-mail: scoomer@patc.com 

AGENCY AGREEMENT (continued) 
  

VI. Any modification to this Agreement will be made in writing with the same formality as this 
Agreement. 

VI. Either party may cancel this agreement by written notice within 30 days of scheduled start date 

of training. 

VII. This is the entire Agreement by and between the parties and no other representations or promises 

have been made to either party as an inducement to enter into this agreement.  

VIII. Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by 

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day 

after the later of (1) the date Customer receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the 
performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County 

Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments 

shall be paid by Customer in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More 
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the ra te in effect on 

September 1 of Customer’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect 

on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published 
in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on 

a Saturday or Sunday. 

IX. Each party represents and warrants to each other that the signators executing this agreement is an 

authorized Representative of the party executing the same and is cloaked with the authority to 

bind Williamson County and PATC, as the case may be, to this contractual obligation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: the parties here unto set their hands and seals on the date indicated.  

 

Aegean, LLC d/b/a 
Public Agency Training Council 

 

Mark Waterfill      

By:     Mark Waterfill, President 

Date:  October 1, 2020 

Williamson County Sheriff’s Office, Acting by and through the Williamson County Commissioners Court 

      
By:     Judge Bill Gravell, Jr. 

Title:  County Judge 
Date:   

 

 

Please return one copy to: 

Public Agency Training Council, 2230 Stafford Rd., STE 115, PMB 379 

Plainfield, Indiana 46168 

800-365-0119 

http://www.patc.com/
mailto:E-mail:%20scoomer@patc.com


   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 53.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement with Celebration Church for County Sheriff
Submitted For: Robert Chody  Submitted By: Starla Hall, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding approval and receipt of Vehicle
Reimbursement Agreement regarding off duty contracting of County Sheriff Deputies with
Celebration Church to be effective October 20, 2020. (Traffic control and security during various
church services).

Background
This is the annual renewal agreement that will give permission for Celebration Church to
contract County Sheriff Deputies in a private capacity and the County to invoice them for
deputies' vehicle usage. This agreement will begin on October 20, 2020 and will terminate on
September 30, 2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Celebration Church 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/13/2020 08:43 AM
Form Started By: Starla Hall Started On: 10/13/2020 06:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/13/2020 











   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 54.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Approval of SO Fuel Blanket
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order for fuel to
Fuelman in the amount of $650,000 pursuant to Omnia International Contract #R161501.

Background
Approval of this blanket purchase order will support the operations of the Williamson County
Sheriff's Office.  Blanket is for fuel for the FY21 fiscal year from October 1st, 2020 to September
30th, 2021.  There is no attachment for this purchase as it is a blanket PO.  This expenditure
will be charged to 01.0100.0560.003301.  Department contact is Chief Tim Ryle.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:09 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:45 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/12/2020 04:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 55.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Sheriff's Office Vehicles Purchase
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of seventeen (17)
2020 Chevrolet Tahoes with upfitting from Holiday Chevrolet in the amount of $876,670
pursuant to Tarrant County Cooperative Contract #'s 2019-014 for the vehicles and 2019-181
for the upfitting.

Background
Approval of this purchase will support the operations of the Williamson County Sheriff's Office. 
These units will be replacements.  The three quotes are attached that detail the different types
of vehicles and the upfitting.  Ten (10) will be patrol units to replace SB1430, SB1516, SB1520,
SB1521, SB1631, SB1638, SB1640, SB1642, SB1644, and SB1645. Six (6) will be slick top
patrol units to replace SA1557, SB1445, SB1575, SB1576, SB1577, and SB1305. One (1) K9
unit will replace SB1727. This expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0560.005700. 
Department contact is Chief Tim Ryle.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Patrol Quote 
Slick Top Patrol Quote 
K9 Unit Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:38 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/14/2020 11:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1 RWD Police Pursuit Vehicle with EcoTec3
5.3-liter, Dual Batteries, Heavy Duty Locking Differential, OnStar with
Bluetooth Connectivity, Vinyl Rear Seat & Front Recovery Tow Hooks.
(No Spotlight) 

(Purchased Through Holiday Chevrolet on the Tarrant County
Cooperative Contract #  2019-014).

1 30,644.00 30,644.00

10 - Lightbar Patrol Units

GBA - Color of Vehicle - Black
5T5 - Rear Seat 
V76 - Recovery Hooks

Vin #'s

Vehicle is Purchased Through Holiday Chevrolet (Johnson – Grayson
Automotive) - Make Payment to Holiday Chevrolet

Customer PO #

Page 1

PR #124166

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Vehicle titles should be in the name & address of:
Williamson County 
Attn: Hillary McCoy
710 S. Main St., Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78626

For Payment Email Invoice only to:

SO-AP@wilco.org

Williamson County
Attn: Peggy Braun
508 S. Rock St.
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-1100

Per Micah on 06/18/19

Ship paperwork to:
Kevin Teller - Fleet Director
c/o Williamson Co TX SO
3151 SE Inner Loop-Suite B
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-3368

Williamson Co TX SO - WO #  - Work Order

Tech Note: The Lighting Program was supplied to Defender Supply by
Marc Courville @ Federal Signal & Approved by Williamson County -
This program is the only Program that can be used & must be used by
all techs on all units. Light Sequence is Red/Red/Blue/Blue - Unsynced

No Paint or Graphics on these Units.

Emergency Equipment is Purchased Through Defender Supply using
The Tarrant County Cooperative Contract # 2019-181

Extra Ignition Key, Tahoe 2 45.00 90.00
Key FOB, 2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1 2 55.00 110.00

Unity Driver Side Halogen Spotlight, Spotlight Shaft, Handle &
Mounting Bracket for a 2015+ Tahoe (LED Replacement Bulb Sold
Separately).

1 260.00 260.00

Page 2

mjohnson
Highlight



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Unity passenger side halogen spotlight, shaft, handle and mount for a
2015+ Tahoe (LED replacement bulb sold separately)

1 523.00 523.00

Federal Signal PAR46 6-inch Unity LED Spot Lamp Replacement Blub 2 171.255 342.51

Federal Signal 51" light bar for Williamson Co. TX Sheriff's Office and
hook kit

1 1,981.20 1,981.20

Valor light bar hook kit for a 2015+ Tahoe 1 34.98 34.98
Federal Signal Pathfinder siren controller w/ remote head 1 770.00 770.00
Federal Signal 25 foot OBDII interface cable 1 120.00 120.00
Federal Signal 24 Channel Expansion Module for Pathfinder
Siren/Light Controller

1 159.95 159.95

Federal Signal DynaMax 100W Speaker 1 99.00 99.00
Federal Signal ES100 Speaker Bracket, Universal Bail 1 15.00 15.00
Federal Signal Pair of Rumbler Woofers 1 292.50 292.50

Federal Signal Rumbler Mounting Brackets for a 2015+ Chevrolet
Tahoe 9C1

1 27.50 27.50

Federal Signal Headlight/Taillight Flasher for 2015+ Chevrolet Tahoe
9C1

1 80.00 80.00

Federal Signal PBX Series Push Bumper for 2015+ Chevy Tahoe 9C1 1 370.55 370.55
Federal Signal - PBX Series Pit  Bar for Push Bumper for a 2015+
Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1

1 354.14 354.14

Federal Signal - PBX Series Push Bumper Wing Wrap for a 2015+
Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1

1 189.95 189.95

Federal Signal - PBX Series Push Bumper Four-Light top-channel for
Chevy Tahoe 9C1 & Ford F-150 bumpers, use with MPS600U or
MPS620U lights

1 27.33 27.33

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Red/White - Mounted on Top Rail of Push Bumper & White
Lights to Function as Alley Lights too.

2 90.015 180.03

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Blue/White - Mounted on Top Rail of Push Bumper & White
Lights to Function as Alley Lights too.

2 90.015 180.03

Federal Signal - Dual Color and with 6 LEDs Corner Lights with In-Line
Flasher in Red/Blue - Mounted on Front Corners of Front Bumper - See
Past Build Pictures on WO # 18221

2 58.75 117.50

Page 3



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Federal Signal Micropulse Ultra 24 LED lighthead Dual Color Surface
Mount Light in Red/Blue - Mounted on Each Side of the Rear License
Plate to Body of Vehicle - Vertical - Up & Down

2 106.185 212.37

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Red/White - Mounted on Running Boards (Four per Side -
Front to Back is RW/BW/RW/BW) & White Lights to Function as Alley
Lights when Activated

4 90.0175 360.07

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Blue/White - Mounted on Running Boards (Four per Side -
Front to Back is RW/BW/RW/BW) & White Lights to Function as Alley
Lights when Activate

4 90.0175 360.07

Federal Signal Kit of four 5-degree rubber Mounting Wedges for use
with MPS600U lights

2 17.95 35.90

Federal Signal XStream Interior Mount Warning Light, Dual Head
model with wire lead, Tri-Color-Blue/Red/White - Mounted in Rear Side
Glass – Programmed to do White Alley Lights when Activated

2 203.50 407.00

Federal Signal MicroPulse Ultra 620, Dual Color Surface Mount LED
Lights in Red/Blue with Clear Lens, Intended to be Flashed with the
Pathfinder Siren Controller & has Dimming Capability  - Mounted on
Bottom of Liftgate

2 84.02 168.04

Jotto Space Creator Partition for a 2015+ Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1 1 551.00 551.00
Jotto Tahoe 15+ HSEP - 2P (VP9 BDRH Only) 1 80.00 80.00

Setina Dual T-RAIL Style Mount 2, Universal XL - Weapon Rack with
Handcuff Key Compatible Override with Maximum Adjustability and
Versatility - Mounted on Prisoner Partition

1 325.00 325.00

Pro-Gard Charcoal Grey ABS Standard Straight Back Transport Seat
with Wire Mesh Screen and Outboard Seat Belts for 2015+ Chevrolet
Tahoe

1 1,124.00 1,124.00

Go Industries Window Barriers for Chevy Tahoe 2015+ 1 161.00 161.00
Tech: Please Disable Rear Door Handles

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White  - (1) One Mounted over Rear Driver
Side Seat with On/Off Switch on "C" Pillar & (1) One mounted over
Passenger Rear Seat with On/Off Switch on "C" Pillar.

2 45.00 90.00

Havis Console, 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe PPV 1 395.78 395.78

Page 4



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Havis Cup Holder 1 28.57 28.57
Havis Arm Rest - Side Mount 1 48.35 48.35
Havis 8.5" Heavy Duty Telescoping Pole with Side Mount & Short
Handle

1 118.44 118.44

Havis 11" Slide Out Locking Swing Arm with Low Profile Motion Device
Adapter

1 220.68 220.68

Havis Docking Station with Dual Pass-Through Antenna connection for
Panasonic Toughbook 33, 2-in-1 Laptop with Power Supply

1 956.54 956.54

Havis 1/2" Console Filler Plate 1 9.00 9.00
Havis 1" Console Filler Plate 1 12.00 12.00
Havis 3 in. Console Filler Plate 1 10.30 10.30
Havis 4" Console Filler Plate 1 10.00 10.00
Havis 1-Piece Console Equipment Mounting Bracket, 4" Mounting
Space, Fits Federal Signal Smart Siren SSP3000

1 0.00 0.00

Havis 2.5" Console Equipment Bracket for 1-Piece Motorola XTL-1500 1 0.00 0.00
Havis Console Equipment Bracket for Panasonic Arbitrator -
ARB-WJ-VR30

1 0.00 0.00

Havis Faceplate 1-Piece Equipment Mounting Bracket, 3.5" Mounting
Space, Fits Misc. Carson SC-409 # HV-C-EB35-SC4-1P - Customer
wants to modify the 2 flashlight chargers to be mounted inside the
console towards the rear. See customer supplied pics where they mock
fitted the flashlight chargers inside. You can also frame the chargers in
this bracket.

1 24.95 24.95

Streamlight Sl-20L Nimh Flashlight - Mounted inside the console
towards the rear. See Customer Supplied Pictures.

1 125.00 125.00

Streamlight Stinger DS LED - 12V DC Steady Charge - Mounted inside
the console towards the rear. See Customer Supplied Pictures.

1 98.09 98.09

3 Additional 12Volt DC Heavy Duty Electrical Power Socket w/moisture
cover - Mounted on Right Side of Console

3 6.00 18.00

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White  - Mounted over Console with On/Off
switch

1 45.00 45.00

Page 5



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Make & Model of Customer Supplied Police Radio - Motorola
APX7500/DB/Dash Mount O5 Control head - Customer to Install,
Please Pre-Wire for One Piece Radios
Does the Customer Supplied Police Radio need to be “Hot”, Powered
all the time or on Ignition - On Ignition
Is Customer Supplied Police Radio a One or Two Piece Unit - One
Piece 
What is the Frequency of Customer Supplied Police Radio - 800Mhz &
VHF

WilCo will install the radios in all of our units in house.  Defender only
needs to install the antennas, radio speakers, battery lead wire, and
ignition lead wire to the console. Pre-Wire to Console for Radio Power,
Ground & Roof Antenna.

Motorola 13-Watt Police Radio Speaker with Mounting Bracket -
Mounted inside Console to the backside of the Console Speaker Grill
on Driver's Side.

1 44.00 44.00

Two Way 800 MHZ Radio Antenna & Coax Cable - Roof Mount 1 40.00 40.00

Two Way VHF Radio Antenna & Coax Cable 1 30.00 30.00

Page 6



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Tahoe Roof Antenna Placement

800 MhZ Antenna – Roof mounted between B-C pillars
VHF Antenna -- Roof mounted between B-C pillars
Bluetooth Antenna -- roof mounted on pass. side between A-B pillars
Panasonic Arbitrator Antenna - Mounted between the A-B pillars. 
Multi Purpose GPS Cradlepoint Antenna - Mount between the C-D
pillars.

Note - Cradle Point Mounting Placement:

On Units that have a prisoner partition, the Cradle Point will be
Mounted on the Prisoner Partition right behind the Front Passenger
Seat. 

On Units that do not have a prisoner partition, on the Cradle Point run
cabling & roof antenna leads under the Front Passenger Seat leaving 3
to 4 feet of service lead in the wires please. 

CAT 6 Cables go in these locations:
Blue Cable - CP to Dock
White Cable- VPU (PC PORT) to Dock
Red Cable - CP to VPU (LAN PORT)

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White - Mounted on Rear Liftgate with
On/Off Switch

2 45.00 90.00

Defender Supply Chevrolet Tahoe Premium Single Drawer Storage
Box -.Measures 20” H x 47” W x 30” D.

1 1,895.00 1,895.00

Window Tint - For Two Front Windows - 20.0% Tint Please 1 89.95 89.95

Wash and Prepare Vehicle for Delivery to Customer 1 100.00 100.00

Dealer Prep 1 130.00 130.00

Misc. Shop Supplies 1 30.00 30.00

Shipping of Above Emergency Parts for Upfit 1 140.00 140.00

Defender Supply Wiring Harness, Power Distribution & Battery
Management System

1 556.78 556.78

Page 7



Date 8/31/2020

Estimate # 28740

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 10

Total Vehicle Order Cost $512,550.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Installation of Above Emergency Equipment and Customer Supplied:

1.) Panasonic Arbitrator 360 video system - Tech: Please see the
Trigger Mapping Doc loaded in Quick Books. Trigger Position # 1 
2.) CAT 6 Cables - Red Cable, Blue Cable & White Cable 
3.) Power & Ground Cables for Police Radios

Tech Note: The Lighting Program was supplied to Defender Supply by
Marc Courville @ Federal Signal & Approved by Williamson County -
This program is the only Program that can be used & must be used by
all techs on all units.

Tech: Please disable rear door handles & used Loc-tite on all Brush
Guard Bolts

Customer will install their own radio, please run Power, Ground &
Antenna Wiring to Console

For Customer Supplied Parts, Tech Support or Panasonic Camera
Assistance contact:

Paul Best
Public Safety  Systems Administrator
Williamson County ITS
Office – (512) 943-1481
Fax – (512) 943-1474
Paul.Best@wilco.org

No Vehicle Paint or Graphics - Customer is doing their own Graphics.

48 99.89479 4,794.95

Delivery to Department 1 350.00 350.00

Deliver Vehicles to:
Fleet Maintenance
3151 SE Inner Loop-Suite B
508 South Rock Street
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-3368

Call 30 minutes before arrival.

Page 8

_____________________________________

$51,255.00



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1 RWD Police Pursuit Vehicle with EcoTec3
5.3-liter, Dual Batteries, Heavy Duty Locking Differential, OnStar with
Bluetooth Connectivity, Vinyl Rear Seat & Front Recovery Tow Hooks.
(No Spotlight) 

(Purchased Through Holiday Chevrolet on the Tarrant County
Cooperative Contract #  2019-014).

1 30,644.00 30,644.00

6 - Slick Top Patrol Units

GBA - Color of Vehicle - Black
5T5 - Rear Seat 
V76 - Recovery Hooks

Vin #'s

Vehicle is Purchased Through Holiday Chevrolet (Johnson – Grayson
Automotive) - Make Payment to Holiday Chevrolet

Customer PO #

Page 1

PR #124164

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Vehicle titles should be in the name & address of:
Williamson County 
Attn: Hillary McCoy
710 S. Main St., Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78626

For Payment Email Invoice only to:

SO-AP@wilco.org

Williamson County
Attn: Peggy Braun
508 S. Rock St.
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-1100

Per Micah on 06/18/19

Ship paperwork to:
Kevin Teller - Fleet Director
c/o Williamson Co TX SO
3151 SE Inner Loop-Suite B
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-3368

Williamson Co TX SO - WO #  - Work Order

Tech Note: The Lighting Program was supplied to Defender Supply by
Marc Courville @ Federal Signal & Approved by Williamson County -
This program is the only Program that can be used & must be used by
all techs on all units. Light Sequence is Red/Red/Blue/Blue - Unsynced

No Paint or Graphics on these Units.

Emergency Equipment is Purchased Through Defender Supply using
The Tarrant County Cooperative Contract # 2019-181

Extra Ignition Key, Tahoe 2 45.00 90.00
Key FOB, 2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1 2 55.00 110.00

Unity Driver Side Halogen Spotlight, Spotlight Shaft, Handle &
Mounting Bracket for a 2015+ Tahoe (LED Replacement Bulb Sold
Separately).

1 260.00 260.00

Page 2

mjohnson
Highlight



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Unity passenger side halogen spotlight, shaft, handle and mount for a
2015+ Tahoe (LED replacement bulb sold separately)

1 523.00 523.00

Federal Signal PAR46 6-inch Unity LED Spot Lamp Replacement Blub 2 171.255 342.51

Federal Signal Spectralux ILS Low Profile Off-Axis Style Interior Mount
LED Warning System with Red/White LED Reflectors Driver Side and
Blue/White LED Reflectors Passenger Side for the 2015 – 2020
Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1 & SSV

899.95 899.95

Federal Signal Pathfinder siren controller w/ remote head 1 770.00 770.00
Federal Signal 25 foot OBDII interface cable 1 120.00 120.00
Federal Signal 24 Channel Expansion Module for Pathfinder
Siren/Light Controller

1 159.95 159.95

Federal Signal DynaMax 100W Speaker 1 99.00 99.00
Federal Signal ES100 Speaker Bracket, Universal Bail 1 15.00 15.00
Federal Signal Pair of Rumbler Woofers 1 292.50 292.50

Federal Signal Rumbler Mounting Brackets for a 2015+ Chevrolet
Tahoe 9C1

1 27.50 27.50

Federal Signal Headlight/Taillight Flasher for 2015+ Chevrolet Tahoe
9C1

1 80.00 80.00

Federal Signal PBX Series Push Bumper for 2015+ Chevy Tahoe 9C1 1 370.55 370.55
Federal Signal - PBX Series Push Bumper Wing Wrap for a 2015+
Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1

1 189.95 189.95

Federal Signal - PBX Series Push Bumper Four-Light top-channel for
Chevy Tahoe 9C1 & Ford F-150 bumpers, use with MPS600U or
MPS620U lights

1 27.33 27.33

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Red/White - Mounted on Top Rail of Push Bumper & White
Lights to Function as Alley Lights too.

2 90.015 180.03

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Blue/White - Mounted on Top Rail of Push Bumper & White
Lights to Function as Alley Lights too.

2 90.015 180.03

Federal Signal - Dual Color and with 6 LEDs Corner Lights with In-Line
Flasher in Red/Blue - Mounted on Front Corners of Front Bumper - See
Past Build Pictures on WO # 18221

2 58.75 117.50

Page 3



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Federal Signal Micropulse Ultra 24 LED lighthead Dual Color Surface
Mount Light in Red/Blue - Mounted on Each Side of the Rear License
Plate to Body of Vehicle - Vertical - Up & Down

2 106.185 212.37

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Red/White - Mounted on Running Boards (Four per Side -
Front to Back is RW/BW/RW/BW) & White Lights to Function as Alley
Lights when Activated

4 90.0175 360.07

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Blue/White - Mounted on Running Boards (Four per Side -
Front to Back is RW/BW/RW/BW) & White Lights to Function as Alley
Lights when Activate

4 90.0175 360.07

Federal Signal Kit of four 5-degree rubber Mounting Wedges for use
with MPS600U lights

2 17.95 35.90

Federal Signal XStream Interior Mount Warning Light, Dual Head
model with wire lead, Tri-Color-Blue/Red/White - Mounted in Rear Side
Glass – Programmed to do White Alley Lights when Activated

2 203.50 407.00

Federal Signal MicroPulse Ultra 620, Dual Color Surface Mount LED
Lights in Red/Blue with Clear Lens, Intended to be Flashed with the
Pathfinder Siren Controller & has Dimming Capability  - Mounted on
Bottom of Liftgate

2 84.02 168.04

Jotto Space Creator Partition for a 2015+ Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1 1 551.00 551.00
Jotto Tahoe 15+ HSEP - 2P (VP9 BDRH Only) 1 80.00 80.00

Setina Dual T-RAIL Style Mount 2, Universal XL - Weapon Rack with
Handcuff Key Compatible Override with Maximum Adjustability and
Versatility - Mounted on Prisoner Partition

1 325.00 325.00

Pro-Gard Charcoal Grey ABS Standard Straight Back Transport Seat
with Wire Mesh Screen and Outboard Seat Belts for 2015+ Chevrolet
Tahoe

1 1,124.00 1,124.00

Go Industries Window Barriers for Chevy Tahoe 2015+ 1 161.00 161.00
Tech: Please Disable Rear Door Handles

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White  - (1) One Mounted over Rear Driver
Side Seat with On/Off Switch on "C" Pillar & (1) One mounted over
Passenger Rear Seat with On/Off Switch on "C" Pillar.

2 45.00 90.00

Havis Console, 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe PPV 1 395.78 395.78

Page 4



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Havis Cup Holder 1 28.57 28.57
Havis Arm Rest - Side Mount 1 48.35 48.35
Havis 8.5" Heavy Duty Telescoping Pole with Side Mount & Short
Handle

1 118.44 118.44

Havis 11" Slide Out Locking Swing Arm with Low Profile Motion Device
Adapter

1 220.68 220.68

Havis Docking Station with Dual Pass-Through Antenna connection for
Panasonic Toughbook 33, 2-in-1 Laptop with Power Supply

1 956.54 956.54

Havis 1/2" Console Filler Plate 1 9.00 9.00
Havis 1" Console Filler Plate 1 12.00 12.00
Havis 3 in. Console Filler Plate 1 10.30 10.30
Havis 4" Console Filler Plate 1 10.00 10.00
Havis 1-Piece Console Equipment Mounting Bracket, 4" Mounting
Space, Fits Federal Signal Smart Siren SSP3000

1 0.00 0.00

Havis 2.5" Console Equipment Bracket for 1-Piece Motorola XTL-1500 1 0.00 0.00
Havis Console Equipment Bracket for Panasonic Arbitrator -
ARB-WJ-VR30

1 0.00 0.00

Havis Faceplate 1-Piece Equipment Mounting Bracket, 3.5" Mounting
Space, Fits Misc. Carson SC-409 # HV-C-EB35-SC4-1P - Customer
wants to modify the 2 flashlight chargers to be mounted inside the
console towards the rear. See customer supplied pics where they mock
fitted the flashlight chargers inside. You can also frame the chargers in
this bracket.

1 24.95 24.95

Streamlight Sl-20L Nimh Flashlight - Mounted inside the console
towards the rear. See Customer Supplied Pictures.

1 125.00 125.00

Streamlight Stinger DS LED - 12V DC Steady Charge - Mounted inside
the console towards the rear. See Customer Supplied Pictures.

1 98.09 98.09

3 Additional 12Volt DC Heavy Duty Electrical Power Socket w/moisture
cover - Mounted on Right Side of Console

3 6.00 18.00

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White  - Mounted over Console with On/Off
switch

1 45.00 45.00

Page 5



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Make & Model of Customer Supplied Police Radio - Motorola
APX7500/DB/Dash Mount O5 Control head - Customer to Install,
Please Pre-Wire for One Piece Radios
Does the Customer Supplied Police Radio need to be “Hot”, Powered
all the time or on Ignition - On Ignition
Is Customer Supplied Police Radio a One or Two Piece Unit - One
Piece 
What is the Frequency of Customer Supplied Police Radio - 800Mhz &
VHF

WilCo will install the radios in all of our units in house.  Defender only
needs to install the antennas, radio speakers, battery lead wire, and
ignition lead wire to the console. Pre-Wire to Console for Radio Power,
Ground & Roof Antenna.

Motorola 13-Watt Police Radio Speaker with Mounting Bracket -
Mounted inside Console to the backside of the Console Speaker Grill
on Driver's Side.

1 44.00 44.00

Two Way 800 MHZ Radio Antenna & Coax Cable - Roof Mount 1 40.00 40.00

Two Way VHF Radio Antenna & Coax Cable 1 30.00 30.00

Page 6



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Tahoe Roof Antenna Placement

800 MhZ Antenna – Roof mounted between B-C pillars
VHF Antenna -- Roof mounted between B-C pillars
Bluetooth Antenna -- roof mounted on pass. side between A-B pillars
Panasonic Arbitrator Antenna - Mounted between the A-B pillars. 
Multi Purpose GPS Cradlepoint Antenna - Mount between the C-D
pillars.

Note - Cradle Point Mounting Placement:

On Units that have a prisoner partition, the Cradle Point will be
Mounted on the Prisoner Partition right behind the Front Passenger
Seat. 

On Units that do not have a prisoner partition, on the Cradle Point run
cabling & roof antenna leads under the Front Passenger Seat leaving 3
to 4 feet of service lead in the wires please. 

CAT 6 Cables go in these locations:
Blue Cable - CP to Dock
White Cable- VPU (PC PORT) to Dock
Red Cable - CP to VPU (LAN PORT)

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White - Mounted on Rear Liftgate with
On/Off Switch

2 45.00 90.00

Defender Supply Chevrolet Tahoe Premium Single Drawer Storage
Box -.Measures 20” H x 47” W x 30” D.

1 1,895.00 1,895.00

Window Tint - For Two Front Windows - 20.0% Tint Please 1 89.95 89.95

Wash and Prepare Vehicle for Delivery to Customer 1 100.00 100.00

Dealer Prep 1 130.00 130.00

Misc. Shop Supplies 1 30.00 30.00

Shipping of Above Emergency Parts for Upfit 1 140.00 140.00

Defender Supply Wiring Harness, Power Distribution & Battery
Management System

1 557.15 557.15

Page 7



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28935

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 6

Total Vehicle Order Cost $298,710.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Installation of Above Emergency Equipment and Customer Supplied:

1.) Panasonic Arbitrator 360 video system - Tech: Please see the
Trigger Mapping Doc loaded in Quick Books. Trigger Position # 1 
2.) CAT 6 Cables - Red Cable, Blue Cable & White Cable 
3.) Power & Ground Cables for Police Radios

Tech Note: The Lighting Program was supplied to Defender Supply by
Marc Courville @ Federal Signal & Approved by Williamson County -
This program is the only Program that can be used & must be used by
all techs on all units.

Tech: Please disable rear door handles & used Loc-tite on all Brush
Guard Bolts

Customer will install their own radio, please run Power, Ground &
Antenna Wiring to Console

For Customer Supplied Parts, Tech Support or Panasonic Camera
Assistance contact:

Paul Best
Public Safety  Systems Administrator
Williamson County ITS
Office – (512) 943-1481
Fax – (512) 943-1474
Paul.Best@wilco.org

No Vehicle Paint or Graphics - Customer is doing their own Graphics.

48 99.89479 4,794.95

Delivery to Department 1 350.00 350.00

Deliver Vehicles to:
Fleet Maintenance
3151 SE Inner Loop-Suite B
508 South Rock Street
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-3368

Call 30 minutes before arrival.

Page 8

_____________________________________

$49,785.00



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1 RWD Police Pursuit Vehicle with EcoTec3
5.3-liter, Dual Batteries, Heavy Duty Locking Differential, OnStar with
Bluetooth Connectivity, Vinyl Rear Seat & Front Recovery Tow Hooks.
(No Spotlight) 

(Purchased Through Holiday Chevrolet on the Tarrant County
Cooperative Contract #  2019-014).

1 30,644.00 30,644.00

1 - Lightbar K-9 Unit

GBA - Color of Vehicle - Black
5T5 - Rear Seat 
V76 - Recovery Hooks

Vin #'s

Vehicle is Purchased Through Holiday Chevrolet (Johnson – Grayson
Automotive) - Make Payment to Holiday Chevrolet

Customer PO #

Page 1

PR #124167

mjohnson
Highlight

mjohnson
Highlight



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Vehicle titles should be in the name & address of:
Williamson County 
Attn: Hillary McCoy
710 S. Main St., Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78626

For Payment Email Invoice only to:

SO-AP@wilco.org

Williamson County
Attn: Peggy Braun
508 S. Rock St.
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-1100

Per Micah on 06/18/19

Ship paperwork to:
Kevin Teller - Fleet Director
c/o Williamson Co TX SO
3151 SE Inner Loop-Suite B
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-3368

Williamson Co TX SO - WO #  - Work Order

Tech Note: The Lighting Program was supplied to Defender Supply by
Marc Courville @ Federal Signal & Approved by Williamson County -
This program is the only Program that can be used & must be used by
all techs on all units. Light Sequence is Red/Red/Blue/Blue - Unsynced

No Paint or Graphics on these Units.

Emergency Equipment is Purchased Through Defender Supply using
The Tarrant County Cooperative Contract # 2019-181

Extra Ignition Key, Tahoe 2 45.00 90.00
Key FOB, 2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1 2 55.00 110.00

Unity Driver Side Halogen Spotlight, Spotlight Shaft, Handle &
Mounting Bracket for a 2015+ Tahoe (LED Replacement Bulb Sold
Separately).

1 260.00 260.00

Page 2

mjohnson
Highlight



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Unity passenger side halogen spotlight, shaft, handle and mount for a
2015+ Tahoe (LED replacement bulb sold separately)

1 523.00 523.00

Federal Signal PAR46 6-inch Unity LED Spot Lamp Replacement Blub 2 171.255 342.51

Federal Signal 51" light bar for Williamson Co. TX Sheriff's Office and
hook kit

1 1,981.20 1,981.20

Valor light bar hook kit for a 2015+ Tahoe 1 34.98 34.98
Federal Signal Pathfinder siren controller w/ remote head 1 770.00 770.00
Federal Signal 25 foot OBDII interface cable 1 120.00 120.00
Federal Signal 24 Channel Expansion Module for Pathfinder
Siren/Light Controller

1 159.95 159.95

Federal Signal DynaMax 100W Speaker 1 99.00 99.00
Federal Signal ES100 Speaker Bracket, Universal Bail 1 15.00 15.00
Federal Signal Pair of Rumbler Woofers 1 292.50 292.50

Federal Signal Rumbler Mounting Brackets for a 2015+ Chevrolet
Tahoe 9C1

1 27.50 27.50

Federal Signal Headlight/Taillight Flasher for 2015+ Chevrolet Tahoe
9C1

1 80.00 80.00

Federal Signal PBX Series Push Bumper for 2015+ Chevy Tahoe 9C1 1 370.55 370.55
Federal Signal - PBX Series Pit  Bar for Push Bumper for a 2015+
Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1

1 354.14 354.14

Federal Signal - PBX Series Push Bumper Wing Wrap for a 2015+
Chevrolet Tahoe 9C1

1 189.95 189.95

Federal Signal - PBX Series Push Bumper Four-Light top-channel for
Chevy Tahoe 9C1 & Ford F-150 bumpers, use with MPS600U or
MPS620U lights

1 27.33 27.33

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Red/White - Mounted on Top Rail of Push Bumper & White
Lights to Function as Alley Lights too.

2 90.015 180.03

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Blue/White - Mounted on Top Rail of Push Bumper & White
Lights to Function as Alley Lights too.

2 90.015 180.03

Federal Signal - Dual Color and with 6 LEDs Corner Lights with In-Line
Flasher in Red/Blue - Mounted on Front Corners of Front Bumper - See
Past Build Pictures on WO # 18221

2 58.75 117.50

Page 3



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Federal Signal Micropulse Ultra 24 LED lighthead Dual Color Surface
Mount Light in Red/Blue - Mounted on Each Side of the Rear License
Plate to Body of Vehicle - Vertical - Up & Down

2 106.185 212.37

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Red/White - Mounted on Running Boards (Four per Side -
Front to Back is RW/BW/RW/BW) & White Lights to Function as Alley
Lights when Activated

4 90.0175 360.07

Federal Signal Micropulse 620 Ultra Surface Mount - 12LED Lighthead
Dual Color Blue/White - Mounted on Running Boards (Four per Side -
Front to Back is RW/BW/RW/BW) & White Lights to Function as Alley
Lights when Activate

4 90.0175 360.07

Federal Signal Kit of four 5-degree rubber Mounting Wedges for use
with MPS600U lights

2 17.95 35.90

Federal Signal XStream Interior Mount Warning Light, Dual Head
model with wire lead, Tri-Color-Blue/Red/White - Mounted in Rear Side
Glass – Programmed to do White Alley Lights when Activated

2 203.50 407.00

Federal Signal MicroPulse Ultra 620, Dual Color Surface Mount LED
Lights in Red/Blue with Clear Lens, Intended to be Flashed with the
Pathfinder Siren Controller & has Dimming Capability  - Mounted on
Bottom of Liftgate

2 84.02 168.04

Setina Dual T-RAIL Style Mount 2, Universal XL - Weapon Rack with
Handcuff Key Compatible Override with Maximum Adjustability and
Versatility - Mounted on Top of Cargo Box

1 325.00 325.00

Havis K9 Transport BLACK, 2015-2020 Chevrolet Tahoe 1 2,495.00 2,495.00
Havis K9 Transport Water Bowl Option 1 47.04 47.04
Havis K9 Transport & Window Fan & Guard 1 324.07 324.07

K9 Hot-N-Pop® PRO Temperature Alarm & Door Opening System
Includes Horn Activation, Siren Activation, Light Activation,
Dual Window Drop and One Door Pop Remote with Holster.

1 1,392.08 1,392.08

Ace K9 Smoke Detector & Interface Module 1 119.64 119.64
Ace K9 Carbon Monoxide Detector 1 188.10 188.10
Ace K-9 Remote Pager System - Long Range Remote Pager with Dual
Band Antenna.

1 283.15 283.15

Shipping of Parts for Upfit 1 100.00 100.00

Defender Supply Cell Phone Notification for K9 Alarm with 1 Year of
Server Service. Works in Conjunction with K9 Monitoring System.
Includes Installation.

1,400.00

Page 4



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White  - Mounted over K-9 Kennel with
On/Off Switch on Console

1 45.00 45.00

Havis Console, 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe PPV 1 395.78 395.78
Havis Cup Holder 1 28.57 28.57
Havis Arm Rest - Side Mount 1 48.35 48.35
Havis 8.5" Heavy Duty Telescoping Pole with Side Mount & Short
Handle

1 118.44 118.44

Havis 11" Slide Out Locking Swing Arm with Low Profile Motion Device
Adapter

1 220.68 220.68

Havis Docking Station with Dual Pass-Through Antenna connection for
Panasonic Toughbook 33, 2-in-1 Laptop with Power Supply

1 956.54 956.54

Havis 1/2" Console Filler Plate 1 9.00 9.00
Havis 1" Console Filler Plate 1 12.00 12.00
Havis 3 in. Console Filler Plate 1 10.30 10.30
Havis 4" Console Filler Plate 1 10.00 10.00
Havis 1-Piece Console Equipment Mounting Bracket, 4" Mounting
Space, Fits Federal Signal Smart Siren SSP3000

1 0.00 0.00

Havis 2.5" Console Equipment Bracket for 1-Piece Motorola XTL-1500 1 0.00 0.00
Havis Console Equipment Bracket for Panasonic Arbitrator -
ARB-WJ-VR30

1 0.00 0.00

Havis Faceplate 1-Piece Equipment Mounting Bracket, 3.5" Mounting
Space, Fits Misc. Carson SC-409 # HV-C-EB35-SC4-1P - Customer
wants to modify the 2 flashlight chargers to be mounted inside the
console towards the rear. See customer supplied pics where they mock
fitted the flashlight chargers inside. You can also frame the chargers in
this bracket.

1 24.95 24.95

Streamlight Sl-20L Nimh Flashlight - Mounted inside the console
towards the rear. See Customer Supplied Pictures

1 125.00 125.00

Streamlight Stinger DS LED - 12V DC Steady Charge - Mounted inside
the console towards the rear. See Customer Supplied Pictures

1 98.09 98.09

3 Additional 12Volt DC Heavy Duty Electrical Power Socket w/moisture
cover - Mounted on Right Side of Console

3 6.00 18.00

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White  - Mounted over Console with On/Off
switch

1 45.00 45.00

Page 5



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Make & Model of Customer Supplied Police Radio - Motorola
APX7500/DB/Dash Mount O5 Control head - Customer to Install,
Please Pre-Wire for One Piece Radios
Does the Customer Supplied Police Radio need to be “Hot”, Powered
all the time or on Ignition - On Ignition
Is Customer Supplied Police Radio a One or Two Piece Unit - One
Piece 
What is the Frequency of Customer Supplied Police Radio - 800Mhz &
VHF

WilCo will install the radios in all of our units in house.  Defender only
needs to install the antennas, radio speakers, battery lead wire, and
ignition lead wire to the console. Pre-Wire to Console for Radio Power,
Ground & Roof Antenna.

Motorola 13-Watt Police Radio Speaker with Mounting Bracket -
Mounted inside Console to the backside of the Console Speaker Grill
on Driver's Side.

1 44.00 44.00

Two Way 800 MHZ Radio Antenna & Coax Cable - Roof Mount 1 40.00 40.00

Two Way VHF Radio Antenna & Coax Cable 1 30.00 30.00

Page 6



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Tahoe Roof Antenna Placement

800 MhZ Antenna – Roof mounted between B-C pillars
VHF Antenna -- Roof mounted between B-C pillars
Bluetooth Antenna -- roof mounted on pass. side between A-B pillars
Panasonic Arbitrator Antenna - Mounted between the A-B pillars. 
Multi Purpose GPS Cradlepoint Antenna - Mount between the C-D
pillars.

Note - Cradle Point Mounting Placement:

On Units that have a prisoner partition, the Cradle Point will be
Mounted on the Prisoner Partition right behind the Front Passenger
Seat. 

On Units that do not have a prisoner partition, on the Cradle Point run
cabling & roof antenna leads under the Front Passenger Seat leaving 3
to 4 feet of service lead in the wires please. 

CAT 6 Cables go in these locations:
Blue Cable - CP to Dock
White Cable- VPU (PC PORT) to Dock
Red Cable - CP to VPU (LAN PORT)

Federal Signal 3" Round 6 LED Compartment / Dome Light that is
Switchable between Red or White - Mounted on Rear Liftgate with
On/Off Switch

2 45.00 90.00

Defender Supply Chevrolet Tahoe Premium Single Drawer Storage
Box -.Measures 20” H x 47” W x 30” D.

1 1,895.00 1,895.00

Window Tint - For Two Front Windows - DSP-Shipping 1 89.95 89.95

Wash and Prepare Vehicle for Delivery to Customer 1 100.00 100.00

Dealer Prep 1 130.00 130.00

Misc. Shop Supplies 1 30.00 30.00

Shipping of Above Emergency Parts for Upfit 1 140.00 140.00

Defender Supply Wiring Harness, Power Distribution & Battery
Management System

1 558.71 558.71

Page 7



Date 9/24/2020

Estimate # 28933

Bill To

Williamson Co TX SO

Micah Koite

710 S Main Street Ste 301

Georgetown, Tx 78626

512-943-3368

Quantity Ordered 1

Total Vehicle Order Cost $56,500.00

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe RWD 9C1

Vehicle Base Color - Black

SIGNATURE

Vehicle and Emergency Equipment Total

Customer Contact Micah Koite

Customer Phone 512-943-3373

Customer E-mail micah.koite@wilco....

(903) 564-5641

george@defendersupply.com
Estimate

By

George Severe

Final sale amount may be subject to state and local

sales tax.  PLEASE NOTE: Once this estimate has

been approved, either by signature on this form,

written approval referencing the estimate number

or the issuance of purchase order, any changes or

cancellations of parts made by the customer are

subject to a 25% restocking fee.   Any addtional

customer-requested parts/services will be added to

the total amount of the sale.

845 West FM 407
Argyle, TX 76226

Description Location Qty. Cost Total

Installation of Above Emergency Equipment and Customer Supplied:

1.) Panasonic Arbitrator 360 video system - Tech: Please see the
Trigger Mapping Doc loaded in Quick Books. Trigger Position # 1 
2.) CAT 6 Cables - Red Cable, Blue Cable & White Cable 
3.) Power & Ground Cables for Police Radios

Tech Note: The Lighting Program was supplied to Defender Supply by
Marc Courville @ Federal Signal & Approved by Williamson County -
This program is the only Program that can be used & must be used by
all techs on all units.

Tech: Please disable rear door handles & used Loc-tite on all Brush
Guard Bolts

Customer will install their own radio, please run Power, Ground &
Antenna Wiring to Console

For Customer Supplied Parts, Tech Support or Panasonic Camera
Assistance contact:

Paul Best
Public Safety  Systems Administrator
Williamson County ITS
Office – (512) 943-1481
Fax – (512) 943-1474
Paul.Best@wilco.org

No Vehicle Paint or Graphics - Customer is doing their own Graphics.

57 99.12175 5,649.94

Delivery to Department 1 350.00 350.00

Deliver Vehicles to:
Fleet Maintenance
3151 SE Inner Loop-Suite B
508 South Rock Street
Georgetown, TX 78626
512-943-3368

Call 30 minutes before arrival.

Page 8

_____________________________________

$56,500.00



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 56.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Tyler Odyssey Maintenance and Support FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase for annual support and
maintenance for Tyler Technologies Odyssey Judicial and Jail Software in the amount of
$456,237.06 and exempting Tyler Technologies from the competitive bidding or proposal
requirements as established by Section 262.024.(a)(7)(A) of the Texas Local Government
Code, as the sole provider of same.

Background
This software was competitively bid under the Conference of Urban Counties years ago. A
number of public entities were involved in the evaluation process and Tyler Technologies
Odyssey software was chosen to be utilized by various public entities. Tyler Technologies is the
only company to provide maintenance and support for their proprietary and patented software.
Department Contact is Tammy McCulley. Funding source 01.0100.0503.004505 for FY21. No
signature is required for this renewal.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 09:11 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:54 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 08:53 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 57.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Annual Votec Support PO
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a purchase order for
Vemacs, VoteSafe, and BallotBoard annual support/licenses to VOTEC Corporation in the
amount of $114,307.46.

Background
Approval of this purchase order will support the operations of the Williamson County Elections
Department.  VOTEC is the current sole source provider for VEMACS, VoteSafe and
BallotBoard.  Sole source was originally approved by Commissioner's Court on 9/10/2019 and is
valid for a term of 36 months from the date of approval.  Quote for this purchase is attached.  IT
has approved this purchase.  This expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0492.004506. 
Department contact is Chris Davis.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:29 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:46 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/13/2020 02:34 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 58.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Approving Blanket PO - FY21 Internet Service
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing a blanket purchase order for ITS
to Time Warner Cable in the amount of $168,000.00 as per DIR Cooperative Contract
#DIR-TSO-4315.

Background
This is a blanket PO for Annual Renewal of County Wide Internet Service for ITS. Funding
source 01.0100.0503.004210. Funding was approved in FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:31 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:03 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 11:35 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 59.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Approving Blanket PO - Annual Suddenlink Renewal FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order for ITS
for Suddenlink in the amount of $120,000, exempting this purchase from competitive bidding
requirements as per Texas Local Government Code Discretionary Exemption 262.024.(a)(7)(C).

Background
This is a blanket PO for Annual Suddenlink Renewal for ITS. Suddenlink is the only provider in
the area for this utility service. Funding source 01.0100.0503.004210. Funding was approved in
FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:32 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:04 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 11:39 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 60.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Exempt ESRI from the 3 (three) quote requirement, previously exempted as Sole Source
Provider.
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on exempting the quote for support,
maintenance, and licenses in the amount of $7,254.25 from Environmental Systems Research
Institute, INC (ESRI) from competitive bidding as per 262.024 (a)(7) of the Texas Local
Government Code, Discretionary Exemptions and authorize the purchase.

Background
Williamson County Commissioners’ Court on 11.19.2019, Agenda Item 28, exempted ESRI as
a sole source established by Section 262.024 (a) (7) of the Texas Local Government Code
Discretionary Exemptions. This is for the annual support, maintenance, and licensing portion.
This sofware is proprietary and therefore ESRI is the only provider for maintenance and support.
Point of contact is George Strebel and Funding Source for FY2021: 429P/429A and the task is
2.7 operations.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
ESRI Quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:45 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 07:53 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Subject: Renewal Quotation
Date: 09/16/2020

To: George Strebel 
Organization: County of Williamson

Information Technology Dept
Fax #: 512-943-1488    Phone #: 512-943-1474 

From: Barbara Walker
Fax #: 909-307-3083    Phone #: 909-793-2853 Ext. 3936
Email: bwalker@esri.com

Number of pages transmitted Quotation #25982559    
(including this cover sheet): 5 Document Date: 09/16/2020

Please find the attached quotation for your forthcoming term. Keeping
your term current may entitle you to exclusive benefits, and if you choose
to discontinue your coverage, you will become ineligible for these valuable
benefits and services.

If your quote is regarding software maintenance renewal, visit the
following website for details regarding the maintenance program benefits
at your licensing level
http://www. esri.com/apps/products/maintenance/qualifying.cfm

All maintenance fees from the date of discontinuation will be due and
payable if you decide to reactivate your coverage at a later date.

Please note: Certain programs and license types may have varying
benefits. Complimentary User Conference registrations, software support,
and software and data updates are not included in all programs.

Customers who have multiple copies of certain Esri licenses may have the
option of supporting some of their licenses with secondary maintenance.

For information about the terms of use for Esri products as well as
purchase order terms and conditions, please visit
http://www. esri.com/legal/licensing/software-license.html

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact
Customer Service at 888-377-4575 option 5.

Esri Inc
380 New York Street
Redlands CA  92373



Per the terms and conditions in your Esri Enterprise License Agreement, your organization is required to provide
an annual usage report. This report should detail all deployments made under this agreement for your previous
term, and should be provided to Esri as an Excel spreadsheet.

The annual usage report must include actual license counts by product, licensee, and location.

Please return your report via email to ela_usage_reports@esri.com.

Thank you in advance for your prompt attention to this matter.

10 3   148098     300.00     900.00 
ArcGIS Data Interoperability for Desktop Single Use Term License
Start Date:  12/12/2020
End  Date:  12/11/2021

1010 1   148116     300.00     300.00 
ArcGIS Tracking Analyst for Desktop Single Use Term License
Start Date:  12/12/2020
End  Date:  12/11/2021

2010 1   160678   6,000.00   6,000.00 

County of Williamson
Information Technology Dept
301 Se Inner Loop Ste 105
Georgetown TX  78626-8207
Attn: George Strebel

[ANGERERK]

_______________________________________________________________________
Quotation is valid for 90 days from document date.

Any estimated sales and/or use tax has been calculated as of the date of this quotation and is merely provided as a convenience for your
organization's budgetary purposes.  Esri reserves the right to adjust and collect sales and/or use tax at the actual date of invoicing.  If your
organization is tax exempt or pays state taxes directly, then prior to invoicing, your organization must provide Esri with a copy of a current
tax exemption certificate issued by your state's taxing authority for the given jurisdiction.

Esri may charge a fee to cover expenses related to any customer requirement to use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or
invoice program.

Issued By: Barbara Walker Ext: 3936

To expedite your order, please reference your customer number and this quotation number on your purchase order.

Send Purchase Orders To:
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373-8100

Attn: Barbara Walker
Please include the following remittance address
on your Purchase Order:

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
P.O. Box 741076
Los Angeles, CA 90074-1076

Item Qty Material#                 Unit Price Extended Price
_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

Date: 09/16/2020        Quotation Number: 25982559 Contract Number: SMALL GOVT ELA US

380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373
Phone: 909-793-28533936
Fax #: 909-307-3083

Customer Number: 337154
For questions regarding this document, please contact Customer Service at 888-377-4575.

Quotation

_______________________________________________________________________________



ArcGIS GeoEvent Server Up to Four Cores Term License
Start Date:  12/12/2020
End  Date:  12/11/2021

3010 5   167930      10.85      54.25 
ArcGIS Tracker for ArcGIS Enterprise Term License
Start Date:  08/02/2021
End  Date:  12/11/2021

       Item Subtotal     7,254.25 
       Estimated Tax         0.00 

          Total USD     7,254.25 
DUNS/CEC: 06-313-4175  CAGE: 0AMS3

[ANGERERK]

Item Qty Material#                 Unit Price Extended Price
_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

Page 2

Date: 09/16/2020        Quotation Number: 25982559 Contract Number: SMALL GOVT ELA US

380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373
Phone: 909-793-28533936
Fax #: 909-307-3083

Quotation



Renewal Options:

 Online: Renew through My Esri site at https://my.esri.com
                Credit Card
                Purchase Order
                Email Authorization

 Email or Fax: Email Authorization, Purchase Order or signed quote to:
                Fax: 909-307-3083
                Email: service@esri.com

Requests via email or signed quote indicate that you are authorized to obligate funds for your organization and your
organization does not require a purchase order.

If there are any changes required to your quotation please respond to this email and indicate any changes in your invoice
authorization.

If you choose to discontinue your support, you will become ineligible for support benefits and services.  All maintenance fees
from the date of discontinuation will be due and payable if you decide to reactivate your support coverage at a later date.

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific
scope of use document found at http://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/
product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf, and your applicable signed agreement with Esri. If no such agreement covers any
item quoted, then Esri's standard terms and conditions found at
http://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/ma-full/ma-full .pdf apply to your purchase of that item. Federal
government entities and government prime contractors authorized under FAR 51.1 may purchase under the terms of Esri's
GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and conditions found at
http://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental apply to some state and local government purchases. All terms
of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement regarding Esri's offerings.
Acceptance of this quotation is limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different or
additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer, or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by
law, the quotation information is confidential and may not be copied or released other than for the express purpose of
system selection and purchase/license. The information may not be given to outside parties or used for any other purpose
without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin.

In order to expedite processing, please reference the quotation number and any/all applicable Esri contract number(s) (e.g.
MPA, ELA, SmartBuy GSA, BPA) on your ordering document.

[ANGERERK]

Item Qty Material#                 Unit Price Extended Price
_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

Page 3

Date: 09/16/2020        Quotation Number: 25982559 Contract Number: SMALL GOVT ELA US

380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373
Phone: 909-793-28533936
Fax #: 909-307-3083

Quotation



US FEDERAL CUSTOMERS: If you are a federal customer or a contractor purchasing on behalf of a federal customer a
purchase order is required to receive an invoice. Please email the purchase order to service@esri.com

By signing below, you are authorizing Esri to issue a software support invoice in the amount of
USD__________________ plus sales tax, if applicable.

Please check one of the following:

_____ I agree to pay any applicable sales tax.

_____ I am tax exempt. Please contact me if Esri does not have my current exempt information on file.

________________________________________      _________________________
Signature of Authorized Representative         Date

________________________________________      _________________________
Name (Please Print)                            Title

[ANGERERK]

Item Qty Material#                 Unit Price Extended Price
_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

Page 4

Date: 09/16/2020   Quotation No: 25982559    Customer No: 337154    Contract No: SMALL GOVT ELA US

380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373
Phone: 909-793-28533936
Fax #: 909-307-3083

Quotation



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 61.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Kofile Criminal Records Preservation 
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a purchase proposal for criminal
records preservation from Kofile Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $315,876 pursuant to GSA
contract #GS-35F-275AA and authorizing execution of the proposal.

Background
Approval of this purchase proposal will support the operations of the Williamson County County
Clerk's Office.  This will allow for the preservation of 22,418 sheets of letter/legal material as
well as 253 sheets of scrap/postcard items.  Attachment outlines the details of the project.  This
expenditure will be charged to 011.0384.0384.004550.  Department contact is Nancy Rister.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Purchase Proposal 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:48 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:57 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/12/2020 04:21 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



PAGE 1 I 2 WILLIAMSON COUNTY CLERK 

PRESERVATION OF CRIMINAL CASE FILES 

April 1, 2020—revised October 13, 2020 

April 1, 2020—revised October 13, 2020 

 

Honorable Nancy E. Rister 

Williamson County Clerk 

405 Martin Luther King St/PO Box 647 

Georgetown, TX 78626-4901/Jarrell, TX 76537-0647  

  

Dear Hon. Nancy E. Rister, 

 

This proposal addresses the preservation of Williamson County Clerk’s Criminal Case Files. 

This quote is presented by Kofile Technologies, Inc. (Kofile). Recommended preservation 

services for each volume includes conservation treatments, deacidification, mending and 

repair, adhesive removal/reduction, re-housing in acid free folders and acid free boxes in 

case file order.   

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

At Kofile, each project is unique and deserves special attention. Our team provides 

realistic solutions, professional analysis, and innovative archival products to equip 

counties with the resources needed to preserve collections.  

 

Preservation minimizes the chemical and physical deterioration of the page. Its goal is 

to prolong the existence and useful life of the original format. Oftentimes this includes 

preserving and removing the original from public access and creating a security copy. 

Preservation can incorporate any combination of conservation, treatment, stabilization, 

preventative care, digitization, or any maintenance or repair of the existing resource. 

 

PROJECT PRICE QUOTE 
This project is priced according to Kofile’s GSA Schedule 70 Contract No. GS-35F-275AA. 

Please note this contract on the P.O. Pricing is good for 90 days without a signed 

agreement. Pricing is a Good Faith Estimate. Final pricing is determined upon review at the 

Kofile lab. Billing occurs on actual sheet counts and conditions per the applicable pricing, 

not to exceed the P.O. without authorization.  

 

COUNTY  

ACCEPTANCE                                                                             

  Signature/Title of Authorized County Representative                         Date 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY CLERK, TX 
CRIMINAL CASE FILE PRESERVATION PROJECT 

RECORDS SERIES 
TITLE 

SHEET 
COUNTS SHEET SIZE NOTES 

LEVEL OF 
SERVICE PRICE QUOTE 

22,418 11 x 8.5”; 14 x 8.5”; 9.5 x 4”; 7 x 8.5” Shuck/Letter/Legal/Sub letter PRV $313,852.00  Criminal Case 
Files  

253 3 x 5”; 2 x 7.5” Post card/Scrap paper PRV $2,024.00  

PROJECT TOTAL 
(22,671 sheets) 

$315,876.00  

 

6300 CEDAR SPRINGS ROAD, DALLAS, TEXAS 75235 

P: 214/442.6668  F: 214/442.6669   WWW.KOFILE.COM 



PAGE 2 I 2 WILLIAMSON COUNTY CLERK 

PRESERVATION OF CRIMINAL CASE FILES 

April 1, 2020—revised October 13, 2020 

Records receive the following services as appropriate. The location of work for this 

project is Kofile’s Conservation and Digitization Laboratory in Essex, VT. 
 

(PRV) Preservation—Conservation Treatments, Deacidify, Encapsulate, and Bind 

■ A permanent log is created for each volume to record condition, page order, and services/treatments. A final 

quality check references this log.  

■ Dismantle volumes. Sheets are inspected and control numbered as necessary.  

■ Surface clean sheets to remove deposits. This includes dust, soot, airborne particulate, sedimentation, insect 

detritus, or even biological/mineral contaminants. Tools include a microspatula, dusting brush, latex sponge, 

powdered vinyl eraser, or block eraser.  

■ Remove non-archival repairs or fasteners, such as residual glues. All tape and previous mends to be removed 

to the extent possible without causing damage to paper and inks.  

■ Humidify and flatten as necessary to eliminate the possibility of unnecessary fractures or breaks. Tools to 

‘flatten’ include tacking irons, heat presses, and an Ultrasonic Humidification Chamber.  
■ Mend tears with archival, acid free, and reversible materials. Mending is accomplished with either Japanese 

tissue and methyl cellulose adhesive, or Filmoplast® R (an acrylic based and heat set tissue). 

■ Deacidify sheets after careful testing with Bookkeepers®, a custom solution of magnesium oxide, which 

neutralizes acidic inks and paper by providing an alkaline reserve. Random testing ensures an 8.5 pH ± .5.  

■ Re-house sheets in acid-free folders in case order inside acid free boxes. Exterior of boxes are labeled with 

contents. 

 

GSA LINE ITEMS 
To purchase from GSA, you only need follow Williamson County’s applicable purchasing 

requirements. When a Purchase Order is issued, it must reference Kofile's GSA Contract No. 

GS-35F-275AA and the billing line items identified in the following. Kofile is responsible for 

reporting the sale to GSA and there is a 0.75% fee built in the client’s quote for the order. 

 

The total price is billed as GSA line items. GSA line items are billed per hourly charges and 

include the following: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact us with any questions.  
 

Sincerely, 

Dennis Curran     Billy Gerwick    

Dennis Curran      Billy Gerwick 

Account Executive     Account Executive 

dennis.curran@kofile.us    billy.gerwick@kofile.us 

 

cec 

GSA LINE ITEMS 

SPECIAL ITEM NO. PART NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QTY. LINE ITEM TOTAL 

SIN 132 51 TCS005 Graphic Artist I (Physical/Digital Restoration) $65.00/Hour  2,251.2462 $146,331.00  

SIN 132 51 TCS008 Information Assurance Engineer II $75.00/Hour  2,251 $168,825.00  

SIN 132 51 TCS010 Project Manager $180.00/Hour  4 $720.00  

TOTAL $315,876.00  



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 62.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

County Attorney Legislative Supplement Budget Amendment 10.13.20
Submitted By: Pam Navarrette, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge expenditures for the County Attorney's Office.

Background
County Attorney supplement received from the state to be paid throughout Fiscal Year 2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0475.001927 Co Atty Legislative Supplement $32,140.75
0100.0475.002010 FICA $2,458.77
0100.0475.002020 Retirement $4,677.76
0100.0475.004902 Co Atty Legislative Supplement $37,722.72

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/08/2020 08:17 AM
Form Started By: Pam Navarrette Started On: 10/07/2020 07:36 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/08/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 63.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

County Attorney Legislative Supplement Budget Amendment 10.13.20
Submitted By: Pam Navarrette, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional revenues for the County Attorney's Office.

Background
County Attorney supplement received from the state to be paid throughout Fiscal Year 2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.335601 Co Atty Salary Supplement $77,000.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/08/2020 08:17 AM
Form Started By: Pam Navarrette Started On: 10/07/2020 08:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/08/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 64.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

RCS BA Generator Project
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment
acknowledging additional expenditures for the Radio Communication System Fund.

Background
Generator Replacement project for the Cedar Park Radio Tower Shelter began in FY 20.  Total
project is $130,110. In FY20, we were invoiced $43,935.00 for the equipment that was
delivered.   The balance of $86,175.00 is still due for the services that will be performed in
FY21.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0507.0507.005000 Capital Outlay > $5,000 $86,175.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:07 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 10/14/2020 09:29 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 65.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

RCS BA Tower Lighting Replacement
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment
acknowledging additional expenditures for the Radio Communication System Fund.

Background
This budget amendment is necessary to cover the replacement cost of a new radio tower lighting system at Prime
Site/Twin Towers.  The current lighting system is outdated and is becoming costly to repair.  Beacons are currently
not working on the tower and, in lieu of repairing, the RCS Board approved on 10/08/2020 a request to amend the
budget for this replacement.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0507.0507.004545 800 MHZ Tower Maintenance $22,950.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:07 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 10/14/2020 09:32 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 66.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

2018 Capital Improvement Programs Budget Transfers
Submitted By: Emmeline Hawkins, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2018 Capital Improvement
Program budget transfer to move $437,488.23 from Justice Center Back Up Server Room
(P469) to Justice Center Remodel (P515).

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/13/2020 01:50 PM
Form Started By: Emmeline Hawkins Started On: 10/13/2020 11:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/13/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 67.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Approving Blanket PO - EMS Fuel FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing a blanket purchase order for EMS
to Fuelman in the amount of $175,000.00 as per Omnia Partners Cooperative Contract #R5127.

Background
This is a blanket PO for Fuel for EMS. Funding source 01.0100.0540.003301. Funding was
approved in FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:30 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:17 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/12/2020 03:10 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 68.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Reject Proposals submitted on RFP t1173 Billing Services and authorize new RFP T2147 .
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on rejecting proposals submitted on RFP T1173
Billing Services for the EMS Department and request that information related to competition be
excepted pursuant to Texas Government Code 552.104 and authorize the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed proposals under new RFP T2147.

Background
It is the recommendation that we reject all submissions to RFP T1773 EMS Billing to allow for
revisions to the Specifications that would serve in the best interest of the county. An exemption
is requested Pursuant to Government Code Sec. 552.104. EXCEPTION: INFORMATION
RELATED TO COMPETITION OR BIDDING. (a) Information is excepted from the requirements
of Section 552.021 if it is information that, if released, would give advantage to a competitor or
bidder. Point of contact is Beth Jones. The funding source is 01.0100.0540.004101 Collection
Fees. The current budget (FY21) amount is $510,000.00.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:55 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 08:57 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 69.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Exempt FirstWatch as Sole Source Provider for proprietary Software System 
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on exempting FirstWatch from the competitive
bidding requirements established by Section 262.024 (a) (7) of the Texas Local Government
Code Discretionary Exemptions, as the sole provider for real-time situational awareness, dash
boarding, data analysis software system to analyze CAD, ePCR, ProQA, and 9-1-1 telephone
data for the Williamson County and authorize the purchase.

Background
The exemption will allow continuation of service for Williamson County Emergency
Communications (WCEC) and Williamson County Emergency Medical Service (EMS.)
Estimated cost is $29,338.00 and system enhancement with Annual Support and Maintenance
for standard Firstwatch Triggers with initial cost of $310.00.  The sole source posting was in
BidSync for 14 days with no competitive responses received. The requested Sole Source
designation would be applicable for a period of 36 months. Point of contact is Terry Purvis.
Funding Source FY 2021: 01.0100.0581.004500; 01.0100.0581.004505

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Purchasing Agent Signed justification request 
Vendor Sole Source Letter 
Vendoer Sole Source Affidavit 
Departmental Recommendation letter 
NEgometrix Statement of Opening 
Renewal Quote 
Trigger quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:40 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:54 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 10/15/2020 08:04 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





 

Randy Barker 
CPPO, CPPB 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        PURCHASING AGENT / DIRECTOR 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
512.943.1555    
randy.barker@wilco.org 
100 Wilco Way, Ste. P101 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

      

10/8/20 

Williamson County Commissioners Court 
 
Re:   Sole Source recommendation for FirstWatch Solutions  
 
Dear County Judge and Commissioners, 
 
Recently our Emergency Communications Office made a renewal and amendment request for an existing 
contract with FirstWatch Solutions. These actions require new qualification as a sole source purchase of Data 
Analysis Software System. These services are supplied only by FirstWatch Solutions,, Inc. who is the owner, 
and the only provider of this service.  
 
After reviewing all documentation requested and submitted, I recommend qualifying this request as a sole source 
purchase and exempting these goods from competitive bidding requirements per Texas Local Government Code 
sections 262.003 (a) and 262.024 (a) (7). 
 
After reviewing all documentation requested and provided to me, I recommend qualifying this request as a 
sole source purchase, per Texas Local Government Code sections 262.003(a) and 262.024.(a)(7). 
 
The process has included the following: 

• A signed Sole Source Justification Request 
• A letter of justification from the supplier, establishing why their product/service is only available 

from their company 
• A notarized Sole Source Affidavit completed by the supplier 
• A signed letter of recommendation from Kelly Luna, Emergency Communications Director  
• Posting on Negometrix website for a period of fourteen (14) days to invite potential competition, 

with no responses received from alternate vendors  
 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at any time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Randy Barker 
Williamson County Purchasing Agent / Director 

mailto:randy.barker@wilco.org


 

FirstWatch Solutions, Inc  |  1930 Palomar Point Way, Suite 101, Carlsbad, CA 92008  |  www.firstwatch.net 
 

FirstWatch® is a Registered Trademark of Stout Solutions, LLC and has international patents for its technologies. Copyright © 2002-2020. All rights reserved.  

September 8, 2020 
 
Terry Purvis, Division Manager – Technology, Logistics & Special Operations 
Williamson County Emergency Communications 
911 Tracy Chambers Lane 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
Dear Terry, 
 
The real-time situational awareness, dashboarding, data analysis/visualization, biosurveillance (and 
automated alerting) software system; known as FirstWatch – which is currently deployed and in use by 
hundreds of EMS, Fire, Law Enforcement, 9-1-1 Communications Centers, Public Health and Homeland 
Security teams is only available from a single vendor: FirstWatch Solutions, Inc. Further, FirstWatch 
software is highly proprietary and is considered to be a confidential intellectual property trade secret of 
FirstWatch Solutions, Inc. (and Stout Solutions, LLC). 
 
FirstWatch is Patented Intellectual Property (IP) in the United States (# 9,642,562), Canada (# 2495768), New 
Zealand (# 538348), as well as in Australia (# 2003298552). Therefore, no other party is authorized to 
perform (or provide) the various system support functions and ongoing maintenance responsibilities (i.e. 
development, code corrections, product updates and/or 24.7.365 technical support), as there is absolutely no 
outside access to the proprietary FirstWatch IP source code whatsoever. Thus, FirstWatch is the single 
source for not only the acquisition, deployment, data source interface(s) and installation of the FirstWatch 
software / system, but the ongoing support of and maintenance service required for the aforementioned 
FirstWatch software / system as well. Furthermore, no other party is authorized to provide FirstWatch system 
enhancements, add-ons or system enhancement modules, additional features, capacity or hardware 
upgrades for (or to) the core FirstWatch system functionality. 
 
The FirstWatch software system is currently deployed and LIVE in more than 290 metro areas across the 
United States and Canada. As of the date of this letter; FirstWatch is in use by 500+ Public Safety, Public 
Health and Homeland Security agencies for situational awareness, operational & performance monitoring, 
clinical quality measurements, as well as health surveillance, bioterrorism and other early event detection.  
 
In addition to the core real-time FirstWatch system functionality; FirstWatch has also developed proprietary, 
highly specialized industry leading innovations which are offered as add-on system enhancement modules. 
These FirstWatch modules are unique and only available from FirstWatch and are designed to provide very 
specific, proven functionality. Two such examples are the Online Compliance Utility (OCU) module, as well as 
the FirstPass system enhancement module.  
 
The Online Compliance Utility (OCU) module was specifically designed to automatically monitor contractual 
compliance in near real-time via a FirstWatch interface into Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) data. The OCU 
is created using a rules-based approach based upon contractual requirements that allow both contracted 
EMS (or Fire) providers, as well as the administrative oversight agency to mutually review incidents with 
response times outside of the OCU parameters, using a secure web-based approach. Exemptions, 
Exceptions, as well as requests for additional information are handled within the secure OCU environment 
and submitted/reviewed on a daily or weekly (as needed) basis.  
 
Likewise, the FirstPass module enhances the core FirstWatch system functionality by automatically reviewing 
every ePCR (electronic patient care report) created by paramedics (during a prehospital patient encounter) in 
real-time & identify deviations in the paramedics’ patient treatment procedures when compared against 
evidence based medical protocols, procedures and directives. FirstPass ultimately improves the quality of 
care delivered to patients and mitigate potential risk by quickly identifying medic performance trends on high 
risk, low frequency emergency medical interventions, like; STEMI, Stroke, ACS/Cardiac, Trauma and Airway 
Management. FirstPass offers a workflow-driven process which provides continuous monitoring of electronic 
patient records to quickly identify outliers and provide real-time feedback and alerts about potentially 



 

FirstWatch Solutions, Inc  |  1930 Palomar Point Way, Suite 101, Carlsbad, CA 92008  |  www.firstwatch.net 
 

FirstWatch® is a Registered Trademark of Stout Solutions, LLC and has international patents for its technologies. Copyright © 2002-2020. All rights reserved.  

concerning protocol deviations, incomplete or missing ePCR data elements (documentation errors or 
omissions), as well as potentially urgent patient safety issues. No other product is capable of automatically 
consuming real-time ePCR data (from any ePCR vendor system) into the core FirstWatch system data 
interface to provide completely automated, real-time clinical QA/QI analysis & review. The FirstPass real-time 
QA/QI ePCR review process combined with the embedded work-flow tools helps medical directors and 
clinical QA/QI teams provide feedback to paramedics immediately after a patient encounter. Both the OCU & 
FirstPass modules are actively improving contractual compliance & paramedic performance (and patient 
outcomes) for numerous systems across the US and Canada.  
 
Listed below are some of the exclusively unique benefits and demonstrated system functions which support 
the designation of FirstWatch as not only a single source product, but as a single source provider related to 
the FirstWatch real-time data analysis & automated early warning system and its various core and system 
enhancement components: 
 

 Alignment with Homeland Security Needs & Requirements: According to FEMA, there are 2.3 
million First Responders and 23 million people in their support, 25.3 million individuals involved in 
defense and support of the country’s Public Safety and Public Health. The majority of the sites at 
which FirstWatch is currently deployed are located within a governmental (State, County or Local) 
agency of Law Enforcement, Fire Department, Emergency Medical Service, Office of Emergency 
Services (Management) or Public Health.  As an automated, real-time Early Detection and Warning 
System (in existence since 1999), FirstWatch’s scalable architecture and algorithmic abilities, 
continue to assist the agencies noted above (as well as their personnel and their support groups, 
large and small) across the US and Canada, in identifying threats to the welfare of the public and first 
responders alike.  

 
FirstWatch helps to provide closure to Homeland Security Presidential Directive 8 (HSPD-8) 
Capability Gaps noted via the Homeland Security Authorized Equipment List- (AEL) #13 (IT) 
Terrorism Incident Prevention Equipment, specifically associated with the following items:  

 
o AEL # 13IT-00-ALRT: System, Alert/Notification;  
o AEL # 13IT-00-DACQ: Data Acquisition;  
o AEL # 13IT-00-DEXC: Data Exchange and Interoperability;  
o AEL # 13IT-00-DFSN: Data Fusion/Synthesis; and 
o AEL # 13IT-00-INTL: Systems, Intelligence Sharing.  

 
FirstWatch is particularly well suited as a single or multi-faceted capability to the needs of Homeland 
Security related to the AEL items listed above and, in conjunction with that association, to the Target 
Capabilities List (TCL) of such items as…  
 

 Information Gathering and Recognition of Indicators and Warnings  
 Intelligence and Information Sharing and Dissemination  
 Intelligence Analysis and Production  
 Epidemiological Surveillance and Investigation  
 Disaster Planning and Preparedness  
 Medical Surge and System Busy 

 
 Proven Ability to Integrate and Aggregate: Only FirstWatch is designed to monitor disparate (or 

similar) data sources and data types, for Public Safety and Public Health from: 9-1-1 Phone and 
Computer Aided Dispatch (Police, Fire and EMS CAD) systems, to Electronic Patient Care Records 
(ePCR) systems, to Records Management (RMS) systems, to ProQA (algorithmic expert / telephonic 
triage) systems for EMS, Fire & Police, as well as Hospital Emergency Data (ED) systems, Nurse Call 
Triage data systems and Poison Control Center data among others. Whether the emergency situation 
is related to natural disaster, bioterrorism, or COVID-19, Ebola, Heroin/Opioid OD, SARS, MERS, or 



 

FirstWatch Solutions, Inc  |  1930 Palomar Point Way, Suite 101, Carlsbad, CA 92008  |  www.firstwatch.net 
 

FirstWatch® is a Registered Trademark of Stout Solutions, LLC and has international patents for its technologies. Copyright © 2002-2020. All rights reserved.  

even H1N1/ILI Flu - FirstWatch is designed to offer aggregated, real time data analysis, data 
visualizations and automated alerts to authorized stakeholders at the local, state or federal level. 
 

 Scalable System Design: Only FirstWatch allows the addition of other data sources / data systems 
into “existing” deployed (“live”) FirstWatch systems. Real Time data from other FirstWatch customers 
may also be easily aggregated together (if authorization is provided and Triggers are available), to 
create a larger regional or statewide FirstWatch Network; for example, during the Ebola Outbreak of 
2014, when FirstWatch provided Ebola Triggers to our existing customers in 80 metro areas (at no 
charge) to help protect First Responders and Citizens alike. 

 
 Exclusive Embedded Interface to FirstWatch within ProQA Software: Only FirstWatch has 

partnered with Priority Dispatch Corporation (PDC) & International Academies of Emergency 
Dispatch (IAED) to create an “embedded FirstWatch interface” which is designed to enable real-time 
analysis of ProQA data for Emerging Infectious Disease, CBRNE, as well as for ProQA EMS, Fire 
and Law Enforcement Dispatch Driven Protocols and algorithms. The “embedded FirstWatch 
interface” can be located within Paramount in the “Admin Utility” or within legacy ProQA within the 
“Configuration Utility” (ProQA versions 3.4.1.41 (or newer)). FirstWatch is the ONLY real-time data 
monitoring & analysis (software) program in the world to seamlessly interface with ProQA (or their 
newest version; Paramount) to provide FirstWatch analytics & automated alerting functionality to 
mutual ProQA/Paramount/FirstWatch customers. 

 
 Experience with 9-1-1 / Public Safety (CAD, ProQA, Phone, ePCR, RMS) Data: FirstWatch team 

members have more than 300 years of Public Safety experience collectively. Additionally, FirstWatch 
has more than 250 years of combined Public Safety software development experience. Since 1999 
FirstWatch has been actively analyzing and aggregating 9-1-1 / Public Safety.  

 
 Automated, Real-Time Analysis & Alerting: Only FirstWatch offers automatic analysis in real-time, 

from disparate Public Safety software platforms – to date more than (120) different vendor and home-
grown systems have been interfaced with FirstWatch. The flexibility of the system offers user defined 
data analysis criteria, as well as offering new and innovative algorithms and algorithmic 
methodologies for real time data analysis and automated alerting. 

 
 Capacity: Only FirstWatch analyzes and aggregates about 140,000 real time public safety records 

daily – on average one new record is analyzed every .08 seconds (that’s over 50,000,000 annually) 
and the FirstWatch annual record volume grows, as new deployment sites go live. To date, 
FirstWatch has processed more than 319 Million public safety records (in real time) benefiting Public 
Safety, Public Health and Homeland Security teams across the US & Canada.  
 

 Existing LIVE Systems: Only FirstWatch has LIVE systems deployed in 35 of the top 50 metro 
areas (by population) across the USA. 

 
We hope the information provided above will help your team establish FirstWatch as the single source 
provider of not only the FirstWatch system itself, but also system enhancements, modules, maintenance and 
support for the FirstWatch system as well. If you have any other questions please let us know and we’d be 
happy to provide whatever additional information you may require. Thank you. 
 
Respectfully,  

Marc 
Marc Baker, Partner & Vice President  
FirstWatch Solutions, Inc. 
760.658-9848 
mbaker@firstwatch.net  









10/7/2020 Negometrix 4

https://app.negometrix.com/tender/2008/buyer/3274/evaluations/11266/advanced 1/2

T2008 SS First Watch Software and Support Services 󰀨

Round

󰓅 Overview

󰃰 Schedule

󰀎 Team

󰍡 Messages and announcements

󰐃 Publication

󰒓 Properties

󰒓

󱓷 Solicitation 󰅀

󰠗 Question & Answer

󰔽 Suppliers

󰇮 Offer

󰗑
Evaluation
IN PROGRESS 󰅀

󰔻 Awarding

Empty

Documents

Statement of Opening
󰅐 07 Oct 2020 (Wed),
2:11:45 PM

Finalize evaluation
Complete your tasks and �nalize

evaluation.

󰅐

󰕒 󰐕 CREATE DOCUMENT

DOCUMENT READY FOR

PUBLICATION

󰇙

FINALIZE

07 Oct 2020 (Wed), 2:12 PM (UTC-5) 󰋎 󰂞 JG

Statement of opening of offers

The registration period for the purchase process SS First Watch Software and Support Services is

closed on 07 Oct 2020 (Wed), 2:00 PM.

On 07 Oct 2020 (Wed), 2:10:00 PM, Johnny Grimaldo opened the registrations.

Entries submitted after the closing date, 07 Oct 2020 (Wed), 2:00 PM, will not be included in the

procedure.

Registrations received:

Registration prices:

Reported by Johnny Grimaldo on 07 Oct 2020 (Wed), 2:10 PM

Statement of Opening 󰇙 󰅖

󰀦 Read-only. Return to draft to continue editing the document RETURN TO DRAFT

DOCUMENT READY FOR PUBLICATION



10/7/2020 Negometrix 4

https://app.negometrix.com/tender/2008/buyer/3274/evaluations/11266/advanced 2/2



Renewal Invoice
Date

9/1/2020

Invoice No.

FW107102

BILL TO:

Williamson Co Emergency Communications
911 Tracy Chambers Ln.
Georgetown, TX 78626

P.O. No.Terms

Phone: (760) 658-9864
Phone:
Fax: (760) 268-0922
E-mail: accounting@firstwatch.net

FEIN:    050544884

1930 Palomar Point Way
Suite 101
Carlsbad, CA 92008

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS
AND SUPPORT OF FIRSTWATCH!

Payment Terms and Information:

Please make checks payable to . . .FirstWatch
Late payments may be subject to late charges of 1.5% per month.

30 Days

(760) 658-9846

Description QtyContract AmountItemID

FirstWatch - Annual Support & Maintenance

New Term Year: 10/01/2020 - 09/30/2021

DS1 - OSSI/Sunguard CAD 17,148.38 7,148.38Contract Mainten...131

DS2 - ePCR 13,573.56 3,573.56Contract Mainten...131

Trigger - Standard (10) 10200.00 2,000.00Recurring Trigger131

Module - Performance Plus 1601.00 601.00Perf Plus Module...131

DS3 - ProQA 11,114.25 1,114.25Contract Mainten...131

Report - ProQA Dashboard (Included w/DS3) 10.00 0.00Reports Maintena...131

Trigger - Standard (20) 20200.00 4,000.00Recurring Trigger131

DS4 - Training System 11,166.99 1,166.99Contract Mainten...131

Reports - Custom (Based on 10 dvlp hrs) 10.00 0.00Reports Maintena...131

Module - Performance Plus 1583.50 583.50Perf Plus Module...131

Page 1



Renewal Invoice
Date

9/1/2020

Invoice No.

FW107102

BILL TO:

Williamson Co Emergency Communications
911 Tracy Chambers Ln.
Georgetown, TX 78626

P.O. No.Terms

Phone: (760) 658-9864
Phone:
Fax: (760) 268-0922
E-mail: accounting@firstwatch.net

FEIN:    050544884

1930 Palomar Point Way
Suite 101
Carlsbad, CA 92008

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS
AND SUPPORT OF FIRSTWATCH!

Payment Terms and Information:

Please make checks payable to . . .FirstWatch
Late payments may be subject to late charges of 1.5% per month.

30 Days

(760) 658-9846

Description QtyContract AmountItemID

Module - FirstPass 17,001.94 7,001.94FirstPass Module...131

DS - Phone System Data via E-CATS (Short Term Year:
12/09/2020 - 09/30/2021)

0.835652,200.00 1,838.43Contract Mainten...131

Page 2

Balance Due $29,028.05

 Payments/Credits $0.00

Total $29,028.05



FirstWatch Solutions, Inc.

1930 Palomar Point Way, Suite 101

Carlsbad, California 92008  USA

Phone: 760-943-9123  Fax: 760-268-0922

Atten: Carlynn Crampton, Regional Manager (Ph Ext 258)

Customer Information: Quote Information:

Name: Terry Purvis Date: 8/12/2020

Organization: Williamson County Emergency Communications Expiration Date: 2/8/2021

Address: 911 Tracy Chambers Ln

City, ST Zip: Georgetown, TX 78626

Phone: 512-864-8252

Email: tpurvis@wilco.org

Qty Description Unit Price Item Total
Triggers

4 Standard FirstWatch Triggers $400.00 $1,600.00
4 Standard FirstWatch Triggers Annual Support & Maintenance $200.00 $800.00

Sub-total $2,400.00
Other

1 Prepaid Credit -$2,890.00 -$2,890.00
Sub-total -$2,890.00

Prepaid Annual Support & Maintenance (ASM) after Year 1
1 Additional Yrs of prepaid ASM (reallocate funds w/ FW as needed) $800.00 $800.00

Sub-total $800.00
Total of Items Above $310.00

$310.00

$848.72

$874.18

$900.41

Accepted: 

Title: 

Date: 

Estimated Annual Support & Maintenance beyond Year 1 (not applicable to Software as a Service option above)

Estimated Annual Support & Maintenance for Year 3 (based on a 3% annual increase): 

WILCO converted from SaaS to Traditional and made two additional SaaS payments leaving a $2,890 credit. They have opted to purchase 4 additional 
triggers and prepay the 2nd year annual support and maintenance leaving a total due of $310

To authorize FirstWatch to proceed with proposed enhancements, please send PO or signed copy (all pages) back to:
Fax - Sales @ (760) 268-0922 or Email -  ccrampton@firstwatch.net

Thank you for the opportunity to present this quote. 

Please see Page 2 for Additional Information

System Enhancement
Quote

System Enhancement (Payment of All Year One Fees) - Total: 

Payment of All Year One Fees

Estimated Annual Support & Maintenance for Year 4 (based on a 3% annual increase): 

Estimated Annual Support & Maintenance for Year 5 (based on a 3% annual increase): 



'System Enhancement Quote' - 08/12/2020  -  Additional Information

General Project Information

FirstWatch has worked diligently to keep pricing 'fair and reasonable,' as well as in developing a REMOTE approach to FirstWatch software sales, presentation, deployment, 
installation, data interface, system configuration and training; as such we have NOT included any fees for travel associated with this project. If travel is requested / required by 
customer, customer will be asked to pay for all travel-related expenses (e.g., transportation, accommodations, food) incurred by FirstWatch at the request of customer and 
approved by customer in advance, for Software-related services such as on-site installation, training, customization, integration, support and maintenance.

This quotation is valid for 180 days from creation as noted on the top of page 1. For additional information or questions please contact the FirstWatch Representative also noted 
on the top of page 1.

Payment Option - System Enhancement Standard Purchase

This payment option includes all Year 1 project fees, with a standard payment breakdown based upon the following project milestones: 50% of all Year 1 project fees payable at 
contract signing or receipt of a Purchase Order and the remaining 50% payable at project completion or Go Live.

Payment Option - Software as a Service (Monthly Subscription)

Software as a Service (SaaS) / Monthly Subscription Fee acquisition option offers a flexible, (pay-over-time style) payment program which offers a lower upfront investment 
requirement and is designed to help "operationalize" FirstWatch deployment costs over a number of years (not just Year 1). This SaaS payment program requires one initial 
payment which includes (all fees to install, configure, train and project manage the quoted products and services) and offers a monthly payment plan going forward. The fixed, 
ongoing monthly subscription payment includes all FirstWatch fees (including recurring annual support and maintenance).

FirstWatch - Standard Triggers

Standard FirstWatch triggers are defined as: existing (commercially available) FirstWatch trigger technology that does not require any custom programming.  Regular triggers are 
based on existing functionality, related to existing data sources and data structures.  Triggers requiring custom programming are considered non-standard or custom triggers and 
may have additional cost associated, which will be based on the estimated development efforts. Regular triggers are generally based on Syndromic Surveillance, 
Operational/Performance, or Situational Awareness monitoring.  Details available upon request...or see Regular Trigger definition document for more details. 

Annual Support & Maintenance (ASM)

Annual Support recurs annually and includes: system enhancements, updates and patches, 24/7 urgent technical support, business hour support for routine issues and guidance 
with configuration of your FirstWatch System. Support fees increase annually. Annual Support fee increase is projected (for budget purposes) at 3% per year.

Pre-paid Annual Support & Maintenance after Year 1

In exchange for pre-paying additional years of Annual Support & Maintenance (ASM), FirstWatch is providing the additional pre-paid years at the same rate as the initial year. At 
the end of this period of time, the ASM rate is subject to a possible percentage increase. This rate is currently 3% annually. 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 70.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

New Ambulances Proposal FY21
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Pricing Proposal between
Williamson County and Siddon-Martins Emergency Group LLC to purchase four (4) Ford F-450
Type 1 Ambulances in the total amount of $954,224.00 per HGAC Contract
#AM10-20(EMS), and authorizing the purchase.

Background
This agreement is a Proposal for four (4) new ambulances plus equipment for Williamson County EMS. Department
point of contact is Mike Knipstein. Funding Source 01. 0100.0540.005700

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
proposal 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:36 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:07 PM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/13/2020 04:29 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



     

Proposal 2020 Williamson County 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

September 30, 2020 
 

     

Siddons Martin Emergency Group, LLC 

3500 Shelby Lane 

Denton, TX 77073 

GDN P115891 

TXDOT MVD No. A115890 
 

   

  

 

    

September 30, 2020 
 

   

    

Mike Knipstein, EMS Director 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY EMS 

3151 SE INNER LOOP 

GEORGETOWN, TX 78626 
 

  

   

     

Proposal For: 2020 Williamson County 
 

  

     

Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC is pleased to provide the following proposal to WILLIAMSON COUNTY EMS. Unit will 

comply with all specifications attached and made a part of this proposal. Total price includes delivery FOB WILLIAMSON 

COUNTY EMS and training on operation and use of the apparatus. 
 

     

 

Description  Amount 

Qty. 4 - New Quote - Ford Ford F 450 Type 1 

(Unit Price - $224,332.00) 

Delivery within 8-9 months of order date 

QUOTE # - SMEG-0001214-3 Vehicle Price                         $897,328.00 
 

Stryker Power Loads (4)     $87,396.00    

Stryker Power Pro Cot (1)   $19,260.00 

Stryker Stair Chair (4)         $14,240.00 

 
 

FORD - F450 - WC ($13,000.00) 

FORD - F450 - WC ($13,000.00) 

FORD - F450 - WC ($13,000.00) 

FORD - F450 - WC ($13,000.00) 

FORD - F450 - WC ($13,000.00) 

 

 New Quote - UNIT TOTAL $953,224.00 

 SUB TOTAL $953,224.00 

 HGAC AM10-20(EMS) $1,000.00 

 TOTAL $954,224.00 



     

Proposal 2020 Williamson County 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

September 30, 2020 
 

     

Price guaranteed until 11/30/2020 

Additional: The delivery terms of this proposal are contingent upon chassis arrival at REV Ambulance Group Orlando and 

signed work order confirmation by Williamson County EMS and Siddons-Martin Emergency Group. 

 

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this agreement will be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign 

immunity or powers of licensee, the Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge. 

 

Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas 

Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date licensee receives the 

goods under the agreement; (2) the date the performance of the service under the agreement is completed; or (3) the date 

the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall 

be paid by licensee in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that 

shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of licensee’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes 

due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published 

in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

 

Mediation: The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior to and formal legal action being taken on this 

Contract. 

 

The terms and acceptance of this quote/proposal will be governed by the laws of the state of TX, with venue in Williamson 

County, TX. 

   

Taxes: Tax is not included in this proposal. In the event that the purchasing organization is not exempt from sales tax or any 

other applicable taxes and/or the proposed apparatus does not qualify for exempt status, it is the duty of the purchasing 

organization to pay any and all taxes due. Balance of sale price is due upon acceptance of the apparatus at the factory. 

Cancellation: In the event this proposal is accepted and a purchase order is issued then cancelled or terminated by 

Customer before completion, Siddons-Martin Emergency Group may charge a cancellation fee. The following charge 

schedule based on costs incurred may be applied: 

    (A) 10% of the Purchase Price after order is accepted and entered by Manufacturer; 

    (B) 20% of the Purchase Price after completion of the approval drawings; 

    (C) 30% of the Purchase Price upon any material requisition. 

 

The cancellation fee will increase accordingly as costs are incurred as the order progresses through engineering and into 

manufacturing. Siddons-Martin Emergency Group endeavors to mitigate any such costs through the sale of such product to 

another purchaser; however, the customer shall remain liable for the difference between the purchase price and, if 

applicable, the sale price obtained by Siddons-Martin Emergency Group upon sale of the product to another purchaser, plus 

any costs incurred by Siddons-Martin to conduct such sale. 

Acceptance: In an effort to ensure the above stated terms and conditions are understood and adhered to, Siddons-Martin 

Emergency Group, LLC requires an authorized individual from the purchasing organization sign and date this proposal and 

include it with any purchase order. Upon signing of this proposal, the terms and conditions stated herein will be considered 

binding and accepted by the Customer. The terms and acceptance of this proposal will be governed by the laws of the state 

of Texas. No additional terms or conditions will be binding upon Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC unless agreed to in 

writing and signed by a duly authorized officer of Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC. 



     

Proposal 2020 Williamson County 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

September 30, 2020 
 

     

Sincerely, 
 

   

    

Gretchen Peters 
 

  

    

I, _____________________________, the authorized representative of WILLIAMSON COUNTY EMS, agree to purchase the proposed 

and agree to the terms of this proposal and the specifications attached hereto. 
 

    

__________________________________________________________ 

Signature & Date 
 

 

    

  

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 71.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Nemo-Q Exemption
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of que management
software maintenance and support from Nemo-Q in the amount of $10,592 and exempting from
the competitive bidding requirements per Texas Local Government Code, Section 262.024
(a)(7)(D) captive replacement components for equipment.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Tax Office.  Nemo-Q
is the que management software the Tax Office currently uses to allow customers to wait in line
virtually.  Nemo-Q is the only provider that can provide the maintenance and support for their
software.  The estimate is attached for the annual maintenance and support for FY2021 from a
period of October 1st, 2020 to September 30th, 2021.  This expenditure will be charged to
01.0100.0499.004505.  Department contact is Larry Gaddes.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Estimate 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:36 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/14/2020 11:24 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 72.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Tyler Tech Orion Exemption
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Tyler Technologies
Orion Software Maintenance and Support in the amount of $91,440 and exempting Tyler
Technologies, Inc. from the competitive bidding requires per Texas Local Government Code,
Section 262.024 (a)(7)(A) discretionary exemption for an item that can be obtained from only
one source because of the existence of patents, copyrights, secret processes or monopolies.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Tax Office.  Tyler
Technologies is the current and only provider of their Orion software that the Tax Office uses,
and can therefore be the only provider of the annual software maintenance and support. 
Invoice is attached that covers the period of FY2021 from October 1st, 2020 to September 30th,
2021.  This expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0499.004208.  Department contact is Larry
Gaddes.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Tyler Invoice 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:34 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:08 PM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/14/2020 11:23 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 73.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

DOI Projects and Issues
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 09/17/2020 10:18 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 09/17/2020 09:43 AM
Final Approval Date: 09/17/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 74.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

October 2020 Construction Summary Report
Submitted By: Dawn Haggard, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive the October 2020 Construction Summary Report and PowerPoint Presentation for the
Road Bond Program.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
October 2020 Construction Summary Report 
October 2020 PowerPoint Presentation 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 12:03 PM
Form Started By: Dawn Haggard Started On: 10/13/2020 04:35 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



ROAD BOND PROGRAM

Construction Summary Report

WWW.ROADBOND.ORG

October 2020

Volume XIX - Issue No.10

County Judge
Bill Gravell, Jr.

Commissioners
Terry Cook

Cynthia Long
Valerie Covey

Russ Boles

Presented By:



i 

 

Table of  Contents 

 

 
 

Completed Projects ........................................................................................................ 1 

 
PRECINCT No. 1 – Commissioner Terry Cook .......................................................... 5 

North Mays Street Extension Phase 1 (Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive) ............... 8 

Great Oaks Water Line Relocations ........................................................................ 10 

Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 3 ....................................................... 11 

O'Connor Traffic Signals (Morgan Hill, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks) ..................... 13 

 
PRECINCT No. 2 – Commissioner Cynthia Long .................................................... 15 

Bagdad Road (CR 279) at CR 278 (River Ranch County Park Road) ..................... 18 

Seward Junction Improvements (SH 29 to CR 266 & CR 266 south of CR 259 to SH 

29) ............................................................................................................................ 19 

 
PRECINCT No. 3 – Commissioner Valerie Covey .................................................... 21 

CR 176 at RM 2243 (RM 2243 at Parkside Parkway) ............................................... 24 

 
PRECINCT No. 4 – Commissioner Russ Boles ......................................................... 26 

CR 110 Middle (Limmer Loop to CR 107) ............................................................... 29 

CR 101 (US 79 to north of Chandler Road) .............................................................. 31 

 
 



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  SSEEPPTTEEMMBBEERR  22002200

PPrreecciinncctt  11
 PPoonndd  SSpprriinnggss  RRooaadd  ((ssiiggnnaall))  ––  AApprr  22000022
 MMccNNeeiill  RRooaadd,,  PPhhaassee  11  ––  JJaann  22000055
 MMccNNeeiill  RRooaadd,,  PPhhaassee  22  ––  FFeebb  22000077
 RRMM  662200,,  PPhhaassee  11  ––  JJaann  22000099
 PPoonndd  SSpprriinnggss  RRooaadd  ––  SSeepp  22001100
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117744  aatt  BBrruusshhyy  CCrreeeekk  ––  JJuunn  22001111
 OO’’CCoonnnnoorr  DDrriivvee  EExxtteennssiioonn  ––  AApprr  22001122
 KKiinngg  ooff  KKiinnggss  CCrroossssiinngg  ––  AAuugg  22001122
 RRMM  662200  SSaaffeettyy  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  DDeecc  22001144
 PPeeaarrssoonn  RRaanncchh  RRooaadd  ––  OOcctt  22001177
 FFoorreesstt  NNoorrtthh  DDrraaiinnaaggee  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  PPhhaassee  22  ––  OOcctt  22001177
 RRMM  662200  PPhhaassee  22  ––  JJuull  22001188
 OO’’CCoonnnnoorr  DDrriivvee  NN  ooff  RRMM  662200  ––  JJuull  22001188
 NNeeeennaahh  AAvveennuuee  WWiiddeenniinngg  ––  DDeecc  22001188
 NNeeeennaahh  AAvveennuuee  aanndd  PPeeaarrssoonn  RRaanncchh  RRooaadd  TTrraaffffiicc  SSiiggnnaall  ––  JJaann  22001199
 FFoorreesstt  NNoorrtthh  DDrraaiinnaaggee  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  AAnnddeerrssoonn  MMiillll  ––  FFeebbrruuaarryy  22002200
 GGrreeaatt  OOaakkss  DDrriivvee  WWaatteerr  LLiinnee  RReellooccaattiioonnss  ––  JJuunnee  22002200

1



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  SSEEPPTTEEMMBBEERR  22002200 

 

  
PPrreecciinncctt  22  

  RRMM  11886699  aatt  SSHH  2299  ((ssiiggnnaall))  ––  AAuugg  22000022  
  RRiivveerr  BBeenndd  OOaakkss  ––  FFeebb  22000033  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117755  ––  JJuunn  22000033  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  220000  ––  SSeepp  22000033  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd,,  SSoouutthh  PPhh..  11  ––  DDeecc  22000044  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  221144  ––  FFeebb  22000055  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  225588  ––  SSeepp  22000066  
  SSaann  GGaabbrriieell  PPkkwwyy,,  PPhh..  11  ––  FFeebb  22000077  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd  NNoorrtthh  PPhh..  11  ––  MMaarr  22000077  
  LLaakkeelliinnee  BBllvvdd  ––  JJuull  22000077  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd  SSoouutthh  PPhh..  22  ––  FFeebb  22000088  
  UUSS  118833  aatt  CCRR  227744  ––  FFeebb  22000088  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117755  PPhhaassee  22AA  ––  JJaann  22001100  
  UUSS  118833  aatt  FFMM  33440055  TTrraaffffiicc  SSiiggnnaall  ––  MMaarr  22001100  
  UUSS  118833  aatt  FFMM  33440055  LLeefftt  TTuurrnn  LLaanneess  ––  MMaayy  22001100  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  221144  PPhhaassee  22AA  ––  JJaann  22001111  
  SSaann  GGaabbrriieell  PPaarrkkwwaayy  PPhh..  22  ––  OOcctt  22001111  
  UUSS  118833  ((PPTTFF))  ––  AApprr  22001122  
  SSHH  2299  TTWWLLTTLL  LLiibbeerrttyy  HHiillll  ––  DDeecc  22001122  
  HHeerroo  WWaayy  ––  FFeebb  22001133  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaaddss  226600//226666  ––  AApprr  22001133  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  227777  ––  JJuull  22001144  
  LLaakkeelliinnee  BBllvvdd  aatt  UUSS  118833  ––  NNoovv  22001144  
  LLaakkeelliinnee  BBllvvdd  PPhh..  22  ––  AApprr  22001155  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  225588  ––  JJuull  22001177  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  220000  aatt  BBoolldd  SSuunnddoowwnn  ––  OOcctt  22001188  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  aatt  SSaannttaa  RRiittaa  RRaanncchh  ––  FFeebb  22001199  
  CCRR  220000  aatt  SSHH  2299  //  LLoooopp  333322  ––  JJuull  22001199  
  LLaakkeelliinnee  RRiigghhtt  TTuurrnn  LLaanneess  ––  AAuugg  22001199  
  BBaaggddaadd  RRooaadd  ((CCRR  227799))  aatt  CCRR  227788  ((RRiivveerr  RRaanncchh  CCoouunnttyy  PPaarrkk  RRooaadd))  ––  FFeebb  22002200  
  SSaann  GGaabbrriieell  RRaanncchh  RRooaadd  BBrriiddggee  ––  MMaarr  22002200  

  

  

2



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  SSEEPPTTEEMMBBEERR  22002200 

 

  
PPrreecciinncctt  33  

  CCeeddaarr  HHoollllooww  aatt  SSHH  2299  ((ssiiggnnaall))  ––  AAuugg  22000022  
  GGeeoorrggeettoowwnn  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  PPrroojjeecctt  22  ––  AAuugg  22000033  
  GGeeoorrggeettoowwnn  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  PPrroojjeecctt  11  ––  JJuunn  22000044  
  GGeeoorrggeettoowwnn  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  EEaasstt  EExxtteennssiioonn  ––  SSeepp  22000044  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  115522  BBrriiddggee  RReeppllaacceemmeenntt  ––  SSeepp  22000044  
  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  EEaasstt  ((CCRR  115511  ttoo  BBuuss  3355))  ––  OOcctt  22000055  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd  NNoorrtthh,,  PPhh..  22  ––  MMaayy  22000088  
  1122””  WWaatteerr  MMaaiinn  RReellooccaattiioonn  ffoorr  SSHH  2299  WWiiddeenniinngg  ––  JJuunn  22000088  
  SSHH  2299  //  CCRR  110044,,  PPhh..  11  ––  JJuull  22000088  
  IIHH  3355  aatt  SSHH  2299  TTuurrnnaarroouunnddss  ((PPTTFF))  ––  AAuugg  22000088  
  SSEE  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  aatt  FFMM  11446600  ––  NNoovv  22000099  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111111  ((WWeessttiinngghhoouussee  RRooaadd))  ––  JJuunn  22001100  
  WWiilllliiaammss  DDrriivvee  ––  AApprr  22001111  
  CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  110044,,  PPhhaassee  22  ––  MMaayy  22001111  
  RRMM  22333388  ((PPTTFF))  ––  JJuull  22001111  
  SSHH  2299  aatt  PPaarrkk  PPll  aanndd  JJaacckk  NNiicckkllaauuss  ––  MMaayy  22001122  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd..  NNoorrtthh  PPhhaassee  33  ––  JJuunn  22001133  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  BBllvvdd..  NNoorrtthh  PPhhaassee  44  ––  MMaarr  22001144  
  MMaaddrriidd  DDrriivvee  EExxtteennssiioonn  ––  SSeepp  22001144  
  CCRR  224455  ––  SSeepp  22001155  
  IIHH  3355  NNoorrtthhbboouunndd  FFrroonnttaaggee  RRooaadd  ((PPTTFF))  ––  OOcctt  22001155  
  RRoonnaalldd  RReeaaggaann  NNoorrtthh  PPhhaassee  44  FFeenncciinngg  ––  JJaann  22001166  
  IIHH  3355  NNoorrtthhbboouunndd  FFrroonnttaaggee  RRooaadd  DDrriivveewwaayy  ((PPTTFF))  ––  MMaarr  22001166  
  SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  DDrriivveewwaayyss  ––  AAuugg  22001166  
  RRMM  22224433  aatt  EEssccaalleerraa  RRiigghhtt  IInntteerrsseeccttiioonn  ––  AAuugg  22001166  
  SSHH  2299  aatt  CCeeddaarr  HHoollllooww  RRiigghhtt  IInntteerrsseeccttiioonn  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  AAuugg  22001166  
  SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  AAcccceessss  RRoouuttee  ––  JJuull  22001177  
  AArrtteerriiaall  HH  EExxtteennssiioonn  PPhhaassee  II––  FFeebb  22001188  
  RReellooccaattiioonn  ooff  WWiilllliiaammssoonn  CCoouunnttyy  RReeggiioonnaall  RRaaww  WWaatteerr  LLiinnee  ––  AApprr  22001188  
  SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  SSeeggmmeenntt  11  ––  SSeepp  22001188  
  IInnnneerr  LLoooopp  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  DDeecc  22001188  
  SSoouutthhwweesstt  BByyppaassss  SSeeggmmeenntt  22  ––  JJaann  22002200  
  

3



WWIILLLLIIAAMMSSOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
RROOAADD  BBOONNDD  PPRROOGGRRAAMM  

CCOOMMPPLLEETTEEDD  PPRROOJJEECCTTSS  
CCOONNSSTTRRUUCCTTIIOONN  SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALLLLYY  CCOOMMPPLLEETTEE//OOPPEENN  TTOO  TTRRAAFFFFIICC  --  AASS  OOFF  SSEEPPTTEEMMBBEERR  22002200

PPrreecciinncctt  44
 BBrriiddggee  RReeppllaacceemmeennttss  ((CCRR  339900,,  440066  &&  442277))  ––  NNoovv  22000022
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  336688  aanndd  336699  ––  NNoovv  22000022
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  441122  ––  AAuugg  22000033
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  330000  aanndd  330011  ––  DDeecc  22000033
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  442244  BBrriiddggee  RReeppllaacceemmeenntt  ––  JJaann  22000044
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd..  EExxtteennssiioonn,,  PPhh..  11  ––  MMaarr  22000055
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111122,,  PPhh..  11  ––  AAuugg  22000055
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  113377  ––  OOcctt  22000055
 LLiimmmmeerr  LLoooopp,,  PPhh..  11AA  ––  JJuull  22000066
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd,,  PPhh..  22  ––  DDeecc  22000077
 LLiimmmmeerr  LLoooopp,,  PPhh..  11BB  ––  MMaarr  22000088
 LLiimmmmeerr  LLoooopp,,  PPhh..  11CC  ––  OOcctt  22000088
 UUSS  7799,,  SSeeccttiioonn  55BB  ((PPTTFF))  ––  AAuugg  22001100
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd,,  PPhh..  33BB  ––  OOcctt  22001100
 UUSS  7799,,  SSeeccttiioonn  55AA  ((PPTTFF))  ––  MMaayy  22001111
 FFMM11666600  aatt  LLaannddffiillll  RRdd..  ––  SSeepp  22001111
 SSeeccoonndd  SSttrreeeett  DDrraaiinnaaggee  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  DDeecc  22001111
 UUSS  7799  SSeeccttiioonn  33  ((PPTTFF))  ––  JJuull  22001122
 CChhaannddlleerr  RRdd,,  PPhh..  33AA  ––  DDeecc  22001122
 SSeeccoonndd  SSttrreeeett  RRooaaddwwaayy  IImmpprroovveemmeennttss  ––  FFeebb  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  113388  ––  JJuunn  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  110088  ––  NNoovv  22001133
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  117700  ––  FFeebb  22001155
 MMuullttii  SSiittee  TTrraaffffiicc  SSiiggnnaallss  ––  JJuunn  22001166
 BBiillll  PPiicckkeetttt  TTrraaiill  ((EEaasstt  WWiilllliiaammssoonn  CCoouunnttyy  EExxppoo  CCeenntteerr  AAcccceessss  RRooaadd))  ––  NNoovv  22001166
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111100  SSoouutthh  ––  MMaayy  22001188
 CCoouunnttyy  RRooaadd  111199  ––  MMaarr  22001199

4



183

PARMER

NEENA
HAVE

LAKE
LINEB

LVD
AVERY

RANC
HBLVD

P ARMERLN

UNIVE
RSITY

ANDE
RSON

 MILL 
RD

Åõ620

O'CONNOR DR

SAMBASSRD

MC
NE
ILR
D

UV1.25

UV1.08

UV1.18

UV1.21

UV1.01

UV1.04

UV1.20

UV1.11

UV1.17

UV1.09

UV1.02

UV1.06

UV1.14UV1.19

UV1.07
UV1.03

UV1.10

UV1.30

UV1.24

UV1.23 UV1.31

UV1.26

!"#$35
CR172

LONE OA
K TRL

3
33 3

3

2 2
2

22
3
2

2

3
1

Completed/Open to Traffic 
1.01   Anderson Mill Rd. 
1.02   Avery Ra nch  Blvd. (183 to P a rm er La ne) 
1.03   La ke Creek Dra ina g e – P h a se 1 
1.04   La ke Creek Dra ina g e – P h a se 2 
1.06   McNeil Road - P h a se 1 
1.07   McNeil Road - P h a se 2  
1.08   P ond Spring s a t Turtle Rock Sig na l 
1.09   RM 620 Fea sib ility Study 
1.10   Wyom ing  Spring s North  Study 
1.11   RM 620 Interim  Im provem ents – P h a se 1 
1.14   O’Connor Extension
1.17   P ond Spring s Road 
1.18   O’Connor Overpa ss a t SH 45 
1.19   RM 620 (Cornerwood Dr. to Wyom ing  Spring s) 
1.20   Wyom ing  Spring s (620 to Brig h twa ter Blvd.) 
1.21   CR 174 (Ha iry Ma n Rd.) Bridg e Ra il Reh a b  
1.23   Forest North  Dra ina g e Study - P h a se 1
1.25   King  of King s Crossing
1.26   P ea rson Ra nch  Road (Desig n)
1.24   P ea rson Ra nch  Underpa ss a t SH 45/ RM 620
1.30   Grea t Oa ks a t Brush y Creek (desig n)
1.31   Forest North  Dra ina g e Im provem ents - P h a se 2 (desig n)
1.31   Forest North  Dra ina g e Im provem ents - P h a se 3 (desig n)

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 1 - RECINCT 1 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOOKOOK



UV281UV329

UV225

UV264

UV258

UV221

UV221

UV270a

LAKELINE BLVD

AVERY RAN CH BLV D

O'CONNO R DR

SAM BASS RD

PARMER LN

MCN
EIL

RD

UNIVERSITY

UV221UV278

UV224

UV235

UV284

UV227

UV225UV225

UV270

UV221

UV309

CR
 17

2

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 1 - RECINCT 1 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOOKOOK

In Design
227   University Boulevard Widening (IH 35 to Sunrise Road)
258   IH 35 Corridor Operational Analysis (SH 45 to

      RM 1431)
270   Great Oaks Drive Bridge at Brushy Creek 
284   Hairy Man Road/Brushy Creek Road Safety

 Improvements (Brushy Bend to
      Sam Bass Road)

309   Pond Springs Road Area Drainage Improvements
 (Pond Springs Road to US 183)

Åõ3406

Completed/Open to Traffic
221   Pearson Ranch Road
221   Pearson Ranch Road at Avery Ranch

      Boulevard Traffic Signal
221   Pearson Ranch Road and Iveans Way

      Pedestrian Crossing
221   Neenah Avenue and Pearson Ranch Road

      Traffic Signal
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 2
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 3 (Design)
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Anderson

      Mill Zone
235   RM 620 Phase 2 (Wyoming Springs 

      to Deep Wood Drive)
270a Great Oaks Drive Waterline Relocations
278   Neenah Avenue Widening (Olive Hill Drive to

      0.5 miles east of Olive Hill Drive)
281   O'Connor Drive North of RM 620

Under Construction/Bidding
224   North Mays Street Extension

      (Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)
264   RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail (IH 35 Frontage

      Road to Deep Wood Drive)
329   O'Connor Drive Traffic Signals (Morgan Hill, Great 

 Oaks and Liberty Walk Intersections)



UV462

UV341

UV462a

LAKELINE BLVD

AVERY RAN CH BLVD

SAM BASS RD

PARMER LN

MC
NE

IL
RD

UNIVERSITY

UV225

UV339

CR172

CR 17
2

CR 172
CR 172

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 1 - RECINCT 1 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOOKOOK

In Design
339   Wyoming Springs Intersection Improvements (At Smyers Lane)
341   Wyoming Springs Extension (Brightwater Boulevard/Creek Bend to 

      Sam Bass Road)
462   Corridor H/Sam Bass Road (RM 1431 to Wyoming Springs Drive)

Åõ3406

Under Construction/Bidding
225   Forest North Drainage Improvements Phase 3
462a Corridor H/Sam Bass Road Interim Traffic Signals



                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

North Mays Street Extension Phase 1
(Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)

Project Length: 1 mile
Roadway Classification: Arterial Collector

Project Schedule:  January 2019 - December 2020
Estimated Construction Cost: $10.9 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/04/2020: Capital Excavation placed flexible base on the south end of the
project. Subcontractor Capstar Electric installed electrical conduit and ground
boxes on the south end of the project.

09/11/2020: The retaining wall at the detention pond on Parcel 7 was
backfilled. Concrete curb and gutter was placed at the ends of the widening.  

09/18/2020: The north driveway to the training center was formed and
poured. Concrete curb and gutter tie-ins were completed. The concrete flume
was formed and poured in the detention pond on the north end of the project. 

09/25/2020: The sidewalk and shared use path were formed and poured on
the north end of the project. Subcontractor Capstar Electric continued
installing electrical conduit and ground boxes on the north end of the project
and at the intersection of North Mays and Future Arterial L. 

10/02/2020: Rock riprap was placed at the outfalls of the drainage structures.
Subcontractor Lone Star Paving paved asphalt at the ends of the project.
Subcontractor Capstar drilled and placed illumination foundations on the south
end of the project.

Design Engineer:  LJA Engineering
Contractor: Capital Excavation
Construction Observation:
Kyle McCoy, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

8



North Mays Street Extension Phase 1 (Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)
Project No. 1810-265 Original Contract Price = $10,775,835.75

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

11/14/2018 12/4/2018 1/18/2019 1/28/2019 410 0 410

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 1/28/2019 1/31/2019 4 $523,139.40 $523,139.40 $58,126.60 $58,126.60 5 1
2 2/1/2019 2/28/2019 28 $2,584.80 $525,724.20 $287.20 $58,413.80 5 8
3 3/1/2019 4/30/2019 61 $102,281.40 $628,005.60 $11,364.60 $69,778.40 6 23
4 5/1/2019 5/31/2019 31 $593,318.74 $1,221,324.34 $65,924.30 $135,702.70 12 30
5 6/1/2019 6/30/2019 30 $188,661.93 $1,409,986.27 $20,962.44 $156,665.14 14 38
6 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $590,007.31 $1,999,993.58 $65,556.37 $222,221.51 20 45
7 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $628,396.35 $2,628,389.93 $69,821.82 $292,043.33 27 53
8 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $2,393,911.61 $5,022,301.54 $265,990.17 $558,033.50 51 60
9 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $724,961.48 $5,747,263.02 $80,551.28 $638,584.78 59 68

10 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $378,890.89 $6,126,153.91 $42,098.99 $680,683.77 63 75
11 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $341,316.16 $6,467,470.07 $37,924.02 $718,607.79 66 82
12 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $258,548.22 $6,726,018.29 $28,727.58 $747,335.37 69 90
13 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $191,886.33 $6,917,904.62 $21,320.70 $768,656.07 71 97
14 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $176,371.44 $7,094,276.06 $19,596.83 $788,252.90 72 105
15 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 30 $395,476.16 $7,489,752.22 $43,941.79 $832,194.69 76 112
16 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 31 $277,797.27 $7,767,549.49 $30,866.36 $863,061.05 79 120
17 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $385,340.38 $8,152,889.87 $42,815.60 $905,876.65 83 127
18 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $418,604.43 $8,571,494.30 $46,511.61 $952,388.26 87 134
19 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $202,731.51 $8,774,225.81 $22,525.72 $974,913.98 90 142
20 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $117,670.32 $8,891,896.13 $13,074.48 $987,988.46 91 149

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 5/5/2020 $0.00 -$                       

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 5/5/2020 $24,898.11 24,898.11$            

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
3 10/6/2020 $67,872.45 92,770.56$              

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
4 10/6/2020 $21,002.40 113,772.96$            

Adjusted Price = $10,889,608.71

4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This Change Order modifies the contract to require that Chandler Creek, LP, a Delaware limited 
partnership (collectively referred to as "Seller") be an additional insured to Capital Excavation's (Contractor) commercial general liability (CGL) insurance policy 
and to their commercial auto liability (Auto Liability) insurance policy. Adding the Seller to the Contractor's insurance was in the terms and conditions of the Real 
Estate Contract between the Chandler Creek, LP and Williamson County. The Real Estate Contract was finalized after the plans were completed.  

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order compensates the Contractor for modifications to Driveway #1 that include 
raising the elevation of the driveway to match the current driveway, improving the driveway by adding 6" of flex base to the pavement section, and using higher 
strength concrete. The driveway elevation was maintained to minimize the impact of flooding on the driveway access. The improvements were necessary due to 
the high volume of heavy truck and trailer traffic that uses the driveway.  

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order compensates the Contractor for adding electronic portable changeable 
message boards to provide advance notification of the closure of North Mays, from Jeffery Way to Paloma Drive. The Change Order also adds compensation for 
the removal of the City of Round Rock Public Safety Training Center sign. Electrical ground boxes and installation of illumination on the Chandler Branch bridge 
will be added at the request of Oncor.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order adds a 24” encasement to the relocation of the new City of Round Rock 12” Water Line A that 
crosses the roadway at the north end of the project. The installation of the water line was included in the plans, but the encasement was not. The encasement is 
required to protect the water line under the roadway.

9



Great Oaks Water Line Relocations
Project No. 3185 Original Contract Price = $1,325,000.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

1/7/2020 2/4/2020 2/19/2020 2/24/2020 6/18/2020 60 0 60

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 2/24/2020 3/2/2020 8 $336,836.04 $336,836.04 $37,426.23 $37,426.23 25 13
2 3/2/2020 3/27/2020 26 $359,779.20 $696,615.24 $39,975.46 $77,401.69 52 57
3 3/28/2020 5/5/2020 39 $493,633.29 $1,190,248.53 $54,848.15 $132,249.84 88 122

10/2/2020 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 6/2/2020 $30,099.11 30,099.11$              

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 6/2/2020 $140,830.73 170,929.84$            

Adjusted Price = $1,495,929.84

Substantial Completion was granted as of 6/18/20. 

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County.  This Change Order adds work to prevent bats from roosting under the Great Oaks Bridge over 
Brushy Creek.  This item is being added to the project so that the work can be performed during the winter season.  

 4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work.  This Change Order adds revisions to the Brushy Creek MUD water line design that did not make 
it into the original plans.  

10



Project Location 

Forest North Phase 3
(Residential Drainage of the Forest North subdivision)

Project Length: Residential Neighborhood
Roadway Classification: Drainage Improvements

Project Schedule:  June 2020 - January 2022
Estimated Construction Cost: $4.8 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/04/2020: DeNucci Constructors installed an 8” City of Austin (COA) water
line on Chester Forest in the Norchester Zone. Storm sewer installation was
completed along Broadmeade Avenue in the Braes Valley Zone. Flowable fill
was poured in the Braes Valley Zone.

09/11/2020: Installation began on the 8” COA water line A on Stillforest Street
in the Norchester Zone. The 8” COA water line B was installed on Stillforest
Street across Chester Forest Street in the Sherbourne zone.  

09/18/2020: COA water line services were installed on Stillforest in the
Norchester zone. Ditch work and grading continued in the Braes Valley zone.

09/25/2020: Installation began for the 8” COA water line A on Longvale
Street. Drop inlet aprons and driveways were formed and poured at various
locations in the Braes Valley Zone.

10/02/2020: Installation began for the 8” COA water line on Springvale in the
Shady Oaks Zone and continued for the 30” RCP storm sewer line pipe, drop
inlets, and manholes on Stillforest in the Norchester Zone. Drop inlet aprons,
curb and gutter, and driveways were formed and poured.

Design Engineer:  K. Friese & Associates
Contractor: DeNucci Contractors
Construction Observation:
Tracy Cooper, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

11



Forest North Phase 3
Project No. 3866 Original Contract Price = $4,793,058.15

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

4/23/2020 5/5/2020 6/1/2020 6/11/2020 600 0 600

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 6/11/2020 6/30/2020 20 $162,371.70 $162,371.70 $18,041.30 $18,041.30 4 3
2 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $312,289.20 $474,660.90 $34,698.80 $52,740.10 11 9
3 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $290,125.80 $764,786.70 $32,236.20 $84,976.30 18 14
4 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $287,032.05 $1,051,818.75 $31,892.45 $116,868.75 24 19

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 10/6/2020 $22,353.00 22,353.00$              

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 10/6/2020 $5,019.92 27,372.92$              

Adjusted Price = $4,820,431.07

2E: Differing Site Conditions(unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order makes various changes to the City 
of Austin (COA) water line layout on Perthshire Street and Broadmeade Avenue in the Braes Valley Zone. 4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third Party 
requesed work. The cost of this change order is being paid for by the City of Austin and they have reviewed and approved this revision and additional cost.  

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order modifies the grate elevation of an existing drop inlet and regrades the 
ditches to improve drainage at 9615 Moorberry Street. The drop inlet was installed in a previous Forest North drainage improvement project.  

12



Project Location 

O'Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill, Great Oaks, and Liberty Walk Intersections)

Project Length: .1 miles
Roadway Classification: Residential Intersections

Project Schedule:  October 2019 - January 2021 
Estimated Construction Cost: $0.9 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/04/2020: Champion Infrastructure continued trenching and installing
conduits at the southeast corner of the Liberty Walk intersection. 

09/11/2020: Materials were delivered to the project and conduit installation
continued at the southeast corner of the Liberty Walk intersection.    

09/18/2020: The installation of conduits at the southeast corner of the
Liberty Walk intersection and inside the median island east of the intersection
were completed. Installation of ground boxes began and preparation for open
cutting conduit crossings at Great Oaks continued. 

09/25/2020: Setting ground boxes and concrete placement for ground box
aprons were completed at the Liberty Walk intersection. Replacement of the
removed sidewalks and curbs at the Liberty Walk intersection has begun. 

10/02/2020: Concrete continued to be formed and placed for ground box
aprons, sidewalks and curbs at the Liberty Walk intersection. Conduits for the
controller cabinet at the northwest corner of the Liberty Walk intersection
were installed. Design changes are ongoing, in response to differing site
conditions at Liberty Walk and Great Oaks intersections.

Design Engineer:  Kimley-Horn
Contractor: Champion Infrastructure
Construction Observation:
Clayton Weber / Feng Chen, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

13



O'Connor Traffic Signals
Project No. 1907-333 Original Contract Price = $853,503.50

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

8/20/2019 9/17/2020 10/3/2019 10/14/2019 210 0 210

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $91,850.40 $91,850.40 $10,205.60 $10,205.60 11 14
2 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $56,002.50 $147,852.90 $6,222.50 $16,428.10 18 29
3 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $80,984.74 $228,837.64 $8,998.30 $25,426.40 28 44
4 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $41,649.50 $270,487.14 $4,627.73 $30,054.13 33 58

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 9/29/2020 $19,683.04 19,683.04$              

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 10/6/2020 $33,656.00 53,339.04$              

Adjusted Price = $906,842.54

2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order adds a new item to compensate the 
Contractor for extra work to install conduit crossings via open-cut method and to repair storm sewer pipes that were damaged while attempting directional 
drilling. This Change Order also subtracts bid quantities for conduit items that will not be used at Liberty Walk intersection after switching to open-cut method.

2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable). This Change Order changes the method of 
construction from directional boring to open trenching for the installation of conduits under the existing roadway for the signals at the intersection of O'Connor 
Drive and Great Oaks Drive. This change in the method of construction was necessary due to the location of existing utilities within the right of way and in the 
roadway. To accommodate the open cut trench method, the designer changed the conduit from 2 - 3" and 1 - 2" conduits to 4 - 2" conduits. The conduit run 
equals approximately 300 feet and this change order adds an additional 2" run to the project, totalling 1200 linear feet. This Change Order also adds a new Force 
Account item to pay for off-duty police officers and vehicles for traffic control during open trenching operations at the Great Oaks and Morgan Hill intersections.

14



Åõ279

BAGDAD
RD

LAKE
LINE

BLVD
AVERY

RANC
HBL
VD

SAMBASSRDP ARMER
LN

RONALD
W
REAGAN

LAKELINEBLVD

UV2.07
UV2.15

UV2.45

UV2.42

UV2.48

UV2.41

UV2.05

UV2.31

UV2.11

UV2.14

UV2.03

UV2.13

UV2.24

UV2.16

UV2.34

UV2.06

UV2.23

UV2.17

UV2.37

UV2.08

UV2.26

UV2.01

UV2.27

UV2.25UV2.12

UV2.38

UV2.50

UV2.26

UV2.49

UV2.44

UV2.52

UV2.20

UV2.40
UV2.47

UV2.32

UV2.28

UV2.10

UV2.09

UV2.22UV2.21

UV2.18

UV2.19

UV2.36

UV2.35
UV2.51

UV2.55
UV2.57

UV2.53

UV2.56

UV2.54

UV2.46

ab183

CR 200

CR 282

CR
 18
0

CR210
CR 207

CR
279

CR
28
7

CR 276
CR 266

CR 288

CR 285

DOUBL
EFILE

TRCE

CR 281

CR 2
76CR280

CR260

OWEN
P ASS

CR 25
8

CR
21
2

CR 28
4

LOOKOUTDR

CR 201

CR 236

CR 20
4

CR 283

CR209

CR203

CR 269

WCR202

CR 20
5

LITTLE RIVER RD

CR 286

CR 206

CR286SP UR

CR 208
CR
214
E CR 2

02

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 2 - RECINCT 2 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  LLONGONG

UU29

2.01   Vista  Ridg e Blvd. 
2.03   Brushy Creek Road 
2.05   Cypress Creek Road 
2.06   La keline Blvd. (Crysta l Fa lls P kwy to New Hope Dr) 
2.07   River Bend Oa ks Subdivision
2.08   Rona ld W. Rea g a n South – P ha se 1 
2.09   Rona ld W. Rea g a n North – P ha se 1 
2.10   CR 175 (RM 1431 to Reg iona l P a rk)
2.11   CR 185 
2.12   CR 200 (CR 201 to Lackey Creek) 
2.13   CR 214 (SH 29 to Rolling  Hills Dr.)
2.14   CR 258 (US 183 to Sunset Ridg e) 
2.15   RM 1869 a t SH 29  
2.16   La keline Blvd. (Lyndhurst to P a rm er)
2.17   Sa n Gabriel P a rkway – P ha se 1 
2.18   US 183 Widening  at CR 274 
2.19   Rona ld W. Rea g a n South – P ha se 2 
2.20   Ka uffm a n Loop 
2.21   CR 175 Extension – P ha se 2A 
2.22   CR 179 
2.23   Sa n Gabriel P a rkway – P ha se 2  
2.24   CR 214 – P ha se 2A 
2.25   CR 214 – P ha se 2B
          Schem atic 
2.26   SH 29 Im provem ents 
          Study & Schem atic 
2.27   US 183 (P TF) 
2.28   CR 272 
2.31   Brushy Creek Road 
2.32   RM 1431 
2.34   Hero Way 
2.35   US 183 a t FM 3405 Tra ffic Sig na l 
2.36   US 183 a t FM 3405 Left Turn La ne 
2.37   SH 29 TWLTL in Liberty Hill 
2.38   CR 260 / CR 266 at SH 29 
2.40   La keline Blvd. P ha se 2  (Old Qua rry Rd. to Old 2243)
2.41   Sewa rd Junction Im provem ents Study 
2.42   Sa n Gabriel P a rkway West 
2.44   US 183 a t RM 1869
2.45   La keline Blvd. at US 183
2.46   CR 258 (Sunset Ridg e to Rea g a n Blvd) (Desig n)
2.47   La keline Blvd. P ha se 3 (Crysta l Fa lls P kwy. to Old Qua rry Rd.) 
2.48   Sewa rd Junction Schem atic (SE a nd SW) 
2.49   La keline Blvd. Rig ht Turn La nes (Desig n)
2.50   Ba g dad Rd. North P ha se 2 Schem atic  (CR 280 to SH 29)
2.52   RM 1431 a t P a rm er/ Rea g a n CFI
2.53   Cypress Creek Road at US 183
2.54   CR 272 Overla y
2.55   Brushy Creek Ea st Overla y
2.56   Cypress Creek Road at La keline
2.57   Brushy Creek Road at P a rm er La ne

Completed/Open to Traffic



UV285b

UV439

UV328

UV331

UV285a UV277

UV326

UV285

BAGDAD
RD

LAKELINE BLVDAVERY R ANCH BLVD

SAM B A SS RD

PARMER
LN

RONALD
W

R EAGAN

LAKELINE BLVD

CR288

CR 200

CR
258

CR
 23

6

CR 266
CR 284

CR 285

CR 207

CR 276 CR 270

CR279
CR 29
0

CR266

CR 272

CR
277

CR279

CR 21
1

CR213

CR
272

CR
263

CR270

CR
258

CR
214

CR279

CR288

CR 259
CR283

CR 38
00

CR288

CR 27
9

CR
 21

2

CR
287

CR200

CR200

CR270

CR
180

CR285

CR 279

CR 236

CR 203

CR 258

CR
210

CR 260

CR
257

CR
 28

2

CR 286

CR 26
7

CR 266CR
 28

7

CR
 28

2
CR 206

CR 208

CR
 21

4

CR 236

CR 284CR 285

CR 201

CR 209
CR 207

CR 201 CR
 20

0

CR 236

CR 284
CR 281

CR 202

CR 200

CR 204

CR 207

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 2 - RECINCT 2 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  LLONGONG

In Design
277   CR 258 Extension (US 183 to Sunset Ridge Drive)
285c CR 200 (CMTA Railroad to CR 201)
326   RM 2243 Realignment (183A to Southwest Bypass)

Under Construction/Bidding
271   Seward Junction Southeast (US 183 at CR 259 to 
       SH 29 at CR 266)

274   Seward Junction Southwest (SH 29 at CR 213 to
 US 183 at CR 259)

Completed/Open to Traffic
242   Little Elm Trail (Lakeline Boulevard to US 183)
256   CR 258 (Sunset Ridge to Reagan Boulevard)
282   New Hope Drive Phase 1 (Cottonwood Creek Trail to 
       Ronald Reagan Boulevard)

285   CR 200 Study (SH 29 to CR 236)
285a State Highway 29 Intersection at CR 200/Loop 332
285b CR 200 at Bold Sundown Left Turn Lane
314   Old 2243/Hero Way West (Lakeline Boulevard to
       west of US 183)

317   Bagdad Road North (Collaborative Way to RM 2243)
318   Anderson Mill Road (Gaspar Bend to RM 1431)
328   Ronald Reagan at Santa Rita Ranch
331   Lakeline Boulevard Right Turn Lanes
438   Bagdad Road (CR 279) at CR 278 (River Ranch
       County Park Road)

439   San Gabriel Ranch Road Bridge at Lackey Creek

UV314

UV317

UV285c

UV438

UV256

UV271
UV274

UV282

UV242
UV318



UV346

UV344
BA GDAD RD

LAKELINE BLVDAVERY R ANCH BLVD

SAM B A SS RD

PARMER
LN

RONALD
W

REAGAN

LAKELINE BLVD

UV343

CR 180

CR
 20

0

CR
272

CR 282

RAIDER
WAY

CR
274

CR 210

CR 207

CR
 28

7

MONTR
OSE

DR

CR
178

CR 29
0

FALCON
LN

CR
263

S BAKER
CIR

CR 266

BOLD
SUNDOWN

CR
278

CR 259

CR 281

BRNT CR
323

CR276

CR 288

CR 280

CR 279

CR 260

E NEW
HOPE DR

CR
257

CR 270

CR 284

CR 201

CR 258

CR 285

CR 236

CR
213

CR
 21

4

CR 204

CR283

CR 209

CR 203

CR269

STABLE

OAKS DR

W CR202

BRNT CR
278

RO
LL

IN
G

HI
LL

S 
DR

CR
277

DOUBLE
FILE TRCE

CR
 21

2

CR286

CR 21
1CR 206

CR 286SPUR

CR 208

CR
 26

7

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 2 - RECINCT 2 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  LLONGONG

In Design
343   Bagdad Road/CR 279 (Loop 332 to CR 281/Leander City Limits)
344   Corridor I2 (US 183 to SH 29 (and to Burnet County Line)
346   Liberty Hill (SH 29) Bypass (RM 1869 to CR 279)



Bagdad Road (CR 279) at CR 278 (River Ranch County Park Road)
Project No. 1805-229 Original Contract Price = $2,959,000.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

8/15/2018 9/11/2018 10/18/2018 10/28/2018 2/13/2020 480 480

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 10/28/2018 12/31/2018 65 $7,296.69 $7,296.69 $810.74 $810.74 0 14
2 1/1/2019 1/31/2019 31 $204,653.21 $211,949.90 $22,739.25 $23,549.99 8 20
3 2/1/2019 2/28/2019 28 $159,772.72 $371,722.62 $17,752.52 $41,302.51 14 26
4 3/1/2019 3/31/2019 31 $137,964.55 $509,687.17 $15,329.40 $56,631.91 19 32
5 4/1/2019 4/30/2019 30 $194,875.30 $704,562.47 $21,652.81 $78,284.72 26 39
6 5/1/2019 5/31/2019 31 $136,748.31 $841,310.78 $15,194.26 $93,478.98 31 45
7 6/1/2019 6/30/2019 30 $1,833.75 $843,144.53 $203.75 $93,682.73 31 51
8 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $52,512.42 $895,656.95 $5,834.67 $99,517.40 33 58
9 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $200,547.82 $1,096,204.77 $22,283.13 $121,800.53 40 64

10 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $207,014.36 $1,303,219.13 $23,001.60 $144,802.13 48 70
11 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $236,499.39 $1,539,718.52 $26,277.71 $171,079.84 57 77
12 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $123,864.67 $1,663,583.19 $13,762.74 $184,842.58 61 83
13 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $137,437.19 $1,801,020.38 $15,270.80 $200,113.38 66 90
14 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $603,824.45 $2,404,844.83 $67,091.60 $267,204.98 88 96
15 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 14 $78,833.21 $2,483,678.04 $8,759.25 $275,964.23 91 99
16 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 0 $22,139.83 $2,505,817.87 $2,459.98 $278,424.21 92 99
17 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 0 $2,202.31 $2,508,020.18 $244.70 $278,668.91 92 99
18 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 0 $23,494.25 $2,531,514.43 $2,610.47 $281,279.38 93 99
19 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 0 $7,866.87 $2,539,381.30 $874.10 $282,153.48 93 99
20 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 0 $30,656.69 $2,570,037.99 $3,406.30 $285,559.78 95 99

1/2/2020 Comments -

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 11/26/2019 $53,416.00 53,416.00$            

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 5/19/2020 $7,944.11 61,360.11$            

Adjusted Price = $3,020,360.11

Awaiting grass growth.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This change order adds new bid items for the design revision to add a service meter to the 12" waterline. This 
change order also replaces the DR-18 waterline pipe called for in the plans with a DR-14 pipe inside the park. 3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by 
the County. This change order adds new bid items for the connection of 12" waterline to the waterline installed by others at the west end of the park road, for 
additional tapping saddle for landscape irrigation, and 4" PVC sleeves under roadway for future irrigation and electrical needs in the park. This change order also 
replaces the Type 1 ground box with a Type D ground box for the communication line along the park road.

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds new property fence on the south side of the River Ranch Park Road to 
replace the existing old wire fence as requested by the County's Parks Department. 2E: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Miscellaneous difference in site 
conditions (unforeseeable) This Change Order adjusts the quantities of Type D fencing and Type 1 gate as a result of addressing difference in site conditions. The 
proposed wire fence and gate on west side right of way in front of Highland Oaks subdivision is no longer needed. Also, the driveways at Sta 549+19 and 566+64 
have recessed gates and do not require new gates to be installed. 

18



                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

Seward Junction Improvements
(SH 29 to CR 266 & CR 266 South of 259 to SH 29)

Project Length: 2.9 Miles
Roadway Classification: Minor Urban Collector 

Project Schedule: May 2019 - January 2021
Estimated Construction Cost: $13.7 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/11/2020: Southwest: Subcontractor JKB installed the 6” and 8”
wastewater lines into the steel encasements, part of the relocation of the
existing utility lines, south of SH 29. Ditches were graded along the east side of
the roadway from SH 29 down to Culvert E. Jordan Foster obliterated more of
Tx Materials’ old driveway south of SH 29. Southeast: The Contractor placed
some 18” rock riprap in Channel E downstream of the ditches. Subcontractor
Roadway Specialties installed the guardrail on Bridge E. PEC Pond: The 
Contractor continued topsoil placement along the trickle channel and the
safety end treatments at the PEC maintenance driveway. 

09/25/2020: Southwest: Subcontractor JKB welded up the encasement pipe,
and installed the 6” water line. The tie-in of the 6” water line south of SH 29
was completed. JKB adjusted 2 manholes between Tx Materials driveways 1
and 3. Jordan Foster began excavation to subgrade from SH 29 to 600’ south
of SH 29. Southeast: The Contractor fine graded flexible base, near PEC and
on CR 266. Subcontractor Tx Materials placed the prime coat on these two
areas and placed the 1” bond breaker near PEC on CR 259 and on CR 266.
Subcontractor ESSI seeded and placed silt fence, rock berms, and soil
retention blankets between US 183 northbound and PEC. Subcontractor
Roadway Specialties installed the guardrail at SH 29 and CR 266. 

Design Engineer:  K Friese and Aguirre   
& Fields
Contractor: Jordan Foster Construction
Construction Observation:
Steven Shull / Feng Chen, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

19



Seward Junction Improvements (SH 29 to CR 266 & CR 259 to SH 29)
Project No. 1812-282 Original Contract Price = $13,270,258.10

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

12/19/2018 3/5/2019 4/22/2019 5/2/2019 540 540

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 5/2/2019 6/30/2019 60 $1,138,506.71 $1,138,506.71 $126,500.75 $126,500.75 9 11
2 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $900,193.70 $2,038,700.41 $100,021.52 $226,522.27 17 17
3 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $500,440.00 $2,539,140.41 $55,604.44 $282,126.71 21 23
4 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $781,187.35 $3,320,327.76 $86,798.60 $368,925.31 27 28
5 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $629,436.02 $3,949,763.78 $69,937.33 $438,862.64 32 34
6 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $278,357.53 $4,228,121.31 $30,928.62 $469,791.26 34 39
7 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $499,295.12 $4,727,416.43 $55,477.23 $525,268.49 38 45
8 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $507,587.04 $5,235,003.47 $56,398.56 $581,667.05 42 51
9 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $495,830.37 $5,730,833.84 $55,092.26 $636,759.31 47 56

10 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $1,495,940.26 $7,226,774.10 -$256,402.78 $380,356.53 56 62
11 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 30 $925,168.98 $8,151,943.08 $48,693.11 $429,049.64 63 68
12 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 31 $751,064.06 $8,903,007.14 $39,529.68 $468,579.32 68 73
13 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $728,210.17 $9,631,217.31 $38,326.85 $506,906.17 74 79
14 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $418,630.14 $10,049,847.45 $22,033.17 $528,939.34 77 85
15 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $266,456.21 $10,316,303.66 $14,024.01 $542,963.35 79 90
16 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $216,227.68 $10,532,531.34 $11,380.40 $554,343.75 81 96

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 2/28/2020 $112,306.36 112,306.36$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 6/16/2020 $9,946.75 122,253.11$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 7/21/2020 $3,372.67 125,625.78$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
04 8/4/2020 $17,647.04 143,272.82$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
05 8/4/2020 $272,222.65 415,495.47$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
06 10/6/2020 $681.04 416,176.51$          

Adjusted Price = $13,686,434.61

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This change order revises items and quantities that were entered incorrectly or omitted in the bid tab for Seward 
Junction SW, Seward Junction SE and PEC Pond.

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order adds a pay item to adjust existing manholes located within the ROW to match finish grade. The
manholes are on the existing LCRA line that runs through the project. The manholes were shown in the plans but a bid item to cover the cost of the adjustments to 
these manholes were not included in the original plans.

2G: Differing Site Conditions (Unforseeable). Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order compensates the Contractor for additional work to lower an 
existing wastewater line that is in conflict with the proposed driveway culvert located on CR 266 approximately 500 feet south of the SH 29 intersection on the east 
side of the roadway. The location of the line was not identified in the plans and the Contractor damaged the line while excavating for the driveway culvert. This 
work is located in the Seward Junction Southeast portion of the project.  

2J: Differing Site Conditions (unforeseeable). Other. This Change Order adds Work Zone Pavement Mark Removeable pay items to the contract. The plans 
included Work Zone Pavement Mark Non-Removeable items that worked with the asphalt pavement section. Since the roadway is concrete paving, Work Zone 
Pavement Mark Removeable items needed to be added for the different phases and traffic switches called for in the plans. This applies to the Seward Junction 
Southeast portion of the project.

2G: Differing Site Conditions (Unforseeable). Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order compensates the Contractor for additional work to install a 
new 6" and a new 8" wastewater line, a new 6" water line, and remove an existing wastewater vault that has been abandoned. The installation of the new 
underground utilities are necessary because the existing lines are in conflict with the proposed construction at the intersection of SH 29 and Seward Junction 
Southwest. The utilities belong to the City of Liberty Hill.    

2C: Differing Site Conditions (unforseable) New development (conditions changing after PS&E completed). This Change Order adds the latest Guardrail End 
Treatment (MSKT) standard to the contract. 2E: Differeing Site Conditions. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable)(Item 9). This Change 
Order adds work to extend a storm sewer pipe, revises the slope on some SET's from 4:1 to 3:1 (RFI 28), due to a change in the PGL of the roadway. A pipe 
underdrain system was added to the contract to address groundwater encountered during construction of the roadway (RFI #29). Construction Exit items that were 
not used on the project were deleted from the contract. This Change Order is for work in the Southeast portion of the project.

20



RED
BUD

LN

LAKELIN EBLVD
UV3.04

UV3.47

UV1.16

UV3.03

UV3.10

UV1.12

UV3.07

UV3.15

UV3.05
UV3.23

UV3.06

UV3.28

UV3.40

UV3.08

UV3.11

UV3.24

UV3.02

UV3.30

UV3.17

UV3.31

UV3.34

UV3.37

UV3.09

UV3.21

UV3.18

UV3.29

UV3.16

UV3.27

UV3.36

UV3.46

UV3.39

UV3.42

UV3.44
UV3.41

UV3.35

UV3.25
UV3.22

UV3.12

UV2.04

UV3.20

UV3.13

UV3.14

UV2.09

UV2.08

UV3.26
UV3.43
UV3.45

UV3.01

UV3.48!"#$35
¿À29

¿À195

CR262

ECR
304

CR 234

CR261

CR 15
0

CR 23
9

CR 227

CR 120

CR 31
4

CR 30
5

CR 31
1

CR 10
5

CR
312

CR 12
4

CR 31
0

CR2
28

CR 23
9

CR 237

CR 140

SHE
LLR

D CR 19
6

CR 372

CR 245

CR
226

CR 145

CR 30
9

CR 252

CR 14
9

CR 24
1CR 241

CR

15
3

CR 237

CR 17
6

CR 25
4

CR316

CR289

CR 306

CR 230

P OLO BN D

CR 311

CR 31
7

CR 14
7

CR
215

CR155

CR 1
00

CR 375

CR 1
94

CR 223

CHESTN UT CV

CR 10
7

CR 14
4

CR 24
9

CR 251

CR 126

CR 154

CR
255

CR
 23
5

CARDIN AL LN

CR 12
1

CR 256

CR 224

CR 21
7

RAE LN

CR 22
9 CR 308

CR 248

CR 222

SCR289

CR 3001

CR 142

CR 37
0

CR
156

CR 16
7

CR 25
3

CR 307

CR
30
7

SP
EA
RS

RAN CHRD

HID
DE
N L
N

CR 24
3

CR 25
0

CR 216

CR 18
9

BUCKSKIN CV

CR 24
7

CR 24
0

CR 14
7

CR329

RAMMS DR

RE
DB
IRD
RD

CR
231

CR 141

CR
303

CR232

CR
34
4

CR
244

CR
32
8

CR 22
1

CR315

CR 22
0

CR 21
9

CR

225

CR 2
33

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 3 - RECINCT 3 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOVEYOVEY

3.28   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth - P ha se 3 
3.29   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth - P ha se 4 
3.30   RM 2338 (P TF) 
3.31   SH 29 Im prove m e nts Study & Sche m a tic
3.34   SH 195 P roje ct 1  
3.35   SH 29 at P a rk P la ce Dr. & Jack N ickla us Blvd. 
3.36   SH 195 P roje ct 2 
3.37   SH 195 P roje ct 3
3.39   CR 245 Re a lig nm e nt  
3.40   CR 179 
3.41   CR 110 / Arte ria l A Study (desig n)
3.42   CR 111 / CR 105 W e sting house Rd. 
          (FM 1460 to SH 130) (desig n)
3.43   Unive rsity Blvd. (Cha ndle r Rd) Expa nsion (Desig n)
3.44   CR 110 N orth
          (N orth of CR 107 to N orth of Sa m  Houston) (Desig n)
3.45   CR 110 Middle (N orth of Lim m e r Loop to CR 107)
3.46   FM 1460 N orth
3.47   Madrid Drive Exte nsion

Completed/Open to Traffic
1.12   W e sting house Rd. (CR 111)
1.16   SE Inne r Loop at FM 1460 
2.04   Ceda r Hollow at SH 29 
2.08   Rona ld W . Re a g a n South – P h. 1 
2.09   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth – P h. 1
3.01   FM 1460 to CR 110 
3.02   Ge org e town Inne r Loop East 
3.03   Ge org e town Inne r Loop East Exte nsion 
3.04   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – P roje ct 1 
3.05   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – P roje ct 2 
3.06   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – 
          P roje ct 3 Study 
3.07   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – 
          P roje ct 4 Study 
3.08   Ge org e town Inne r Loop – 
          P roje ct 5 Study 
3.09   CR 124  
3.10   CR 142
3.11   CR 145 
3.12   CR 152 Bridg e  Re pla ce m e nt 
3.13   CR 157 
3.14   CR 175
3.15   CR 234 
3.16   CR 245 
3.17   CR 311 
3.18   CR 314
3.20   Rona ld W . Re a g a n South - P ha se 2 
3.21   Rona ld W . Re a g a n N orth - P ha se 2 
3.22   IH-35 at SH 29 Turna rounds (P TF) 
3.48   SH 29 W ide ning  - 12" W a te r Ma in Re location
3.23   SH 29/CR 104 – P ha se 1
3.24   W illia m s Drive (RM 2338)  
3.25   CR 104 – P ha se 2 
3.26   CR 175 Exte nsion - P ha se 2A
3.27   IH 35 N orthbound Fronta g e  Rd. a nd Ra m ps 21



UV306

UV238UV231

UV336

UV326
BAGDAD RD

SAM B ASS RD

CR
110

CR 112

RED
BUD

L N

CR
1 1

9

SE INNE

R
LO

OP

DB WOOD
RD

RONA LD
W

R EAGAN

LAKELINE BLVD
UV251

UV276

UV293

UV237
UV226

UV231

UV243D

UV243A

UV241

UV234

UV291

UV243C

UV453

UV231

UV306

UV292

!"#$35

¿À29

¿À195

¿À138

CR
262

WESTINGHOUSE RD

WESTINGHOUSE RD

CR 234

CR

152
CR 175

CR 261

CR 146

CR 264

CR 26
8

CR 150

CR 239

CR227

CR
120

CR 314

CR 305

TW
IN CREEKDR

CR 175

CR 311

CR 105

CR
312

CR 124

CR 310

CR
106

CR 228

CR 239

CR
332

CR 140

CR 313

PA
TR

IOT
W

AY

CR 388

SHELL RD CR 196

CR 143

STADIUM DR
CR 245

CR 226

CR 145

CR 309

CR 252

CR 149

CR
 25

7

CR 241

JOURNEY PKWY

CR 241

CR 153

CR 237

CR 254 SPUR

CR 176

CR 153 SPUR

CR 254 CR
316

CR 289

CR 306

CR 230

POLO BND

CR 311

CR 317

CR 191

CR 147

CR 215

CR155

CR 100

CR 186

CR 375

CR 194

CR 223

CR 107

DA
W

ND
R

CR 107

COWBOY LN

CR 144
CR 249

CR 162

CR 251

CR 126

CR 313

CR 154

CR 255

CR
 23

5
CARDINAL LN

CR 121

RUNDBERG DR

PALOMINO
CV

CR
 25

6

CR 224

CR 217

CR 229 CR
308CR 396

CR
 33

1

CR

248

CR 222

S
CR 289

CR 3001

CR 103

CR142
CR 370

CR 156

CR 242CR 253

CR 307

CR 307

SPEARSRANCH RD

HID
DE

N
LN

STRADA LUCA

CR 243

CR 166

CR250

CR 216

CR 189

BUCKSKINCV

CR 247

CR 246

CR 240

CR 147

WHITAKERRD

CR 329

RAMMS DR

RE
DB

IR
DR

D

CR 21
8

CR
231

CR 127

CR 141

CR 303

CR 232

CR 148

CR
34

4

CR 238

CR 244

CR
32

8

CR 221

CR 315

CR 220

CR 219

CR 225

CR 233

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 3 - RECINCT 3 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOVEYOVEY

In Design
237   SH 29 at DB Wood (Intersection Improvements)
238   Ronald Reagan Boulevard Extension Planning (IH 35 to SH 95)
292   CR 111 / CR 105 Westinghouse (FM 1460 to SH 130)
326   RM 2243 Realignment (183A to Southwest Bypass)
336   Ronald Reagan Boulevard Widening (SH 29 to FM 3405)
Under Construction/Bidding
231   IH 35 Ramp Reversal and Frontage Road Conversion 

      (FM 972 to CR 312)
231   Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 Bridge Replacement
241   CR 176 at RM 2243 Intersection (Safety Improvements)

Completed/ Open to Traffic (con't)
243a Southwest Bypass Driveways
243c Southwest Bypass Access Route
243d Southwest Bypass Segment 2 

      (Southbound IH 35 to RM 2243)
251   Inner Loop Safety Improvements

      (Belmont Drive to Rockride Lane)
276   Arterial H Extension Phase 1

      (CR 175 to Massey Way)
291   SH 29 at Cedar Hollow

      (Intersection Improvements)
293   Kauffman Loop Phase 1 - Two Lanes

      (northeast quadrant of Reagan at SH 29)
306   CR 305 at IH 35 Bridge Replacement
306   Relocation of 48" Williamson County 

      Regional Raw Waterline - Line A
453   Southwest Bypass Segment 1

 (Southbound IH 35 to 0.5 miles west)

Completed/ Open to Traffic
226   Inner Loop Safety Improvements (Rockride Lane to Wilco Way)
231   Relocation of 48" Williamson County Regional Raw Waterline - Line B
234   RM 2243 at Escalera Parkway (Intersection Improvements)



UV366

UV364

UV370

UV352

UV353

UV354

UV358

UV357

UV361

UV360

§̈¦35

UV29

UV138

UV195

UV459

UV307

UV367 UV292

UV362

BA GDAD
RD

SAM B ASS RD

CR
110

CR 112

RED
BUD

LN

CR
11

9

SE

INNE

R
LO

OP

LAKELINE BLVD

CR 15
2

WESTINGHOUSE

TN

CR 261

CR
 23

4

CR
166

SHELL RD

CR
177

CR 268

CR 241

SUN CITY BLVD

CR 227

CR306

CR
186

CR 107

CR 305

CR 146

CR312

CR 124

UNIVERSITY

BLVD

CR
310CR 291

ROCKRIDE
LN

CR 106

CR 228

MARTINDALE
AVE

JESSICA DR

CR
370

CR 140

PA
TR

IO
T

WA
Y

CR
196

CR 388

WESTINGHOUSE RD

CR 372

CR 105

CR 143

OLD
WALBURG

TRL

STADIUM DR

BIG VALLEY

SPUR

RATTLESNAKE RD

CR 226

CR
252

CR 145

CR 316 SPUR

CR 145
SPUR

CR
309

CR 254 SPUR

CR107
SPUR

CR 237

CR 153
SPUR

HIG
GS

 RD

ST
ILL

MA
N

VA
LL

EY
RD

CR 230 SPUR

CR 289

CR 215

CR 311

N CR 155

SPUR

CR 245

CR
 31

7

CR 245
SPUR

CR 191

MARVIN

LEWIS LN

CR 375

CR 194
CR 262

CR 223

CR 307

PARKSIDE
PKWY

OLD 195

CR 144
CR 249

CR
162

LAURA
LN

CR 251

CR 175

RABBIT
HILL RD

CR 154

DA
WN DR

CR 230

CR 255

CR
 23

5 HUGH
SMITH LN

CR 121

CR 176

CR 149

CR 316

CR257

CR 14
2

CR 256

CR222

CR 120

CR 10
5 S

PU
R

CR 217

CR 308

CR 229

CR 314

CR396

CR
 33

1CR 248

CR 332

S CR289

CR
 15

3

CR 224
CR3001

CR
313

CR
 10

3

CR
167

CR
242

CR
253

CR 150

CR 315CR
243

CR 250

CR
 21

6

CR
189

BELL
GIN RD

CR
247

CR 254

CR 155

CR 246

CR 240

CR 147

RAMMS
DR

HAYDON
LN

CR 239

CR
218

CR 231CR 225

CR 220

CR 126

CR 141

RONALD W REAGAN BLVD

CR 232

CR 148

CR 127
CR

 34
4

CR 238

CR 244

CR
 32

8

CR 221

CR 219 CR 233

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 3 - RECINCT 3 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  CCOVEYOVEY

In Design
292   CR111/CR105 Westinghouse (FM 1460 to SH 130)
307   Bud Stockton Extension (CR 305 to FM 487) 
352   Southwest Bypass Extension (SH 29 to Wolf Ranch Parkway)
353   CR 245 (North of RM 2338 to Ronald Reagan Boulevard)
354   Ronald Reagan at Silver Spur Boulevard
357   Ronald Reagan at Sun City Boulevard
358   SH 195 at Ronald Reagan Boulevard
360   Corridor E5 (Ronald Reagan Extension/Corridor D to IH 35/CR 305)
361   Corridor I1 (FM 3405) (Ronald Reagan Boulevard to US 183)
362   CR 110 North (CR107 to Patriot Way/Sam Houston Avenue)
364   CR 314 Safety Improvement (IH 35 Northbound Frontage Rd to East of CR 3001)
366   CR 332 Realignment (South of FM 487 to North of CR 313)
367   RM 2243 (Ronald Reagan Boulevard to Southwest Bypass)
370   MoKan (Georgetown Inner Loop to University Boulevard)
459   Southeast Inner Loop Extension (Corridor C) (Sam Houston Avenue at Patriot Way to SH 29)



Project Location 

CR 176 at RM 2243
(RM 2243 at Parkside Parkway)

Project Length:  1 Mile
Roadway Classification: Rural Arterial 

Project Schedule: August 2019 - October 2020
Estimated Construction Cost: $2.9 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/04/2020: Joe Bland installed reinforced concrete pipe at the north and
south end of the project under the proposed Shared Use Path (SUP). 

09/18/2020: Joe Bland began forming and pouring the SUP. Approximately
1000’ was poured beginning on the south end of the project. 

09/25/2020: Joe Bland continued forming and pouring SUP. Approximately
200’ of the SUP was poured.  

10/02/2020: Joe Bland continued forming and pouring the SUP.
Approximately 1000’ of the SUP was poured. Approximately 2000’ of the SUP
has been completed. 

Design Engineer:  WSB & Associates
Contractor: Joe Bland Construction
Construction Observation:
Tracy Cooper, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

24



CR 176 at RM 2243 (RM 2243 at Parkside Parkway)
Project No. 1901-285 Original Contract Price = $2,447,560.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

1/8/2019 3/26/2019 7/26/2019 8/5/2019 229 60 289

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time
Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used

1 8/5/2019 8/7/2019 3 $72,005.40 $72,005.40 $8,000.60 $8,000.60 3 1
2 8/8/2019 8/31/2019 24 $182,903.40 $254,908.80 $20,322.60 $28,323.20 10 9
3 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $256,030.43 $510,939.23 $28,447.83 $56,771.03 19 20
4 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $404,602.62 $915,541.85 $44,955.84 $101,726.87 34 30
5 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $172,401.65 $1,087,943.50 $19,155.74 $120,882.61 41 41
6 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $49,862.16 $1,137,805.66 $5,540.24 $126,422.85 43 52
7 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $4,983.70 $1,142,789.36 $553.75 $126,976.60 43 62
8 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $350,483.90 $1,493,273.26 -$48,383.27 $78,593.33 53 72
9 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $148,264.69 $1,641,537.95 $7,803.40 $86,396.73 58 83

10 4/1/2020 4/30/2020 30 $232,512.45 $1,874,050.40 $12,237.50 $98,634.23 66 93
11 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 31 $20,527.25 $1,894,577.65 $1,080.38 $99,714.61 67 104
12 6/1/2020 6/30/2020 30 $239,695.54 $2,134,273.19 $12,615.56 $112,330.17 76 115
13 7/1/2020 7/31/2020 31 $32,529.38 $2,166,802.57 $1,712.07 $114,042.24 77 125
14 8/1/2020 8/31/2020 31 $40,322.75 $2,207,125.32 $2,122.25 $116,164.49 78 136
15 9/1/2020 9/30/2020 30 $162,165.00 $2,369,290.32 $8,535.00 $124,699.49 84 146

.
Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs

01 12/17/2019 $208,869.67 208,869.67$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 6/16/2020 $63,776.63 272,646.30$          

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 8/4/2020 ($204,858.75) 67,787.55$            

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
04 8/4/2020 $452,885.58 520,673.13$          

Adjusted Price = $2,968,233.13

2E: Differing Site Conditions. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforseeable).  This Change Order deletes the quantity for Item 162 Mulch Topdressing 
and Items 260 related to the Lime Treated Subgrade.  The Contractor was able to salvage high quality topsoil from the project limits and reuse that material on the 
final project.  The topsoil used did not require the addition of mulch to establish vegetation or prevent erosion. The Lime Treated Subgrade items were deleted due 
to the high quality of existing material encountered at subgrade elevation. Lab testing determined that the existing material contained a low enough PI that lime 
treatment of the subgrde was not necessary.   

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds a Shared Use Path to (SUP) the project at the request of the County.  
The path extends from RM 2243 (Leander Road) to CR 176 and is located along the west right of way.  The SUP required a pedestrian crossing of Parkside 

4B: Third Party Accommodation. Third party requested work. This Change Order adds relocation of the existing Brushy Creek Municipal Utility District 
(BCMUD) water line along CR 176 and revises the City of Georgetown water line relocations on the project.  

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County. This Change Order adds various items of work to the contract, including: removal of an existing 
driveway, a mail box turnout, a pedestrian curb ramp, wire mesh fencing and gates, realigns a ditch to improve drainage, widens driveway radii, water pumping, 
storm sewer pipe and safety end treatments at a driveway and milling of asphalt on RM 2243.  2E: County Convenience. Differing site conditions. Miscellaneous 
difference in site condition (unforeseeable). This change order compensates the contractor for work necessary to find the existing cave and removes a driveway 
along RM 2243 that was constructed before the job started and not addressed in the plans.

25



SE

IN

NE
R
LO
OP

UNIVE
RSITY

UV4.43

UV4.20

UV4.50

UV4.43

UV4.45

UV4.02

UV4.23

UV4.10
UV4.07 UV4.06UV4.24

UV4.08

UV4.26UV4.04

UV4.29

UV4.13

UV4.25

UV4.27

UV4.34

UV4.41

UV4.28 UV4.22

UV4.30
UV4.55

UV4.54

UV4.48

UV4.35

UV4.05

UV4.36 UV4.21UV4.51

UV4.15

UV4.16

UV4.17

UV4.18

UV4.14

UV4.19

UV4.12

UV4.33

UV4.31

UV4.37
UV4.38

UV4.39
UV4.40

UV4.44
UV4.49

UV4.52

UV4.03UV4.56

UV4.57

UV4.46

UV3.13

UV4.11

UV4.09

UV4.01

UV4.01

UV4.01UV4.29

UV4.58

ab79

CR
460

CR 431

CR
427

CR 324

CR 421

CR 435

CR 436

CR 101

CR 340

CR
 12
9

CHAN
DLER

RD

CR458

CR
42
8

CR 4
93

CR 455

CR 404

CR 47
0

CR 351

CR426

MA
IN
 ST

CR 374

CR 495

CR 432

CR 417

CR 424

CR 100
CR 130

CR364

CR 414

CR
403

CR
 35
2

CR 467

CR 479

CR 320

CR 382

CR
 38
4

CR

31
8

CR 424

CR
 48
1

CR 3
99

CR 469
CR354

CR

355

CR
 40
5

CR365

CR 405

CR 380

CR
 38
6

CR
 36
0

CR
473

CR 48
9

CR 45
3

CR
 40
01

CR 40
8

CR 463

CR
 30
1

CR 32
7

CR
 45
2

CR 361

CR 336

CR 457

CR
 36
3

CR 383

CR
 35
0

CR
 41
9

CR 407

CR 379

CR 373

CR 391

CR 338

CR 422

CR
 49
9

CR
468

CR
 30
1

CR 347

CR 441

CR 41
2

CR 39
4

CR 36
8

CR 485

CR 36
9

N
CR
366

CR 300

CR 484

CR
 44
3

CR 385
CR 449

CR
 48
7

CR 488

CR
472

CR 376

CR
 49
2

CR 43
4

CR

389

CR 477

CR425

CR 34
7

CR358

CR 390

CR 302
CR
450

CR 44
5

CR 323

CR4
48

CR3
26

CR 494

CR 36
7
CR
 40
6

CR 416

CR 336

CR 47
6

CR
 39
3

CR 46
5

CR303

CR 444

CR
31
9

CR 192
CR 334

CR3
71

CR 49
8

CR 41
1

CR
45
6

CR
 39
2

CR 46
2

CR 497

CR 161

CR4
20

CR 45
1

CR 464

CR 16
0

CR 42
5

CR
48
0

CR 46
6

CR335

CR
 36
2

CR321

CR 447

CR 41
0

CR440

CR43
0

CR 43
3

CR 478

CR 482
CR 454

CR474

CR 437

CR
33
9

CR3
77

CR41
5

CR 49
0

CR 381

CR 337

CR342

CR387

CR 423

CR446

CR
 42
9

CR330

CR 341

CR 41
3

CR 356

CR 439

CR 357

CR 345

CR 483CR
 13
4

CR 349

CR 343

CR 43
8

CR 471

CR348

2006 2006 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 4 - RECINCT 4 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  BBOLESOLES

In Design
4.35   FM 1660 (PTF)

4.18   CR 412 
4.19   CR 466
4.20   FM 397 at SH 95 Sig nal 
4.21   Gattis School Rd . RO W
4.22   Lim m e r Loop – Phase 1A
4.23   Thrall School Z one  
4.24   US 79 – Section 1 
4.25   US 79 – Section 2 
4.26   US 79 – Section 3A 
4.27   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 2 
4.28   Lim m e r Loop – Phase 1B
4.29   CR 113 / O ld  Settle rs Blvd .
4.30   Lim m e r Loop – Phase 1C 
4.31   Ke nne y Fort Boulevard  – Phase 1
4.33   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 3A 
4.34   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 3B
4.36   Gattis School Road  
4.37   US 79 - Se ction 3 (PTF)
4.38   2nd  Stre e t Im prove m e nts 
4.39   2nd  Stre e t Drainag e  Im prove m e nts
4.40   US 79 Section 5A (PTF) 
4.41   US 79 Section 5B (PTF)

Completed/Open to Traffic

4.43   FM 1460 Section 2 
4.44   CR 138 
4.45   CR 170 
4.46   FM 1660 at Land fill Rd . (CR 128) 
4.48   CR 119
4.49   CR 108 
4.50   CR 351 at Donahoe  Cre e k
4.51   CR 110/ Arte rial A Stud y Area
4.52   Unive rsity Blvd . (Chand le r Rd .)
          Expansion
4.54   CR 110 South - (De sig n) 
          (US 79 to Lim m e r Lp)
4.55   CR 110 Mid d le
          (North of Lim m e r Loop to CR 107)
4.56   CR 110 at Unive rsity Blvd . (Sig nal)
4.57   Gattis School Rd . at 
          Winte rfie ld  Dr. (Sig nal)
4.58   Trad e sm an Park Crossing

3.13    CR 157
4.01   Brid g e  Re place m e nts Phase 1
          (CR 390, 406, 427)
4.02   CR 424 Brid g e  Re place m e nt 
4.03   Chand le r Rd . – Phase 1 
4.04   CR 100 
4.05   CR 112 – Phase 1 
4.06   CR 119 
4.07   CR 122 at US 79 
4.08   CR 124
4.09   CR 132
4.10   CR 136
4.11   CR 137
4.12   CR 138 & CR 139
          Alig nm e nt Stud y
4.13   CR 300 & CR 301 
4.14   CR 302 
4.15   CR 347 & CR 348 
4.16   CR 368 & CR 369
          (CR 101 to CR 366)
4.17   CR 404 



UV238

UV327

UV506
UV332

UV294

UV260
UV302

CR
110

C R
11

9

SE

IN

NE
R

LO
OP

S CR
366

2ND ST

UNIVERSITY

UV297

UV302

UV269

UV228
UV441

UV296
UV214UV261

CR 123

CR 460

CR431

CR
 42

7

CR 421

CR 435

CR 436

CR 101

CR 129

CR 493

CR
 40

1

CR 455

CR
 40

4

CR 13
7

CR
 45

6

CR 351

CR 426

CR
 37

4

CR 348

CR 432

CR 464

CR198

CR 364

CR 340

CR414

CR
 35

2

CR 124

CR 479

CR 320

CR 417

CR
378

CR
 38

4

CR135

CR 318

CR
 42

4
CR

199

CR 469
CR 354

CR 35
5

CR
 40

5

CR 117

CR
 38

6

CR
 13

4

CR 473

CR382

CHANDLER RD

CR 453

CR
112

CR 420

CR 133

CR 491

CR
408

CR
 45

2

CR 463
CR 361

CR 324

CR
138

CR
 35

0

CR
462

CR
 36

3

CR 327

CR 132

CR
 41

9

CR
 44

2

CR 475

CR
131

CR 407

CR 461

CR422

CR
 46

8

CR 333

CR 394
CR 368

CR 369

CR 15
7

CR 300

CR 44
3

CR 458

CR
385

CR365

CR 119

CR449

CR 472

CR488

CR 49
2

CR 139

CR 434

CR 412

CR
389

CR
197

CR 425

CR477

CR 358

CR 448

CR390

CR 35
9

CR 302

CR
 42

8

CR 450

CR 445

CR323

CR 326

CR 336

CR416
CR
158

CR 470

CR
476

CR 39
3

CR 465

CR 409

CR 303

CR
 40

6

CR 346

CR 130

CR334

CR 39
2

CR 192

CR
498

CR
371

CR
411

CR
497

CR161

CR 451

CR
 48

1

CR 329

CR
160

CR 100

N CR 366

CR
 48

0

CR 335

CR 447

CR
 30

1

CR
321

CR
 36

2

CR 347
CR
410

CR 430

CR 433

CR
319

CR 478

CR
454

CR 482

CR
 48

7

CR 474

CR 484

CR
 32

2

CR 418

CR 437

CR
 33

9

CR 440

CR 377

CR 415

CR 490
CR 466

CR
 36

0

CR 381

CR 337

CR 342

CR 446

CR 387

CR 467

CR 423

CR
 42

9

CR 353

CR 325
CR 330

CR 341

CR 413

CR 356

CR 439

CR 357

CR 345

CR 483

CR
 34

9

CR 343

CR 438

CR 471

2013 2013 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 4 - RECINCT 4 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  BBOLESOLES

In Design
228   Kenney Fort Blvd Segments 2 and 3 (Forest Creek Boulevard to SH 45)
238   Ronald Reagan Boulevard Extension (IH 35 to SH 95)
294   Chandler Road Extension Phase 1 (Planning) (SH 95 to FM 619)
296   CR 366 Widening (Chandler Road to Carlos G. Parker Boulevard)
302   SH 130 Frontage Roads Phase 3 (SBFR US 79 to Limmer Loop)
327   University Boulevard (Chandler Road) Expansion (FM 1460 to SH 130)
332   FM 3349/US 79 Interchange

Under Construction/Bidding
261   CR 110 Middle (Limmer Loop to CR 107)
269   CR 101 (US 79 to North of Chandler Road)
506   Oak Bluff and Greenfield Drainage Improvements

Completed/Open to Traffic
214   CR 119 (Limmer Loop to Chandler Road)
260   CR 110 South (US 79 to Limmer Loop)
297   East Williamson County Park Road / Bill Pickett Trail

      (Carlos Parker Boulevard to Chandler Road)
302   SH 130 Traffic Study
441   Roundville Lane (A.W. Grimes Boulevard to EBFR of SH 45)

0179

ST29



UV369

UV374

UV373

UV375

UV463
UV380

UV376

UV486

UV360

UV381

UV378
UV377

CR 110

CR
11

9

SE IN N
ER

LO
OP

S CR 366

2ND ST

UNIVERSITY

CR 123

CR 460

OL
D C

R
137

CR 431

CR
 42

7

LORAX
LN

CR 421

CR 435

CR 436

CR 101

CR 108

CR 493

CR
 10

9 S
PU

R

CR
 40

1

CR 455

CR 404

CR
 13

7

CR
 45

6

CR 351

CR 426

2NDST

CR 374

CR
495

CR 348

CR 432
MA

IN
ST

CR 464

CR 366
SPUR

CR198

CR 11
0

CR 364

CR 340

PARKVIEW
DR

CR 414

CR
403

CR
 35

2

CR 124

OLD CR 366

CR 479

CR 320

CR 417

CR 414
SPUR

RIVERVIEW
LN

CR
378

E CR 366

CR
 38

4

CR135

CR 318

CR
 42

4

CR 399

N CR 122 CR199

CR 469

CR 354

CR
 35

5

CR 320
SPUR

CR
 40

5

CR117

CR
 38

6

CR
 13

4

CR 489
WILSONRD

CR 112

CR
 47

3

CR 382

CHANDLER RD

CR 453

CR 420

CR 133

CR
 40

01

CR 491

CR
408

CR
 45

2

CR 361

CR 324

S CR366

CR 138

CR 463

CR
 35

0

CR
462

LIMMERLOOP
CR

 36
3

CR 327

CR 132
CR 383

CR 118

CR
 41

9

CR
 44

2

CR 475

CR
131

CR 407

CR 338

CR 379

HARDI
RD

CR 461

CR 373

CR391

CR 422

CR
 46

8

CR
 49

9

CR 109

CR 333
CR 394

CR 368

CR 485

CR 369

CR 15
7

CR
 49

6

CR 300

CR 44
3

CR 458

CR
385

CR 365

CR 119
CR 156

CR449

CR 472

CR488

CR 395

CR 376

CR 49
2

CR 139
CR 434

CR 412

CR
389

CR 425

CR477

CR
197

CR 358

CR 448

CR390

CR
 35

9

CR 302

CR
 42

8

CR 450

CR 445

CR 323

CR 326
CR 38

0

CR 367

CR 336

CR416

CR 158

CR 470

CR
476

CR 39
3

CR 465

CR 409

CR 303

CR
 40

6

CR 346

CR 130

CR334

CR 39
2

CR 192

CR
498

CR
371

CR
411

CR
497

CR161

CR 451

CR
 48

1

CR 329

CR 160CR 100

N CR366

CR
 48

0

CR 335

CR 447

CR 301

CR 321

CR
 36

2

CR 347

CR 410

CR 430

CR 433

CR
 31

9

CR 478

CR 454

CR 482

CR
 48

7

CR 474

CR 484

CR 32
2

CR 418

CR
398

CR 437

CR
 33

9

CR 440

CR 377

CR 415

CR 490
CR 466

CR
 36

0

CR 381

CR 337

CR 342

CR 446

CR387
CR 467

CR 423

CR
 42

9

CR 353

CR 325CR 330

CR 341
CR 413

CR 356

CR 439

CR 357

CR 345

CR 483

CR
 34

9

CR 343

CR 438

CR 471

2019 2019 RROAD OAD BBOND OND PPROGRAM ROGRAM PPROJECTS ROJECTS 
PPRECINCT 4 - RECINCT 4 - CCOMMISSIONEROMMISSIONER  BBOLESOLES

In Design
360   Corridor E5 (IH 35 to FM 972) 
369   Bartlett Street Project
373   Coupland Street Project
374   Thrall Street Project
375   CR 129 (South of Brushy Creek to North of the South Williamson County Line)
376   CR 134/CR 132 Extension (Hutto Arterial)
377   CR 112 Widening (FM 1460/A.W. Grimes to CR 117)
378   CR 112 Widening (CR 117 to CR 110)
380   MoKan (University Boulevard to SH 45)
381   Old Settlers Boulevard (North Red Bud Lane/CR 122 to CR 110)
463   Southeast Loop (Corridor E1) ( CR 138 to CR 137)
486   Davilla Street Culvert Replacement in Granger



                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

CR 110 Middle
(Limmer Loop to CR 107)

Project Length:  2.2 Miles
Roadway Classification: Urban Arterial 

Project Schedule: May 2019 -November 2020
Estimated Construction Cost: $9.0 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/04/2020: James Construction formed and poured the headwalls at the
upstream ends of Culverts C and D. Flexible base was placed on northbound CR
110 from Toscana Trace to south of DeSoto Loop. 

09/11/2020: Steel continued to be tied and upstream headwalls continued to
be formed at Culverts D and E. The first lift of flexible base was placed on
northbound CR 110 between Toscana Trace to south of DeSoto Loop. 

09/18/2020: Class C concrete was formed and placed on the upstream
headwalls of Culverts D and E. The second and third lifts of flexible base were
placed on northbound CR 110 between Toscana Trace to south of DeSoto Loop. 

09/25/2020: Class C concrete was formed and placed for the upstream
headwall of Culvert F. The final lift of flexible base was placed for the
remaining width of CR 110 from Toscana Trace near Limmer Loop. 

10/02/2020: Flexible base was placed on the northbound half of CR 110 from
DeSoto Loop South to Limmer Loop. Subcontractor Elite Concrete placed curb
and gutter on northbound CR 110 from CR 112 to Limmer Loop. 

Design Engineer:  Kimley Horn
Contractor: James Construction
Construction Observation:
Dave Thomas, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

29



CR 110 Middle (Limmer Loop to CR 107)
Project No. 1809-261 Original Contract Price = $8,910,862.73

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

12/14/2018 2/5/2019 4/26/2019 5/6/2019 390 390

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time

Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used
1 5/6/2019 5/31/2019 26 $719,064.06 $719,064.06 $79,896.01 $79,896.01 9 7
2 6/1/2019 6/30/2019 30 $327,805.09 $1,046,869.15 $36,422.78 $116,318.79 13 14
3 7/1/2019 7/31/2019 31 $406,884.79 $1,453,753.94 $45,209.43 $161,528.22 18 22
4 8/1/2019 8/31/2019 31 $391,244.33 $1,844,998.27 $43,471.59 $204,999.81 23 30
5 9/1/2019 9/30/2019 30 $88,385.54 $1,933,383.81 $9,820.61 $214,820.42 24 38
6 10/1/2019 10/31/2019 31 $295,167.52 $2,228,551.33 $32,796.39 $247,616.81 27 46
7 11/1/2019 11/30/2019 30 $424,033.35 $2,652,584.68 $47,114.82 $294,731.63 33 54
8 12/1/2019 12/31/2019 31 $511,268.18 $3,163,852.86 $56,807.57 $351,539.20 39 62
9 1/1/2020 1/31/2020 31 $385,342.62 $3,549,195.48 $42,815.85 $394,355.05 44 69

10 2/1/2020 2/29/2020 29 $514,688.36 $4,063,883.84 $57,187.60 $451,542.65 50 77
11 3/1/2020 3/31/2020 31 $344,124.14 $4,408,007.98 $38,236.01 $489,778.66 54 85
12 4/1/2020 4/19/2020 19 $293,737.21 $4,701,745.19 $32,637.47 $522,416.13 58 90
13 4/20/2020 5/19/2020 30 $277,306.64 $4,979,051.83 $30,811.87 $553,228.00 61 97
14 5/20/2020 6/24/2020 36 $726,652.00 $5,705,703.83 $80,739.12 $633,967.12 70 107
15 6/25/2020 7/25/2020 31 $410,122.34 $6,115,826.17 $45,569.15 $679,536.27 75 115
16 7/26/2020 8/25/2020 31 $254,747.98 $6,370,574.15 $28,305.33 $707,841.60 78 123
17 8/26/2020 9/25/2020 31 $111,839.18 $6,482,413.33 $12,426.58 $720,268.18 80 131

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
01 10/8/2019 $66,291.83 66,291.83$           

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
02 12/17/2019 $31,881.14 98,172.97$           

Change Order Number Approved Cost  This CO Total COs
03 7/21/2020 $10,419.60 108,592.57$         

Adjusted Price = $9,019,455.30

1A: Design Error or Omission. Incorrect PS&E. This Change Order revises items and quantities for the traffic signals.  3F: County Convenience. Additional work 
desired by the County. This Change Order adds items for temporary sediment control fencing (install and remove) and documents the credit to the contract for 
materials (6'x4' box culvert) furnished by the County.  

2G: Differing Site Conditions. Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable). This Change Order provides grading of the Limmer Loop ditch at CR 110, due to 
communication utility conflicts not being adjusted for the previous CR 110 South project. The ditch work must be completed, prior to construction of the 
requested driveway for the new corner store. The driveway permit has already been submitted to the County by the Developer.

3F: County Convenience. Additional work desired by the County.  This Change Order adds Traffic Control Phase 2 Step 2 to the project.  This step consists of 
shifting traffic from the existing lanes to the new lanes f rom just south of CR 112 to the north end of the project.   

30



                          Project Location 
 
 
 
 

CR 101
(US 79 to north of Chandler Road)

Project Length:  3.8 Miles
Roadway Classification: Rural Collector

Project Schedule: July 2020 -  May 2022
Estimated Construction Cost: $13 Million

SEPTEMBER 2020 IN REVIEW

09/04/2020: James Construction placed embankment on the south end of the
project. The utility crew excavated, graded and placed drainage pipe at Culvert
4. Subcontractor Oracle Steel tied steel cages for the drill shafts on the bridge
at the South Fork of Mustang Creek. 

09/18/2020: Embankment was placed on the south end of the project and on
the north side of Little Mustang Creek. The area around the drill shafts for the
bridge at the South Fork of Mustang Creek was graded. The concrete crew
graded and set the outside forms for the bridge class culvert at the North Fork
of Mustang Creek. 

09/25/2020: Subgrade was dewatered on the south end of the project and at
the South Fork of Mustang Creek.

10/02/2020: Type B embankment was placed between CR 395 and the south
end of the project and graded from the South Fork of Mustang Creek to CR
368. Subcontractor Beaird Drilling drilled, placed steel, and poured concrete
for all the drill shafts on the South Fork of Mustang Creek bridge.
Subcontractor Oracle Steel tied the reinforcing steel for the footing of the
bridge class culvert at the North Fork of Mustang Creek, on the north end.

Design Engineer:  BGE, Inc.
Contractor: James Construction
Construction Observation:
Kyle McCoy, HNTB

Williamson County 
Road Bond Program

31



CR 101 (US 79 to Chandler Road)
Project No. 2138 Original Contract Price = $13,092,842.00

Letting Award Notice To Begin Substantial Work Total Bid Days Total
Proceed Work Completion Accepted Days Added Days

10/9/2019 11/5/2019 6/26/2020 7/6/2020 540 540

Invoice Beginning Ending Days Current Invoice Current Total % ($) % Time

Number Date Date Charged Invoice Total Retainage Retainage Used Used
1 7/6/2020 7/25/2020 20 $366,881.43 $366,881.43 $40,764.60 $40,764.60 3 4
2 7/26/2020 8/30/2020 36 $2,072,374.48 $2,439,255.91 $230,263.83 $271,028.43 21 10
3 9/1/2020 9/23/2020 23 $66,831.99 $2,506,087.90 $7,425.78 $278,454.21 21 15

Adjusted Price = $13,092,842.00

32



Williamson County
Commissioners Court

Road Bond Program
October 20, 2020



2

Precinct 1



3North Mays Extension
(Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)

Anticipated Completion
Fall 2020

Original Contract Price = $10,775,835.75
Total Change Orders to Date  = $113,772.96
Adjusted Contract Price = $10,889,608.71
Expenditures to Date = $9,879,884.59 (92%)



4North Mays Extension
(Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)



5North Mays Extension
(Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)



6North Mays Extension
(Paloma Drive to Oakmont Drive)



7RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)

Anticipated Completion
Summer 2022

Partnership with TxDOT and the City of Round 
Rock

Original Contract Amount = $27,468,703.67
Construction is managed by TxDOT



8RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)



9RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)



10RM 620 at Railroad / Chisholm Trail
(IH 35 Frontage Road to Deep Wood Drive)



11Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements

Anticipated Completion
Early 2022

Original Contract Price = $4,793,058.15
Total Change Orders to Date  = $27,372.92
Adjusted Contract Price = $4,820,431.07
Expenditures to Date = $1,168,687.50 (24%)



12Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements



13Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements



14Forest North Phase 3
Drainage Improvements



15O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)

Anticipated Completion
Early 2021

Original Contract Price = $853,503.50
Total Change Orders to Date  = $53,339.04
Adjusted Contract Price = $906,842.54
Expenditures to Date = $300,541.27 (33%)



16O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)



17O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)



18O’Connor Traffic Signals
(Morgan Hill Trail, Liberty Walk, Great Oaks)



19

Precinct 2



20

Seward Junction Improvements

Anticipated Completion
Early 2021

Original Contract Price = $13,270,258.10
Total Change Orders to Date  = $416,176.51
Adjusted Contract Price = $13,686,434.61
Expenditures to Date = $11,086,875.09 (81%)



21

Seward Junction Improvements



22

Seward Junction Improvements



23

Seward Junction Improvements



24

Precinct 3



25IH 35 Ramp Reversals and Frontage Road 
Conversion

Anticipated Completion
Late 2020

Partnership with TxDOT
Original Contract Amount = $13,145,762.51
Construction is managed by TxDOT



26IH 35 Ramp Reversals and Frontage Road 
Conversion



27IH 35 Ramp Reversals and Frontage Road 
Conversion



28IH 35 Ramp Reversals and Frontage Road 
Conversion



29Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)

Anticipated Completion
Fall 2021

Partnership with TxDOT
Original Contract Amount = $15,048,229.93
Construction is managed by TxDOT



30Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)



31Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)



32Ronald Reagan Boulevard at IH 35 
(Bridge Replacement)



33CR 176 at RM 2243
(RM 2243 to Parkside Parkway)

Anticipated Completion
Fall 2020

Original Contract Amount = $2,447,560.00
Total Change Orders = $520,673.13
Adjusted Contract Price = $2,968,233.13 
Expenditures to Date = $2,493,989.81 (84%)



34CR 176 at RM 2243
(RM 2243 to Parkside Parkway)



35CR 176 at RM 2243
(RM 2243 to Parkside Parkway)



36CR 176 at RM 2243
(RM 2243 to Parkside Parkway)



37

Precinct 4



38CR 110 Middle
(Limmer Loop to CR 107)

Anticipated Completion
Late  2020

Original Contract Amount = $8,910,862.73
Total Change Orders = $108,592.57
Adjusted Contract Price = $9,019,455.30
Expenditures to Date = $7,202,681.57 (80%)



39CR 110 Middle
(Limmer Loop to CR 107)



40CR 110 Middle
(Limmer Loop to CR 107)



41CR 110 Middle
(Limmer Loop to CR 107)



42Oak Bluff and Greenfield Drainage 
Improvements

Anticipated Completion
Fall 2020

Partnership with City of Round Rock
Original Contract Amount = $1,770,012.25
Construction is managed by City of Round Rock



43Oak Bluff and Greenfield Drainage 
Improvements



44Oak Bluff and Greenfield Drainage 
Improvements



45Oak Bluff and Greenfield Drainage 
Improvements



46CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)

Anticipated Completion
Spring 2022

Original Contract Amount = $13,092,842.00
Total Change Orders = $0.00
Adjusted Contract Price = $13,092,842.00
Expenditures to Date = $2,784,542.11 (21%)



47CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)



48CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)



49CR 101
(US 79 to North of Chandler Road)



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 75.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

2013 Road Bond Budget Transfer
Submitted By: Emmeline Hawkins, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2013 Road Bond Budget
Transfer per Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager, to move $105,000 from 2013 Road
Non-Departmental (P290) to Seward Junction Southwest (P274) of $75,000, Inner Loop Safety
Improvements (P251) of $5,000 and CR 101 Phase I (P269) of $25,000. Also, to move
$750,000 from North Mays Extension (P224) to University Blvd Expansion – Round Rock ILA
(P327). Also, to move $825,000 from Bagdad Road @ CR 278 (P438) to Seward Junction
Southeast (P271). Also, to move $100,000 from CR 119 (P214) to CR 110 Middle Phase 2
(P261). Also, to move $150,000 from SH 130 Frontage Road (P302) to CR 110 Middle Phase 2
(P261).

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2013 Road Bond 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/13/2020 01:50 PM
Form Started By: Emmeline Hawkins Started On: 10/13/2020 11:39 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/13/2020 



HNTB Corporation 101 E Old Settlers Blvd Telephone (512) 744-9082 
Engineers  Architects  Planners Suite 100 www.hntb.com 
 Round Rock, TX 78664  
   
 

Ms. Emmeline Hawkins 

Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
Historic County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Ste. 301  
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
 
 
 

September 29, 2020 
 
Re:        2013 Road Bond Budget Adjustment  
 
 
 
 
Dear Ms. Hawkins, 
 
Please make the following project budget adjustments to these 2013 Road Bond Projects: 
 

• Move $75,000.00 from P-290 2013 Unallocated to P-274 Seward Junction Southwest; 

• Move $5,000.00 from P-290 2013 Unallocated to P-251 Inner Loop Safety Improvements; 

• Move $25,000.00 from P-290 2013 Unallocated to P-269 CR 101 Phase I; 

• Move $750,000.00 from P-224 North Mays Ext to P-327 University Blvd. Expansion – Round 

Rock ILA; 

• Move $825,000.00 from P-438 Bagdad Road @ CR 278 to P-271 Seward Junction Southeast; 

• Move $100,000.00 from P-214 CR 119 to P-261 CR 110 Middle Phase 2; 

• Move $150,000.00 from P-302 SH 130 Frontage Road to P-261 CR 110 Middle Phase 2.  

 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Thank you 
 
 
 
Michael J. Weaver 
 
 
Cc: Pam Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 
 Robert B. Daigh, P.E., Williamson County Senior Director of Infrastructure 
 Christen Eschberger, P.E., HNTB 
 Marie Walters, HNTB  



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 76.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Purchase of Various Freightliner Trucks for Road and Bridge
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of one (1) 2021
Freightliner M2-106 Chassis Truck w/Chipper body in the amount of $102,129.00, one (1) 2021
Freightliner M2-106 Chassis Truck w/7-8 Yd dump body in the amount of $91,640.00, one (1)
2021 Freightliner M2-112 Chassis Truck w/ 12-14 Yd dump body in the amount of $128,903.00
and one (1) 2021 Freightliner M2-112 Tractor in the amount $108,233.00 for the total amount of
$430,905.00 that includes TIPS fee, from Freightliner of Austin, as per TIPS Contract
#200-206.

Background
These vehicles are being purchased for the Road and Bridge Department. Department contact:
Ron Roberts, Funding Source: 01.0200.0210.005711 and approved in the FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 1 
quote 2 
quote 3 
quote 4 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:11 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:05 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 11:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 













                                                      1701 Smith Rd. (Hwy. 183 So.)
             FAX: 512-389-2663 Invoice Number

CITY STATE ZIP CODE

Tx

YEAR MAKE MODEL/BODY s VIN

2021 M2-112

Tom Standard (512) 468-7270

 MILEAGE: 

YEAR MAKE MODEL/BODY VIN LICENSE PLATE

 MILEAGE: 

YEAR MAKE MODEL/BODY VIN LICENSE PLATE

TOTAL

DATED:                                                                LIEN AMOUNT $

124,867.00

4,036.00
 

Ox 12-14Yd dump body w/elec tarp

78626

TIPS Fee (350.00) included

Allison 5yr warranty
Detroit Ext Warr 5/200

Transfer: 

ADDRESS:

State Insp.: 

License: 

Total Balance Due 128,903.00

CONTRACTUAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FOR USED VEHICLE ONLY.  "The information you see on the window form for this vehicle is part of this contract. Information on the window form overrieds any contrary provisions in the contract of sale. "

ADDRESS:

DRAFT FOR $

DRAFT THRU: 

Title: 

Less Deposit

Ext. Service Agreement

TOTAL SALE PRICE

Payoff on Trade

128,903.00

   liability in connection with the sale of this vehicle. 

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE 

SALESMAN SIGNATURE 

        TRADE-IN

   for a particular purpose, and Freightliner of Austin, neither 

   assumes nor authorizes any other person to assume for it any 

        TRADE-IN

Trade Allowance 

  Any warranties on the products sold hereby are those made by 

   the  factory.  The  Seller , Freightliner  of  Austin ,  hereby 

   expressly disclaims all warranties, either expressed or implied

   including  any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness

Freightliner

    FREIGHTLINER OF AUSTIN

LICENSE PLATE

Order

             Bus: 512-389-0000

512-943-3368

Georgetown

2021 Freightliner M2-112 Chassis to include

TIPS Contract # 200 206

Williamson County

3151 SE Inner Loop

TELEPHONE

                 Austin, Texas 78721 
        Wats: 1-800-395-2005

Date: 09-22-2020

ADDRESS

Federal Excise Tax

Trading Difference

Sales Tax

License Fee

Vehicle Inventory Tax 

Body Type: 

License Wt.: 

Documentary FeeSHOW LEIN TO:

PAYOFF TO:

ADDRESS:

GOOD UNTIL: 

QUOTED BY:

Disclaimer of Warranties 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 77.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Purchase of Water Tank Truck for Road and Bridge
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of one (1) 2021
Freightliner 114SD Chassis Truck w/4k gallon water tank in the amount of $168,885.00 to
include a $400 BuyBoard fee, from Freightliner of Austin, as per BuyBoard Contract #601-19.

Background
This vehicle is being purchased for the Road and Bridge Department. Department contact: Ron
Roberts, Funding Source: 01.0200.0210.005700 and approved in the FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:48 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:56 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 12:59 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 78.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Chip Spreader for Road and Bridge
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of one (1) 2021
Etnyre Self Propelled Chip Spreader in the amount of $341,623.00, as per BuyBoard Contract
#597-19.

Background
This is for the purchase of Heavy Equipment for the Road and Bridge Department. Department
contact: Ron Roberts. Funding Source: 01.0200.0210.005711 for FY21

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:12 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:06 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 01:24 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 79.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Kubota M5-111 Ag Tractor for Road and Bridge
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Heavy Equipment
for one (1) RC5715 Land Pride Heavy Duty Cutter (LP2022) in the amount of $41,428.08,
two (2) M5-111HDC12--1 Tractors, in the amount of $60,056.74 each, for a grand total amount
of $161,541.56 to include $400 Buyboard fee, from Ewald Kubota, INC pursuant to BuyBoard
Contract #611-20.

Background
This is for the purchase of Heavy Equipment for Road and Bridge Department. Ron Roberts is
the point of contact for this transaction. Funding Source 01.0200.0210.005711. Funding was
approved in the FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 1 
quote 2 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:14 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:07 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 01:35 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Submission #

Date Prep:

Buying Agency
Dealer #: 112051 Dealer Name:

Contact 
Person

Dealer 
Contact:

Phone: Phone:

Fax: Email:

Email:
Ship to 

Location: 

Product Code:

Subtotal B:

Subtotal C:

2 = Subtotal D:

Subtotal E:

       Estimated Delivery Date :   October

Discount Total :    

F.  Total Purchase Price (D+E) :   41,428.08$               

32.00%
18,977.92$               

Discount Percentage : 

Set Up:   2 x's $300 each $600.00
Delivery:   2 x's $250 each               $500.00 1,100.00$                  

  E.  Other Charges, Trade Ins, Allowances, Discounts, Etc.
Description Cost Description Cost

Freight: (GP) $0.00

-$                            
  D.  Total Cost before any other applicable Charges, Trade-Ins, Allowances, Discounts, Etc. (A+B+C)

Quantity Ordered :   X     Subtotal of A+B+C :   29,653.00$                  59,306.00$               

Subtotal from additional sheet(s):    

12,653.00$               

  C.  Unpublished Options - Itemize below - Attach additional sheet if necessary                                                                                                                          
(Note:  Unpublished options are items which were not submitted and priced in Contractor's bid.)

Description Cost Description Cost

Subtotal from additional sheet(s):    
$285.00

82 - Orange
92 - HD Blade Bar & Dishpans

$0.00

$3,620.00
$2,370.00
$2,120.00
$1,911.00
$607.00
$700.00
$685.00
$355.00

29 - Parallel Pivot Wing Axles
32 - 540 CV Main, Cat 4 Wings
40 - Single Chains Front & Rear
62 - Deck Armor
67 - Independent Single-acting Fold Cylinders (2 Hoses)
75 - Performance Hitch

Description Cost Description Cost
12 - 25.5 New Aircraft, Foam-Filled, 8 Tires
24 - Parallel Pivot Center Axle

  B.  Published Options - Itemize below - Attach additional sheet if necessary - Include Option Code in description if applicable                                                 
(Note:  Published Options are options which were submitted and priced in Contractor's bid.)

Williamson County

Shea Webb

512-943-5293

shea.webb@wilco.org

512-868-8686

justin.d@ewaldkubota.com

This Worksheet is prepared by LAND PRIDE and given to BuyBoard Member.                                
NOTE *****Purchase order must be made out to selling DEALER.*****                                                         
Troy Olson - National Accounts Manager / 785-822-5651 / troy.olson@landpride.com                                                                               

Description: Land Pride Heavy Duty Cutter  (LP2022)RC5715

  A.  Product Item Base Unit Price Per Contractor's Buy Board Contract:  # 611-20 17,000.00$               

Justin DeSpain

Georgetown

2372

9/24/2020

CONTRACT PRICING 

WORKSHEET

Ewald Kubota

mailto:justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
mailto:justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
mailto:justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
mailto:justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
mailto:shea.webb@wilco.org
mailto:shea.webb@wilco.org
mailto:shea.webb@wilco.org
mailto:shea.webb@wilco.org
mailto:shea.webb@wilco.org
mailto:shea.webb@wilco.org
mailto:justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
http://www.landpride.com/


Quote Provided By
EWALD KUBOTA, INC.
Justin DeSpain
2650 N AUSTIN AVE
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626
email: justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
phone: 5128688686

­­ Standard Features ­­ ­­ Custom Options ­­

M Series
M5­111HDC12­1

4WD, HYDRAULIC SHUTTLE TRANSMISSION & ROPS
* * * EQUIPMENT IN STANDARD MACHINE & SPECIFICATIONS * * *

DIESEL ENGINE
Kubota V3800 Direct Injection
3.8L (230 cu. In.) 4 Cyl
EPA Tier 4 Final Compliant
Common Rail Electronic Fuel Injection
Electronic Engine Management
Turbocharged
w/Wastegate and Intercooled
Fuel Tank Capacity: 27.7 Gal
60 Amp Alternator ROPS
80 Amp Alternator Cab
12V 900 CCA Battery
SAE Gross HP: 105.6
Engine Net HP: 100
Max . PTO HP: 89
Cab @ 2600 Engine RPM
ROPS @ 2400 Engine RPM

EXHAUST EMISSION CONTROL
TYPE
DPF System (Diesel Particulate Filter)
SCR System

HYDRAULICS / HITCH / DRAWBAR
Open Center Gear Pump
Max. Flow @ Rated Engine Speed: ROPS:
2400 rpm
Cab: 2600 rpm
Power Steering:5.4 gpm
Impl. Flow ROPS: 15.9 gpm
Impl. Flow Cab: 17.0 gpm
Total Flow ­ ROPS: 21.3 gpm
Total Flow ­ Cab: 23.1 gpm

REMOTE VALVES
(1) SCD (Self Canceling Detent)
(1) FD (Float Detent) on ­1 models (2 Total
standard)

3 POINT HITCH & DRAWBAR 
Cat II 3­point Hitch
8 Speed Models
@ Lift Points: 7055 lbs
(ASAE) @ 24” Behind: 5181 lbs
12/24 Speed Models
@ Lift Points: 8600 lbs
(ASAE) @ 24” Behind: 7275 lbs
2 External Lift Cylinders
Telescoping Lower Links
Stabilizers
Swinging Drawbar ­ Straight

POWER TAKE OFF (540)
Live­Independent Hyd. PTO
SAE 1 3/8” Six Spline
540 rpm @ 2205 Eng. rpm
540 rpm @ 2035 Eng. rpm 12/24 speed
540E* @ 1519 Eng. rpm
* if equipped 12/24 Standard

LIGHTING
2 Headlights ­ Tail lights
4 Hazard Flasher Lights w/ Turn Signals
2 Grille Mounted Worklights
2 Front Cab Halogen Worklights
2 Rear Halogen Worklights

TRANSMISSION
8F/8R Two Range, 4­Speed
12F/12R Two Range, 6­Speed 
540/540E
24F/24R Two Range, 6­Speed Hi/Lo
540/540E
24 speed on M5­111 only
Auto 4WD Function
Electro­Hydraulic Shuttle Shift
Clutch ­ Multi Plate Wet
Planetary Final Drives
Hydraulic Wet Disc Brakes

FRONT AXLE
Hydrostatic Power Steering
2WD: Tubular Steel Beam Telescoping
4WD: Cast Iron, Bevel Gear 55 deg
Planetary Final Drives
Adj. (Rim) Tread Spacing

FLUID CAPACITY
Fuel Tank Capacity: 27.7 gal
DEF Tank Capacity: 3.2 gal
Cooling System: 11 qts
Crankcase: 11.3 qts
Hydraulics/Trans: 15.85 gal

INSTRUMENTS
LCD readout for MPH and PTO rpm
RPM Memory
Tachometer/Hour meter
Oil Pressure
Fuel Gauge
Coolant Temperature
Gear Speed Digital Light Indicator
Digital Light Indicator F/R Direction

ULTRA GRAND CAB II
4­post, ROPS Certified
RH & LH Doors
Tinted Glass Doors and Windows
In­roof window
Tilt Steering Wheel
Dual Level Air Conditioning & Heater
Front and Wiper/Washer
Front Sun Visor
Retractable Seat belt
LH & RH Side Mirrors
Radio Ready Cab
Steps, Left and Right Side
Interior Dome Light
12V – 30­Amp 2 Wire Coupler
12V – 3 Pin 30­Amp Coupler
12V ­ Outlet
Cup Holder
Instructor Seat Ready
Horn

SAFETY EQUIPMENT
Flip­Up PTO Shield
Electric Key Shut Off
Parking Brake
Turn Signals
SMV Sign
7­Pin Electrical Trailer Connector

SELECTED TIRES
AMR8530B & AMR8556B
FRONT ­ 12.4­24 R1W Goodyear OptTrac
REAR ­ 18.4­30 R1W Goodyear OptiTrac

M5­111HDC12­1 Base Price: $63,835.00
(1) 3RD POSITION LEVER KIT
M9116­3RD POSITION LEVER KIT

$154.00

(1) FRONT WEIGHT BUMPER
M8075­FRONT WEIGHT BUMPER

$405.00

(1) BOLT KIT FOR BUMPER
M8076­BOLT KIT FOR BUMPER

$58.00

(1) BOLT BAR KIT FOR M8075 BRACKET
M8073A­BOLT BAR KIT FOR M8075 BRACKET

$66.00

(10) FRONT SUITCASE WEIGHT
M8079­FRONT SUITCASE WEIGHT

$1,020.00

(1) GRILLE GUARD
M6909­GRILLE GUARD

$221.00

(1) AIR RIDE SEAT SUSPENSION UPGRADE KIT
M9270­AIR RIDE SEAT SUSPENSION UPGRADE KIT

$563.00

(1) AIR RIDE SEAT WIRE HARNESS
M9205­AIR RIDE SEAT WIRE HARNESS

$21.00

(1) HYDRAULIC FLOAT DETENT (FD)
M7611­HYDRAULIC FLOAT DETENT (FD)

$701.00

Configured Price: $67,044.00

BUY BOARD Discount: ($14,749.68)

SUBTOTAL: $52,294.32
2Yr M5­111HDC12­1 Extended Warranty (4000
hrs.)

$3,000.00

Factory Assembly: $260.00

Dealer Assembly: $324.42

Freight Cost: $860.00

PDI: $250.00

Install Rear Rock Screen $2,550.00

Configure Rear Remote FD,SCD,FD $268.00

Install BT Radio $250.00

Total Unit Price: $60,056.74

Quantity Ordered: 2

Final Sales Price: $120,113.48

Purchase Order Must Reflect 
the Final Sales Price

To order equipment – purchase orders must be made out and
returned to:

Kubota Tractor Corporation
Attn: National Accounts
1000 Kubota Drive
Grapevine, TX 76051
or email NA.Support@kubota.com
or call 817­756­1171 or fax 844­582­1581

*All equipment specifications are as complete as possible as of the date on the quote. Additional attachments, options, or accessories may be added (or deleted) at the
discounted price. All specifications and prices are subject to change. Taxes are not included. The PDI fees and freight for attachments and accessories quoted may have additional charges
added by the delivering dealer. These charges will be billed separately. Prices for product quoted are good for 60 days from the date shown on the quote. All equipment as quoted is subject to

availability. 

© 2018 Kubota Tractor Corporation. All rights reserved.

M5­111HDC12­1 WEB QUOTE #1792160
Date: 9/24/2020 8:38:07 AM
­­ Customer Information ­­

Webb, Shea
Williamson County 

shea.webb@wilco.org 
512­943­5293

198.143.57.20



Quote Provided By
EWALD KUBOTA, INC.
Justin DeSpain
2650 N AUSTIN AVE
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626
email: justin.d@ewaldkubota.com
phone: 5128688686

­­ Standard Features ­­ ­­ Custom Options ­­

M Series
M5­111HDC12­1

4WD, HYDRAULIC SHUTTLE TRANSMISSION & ROPS
* * * EQUIPMENT IN STANDARD MACHINE & SPECIFICATIONS * * *

DIESEL ENGINE
Kubota V3800 Direct Injection
3.8L (230 cu. In.) 4 Cyl
EPA Tier 4 Final Compliant
Common Rail Electronic Fuel Injection
Electronic Engine Management
Turbocharged
w/Wastegate and Intercooled
Fuel Tank Capacity: 27.7 Gal
60 Amp Alternator ROPS
80 Amp Alternator Cab
12V 900 CCA Battery
SAE Gross HP: 105.6
Engine Net HP: 100
Max . PTO HP: 89
Cab @ 2600 Engine RPM
ROPS @ 2400 Engine RPM

EXHAUST EMISSION CONTROL
TYPE
DPF System (Diesel Particulate Filter)
SCR System

HYDRAULICS / HITCH / DRAWBAR
Open Center Gear Pump
Max. Flow @ Rated Engine Speed: ROPS:
2400 rpm
Cab: 2600 rpm
Power Steering:5.4 gpm
Impl. Flow ROPS: 15.9 gpm
Impl. Flow Cab: 17.0 gpm
Total Flow ­ ROPS: 21.3 gpm
Total Flow ­ Cab: 23.1 gpm

REMOTE VALVES
(1) SCD (Self Canceling Detent)
(1) FD (Float Detent) on ­1 models (2 Total
standard)

3 POINT HITCH & DRAWBAR 
Cat II 3­point Hitch
8 Speed Models
@ Lift Points: 7055 lbs
(ASAE) @ 24” Behind: 5181 lbs
12/24 Speed Models
@ Lift Points: 8600 lbs
(ASAE) @ 24” Behind: 7275 lbs
2 External Lift Cylinders
Telescoping Lower Links
Stabilizers
Swinging Drawbar ­ Straight

POWER TAKE OFF (540)
Live­Independent Hyd. PTO
SAE 1 3/8” Six Spline
540 rpm @ 2205 Eng. rpm
540 rpm @ 2035 Eng. rpm 12/24 speed
540E* @ 1519 Eng. rpm
* if equipped 12/24 Standard

LIGHTING
2 Headlights ­ Tail lights
4 Hazard Flasher Lights w/ Turn Signals
2 Grille Mounted Worklights
2 Front Cab Halogen Worklights
2 Rear Halogen Worklights

TRANSMISSION
8F/8R Two Range, 4­Speed
12F/12R Two Range, 6­Speed 
540/540E
24F/24R Two Range, 6­Speed Hi/Lo
540/540E
24 speed on M5­111 only
Auto 4WD Function
Electro­Hydraulic Shuttle Shift
Clutch ­ Multi Plate Wet
Planetary Final Drives
Hydraulic Wet Disc Brakes

FRONT AXLE
Hydrostatic Power Steering
2WD: Tubular Steel Beam Telescoping
4WD: Cast Iron, Bevel Gear 55 deg
Planetary Final Drives
Adj. (Rim) Tread Spacing

FLUID CAPACITY
Fuel Tank Capacity: 27.7 gal
DEF Tank Capacity: 3.2 gal
Cooling System: 11 qts
Crankcase: 11.3 qts
Hydraulics/Trans: 15.85 gal

INSTRUMENTS
LCD readout for MPH and PTO rpm
RPM Memory
Tachometer/Hour meter
Oil Pressure
Fuel Gauge
Coolant Temperature
Gear Speed Digital Light Indicator
Digital Light Indicator F/R Direction

ULTRA GRAND CAB II
4­post, ROPS Certified
RH & LH Doors
Tinted Glass Doors and Windows
In­roof window
Tilt Steering Wheel
Dual Level Air Conditioning & Heater
Front and Wiper/Washer
Front Sun Visor
Retractable Seat belt
LH & RH Side Mirrors
Radio Ready Cab
Steps, Left and Right Side
Interior Dome Light
12V – 30­Amp 2 Wire Coupler
12V – 3 Pin 30­Amp Coupler
12V ­ Outlet
Cup Holder
Instructor Seat Ready
Horn

SAFETY EQUIPMENT
Flip­Up PTO Shield
Electric Key Shut Off
Parking Brake
Turn Signals
SMV Sign
7­Pin Electrical Trailer Connector

SELECTED TIRES
AMR8530B & AMR8556B
FRONT ­ 12.4­24 R1W Goodyear OptTrac
REAR ­ 18.4­30 R1W Goodyear OptiTrac

M5­111HDC12­1 Base Price: $63,835.00
(1) 3RD POSITION LEVER KIT
M9116­3RD POSITION LEVER KIT

$154.00

(1) FRONT WEIGHT BUMPER
M8075­FRONT WEIGHT BUMPER

$405.00

(1) BOLT KIT FOR BUMPER
M8076­BOLT KIT FOR BUMPER

$58.00

(1) BOLT BAR KIT FOR M8075 BRACKET
M8073A­BOLT BAR KIT FOR M8075 BRACKET

$66.00

(10) FRONT SUITCASE WEIGHT
M8079­FRONT SUITCASE WEIGHT

$1,020.00

(1) GRILLE GUARD
M6909­GRILLE GUARD

$221.00

(1) AIR RIDE SEAT SUSPENSION UPGRADE KIT
M9270­AIR RIDE SEAT SUSPENSION UPGRADE KIT

$563.00

(1) AIR RIDE SEAT WIRE HARNESS
M9205­AIR RIDE SEAT WIRE HARNESS

$21.00

(1) HYDRAULIC FLOAT DETENT (FD)
M7611­HYDRAULIC FLOAT DETENT (FD)

$701.00

Configured Price: $67,044.00

BUY BOARD Discount: ($14,749.68)

SUBTOTAL: $52,294.32
2Yr M5­111HDC12­1 Extended Warranty (4000
hrs.)

$3,000.00

Factory Assembly: $260.00

Dealer Assembly: $324.42

Freight Cost: $860.00

PDI: $250.00

Install Rear Rock Screen $2,550.00

Configure Rear Remote FD,SCD,FD $268.00

Install BT Radio $250.00

Total Unit Price: $60,056.74

Quantity Ordered: 2

Final Sales Price: $120,113.48

Purchase Order Must Reflect 
the Final Sales Price

To order equipment – purchase orders must be made out and
returned to:

Kubota Tractor Corporation
Attn: National Accounts
1000 Kubota Drive
Grapevine, TX 76051
or email NA.Support@kubota.com
or call 817­756­1171 or fax 844­582­1581

*All equipment specifications are as complete as possible as of the date on the quote. Additional attachments, options, or accessories may be added (or deleted) at the
discounted price. All specifications and prices are subject to change. Taxes are not included. The PDI fees and freight for attachments and accessories quoted may have additional charges
added by the delivering dealer. These charges will be billed separately. Prices for product quoted are good for 60 days from the date shown on the quote. All equipment as quoted is subject to

availability. 

© 2018 Kubota Tractor Corporation. All rights reserved.

M5­111HDC12­1 WEB QUOTE #1792160
Date: 9/24/2020 8:38:07 AM
­­ Customer Information ­­

Webb, Shea
Williamson County 

shea.webb@wilco.org 
512­943­5293

198.143.57.20



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 80.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Purchase of Caterpillar Equipment for Road and Bridge 
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Heavy Equipment
from Holt Cat for one (1) 2021 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader 416F in the amount of $125,628.00
to include warranty and one (1) 2021 Caterpillar 926M Wheel Loader in the amount of
$189,563.00 to include warranty for a total amount of $315,191.00 pursuant to Sourcewell
Contract #032119-CAT.

Background
This is for the purchase of Heavy Equipment for the Road and Bridge Department. Both
equipment pieces include 60-month warranty for powertrain, hydraulics and technology (2,500
hr - 416F, 3,000 hr - 926M). Department contact: Ron Roberts, Funding Source:
01.0200.0210.005711 and approved in the FY21 budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 2 
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/14/2020 12:49 PM
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:22 AM
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:23 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:11 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 01:46 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



  

Page 1  
 

 

 

DATE: September 23, 2020 
QUOTE #:263563-01 

 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY FLEET                                  
RON ROBERTS 
 
3151 SE INNER LOOP STE B 
GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626-6343 

Jeffrey Kell 
512.917.3277 
 

 
One (1) New Caterpillar Inc Model: 416F C4E Backhoe Loaders with all standard equipment in addition to the additional 

specifications listed below: 
 
STOCK NUMBER: TBD               SERIAL NUMBER:                YEAR: 2020               
 

SALE PRICE $123,781.00 
TOTAL PRICE $123,781.00 
 
SUB TOTAL $123,781.00 
TOTAL SOURCEWELL PURCHASE PRICE $123,781.00 

 

 

 
WARRANTY 
Standard Warranty: 12 Month/Unlimited Hours Total Machine  
 
 
 
 

 

Additional Warranty available Powertrain, Hydraulics, and Technology select and ADD: 
-60 months or 2,000 hours $1,741.00 
-60 months or 2,500 hours $1,847.00 
-60 months or 3,000 hours $1,929.00 
-60 months or 4,000 hours $2,080.00 
-60 months or 5,000 hours $2,329.00 
 
 
 
 
NOTES 
Cab, 4x4, Ext-a-Stick, Wain Roy Style rear coupler, 24” Bucket 
 
MP 4:1 Front Bucket, Ride Control, Hydraulic Thumb rear 

 
Delivery – 6-8 weeks 
 
Sourcewell Contract number #032119-CAT 
 
 



  

Page 2  
 

 
 
416F List Price    $120,334.00 
Sourcewell Discount 22%   ($26,473.00) 
Adjusted Sales Price    $93,871.00 
Prep      $1,500.00 
Bucket 4:1 MP    $6,627.00 
Valve, Controls, installation   $6,650.00 
Thumb Hydraulic, controls   $6,761.00 
Installation     $3,389.00 
Ride Control     $1,683.00 
Manuals Service & Maintenance  $1,750.00 
No Charge Field Service 12 months $1,000.00 
Delivery     $550.00 
TOTAL Sourcewell Purchase price $123,781.00 
 
 
 
DATE: September 23, 2020QUOTE #:Quote 263563-01 

MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
STOCK NUMBER:              SERIAL NUMBER:                 YEAR: 2020                 HOURS:  
 

DESCRIPTION REF.# 
416F2 BHL ST, TIER 4 HRC, 70KW 450-8445    
LANE 3 ORDER 0P-9003 
CONTROLS, BACKHOE PATTERN 398-2496 
PT, 4WD, STD SHIFT, MECH 450-8604 
ENGINE, 70KW, C4.4 ACERT, T4F 450-8754 
HYDRAULICS, GP, 5FCN/7BNK 450-8511 
CAB, STANDARD 450-8680 
SEAT, FABRIC 433-4805 
BELT, SEAT, 2'' SUSPENSION 206-1747 
AIR CONDITIONER, T4 450-8711 
COUNTERWEIGHT, 1015 LBS 337-9696 
SECURITY SYSTEM, KEYPAD 387-6570 
STABILIZER PADS, FLIP-OVER 9R-6007 
BUCKET-GP, 1.30 YD3, PO 337-7385 
WORKLIGHTS (8) HALOGEN LAMPS 491-6734 
CUTTING EDGE, TWO PIECE 9R-5321 
INSTRUCTIONS, ANSI 430-9944 
SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA KIT 421-8926 
RADIO, FM BLUETOOTH 540-2298 
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PL641 581-1781 
BATTERY, HEAVY DUTY 457-2797 
PLATE GROUP - BOOM WEAR 423-7607 
GUARD, STABILIZER 353-1389 
PACK, DOMESTIC TRUCK 0P-0210 



  

Page 3  
 

DESCRIPTION REF.# 
SHIPPING/STORAGE PROTECTION 461-6839 
RUST PREVENTATIVE APPLICATOR 462-1033 
COUPLER, PIN LOCK, BL F 544-1901 
BUCKET, HOE, (NONE) 175-7877 
TIRES, 12.5 80/19.5L-24, GY 379-2161 
STICK, EXTENDABLE, 14FT, MECH 450-8727 
RIDE CONTROL 398-2680 
HYDRAULICS MP, 6FCN/8BNK, PT 450-8522 
 

STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
 
 
CONSIST NOTE 
 
THIS LISTING IS A GENERAL DESCRIPTION THE LOWEST CHARGE ITEMS. 
OF A 416F2 BACKHOE LOADER EQUIPPED WITH  
 
BOOMS, STICKS AND LINKAGES 
 
14'4'' Center pivot excavator style Return-to-dig 
backhoe with 2-lever control (automatic bucket positioner) 
Boom transport lock Self-leveling loader with single lever 
Swing transport lock control 
Street type stabilizer shoes Transmission neutralizer switch 
Bucket level indicator Single Tilt Loader 
Lift cylinder brace  
 
POWERTRAIN 
 
Cat C4.4, 70KW (Net 87HP / 65kW) - dual pedals & interlock 
- Direct Injection Turbo Charged Engine, Differential lock 
- with ACERT technology. Drive-line parking brake 
- US EPA Tier4 FinalEmissions Compliant Torque converter 
- Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) Transmission-four speed synchro mesh inc 
Water separator - power shuttle 
Thermal starting aid system - neutral safety switch 
A dry type axial seal air cleaner with Spin-on filters for 
- integral precleaner - fuel 
- automatic dust ejection system - engine oil 
- filter condition indicator - transmission oil 
Hydraulically boosted multi-plate wet Outboard Planetary Rear Axles 
disk brake with  
 
HYDRAULICS 
 
Load sensing, variable flow system with Caterpillar XT-3 hose 
- 35 gpm axial piston pump Hydraulic oil cooler 
6 micron hydraulic filter Flow-Sharing Hydraulic Valves 
O-ring face seal hydraulic fittings Hydraulic suction strainer 
 
ELECTRICAL 



  

Page 4  
 

 
12 volt electrical start Stop and tail lights 
150 ampere alternator Audible system fault alarm 
Horn Key start/stop system 
Backup alarm 880 CCA maintenance free battery 
Hazard flashers/turn signals Battery disconnect switch 
Halogen head lights (2) External Power Receptacle (12v) 
Halogen rear flood lights (2) Remote jump start connector 
 
OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT 
 
Lighted gauge group 2-inch retractable seat belt 
Interior rearview mirror Hand and foot throttle 
Rear fenders Air suspension seat 
ROPS canopy Coat Strap 
 
FLUIDS 
 
Antifreeze - Extended Life Coolant -30C (-20F) 
 
OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
Hydrostatic power steering Rubber impact strips on radiator guards 
Standard Storage Box Bumper 
Transport tie-down points CD-ROM Parts Manual 
Ground line fill fuel tank with Backhoe Safety Manual 
44 gallon capacity Operations and Maintenance Manual 
Ground line fill diesel exhaust fluid Lockable hood 
tank with 5 gallon capacity Tire Valve Stem Protection 
 
 



  

Page 5  
 

 
 

 
 



  

Page 1  
 

 

 

DATE: September 23, 2020 
QUOTE #:263460-01 

 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY FLEET                                  
RON ROBERTS 
 
3151 SE INNER LOOP STE B 
GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626-6343 

Jeffrey Kell 
512.917.3277 
 

 
One (1) New Caterpillar Inc Model: 926M Wheel Loaders with all standard equipment in addition to the additional 

specifications listed below: 
 
STOCK NUMBER: TBD               SERIAL NUMBER:               YEAR: 2020                  
 

SALE PRICE $187,422.00 
TOTAL PRICE $187,422.00 
 
SUB TOTAL $187,422.00 
TOTAL SOURCEWELL PURCHASE PRICE $187,422.00 

 

 

 
WARRANTY 
Standard Warranty: 12 Month/Unlimited Hours Total Machine  
  
Additional Warranty available Powertrain, Hydraulics, and Technology select and ADD: 
-60 months or 2,000 Hours  $1,718.00 
-60 months or 3,000 Hours  $2,141.00 
-60 months or 4,000 Hours  $2,341.00 
-60 months or 5,000 Hours  $2,694.00 
 
NOTES 
Includes 4 in 1 Multi-Purpose front Bucket  
Ride Control 
 

 
Delivery – 4-6 weeks 
 
Sourcewell Contract number #032119-CAT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sourcewell Pricing below: 
 
 



  

Page 2  
 

 
926M List Price     $199,555.00 
Sourcewell Discount 24%    ($47,893.00) 
Adjusted Sales Price     $151,662.00 
Ride Control      $4,105.00 
MP Front Bucket     $19,526.00 
Machine Prep     $1,500.00 
Valve and Controls MP Bucket   $2,164.00 
Installation MP Bucket    $4,953.00 
Delivery      $750.00 
Manuals Service and Maintenance   $1,762.00 
No Charge Field Service 12 months  $1,000.00 
TOTAL Sourcewell Purchase Price  $187,422.00   
 
 
 
DATE: September 23, 2020QUOTE #:Quote 263460-01 

MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
STOCK NUMBER: HLK042439               SERIAL NUMBER: 0LTE08098                YEAR: 2020                 HOURS: 3.40 
 

DESCRIPTION REF.# 
926M WHEEL LOADER 536-5300    
LANE 2 ORDER 0P-9002 
PREP PACK, UNITED STATES 430-2943 
HYDRAULICS, 2V, CPLR READY, SL 536-5322 
STEERING, STANDARD 430-2996 
DIFFERENTIAL, OPEN REAR 333-6528 
ENVIRONMENT, STANDARD 536-5320 
WEATHER, STANDARD 454-0609 
ENGINE AR 430-3038 
CAB, DELUXE 536-5309 
CAMERA, REAR VIEW 377-5635 
SEAT, DELUXE 563-5967 
RADIO READY, BLUETOOTH,MIC,AUX 378-0951 
TIRES, 20.5R25 TI MXL * L3 376-0827 
FENDERS, STANDARD 366-8148 
TOOLBOX AUX, NONE 519-8081 
COUNTERWEIGHT, HEAVY 348-2579 
KIT,SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA 0P-2491 
LIGHTS, STD HALOGEN 488-1112 
HYDRAULICS, STANDARD, HL 536-5282 
LIGHTS, ROADING, HALOGEN, RH 541-3066 
JUMPER LINES, NONE 536-5339 
PACK, DOMESTIC TRUCK 0P-0210 
LINES, AUX 3RD, NONE 536-5329 
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PL641 565-0908 
TRANSPORT GROUP 387-2859 



  

Page 3  
 

STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
 
 
POWERTRAIN 
 
Axle seal guards Hydraulically driven demand cooling fan 
Auto Idle shut down feature Hydrostatic transmission with electronic 
Cat C7.1ACERT engine control 
-Power Modes (Standard and Performance) -Operator Modes (Default, TC, Hystat and 
-Power by Range (High Power in Range 4) Ice) 
-Tier 4 Final/Stage IV compliant -Directional Shift Agressiveness (Fast, 
-Turbocharged and aftercooled Medium, Slow) 
-Filtered crankcase breather -Rimpull control, adjust wheel torque 
-Diesel particulate filter -Creeper control, adjust ground speed 
-Selective Catalyst Reduction Lubed for life driveshafts 
Coolant protection to -34C (-29F) Parking brake, electric 
Differential lock in front axle Single plane cooling package wide 6 fins 
Dry type air cleaner per inch density 
Enclosed wet disc full hydraulic brakes S-O-S port,engine,coolant,transmission 
Fuel priming pump, automatic oil 
Fuel water separator  
 
HYDRAULICS 
 
Automatic lift and bucket kickouts, Hydraulic Response setting (Fast, 
adjustable in-cab Medium, Slow) 
Bucket and Fork Modes, adjustable in-cab Hydraulic diagnostic connectors and 
Cylinder damping at kickout and S-O-S ports 
mechanical end stops Hydraulic sight gauge, visible 
Fine Mode control (Fast, Medium, Slow) Load sensing hydraulics and steering 
in Fork Mode Seat mounted hydraulic joystick controls 
 
ELECTRICAL 
 
Alternator, 115-amp, heavy duty rear stop and turn lights 
12V power supply in cab (2) Heavy duty gear reduction starter 
Batteries, 1,000 CCA (2) 24 volt system, Product Link PRO w/3 year subscription 
disconnect switch Remote jump start post 
Back up alarm Resettable main and critical function 
Emergency shutdown switch breakers 
Halogen work lights front and rear, LED Roading lights front and rear 
 
OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT 
 
75 mm (3 in) retractable seatbelt Interior cab lighting, door and dome 
Automatic temperature control Interior rearview mirrors (2) 
Cab, enclosed ROPS/FOPS pressurized Lunch box storage 
and sound suppressed Operator warning system indicators 
Cup holders Radio ready speakers 
External heated mirrors with lower Rear window defrost, electric 
parabolic Seat mounted electronic implement 
Ground level cab door release controls, adjustable 
Gauges Sliding glass on the side windows 
-Digital hour meter, odometer and Column mounted multi function control 
tachometer -lights, wipers, turn signal 



  

Page 4  
 

-Digital ground speedometer and Suspension seat, fabric 
direction indicator Tilt and telescope steering wheel 
-Engine coolant temperature gauge Tinted front glass 
-Fuel and Diesel Exhaust Fluid level Wet arm wiper/washer, 2-speed and 
indicator intermittent, front 
-Hydraulic oil temperature gauge Wet arm wiper washer, rear 
Hydraulic control lockout  
 
OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
Large-access enclosure doors with Remote mounted lubrication points 
adjustable close/open force Vandalism protection- 
Parallel lift loader linkage lockable compartments 
Recovery hitch with pin  
 
 



  

Page 5  
 

 
 

 
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 81.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Street Sweeper Crosswind for Road and Bridge Department
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Heavy Equipment
from Kinloch Equipment & Supply Inc. for two (2) 2021 Elgin Street Sweepers Crosswind 1 for
$279,955 each, in the total amount of $559,910.00 pursuant to Sourcewell Contract
#122017-FSC.

Background
This is for the purchase of Heavy Equipment for the Road and Bridge Department. Department
contact: Ron Roberts, Funding Source: 01.0200.0210.005700 and approved in the FY21
budget.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
quote 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 10:24 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:13 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 10/07/2020 02:08 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



  

Dean Dahlquist  
Tel:210.535.3456 

Quote Number: 2019-32901                                                                                                      

  

Presents a Proposal Summary 
  

of the 
  
  

 
  

 
Crosswind 1 

  
Crosswind 1 Regenerative Air Street Sweeper with Single Engine 

  
 for 

   



  

  
  
Quote Number:2019-32901                                                                                                

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION 
  
·  Equipped with Memory Sweep;8.0 cu. Yd. Hopper, right and left side brooms, sweeper is powder coated from powder coatings chart 

2003/N with powder coated gray undercarriage. 
  
STANDARD FEATURES 
  
·  Alternator, 95 amp 
·  Backup Alarm, electric 
·  Blower, 20,000 CFM rating with Linatex lined housing 
·  Brooms, hydraulic rotation 
·  Brooms, Dual 
·  Broom Measurement Ruler 
·  Console, w/rocker switches for all sweep functions, including memory sweep with full gauge package including tachometer, engine hour 

meter, oil pressure indicator, coolant temperature, voltmeter and fuel lever indicator, water level gauge and warning lights for hopper 

pressure controls and manual reset circuit breakers 
·  Doors, access fiberglass doors provide easy service and maintenance on hydraulic and electrical system 
·  Electronic Throttle, sweep resume/sweep transport/reverse pick-up 
·  Hopper rear door, hydraulically opened/closed and locked/unlocked with external controls. 
·  Hose, hydrant fill, 16' 8" with coupling 
·  In-Cab Hopper Dump 
·  LED Clearance Lights 
·  Lights, rear clearance and rear identification 
·  Manuals, operator and parts 
·  Pick-up head, hydraulically operated, 14" (355 mm) outside diameter pressure hose, 12-3/4" (324mm) inside diameter suction hose with 

quick disconnect on suctions side 
·  Spray nozzles, sixteen (16), seven (7) in the pick-up head, three (3) in the suction nozzle, three (3) at each side broom 
·  Side Broom Outer Position Stop 
·  Trans Oil Cooler 
·  Water tank, molded polyethylene, 240 gallons (907L) 
·  Water pre-filter, hydrant fill hose 
·  AM/FM/CD Radio 
·  Left Hand Fender Mirror 
·  Right And Left Hand Heated And Remote Controlled Mirrors 
·  Standard Electric Horns 
·  Sweeper Painted Standard White 
·  Chassis Painted Standard White 
·  Red Logo 
·  1 Year Parts and Labor Warranty 
·  Sweeper - Operator Manual 
·  Sweeper Parts Manual 
  
ADDITIONAL FEATURES 
  
·  2021 M2 Dual Steer 
·  Mirrors, West Coast type with 12" convex inserts, one each side 
·  Memory Sweep 

·  Additional 40 Gallon Capacity Water Tank 

·  Steel Bristles with Polyethylene Segments Sidebrooms 
·  Variable Speed - Dual Sidebrooms 
·  Sidebroom Tilt Option Right Hand 
·  LifeLiner™ Hopper System 
·  Right Hand Inspection Door with Step and Handle 
·  Hydraulic Heavy-Duty Wandering Hose 
·  Front Spray Bar 
·  Individual Switches for the Water System Control 
·  Vacuum Enhancer In-cab control with display 
·  Hopper Deluge 
·  Low Pressure Washdown 



  

  
  
Quote Number:2019-32901                                                                                                 

·  Flow Blocker 
·  Rear LED Beacon / LED Arrowboard 

Total Price F.O.B. Georgetown, TX: $279,955.00   

Product Model: CROSSWIND 1  
Proposal Date: 9/8/2020  
Quote Number: 2019-32901 
Price List Date: 9/4/2020  
  
Payment Terms: Net Due Upon Delivery 
   
Proposal Notes: 

1. Prices quoted herein are in accordance with Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Contract # 122017-FSC. Williamson County 

Member # 9076.  
2. Prices quoted herein are firm until 12/31/20.  

 



  

  
  
Quote Number:2019-32901                                                                                                

  
LIMITED WARRANTY 

  
ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY warrants each new machine manufactured by it against defects in material and workmanship provided the 

machine is used in a normal and reasonable manner. This warranty is extended only to the original user-purchaser for a period of twelve 

(12) months from the date of delivery to the original user-purchaser. 
  
ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY will cause to be repaired or replaced, as the Company, may elect, any part or part of such machine which 

the Company's examination discloses to be defective in material or workmanship. 
  
Repairs or replacements are to be made at the selling Elgin distributor's location or at other locations approved by ELGIN SWEEPER 

COMPANY. 
  
The ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY warranty shall not apply to: 
  
1. Major components or trade accessories such as but not limited to, trucks, engines, tires or batteries that have a separate warranty by 

the original manufacturer. 
2. Normal adjustments and maintenance services. 
3. Normal wear parts such as but not limited to, broom filters, broom wire, shoe runners and rubber deflectors. 
4. Failures resulting from the machine being operated in a manner or for a purpose not recommended by ELGIN SWEEPER 

COMPANY. 
5. Repairs, modifications or alterations without the consent of ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY which, in the Company's sole judgment, 

have adversely affected the machine's stability or reliability. 
6. Items subjected to misuse, negligence, accident or improper maintenance. 
  

The use in the product of any part other than parts approved by ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY may invalidate this warranty. 

ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY reserves the right to determine, in its sole discretion, if the use of non-approved parts operates 

to invalidate the warranty. 
  

Nothing contained in this warranty shall make ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY liable for loss, injury, or damage of any kind to 

any person or entity resulting from any defect or failure in the machine. 
  

TO THE EXTENT LIMITED BY LAW, THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR 

IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND 

FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
  

This warranty is also in lieu of all other obligations or liabilities on the part of ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY, including but 

not limited to, liability for incidental and consequential damages on the part of the Company or the seller. 
  

ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY makes no representation that the machine has the capacity to perform any functions other than 

as contained in the Company's written literature, catalogs or specifications accompanying delivery of the machine. 
  

No person or affiliated company representative is authorized to give any other warranties or to assume any other liability on 

behalf of ELGIN SWEEPEAR COMPANY in connection with the sale, servicing or repair of any machine manufactured by 

the Company. 
  

ELGIN SWEEPER COMPANY reserves the right to make design changes or improvements in tis products without imposing 

any obligation upon itself to change or improve previously manufactured products. 
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 82.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Fleet Tire Blanket
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order for tires to
Youngblood Automotive in the amount of $250,000.

Background
Approval of this blanket purchase order will support the operations of the Williamson County
Fleet department.  This is the blanket po for tires that Fleet requests every year.  This purchase
is exempt from competitive bidding requirements as it falls under vehicle repairs.  There is no
attachement for this iteam as it is for a blanket purchase order. This expenditure will be charged
to 01.0882.0882.003525.  Department contact is Kevin Teller.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 10/15/2020 11:48 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:59 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/13/2020 02:13 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 83.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Fleet Parts Blanket PO
Submitted For: Randy Barker  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a blanket purchase order for parts
to Don Hewlett Chevrolet, Buick Inc. in the amount of $125,000.

Background
Approval of this parts blanket purchase order will support the operations of the Williamson
County Fleet Department.  This purchase is exempt from the competitive bidding requirement
as it falls under vehicle repairs which are exempt.  There is no attachment for this item as it is
for a blanket purchase order.  This expenditure will be charged to. 01.0882.0882.003523. 
Department contact is Kevin Teller.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 10/15/2020 11:33 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:46 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 10/13/2020 02:56 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 84.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Resolution for Condemnation
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Consider a resolution determining the necessity and authorizing the use of eminent domain to
condemn 0.744 acres) required for the construction of the Southeast Loop Project, and take
appropriate action. (Brian N. Brown).

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Brown Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:31 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:19 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



Southeast Loop- Parcel 68 

00457481.DOC 

IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT 
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has found 

and determined that in order to promote the public safety, to facilitate the safety and 

movement of traffic, and to preserve the financial investment of the public in its 

roadways, public necessity requires acquisition of fee simple title to that certain tract of 

land being 0.744 acre (Parcel 68) described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” owned 

by BRIAN N. BROWN for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, maintaining, 

and operating Corridor A-1 (Southeast Loop) roadway improvements (“Project”), 

excluding all the oil, gas, and sulphur which can be removed from beneath said real 

property, without any right whatever remaining to the owner of such oil, gas, and sulphur 

of ingress to or egress from the surface of said real property for the purpose of exploring, 

developing, or mining of the same, as a part of the improvements to the Project, at such 

locations as are necessary and that such constructing, reconstructing, maintaining, and 

operating shall extend across and upon, and will cross, run through, and be upon the 

hereinafter described real properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has, 

through agents employed by the said office, entered into bona fide good faith negotiations 

with the owners of the hereinafter described properties and has failed to agree with the 

owners on the compensation and damages, if any, due to said owners to acquire the 

property voluntarily.  Now, therefore, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, 

Texas is authorizing the use of its power of eminent domain to condemn property. 



 

 
 

2 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT OF THE COUNTY 

OF WILLIAMSON, that the County Attorney or his designated agent be and he is hereby 

authorized and directed to file or cause to be filed against the owners of any interest in, 

and the holders of any lien secured by, the following described tracts of land, described in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto, a suit in eminent domain to acquire the property interests for 

the aforesaid purposes; and 

It is the intent of the Commissioners’ Court that this resolution authorizes the 

condemnation of all property interests required to complete the construction and 

maintenance of the Project and associated public purposes.  If it is later determined that 

there are any errors in the descriptions contained herein or if later surveys contain more 

accurate revised descriptions, the County Attorney is authorized to have such errors 

corrected or revisions made without the necessity of obtaining a new resolution of the 

Commissioners’ Court authorizing the condemnation of the corrected or revised Property. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Attorney or his designated agent 

be and he is hereby authorized and directed to incur such expenses and to employ such 

experts as he shall deem necessary to assist in the prosecution of such suit in eminent 

domain, including, but not limited to, appraisers, engineers, and land use planners or 

other required expert consultants. 

 Adopted this ______ day of __________________________, 2020. 

 
      ____________________________ 
      Bill Gravell, Jr. 
      Williamson County Judge 



68

DChilds
Typewritten Text
A



68

DChilds
Typewritten Text
A



68

DChilds
Typewritten Text
A



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 85.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Relocation Claim
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Claim for Actual Moving Expenses from
Rhina Palazuelos on the Southeast Loop project (Parcel 13). Funding Source: Road Bonds
P463

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Relocation Claim 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:32 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:28 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 86.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Relocation Claim
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on 2 Claims for Fixed Moving Expense Payments
on the Southeast Loop project (Parcel 14). Funding Source: Road Bonds P463

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Alcorn Claim 
Nesbit Claim 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:39 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:31 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 87.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

CR 366 Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Anton George
Kroschewsky for right of way needed on the CR 366 project (Parcel 18). Funding Source: Road
Bonds P296

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Kroschewsky contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:45 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 

































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 88.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

CR 366 Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with D&L Land
Development, LLC for right of way needed on the CR 366 project (Parcel 7). Funding Source:
Road Bonds P296

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
D&L Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:47 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:44 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 













































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 89.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Sam Bass Rd. Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Edward B. and
Rebecca R. Roha for right of way needed on the Sam Bass Road project (Parcel 16). Funding
Source: Road Bonds P462

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Roha Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:48 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:45 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 
C01ridor H/Sam Bass Road Right of Way-Parcel 16 

THIS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT ("Contract") is made by EDWARD B. AND 
REBECCA R. RORA (referred to in this Contract as "Seller") and WILLIAMSON COUNTY, 
TEXAS (refened to in this Contract as "Purchaser"), upon the terms and conditions set fo1ih in 
this Contract. 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

By this Contract, Seller sells and agrees to convey, and Purchaser purchases and agrees to 
pay for, the tract(s) ofland described as follows: 

0.084 acre (3,667 sq. ft.) tract of land, more or less, out of the J.H.DILLARD 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 179, Williamson County, Texas, being a pmiion of 
Lot 3, BRUSHY BEND PARK, SECTION II, PHASE II, according to the map or 
plat thereof recorded in Cabinet C, Slide 123, Plat Records, Williamson County, 
Texas, said pmiion of Lot 3 described as a 2.22 acre tract of land in a deed to 
Edward B. Roha and wife, Rebecca R. Roha recorded in Document No. 
2013003444, Official Public Records, Williamson County, Texas; said 0.084 acre 
(3,667 sq. ft.) parcel to be more particularly described by metes and bounds in 
Exhibit 11A 11 to be attached (Parcel 16); 

together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances pe1iaining to the property, including 
any right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent streets, alleys or rights-of-way (all of such 
real prope1iy, rights, and appurtenances being refe1Ted to in this Contract as the "Property"), and 
any improvements situated on and attached to the Prope1iy described in Exhibits "A" not 
otherwise agreed herein to be retained by Seller, for the consideration and upon and subject to the 
terms, provisions, and conditions set fo1ih below. 

ARTICLE II 
PURCHASE PRICE 

Purchase Price 

2.01. The Purchase Price for the Property, any improvements on the Property, and any 
damage to or cost to cure for the remaining prope1iy of Seller shall be the sum of TEN 
THOUSAND and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000). 

Payment of Purchase Price 

2.02. The Purchase Price shall be payable in cash at the Closing. 

00457141.DOC 































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 90.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Sam Bass Rd. Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Marilyn C.
LeBlanc a/k/a Marilyn Carlson LeBlanc for right of way needed on the Sam Bass Road project
(Parcel 11). Funding Source: Road Bonds P462

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
LeBlanc Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:52 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:47 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 91.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

SH 29 Corridor Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Wilco Land
Investments I, LLC, Wilco Land Investments II, LLC and Wilco Land Investments III, LLC for
right of way needed on the SH 29 Corridor project. Funding Source: Road Bonds P457

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Wilco Land Investment Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:57 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:48 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



00451654.DOC/dc 

REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 
SH 29 Corridor Right of Way 

 
 THIS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made by WILCO LAND 
INVESTMENTS I, LLC, WILCO LAND INVESTMENTS II, LLC, WILCO LAND 
INVESTMENTS III, LLC  all Texas limited liability companies owning a 1/3 undivided interest 
(referred to in this Contract as “Seller”, whether one or all) and WILLIAMSON COUNTY, 
TEXAS (referred to in this Contract as “Purchaser”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Contract. 
 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

 
 By this Contract, Seller sells and agrees to convey, and Purchaser purchases and agrees to 
pay for, the tract(s) of land described as follows:  
 

Tract 1:  All of that certain tract of land out of the W. H. Munroe Survey, 
Williamson County, Texas, being approximately 200’ from the current right-of-
way line of SH 29 abutting the property described in the Williamson County 
Appraisal District as R461956 and being generally depicted on Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special 
Warranty Deed document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds 
survey of the exact area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the 
executed deed document for recording in the real property records of Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 
Tract 2:  All of that certain tract of land out of the W. H. Munroe Survey, 
Williamson County, Texas, being approximately 200’ from the current right-of-
way line of SH 29 abutting the property described in the Williamson County 
Appraisal District as R461957 and being generally depicted on Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special 
Warranty Deed document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds 
survey of the exact area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the 
executed deed document for recording in the real property records of Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 
 
Tract 3:  All of that certain tract of land out of the W. H. Munroe Survey, 
Williamson County, Texas, being approximately 200’ from the current right-of-
way line of SH 29 described in the Williamson County Appraisal District as 
R022671 and being generally depicted on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special Warranty Deed 
document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds survey of the exact 



 

 2 

area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the executed deed document 
for recording in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas. 
 
Tract 4:  All of that certain tract of land out of the W. H. Munroe Survey, 
Williamson County, Texas, being approximately 200’ from the current right-of-
way line of SH 29 abutting the property described in the Williamson County 
Appraisal District as R022669 and being generally depicted on “A”, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special Warranty 
Deed document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds survey of the 
exact area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the executed deed 
document for recording in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas. 
 
Tract 5:  All of that certain tract of land out of the W. H. Munroe Survey, 
Williamson County, Texas, being approximately 200’ from the current right-of-
way line of SH 29 abutting the property described in the Williamson County 
Appraisal District as R403274 and being generally depicted on Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special 
Warranty Deed document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds 
survey of the exact area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the 
executed deed document for recording in the real property records of Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 
 
Tract 6:  All of that certain tract of land out of the G. Fisk Survey, Williamson 
County, Texas, being approximately 350’ from the current right-of-way line of 
SH 29 abutting the property described in the Williamson County Appraisal 
District as R021694 and being generally depicted on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special Warranty Deed 
document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds survey of the exact 
area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the executed deed document 
for recording in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas. 
 
 
Tract 7:  All of that certain tract of land out of the G. Fisk Survey, Williamson 
County, Texas, being approximately 350’ from the current right-of-way line of 
SH 29 abutting the property described in the Williamson County Appraisal 
District as R484926 and being generally depicted on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein; and Prior to the execution of a Special Warranty Deed 
document by Seller, Purchaser shall create a metes and bounds survey of the exact 
area to be conveyed and which shall be attached to the executed deed document 
for recording in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas. 
 
 



 

 3 

Tract 8:  Previously, Williamson County acquired two separate tracts of land 
from Seller for water detention purposes for the expansion of Ronald Reagan 
Blvd., being a 1.98 acre tract (WCAD R#__________) and a 2.74 acre tract 
(WCAD R#___________), totaling 4.72 acres, as shown on Exhibit “B”. As part 
of this transaction, and as previously agreed upon by the parties, Seller agrees to 
convey to Purchaser in fee simple Tract 8, which is the approximate 2.93 acre 
tract shown on Exhibit “B” attached hereto,  
 
 

 
Together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances pertaining to the property, including 
any right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent small strips of property abutting Tracts 1-7, 
above, and as shown on Exhibit “A” and streets, alleys or rights-of-way (all of such real property 
tracts, rights, and appurtenances being referred to in this Contract as the “Property”), and any 
improvements situated on and attached to the Property described in Exhibit A” not otherwise 
agreed herein to be retained by Seller, for the consideration and upon and subject to the terms, 
provisions, and conditions set forth below. A metes and bounds description will be prepared for 
each Tract prior to Closing. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
PURCHASE PRICE 

 
Purchase Price 

 
2.01. The Purchase Price for the Property, any improvements on the Property, and any 

damage to or cost to cure for the remaining property of Seller shall be the sum of FOUR 
DOLLARS and 00/100 Dollars ($4.00) per square foot, as determined by a final survey prepared 
and paid for by Purchaser, and as adjusted by 2.03, below. 
 

Payment of Purchase Price 
 
 2.02. The Purchase Price shall be payable in cash at the Closing. 
 

Reconciliation of Detention Pond Exchange 
 

 2.03   As stated above, as part of this transaction, the Parties agree that the County will 
exchange two detention pond tracts totaling 4.72 acres in return for Purchaser conveying one 
detention pond tract to the County, in fee simple, totaling approximately 2.93 acres. The 
difference in acreages, as determined by a final survey, will be subtracted from the final survey 
for Tracts 1-7. 
 
 



 

 4 

 
ARTICLE III 

 PURCHASER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

Conditions to Purchaser’s Obligations 
 
 3.01. The obligations of Purchaser hereunder to consummate the transactions 
contemplated hereby are subject to the satisfaction of each of the following conditions (any of 
which may be waived in whole or in part by Purchaser at or prior to the Closing). 
 

Miscellaneous Conditions 
 
 3.02. Seller shall have performed, observed, and complied with all of the covenants, 
agreements, and conditions required by this Contract to be performed, observed, and complied 
with by Seller prior to or as of the closing.  
 

ARTICLE IV 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

OF SELLER 
 
 Seller hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser as follows, which representations and 
warranties shall be deemed made by Seller to Purchaser also as of the Closing Date, to the best of 
Seller’s current actual knowledge: 
 
 (1) There are no parties in possession of any portion of the Property as lessees, tenants 
at sufferance, or trespassers, other than as previously disclosed to Purchaser; 
 
 (2)  Seller has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules 
and restrictions relating to the Property, or any part thereof; 
 

ARTICLE V 
CLOSING 

 
Closing Date 

 
 5.01. The Closing shall be held at the office of  
Georgetown Title Company on or before _____________, or at such time, date, and place as 
Seller and Purchaser may agree upon, or within 10 days after the completion of any title curative 
matters if necessary for items as shown on the Title Commitment or in the contract (which date is 
herein referred to as the “Closing Date”). 
 

Seller’s Obligations at Closing 
 
 5.02. At the Closing Seller shall: 



5 

(1) Deliver to Purchaser a duly executed and acknowledged Deed conveying good and
indefeasible title to Williamson County, Texas in fee simple to all of the Property described in 
Exhibits “A-D”, free and clear of any and all monetary liens and restrictions, except for the 
following: 

(a) General real estate taxes for the year of closing and subsequent years not
yet due and payable;

(b) Any exceptions approved by Purchaser pursuant to Article III hereof; and

(c) Any exceptions approved by Purchaser in writing.

(2) Provide reasonable assistance as requested to cause Title Company to deliver to
Purchaser a Texas Owner’s Title Policy at Purchaser's sole expense, issued by Title Company, in 
Grantee’s favor in the full amount of the purchase price, insuring Purchaser’s contracted interests 
in and to the Property subject only to those title exceptions listed herein, such other exceptions as 
may be approved in writing by Purchaser, and the standard printed exceptions contained in the 
usual form of Texas Owner’s Title Policy, provided, however: 

(a) The boundary and survey exceptions shall be deleted;

(b) The exception as to restrictive covenants shall be endorsed “None of
Record”, if applicable; and

(c) The exception as to the lien for taxes shall be limited to the year of Closing
and shall be endorsed “Not Yet Due and Payable”.

(d) Deliver to Purchaser possession of the Property if not previously done.

Purchaser’s Obligations at Closing 

5.03. At the Closing, Purchaser shall:  

(a) Pay the cash portion of the Purchase Price.

Prorations 

5.04. General real estate taxes for the then current year relating to the Property shall be 
prorated as of the Closing Date and shall be adjusted in cash at the Closing. If the Closing shall 



 

 6 

occur before the tax rate is fixed for the then current year, the apportionment of taxes shall be 
upon the basis of the tax rate for the next preceding year applied to the latest assessed valuation, 
but shall otherwise be the continuing obligation of Seller to fully satisfy. Agricultural roll-back 
taxes, if any, which directly result from the completion of this transaction and conveyance shall be 
paid by Purchaser. 
 

Closing Costs 
 
 5.05. All costs and expenses of closing in consummating the sale and purchase of the 
Property shall be borne and paid as follows: 
 

(1) Owner’s Title Policy and survey to be paid by Purchaser. 
 
 (2) Deed, tax certificates, and title curative matters, if any, paid by Purchaser. 
 

(3) All other closing costs shall be paid by Purchaser. 
 

(4) Attorney’s fees paid by each respectively. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
BREACH BY SELLER 

 
 In the event Seller shall fail to fully and timely perform any of its obligations hereunder or 
shall fail to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason, except Purchaser’s default, 
Purchaser may: (1) enforce specific performance of this Contract; or (2) request that the Escrow 
Deposit, if any, shall be forthwith returned by the title company to Purchaser. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
BREACH BY PURCHASER 

 
In the event Purchaser should fail to consummate the purchase of the Property, the conditions to 
Purchaser’s obligations set forth in Article III having been satisfied and Purchaser being in default 
and Seller not being in default hereunder, Seller shall have the right to receive the Escrow 
Deposit, if any, from the title company, the sum being agreed on as liquidated damages for the 
failure of Purchaser to perform the duties, liabilities, and obligations imposed upon it by the terms 
and provisions of this Contract, and Seller agrees to accept and take this cash payment as its total 
damages and relief and as Seller’s sole remedy hereunder in such event.  If no Escrow Deposit has 
been made then Seller shall receive the amount of $500 as liquidated damages for any failure by 
Purchaser. 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Notice 



 

 7 

 
 8.01. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed received 
when sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
addressed to Seller or Purchaser, as the case may be, at the address set forth opposite the signature 
of the party. 
 

Texas Law to Apply 
 
 8.02. This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 

Parties Bound 
 
 8.03. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns where 
permitted by this Contract. 
 

Legal Construction 
 
 8.04. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, this invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Contract shall be construed as 
if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 
 
 

Prior Agreements Superseded 
 

 8.05. This Contract constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within 
subject matter. 

Time of Essence 
 
 8.06. Time is of the essence in this Contract. 
 

Gender 
 

 8.07. Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to include any 
other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, and vice versa, 
unless the context requires otherwise. 
 

Memorandum of Contract 
 



 

 8 

 8.08. Upon request of either party, the parties shall promptly execute a memorandum of 
this Contract suitable for filing of record. 
 

 
Compliance 

 
 8.09. In accordance with the requirements of Section 20 of the Texas Real Estate License 
Act, Purchaser is hereby advised that it should be furnished with or obtain a policy of title 
insurance or Purchaser should have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of 
Purchaser’s own selection. 
 
 Effective Date 
 
 8.10. This Contract shall be effective as of the date it is approved by Williamson County, 
Texas which date is indicated beneath the County Judge’s signature below. 
 
 

Counterparts 
 

8.11. This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, which may together 
constitute the Contract.  Signatures transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail may be considered 
effective as originals for purposes of this Contract. 

 
Purchase of Future Right of Way 

 
8.12 Purchaser acknowledges that it is an entity which possesses the power of 

condemnation, and that the Property has been identified for proposed future SH29 right of way on 
the current CAMPO Long Range Transportation Plan and the current Williamson County 
Transportation Plan. 
 
 

[signature page follows] 
 





 

 10 

PURCHASER: 
 
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By: _____________________   Address: 710 Main Street, Suite 101  

Bill Gravell, Jr            Georgetown, Texas 78626 
County Judge 
                

Date: _________           
       



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 92.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Phasing Agreement
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Santa Rita Boulevard East Phasing
Agreement with Santa Rita KC, LLC.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Santa Rita Phasing Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 10:58 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:55 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 93.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Braun Pkwy Phasing Agreement
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Braun Parkway Phasing Agreement with
Santa Rita KC, LLC and the Liberty Hill Independent School District.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Braun Parkway Phasing Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:00 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 10:57 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 





















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 94.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)
A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned
by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: O'Connor Signal Project
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    h)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    i)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.
    j)     Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at IH 35.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of right of way for the Great Oaks Bridge Project. 
    u)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Brushy Creek Trail Project. 
    v)    Discuss the acquisition of real property in conjunction with WCCF for potential
parkland/bird habitat.
    x)    Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North of
WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    y)    Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by
the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.



    b)    Discuss possible sale of +/- 10 acres located on Chandler Road near the County
Sheriff's Office Training Facility
    c)    Potential governmental uses for 8th Street downtown parking lot 
    d)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd
and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)
    e)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    f)     Discuss sale of excess 183A right of way to abutting property owner. 
    g)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    h)    Discuss Blue Springs Boulevard
    i)     Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
C.    Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman. 
D.    Discuss the possible placement of agricultural-related monuments at the Williamson
County Exposition Center with the participation of third parties.
E.    Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of San Gabriel
Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:01 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 11:00 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 95.        
Meeting Date: 10/20/2020  

Economic Development
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government
Code, Section 551.087:
    a)    Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)    Wolf Lakes
    c)    Flint Hill Resources-Taylor Fuel Storage Terminal on CR 366
    d)    Project Deliver
    e)    Project Advantage
    f)     Project Cedar
    g)    Project Expansion
    h)    Project Arcos
    i)     Project Woods
    j)     Project Co-Op
    k)    Project Liberty
    l)     Project Long Haul
    m)   Project Bon Jovi
    n)    Project Crystal

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 10/15/2020 11:02 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 10/15/2020 11:00 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/15/2020 


	Agenda
	AI_25264_Line Item Transfer
	AI_25298_Line item transfer for Emergency Management
	AI_25301_Line item transfer for Emergency Management
	AI_25340_Compensation Items
	       ATT_Merit Report
	       ATT_Merit LIT
	AI_25290_Property Tax Collections - September 2020
	       ATT_090120-093020 GWI-RFM
	       ATT_090120-093020 GWI-RFM Graph
	AI_25265_County Attorney September 2020 Monthly Report
	       ATT_September report
	AI_25318_Sale of Asset to retiring Constable, Pct. 2
	       ATT_Asset for Sale to Constable 10.20.20
	AI_25156_Commercial Trash Service at River Ranch
	       ATT_agreement
	AI_25330_Netmotion Diagnostics Maintenance FY 21
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25280_Knight Security Systems
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25269_ADOBE RENEWAL FY21
	       ATT_Quote
	AI_25271_Microsoft Enterprise Support Services contract renewal
	       ATT_Microsoft Enterprise Support Services FY21
	AI_25344_Approving Blanket PO - Annual Kronos Renewal FY21
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25312_Malpractice Insurance for Williamson County EMS FY21
	       ATT_proposal 
	AI_25341_Authorize the execution of the 90-day survivability period to RFP 13RFP00101
	       ATT_Signed Addendum
	AI_25297_Lexipol
	       ATT_Lexipol Agreement
	AI_25283_Sharp Electronics for Sheriff's Office - Holly St.
	       ATT_Sharp Copier Holly St
	AI_25252_Sharp Copier County Atty
	       ATT_Sharp County Atty
	AI_25306_TX ST Library Com Blanket PO
	       ATT_Original Agreement
	AI_25319_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #21
	       ATT_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order _21
	AI_25320_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #22
	       ATT_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order _22
	AI_25321_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #23
	       ATT_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order _23
	       ATT_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order _23
	AI_25322_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #24
	       ATT_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order _24
	AI_25323_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order #25
	       ATT_Inner Loop Annex Renovation (P434) - Vaughn Change Order _25
	AI_25324_Expo Support Amenities-West Arena Parking (P562) Work Authorization No. 3 with Kleinfelder, Inc.
	       ATT_Expo Support Amenities W Arena Parking (P562)WA _3 Kleinfelder
	ARTICLE 1
	ARTICLE 2
	ARTICLE 3
	ARTICLE 4
	ARTICLE 5
	ARTICLE 6
	ARTICLE 7

	AI_25325_River Ranch Ph I Improvements (P315) Supplemental Work Authorization #2 to Work Authorization #2 with Raba Kistner, Inc.
	       ATT_River Ranch Ph I (P315) SWA_2 to WA_2 with Raba Kistner, Inc.
	ARTICLE 3
	By:       By:

	AI_25331_North Campus Facilities P324 Vaughn Construction Change Order 74
	       ATT_North Campus Facilities P324 Vaughn Construction Change Order 74
	AI_25332_Expo Concessions (P475) - Supplemental WA#2 to WA#2 with Alliance Engineering Group, Inc.
	       ATT_SWA_2 to WA_2 Alliance_P475
	AI_25360_Williamson County Expo Center Project P474 and P475 2nd Amendment to Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Populous
	       ATT_Expo Center P474 and P475 2nd Amendment to SWA_2 with Populous
	AI_25317_Tax Office Drop Box Wall Opening
	       ATT_agreement and quote
	Contract
	JobQuote746628

	AI_25334_Authorize issuing T2086 RFQ Materials Testing and Geotechnical Testing
	AI_25268_Asphalt Mixes 1809-262 renewal 2
	       ATT_1809-262 renewal 2 Asphalt Mixes
	       ATT_1809-262 renewal 1 Asphalt Mixes
	       ATT_Bid Tabulation Packet for 1809-262
	AI_25270_Williamson County Pollution Liability Insurance renewal request
	       ATT_Williamson County Pollution Liability Insurance
	AI_25295_Cobb Fendley 1811-273 WA2 Utility Coordination S San Gabriel Ranches
	       ATT_Cobb Fendley 1811-273 WA2 Utility Coordination S San Gabriel Ranches
	AI_25314_Bucket Truck Purchase for R&B 
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25329_1807-245 renewal 2 Bulk Fuel for Williamson County
	       ATT_1807-245 renewal 2 Bulk Fuel - vendor signed
	       ATT_1807-245 renewal 1 Bulk Fuel - fully executed
	       ATT_Bid Tab Packet 1807-245
	1468_001
	1468_040
	1468_076

	AI_25336_Authorize issuing T2232 IFB Hairy Man Road / Brushy Creek Road Improvements
	AI_25338_Authorize issuing t2164 IFB Crushed Granite Base
	AI_25339_Authorize issuing t2240 IFB Asphalt Cement 
	AI_25337_Final plat for Coupland Crossing subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_final plat - Coupland Crossing
	HPSCANNER1177
	HPSCANNER1178
	HPSCANNER117

	AI_25256_Hutto Education Foundation Presentation
	       ATT_HEF Commissioners Court Presentation 2020-2021
	       ATT_Report from Greater Round Rock Community Foundation
	       ATT_TSTC Summer 2020 request for funds
	AI_25343_Breast Cancer Presentation 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	AI_25345_Breast Cancer Presentation 
	       ATT_Breast Cancer Presentation 
	AI_25359_Veterans Treatment Court Funding 
	AI_25313_AgriLife Extension Service Agreement
	       ATT_FY21 Williamson County Salary Agreement
	AI_25259_Orphan Kitten Grant Request
	       ATT_Orphan Kitten Grant
	AI_25257_WCCHD - EMS NACCHO Grant
	       ATT_ILA
	2.2 The purpose of this Agreement is promote public health and safety by authorizing the use of Community Health Paramedic Personnel for planning and training to assist implement a grant from the National Association of County and City Health Officia...
	9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	10.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	WILLIAMSON COUNTY
	By: _________________________________

	AI_25255_Investigative Statement Analysis training for Sheriff's Office
	       ATT_Cold Case Training Contract
	AI_25302_Vehicle Reimbursement Agreement with Celebration Church for County Sheriff
	       ATT_Celebration Church
	AI_25299_Approval of SO Fuel Blanket
	AI_25328_Sheriff's Office Vehicles Purchase
	       ATT_Patrol Quote
	       ATT_Slick Top Patrol Quote
	       ATT_K9 Unit Quote
	AI_25266_Tyler Odyssey Maintenance and Support FY21
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25307_Annual Votec Support PO
	       ATT_Quote
	AI_25272_Approving Blanket PO - FY21 Internet Service
	AI_25273_Approving Blanket PO - Annual Suddenlink Renewal FY21
	AI_25333_Exempt ESRI from the 3 (three) quote requirement, previously exempted as Sole Source Provider.
	       ATT_ESRI Quote
	AI_25300_Kofile Criminal Records Preservation 
	       ATT_Purchase Proposal
	AI_25285_County Attorney Legislative Supplement Budget Amendment 10.13.20
	AI_25286_County Attorney Legislative Supplement Budget Amendment 10.13.20
	AI_25315_RCS BA Generator Project
	AI_25316_RCS BA Tower Lighting Replacement
	AI_25304_2018 Capital Improvement Programs Budget Transfers
	AI_25296_Approving Blanket PO - EMS Fuel FY21
	AI_25342_Reject Proposals submitted on RFP t1173  Billing Services and authorize new RFP T2147 .
	AI_25335_Exempt FirstWatch as Sole Source Provider for proprietary Software System 
	       ATT_Purchasing Agent Signed justification request
	       ATT_Vendor Sole Source Letter
	       ATT_Vendoer Sole Source Affidavit
	       ATT_Departmental Recommendation letter
	       ATT_NEgometrix Statement of Opening
	       ATT_Renewal Quote
	       ATT_Trigger quote
	AI_25310_New Ambulances Proposal FY21
	       ATT_proposal 
	AI_25327_Nemo-Q Exemption
	       ATT_Estimate
	AI_25326_Tyler Tech Orion Exemption
	       ATT_Tyler Invoice
	AI_25111_DOI Projects and Issues
	AI_25311_October 2020 Construction Summary Report
	       ATT_October 2020 Construction Summary Report
	       ATT_October 2020 PowerPoint Presentation
	AI_25303_2013 Road Bond Budget Transfer
	       ATT_2013 Road Bond
	AI_25274_Purchase of Various Freightliner Trucks for Road and Bridge
	       ATT_quote 1
	       ATT_quote 2
	       ATT_quote 3
	       ATT_quote 4
	AI_25275_Purchase of Water Tank Truck for Road and Bridge
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25276_Chip Spreader for Road and Bridge
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25277_Kubota M5-111 Ag Tractor for Road and Bridge
	       ATT_quote 1
	Sheet1

	       ATT_quote 2
	AI_25278_Purchase of Caterpillar Equipment for Road and Bridge 
	       ATT_quote 2
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25279_Street Sweeper Crosswind for Road and Bridge Department
	       ATT_quote
	AI_25305_Fleet Tire Blanket
	AI_25308_Fleet Parts Blanket PO
	AI_25347_Resolution for Condemnation
	       ATT_Brown Resolution
	AI_25348_Relocation Claim
	       ATT_Relocation Claim
	AI_25349_Relocation Claim
	       ATT_Alcorn Claim
	       ATT_Nesbit Claim
	AI_25350_CR 366 Real Estate Contract
	       ATT_Kroschewsky contract
	AI_25351_CR 366 Real Estate Contract
	       ATT_DandL Contract
	AI_25352_Sam Bass Rd. Real Estate Contract
	       ATT_Roha Contract
	AI_25353_Sam Bass Rd. Real Estate Contract
	       ATT_LeBlanc Contract
	AI_25354_SH 29 Corridor Real Estate Contract
	       ATT_Wilco Land Investment Contract
	AI_25355_Phasing Agreement
	       ATT_Santa Rita Phasing Agreement
	AI_25356_Braun Pkwy Phasing Agreement
	       ATT_Braun Parkway Phasing Agreement
	AI_25357_Executive Session
	AI_25358_Economic Development

		2020-10-01T09:31:38-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2020-10-07T12:26:48-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




